
BIRMINGHAM CITY COMMISSION AGENDA 
March 8, 2021 

7:30 P.M. 
VIRTUAL MEETING 

MEETING ID: 655 079 760 
 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Pierre Boutros, Mayor 
 

II. ROLL CALL 
Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk  
 

III. PROCLAMATIONS, CONGRATULATORY RESOLUTIONS, AWARDS, APPOINTMENTS, 
RESIGNATIONS AND CONFIRMATIONS, ADMINISTRATION OF OATHS, INTRODUCTION OF 
GUESTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS. 

Announcements 
• Happy Birthday Commissioner Baller 

 
IV. OPEN TO THE PUBLIC FOR MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA 

 
V. CONSENT AGENDA 

All items listed on the consent agenda are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion 
and approved by a roll call vote.  There will be no separate discussion of the items unless a 
commissioner or citizen so requests, in which event the item will be removed from the general order 
of business and considered under the last item of new business. 

A. Resolution approving the City Commission meeting minutes of February 22, 2021. 
 

B. Resolution approving the warrant list, including Automated Clearing House payments, 
dated February 24, 2021, in the amount of $4,908,727.09. 
 

C. Resolution approving the warrant list, including Automated Clearing House payments, 
dated March 3, 2021, in the amount of $1,205,931.69. 
 

D. Resolution to approve the purchase and planting of eighty-three (83) trees from KLM 
Landscape for the Spring 2021 Tree Purchase and Planting Program for a total project 
cost not to exceed $34,970.00. Funds are available from the Local Streets Fund-Forestry 
Service Contract account #203-449.005-819.0000, the Major Streets Fund-Forestry 
Service Contract account #202-449.005-819.0000, the Local Streets Fund-Operating 
Supplies account #203-449.005-729.0000, the Major Streets Fund-Operating Supplies 
account #202-449.005-729.0000 and the Parks- Other Contractual Services account 
#101-751.000-811.0000 for these services. Further, to authorize the Mayor and City Clerk 
to sign the agreement on behalf of the City upon receipt of the required insurance 
coverage.  



2  March 8, 2020 

E. Resolution to adopt the updated Park Rules and Regulations as submitted with 
recommended changes. 
 

F. Resolution to approve the Program Year 2021 High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area 
(HIDTA) Sub recipient agreement between the County of Oakland and the City of 
Birmingham. Further, to authorize the Mayor and the City Manager to sign the agreement 
on behalf of the City. 
 

G. Resolution to approve the use of 8 parking spaces in the right-of-way adjacent to the 
property located at 670 S. Old Woodward to help fulfill the parking requirements per 
Article 4, section 4.43 (G) (4) of the Zoning Ordinance. 
 

H. Resolution to approve the Cost Participation Agreement with the Board of Road 
Commissioners of The County of Oakland, agreeing to pay the City’s share of construction 
costs related to the road resurfacing and traffic signal improvements on Cranbrook Road 
between 14 Mile Road and Maple Road. The total amount of the City’s share of the cost 
is $166,799: with $7,965 for traffic signal work to be charged to 202-303.001-971.0100, 
Major Street Fund Traffic Controls; and, $158,834 for roadwork to be charged to the Major 
Streets Fund Public Construction, 202-449.001-981.0100. Also, to direct the Mayor to sign 
the agreement on behalf of the City. 
 

I. Resolution to authorize the use of personal identification numbers acquired from the 
Michigan Department of Treasury as electronic signatures for the purpose of filing 
personal and property taxes that are filed electronically.  
 
 

  VI. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

None. 
 

VII. NEW BUSINESS 
A. Public Hearing – 219 Elm St. – All Seasons 2 

1. Resolution to APPROVE the Special Land Use Permit, Final Site Plan and Design 
Review application to allow the construction and operation of the All Seasons 2 
independent senior living facility at 219 Elm St. 

      OR 
 Resolution to DENY the Special Land Use Permit, Final Site Plan and Design 
 Review application to allow the construction and operation of the All Seasons 2 
 independent senior living facility at 219 Elm St. 
 

B. Resolution to adopt Resolution # __________ to affirm and approve the master plan 
review and adoption process from the first draft of the 2040 Plan to the final public 
hearing to consider adoption of the final draft of the Birmingham 2040 Plan. 

 
C. Resolution to approve the resolution adopting a policy relative to the review and 

granting of poverty exemption by the City and the updated Hardship Application.  
 



3  March 8, 2020 

D. Resolution to approve the October 21, 2020 invoice in the amount of $9,360 and 
approval of the City Manager authorized emergency repair of the Chester Street 
Parking structure elevator agreements in the amount of $11,611. 

 
E. Resolution to approve the following: 

• Resolution to continue the Revised Temporary Signage Regulations due to COVID-
19. 

• Resolution to continue the Revised Temporary COVID-19 Off-Season Outdoor Dining 
Standards. 

and 
• Resolution to waive parking fees charged for monthly permit parking holders and all 

other fees in all parking structures until June 30, 2021.  All parking fees including but 
not limited to monthly permit parking fees and gate fees shall assume effective July 
1, 2021. 

 
F. Commission Discussion on items from prior meeting.  

G. Commission Items for Future Discussion. A motion is required to bring up the item for 
future discussion at the next reasonable agenda, no discussion on the topic will happen 
tonight. 

VIII. REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 
 

IX. COMMUNICATIONS 
A. Temporary COVID-19 Outdoor Dining Resolution 
B. Communication from Cory King Holland 

a) Communication on behalf of Stuart Sherman 
 

X. REPORTS 
A. Commissioner Reports - Notice to Appoint (1) Architectural Review Comm., (2) Housing 

Board of Appeals, (3) Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 
B. Commissioner Comments 
C. Advisory Boards, Committees, Commissions’ Reports and Agendas 
D. Legislation 
E. City Staff 

1. 2nd Quarter Financial Report  
2. 2nd Quarter Investment Report  
3. 2020 Police Department Annual Report 

       
INFORMATION ONLY   

XI. ADJOURN 
 
NOTICE:  Individuals requiring accommodations, such as mobility, visual, hearing, interpreter or other assistance, for 
effective participation in this meeting should contact the City Clerk's Office at (248) 530-1880 (voice), or (248) 644-
5115 (TDD) at least one day in advance to request mobility, visual, hearing or other assistance.  
 
Las personas que requieren alojamiento, tales como servicios de interpretación, la participación efectiva en esta reunión 
deben ponerse en contacto con la Oficina del Secretario Municipal al (248) 530-1880 por lo menos el día antes de la 
reunión pública. (Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964). 

tel:%28248%29%20530-1880


Birmingham City Commission Minutes 
February 22, 2021 

7:30 P.M. 
Virtual Meeting 

Meeting ID: 655 079 760 
Vimeo Link: https://vimeo.com/event/3470/videos/510056650/ 

I. CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Pierre Boutros, Mayor, opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance. 

II. ROLL CALL
Alexandra Bingham, City Clerk, called the roll. 

Present: Mayor Boutros (location: Birmingham, MI) 
Mayor Pro Tem Longe (location: Birmingham, MI) 
Commissioner Baller (location: Birmingham, MI) 
Commissioner Hoff (location: Birmingham, MI) 
Commissioner Host (location: Birmingham, MI) 
Commissioner Nickita (location: Birmingham, MI) 
Commissioner Sherman (location: Birmingham, MI) 

Absent: None 

Administration: City Manager Markus, Asst. Fire Chief Bartalino, City Clerk Bingham, Police Chief 
Clemence, City Attorney Currier, Planning Director Ecker, Police Operations Commander Grewe, Building 
Official Johnson, City Attorney Kucharek, Deputy Treasurer Todd, Assistant Finance Director Wickenheiser 

III. PROCLAMATIONS, CONGRATULATORY RESOLUTIONS, AWARDS, APPOINTMENTS,
RESIGNATIONS AND CONFIRMATIONS, ADMINISTRATION OF OATHS, INTRODUCTION OF 
GUESTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS. 

Announcements 
● The City Commission would like to congratulate Nathan Schechter for being named as a U.S.

Presidential Scholars Program Candidate. 
● The City Commission would like to welcome the 40th District House of Representatives - Mari

Manoogian. 

Appointments 
To recognize the following four student representatives for their service in 2020 on Birmingham boards 
and committees and award each student a certificate in appreciation for their civic involvement:  

Parks and Recreation Board James Watkinson – Seaholm 
Mallory Windsor – Seaholm 

5A

https://vimeo.com/event/3470/videos/510056650/


2  February 22, 2021 

 
Planning Board   Rachel Hester – Seaholm 

June Lee – Seaholm 
 
02-029-21 Appointments of Student Representatives to Boards and Committees 
 
The Commission the students for their respective appointments. Carter Lutz was absent. 
 
Commissioners Hoff and Sherman commended and welcomed the students. 
 
Commissioner Baller encouraged the students to actively participate in their board and committee 
meetings. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Sherman, seconded by Commissioner Host:  
To appoint the following students as non-voting members of the respective boards and committees for 
the calendar year 2021. 
 

HDC-DRB    Charles Cusimano—Groves 
 Elizabeth Wiegand—Seaholm 

 
Multi-Modal Transportation Board  Lauren Morris—Groves 

      Justin Schoener—Seaholm 
      Alex Walters—Seaholm 
 
 Museum Board    Carter Lutz – Groves 
      Aidan Schoener—Seaholm 
 
 Planning Board    Daniel Murphy—Seaholm 
      Jane Wineman—Seaholm 
 
 Public Arts Board    Hadley Lovell—Seaholm 
      Nora Sherifaj—Seaholm 
 
 Parks & Recreation Board   R.J. Carrel—Groves 
      Alison Chapnick—Groves 
      Kyle Sayers—Seaholm 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Sherman 
    Commissioner Host  

Commissioner Hoff    
Mayor Pro Tem Longe 

    Commissioner Nickita 
    Mayor Boutros 
    Commissioner Baller 
     
   Nays, None 
 
02-030-21 Appointment of Marla Kaftan to the Public Arts Board 
 



3  February 22, 2021 

The Commission interviewed Nicole Braddock for the appointment.  
 
The Commission interviewed Marla Kaftan for the appointment.  
 
Commissioner Baller expressed dismay that the Commission could only make one appointment from the 
two well-qualified candidates. 
 
MOTION: Nomination by Commissioner Sherman:  
To appoint Marla Kaftan to the Public Arts Board as an alternate member to serve the remainder of a 
three-year term to expire January 28, 2022. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Sherman 

Commissioner Hoff    
Commissioner Host  
Mayor Pro Tem Longe 

    Commissioner Nickita 
    Mayor Boutros 
    Commissioner Baller 
     
   Nays, None 
 
Mayor Boutros agreed with Commissioner Baller, saying Birmingham was very lucky to have two qualified 
candidates. He congratulated Ms. Kaftan on her appointment. He thanked Ms. Braddock for her interest, 
and asked her to keep her eye out for future opportunities to serve with the City.  
 

IV. OPEN TO THE PUBLIC FOR MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
Cindy Rose spoke as a member of the Board of Review, saying she prefers the City’s current way of 
calculating hardships versus the method recently recommended by the state. She asked that before the 
City considers implementing the recommended changes that they compare the hardships granted in 2020 
in terms of what was granted and what would have been granted had the City been following the state’s 
formula at that time.  
 
Joe Samona, a southeast Michigan resident and advocate for suicide prevention, spoke. He said that, out 
the loss of someone he loved to suicide in 2009, he was aiming to speak to every municipal governing 
body in Michigan to emphasize the importance of starting and maintaining a suicide prevention program. 
He also asked people to remain aware of the pain people considering suicide experience, and to reach out 
to them and to show them that they are cared for, valued, and loved.  
 
Commissioner Hoff commented that the City contributes to Common Ground, which runs a mental health 
crisis hotline.  
 
The Oakland County Common Ground crisis hotline can be reached at 1-800-231-1127. They also have a 
chat service available at commongroundhelps.org. Both services are available 24 hours a day, seven days 
a week. 
 
Andrew Haig said he would like to see the Commission pass an ordinance requiring hands-free devices in 
vehicles at the local level, just as Troy, MI has, to increase road safety in Birmingham. He said he was also 
in favor of Ms. Manoogian’s legislative efforts to pass a similar law statewide. 



4  February 22, 2021 

 
V. CONSENT AGENDA 

All items listed on the consent agenda are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion 
and approved by a roll call vote.  There will be no separate discussion of the items unless a 
commissioner or citizen so requests, in which event the item will be removed from the general order 
of business and considered under the last item of new business. 

02-031-21  Consent Agenda 
 
The following items were pulled from the Consent Agenda: 

Commissioner Hoff: Item C – Oakland Together Restaurant Relief Grant Program   
  Interlocal Agreement 
   Item G – Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. Professional Services Agreement  
 

MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Sherman, seconded by Commissioner Nickita: 
To approve the Consent Agenda with the exception of Items C and G. 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Sherman 
   Commissioner Nickita 
   Commissioner Hoff 
   Commissioner Host 

Mayor Boutros 
Mayor Pro Tem Longe  
Commissioner Baller 

 
Nays,  None  

 
A. Resolution approving the City Commission meeting minutes of February 8, 2021. 

 
B. Resolution approving the warrant list, including Automated Clearing House payments, dated 

February 10, 2021, in the amount of $2,305,575.75. 
 
D. Resolution to extend the contract for towing and storage of impounded, abandoned, accident and 

other motor vehicles with Jake’s Acquisitions DBA Bob Adams Towing, Inc. for a term of two 
years commencing on February 21, 2021 and terminating of February 25, 2023 and to authorize 
the Mayor and the City Clerk to execute the contract on behalf of the City.  
 

E. Resolution to set a public hearing date for March 22, 2021 to consider the Revised Final Site Plan 
and Design and Special Land Use Permit Amendment at 555 S. Old Woodward to allow for the 
transfer of ownership, name change from Triple Nickel to Birmingham Pub, and site plan and 
design changes at 555 S. Old Woodward. 
 

F. Resolution authorizing the IT department to purchase the Nutanix extended service agreement 
from CDWG for a total cost not to exceed $8,185.00. Funds are available in the Computer 
Maintenance fund account # 636-228.000-933.0600 

 
02-032-21 (Item C)  Oakland Together Restaurant Relief Grant Program 
Interlocal Agreement 
 

 



5  February 22, 2021 

Asst. Fire Chief Bartalino explained that the Fire Department worked with the Birmingham Shopping 
District (BSD) and the City’s legal team to determine interest from restaurants. Restaurants submitted 
requests, and the distribution was kept to an equal dollar amount per restaurant in terms of costs. There 
will be a second round of distributions coming up. All restaurants were made aware of the opportunity 
through the BSD.  
 
Commission Host commended the Fire Department on organizing this effort. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Hoff, seconded by Commissioner Sherman: 
To execute the Oakland Together Restaurant Relief Grant Program Interlocal Agreement, and further to 
authorize the Fire Chief to sign the agreement on behalf of the City. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Hoff 
   Commissioner Sherman 
   Commissioner Host 
   Commissioner Baller 
   Commissioner Nickita 

Mayor Boutros 
Mayor Pro Tem Longe  

 
 Nays, None  
 

02-033-21 (Item G)  Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. Professional Services  
 Agreement 

 
Building Official Johnson clarified that the $350 listed for the Final Grade and As-Built Survey Review 
included a $200 fee for the initial review and a $150 fee if a second inspection is needed. He explained 
that the fees are paid by developers through the establishment of an escrow account at the beginning of 
a project. The fee schedule determines how much money the developers must put in escrow. He said the 
$350 fee is split into the two sub-fees of $200 and $150 in order to only charge developers who require a 
follow-up inspection the additional $150 fee. He explained that if there are funds left over in the escrow 
account at the end of a project, the funds are returned to the developer.  
 
Mike MacDonald, of HRC, agreed. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Hoff, seconded by Commissioner Host: 
To extend the Professional Services Agreement with Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. for Residential Site 
Evaluations Services for a total three (3) year term. Inserted memo from January 22, 2020 as listed in 
the attachments. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Hoff 
   Commissioner Host 
   Commissioner Sherman 
   Commissioner Baller 
   Commissioner Nickita 

Mayor Boutros 
Mayor Pro Tem Longe  

 
 Nays, None  



6  February 22, 2021 

 
VI. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

None. 
 

VII. NEW BUSINESS 
02-034-21  2021-2022 Program Year and Community Development Block Grant 
 
Assistant Finance Director Wickenheiser explained that during the public hearing on this item only the 
public was permitted to speak. She stated that members of the City administration or Commission were 
permitted to speak before and after the public hearing. 
 
Mayor Boutros opened the public hearing at 8:31 p.m. 
 
Cris Braun, Executive Director of Next, asked whether this was the appropriate time for her to advocate 
for Next. She said she was not sure whether this motion was just for the City to accept the Block Grant 
money from Oakland County, or whether this motion was regarding the disbursement of the Block Grant 
money by the City. 
 
Assistant Finance Director Wickenheiser said this was just the general hearing regarding accepting the 
Block Grant money from Oakland County.  
 
Seeing no public comment, Mayor Boutros closed the public hearing at 8:32 p.m. 
 
Commissioners Hoff and Host recommended the motion specify that all the funds would be administered 
through Next since there was no request for funds from the City for the 2021-2022 Program Year. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Hoff, seconded by Commissioner Host: 
Resolution to authorize the Finance Director to complete the 2021-2022 Program Year and Community 
Development Block Grant application and conflict of interest certification and to authorize the Mayor to 
sign the application and conflict of interest certification and other documents resulting from this application 
on behalf of the City and submit them to Oakland County. The project(s) to be included in the application 
and the respective allocations of Community Development Block Grant Funds are as follows:  
   APPROVED 2020** 

1. Public Services – Yard Services   $   7,327 
2. Public Services – Senior Services   $   3,500 
3. Minor Home Repair    $  25,263 
TOTAL                $  36,090 

 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Hoff 
   Commissioner Host 
   Commissioner Sherman 
   Commissioner Baller 
   Commissioner Nickita 

Mayor Boutros 
Mayor Pro Tem Longe  

 
 Nays, None  

 
02-035-21  Birmingham Bloomfield Chamber of Commerce Annual Village Fair  



7  February 22, 2021 

 
City Clerk Bingham presented the item. 
 
Joe Bauman, President of the Birmingham Bloomfield Chamber of Commerce was present. 
 
The Commission concurred that the motion language needed to be updated to reflect the possibility that 
Covid-19 could impact the event and could even possibly necessitate its cancellation. 
 
Mr. Bauman confirmed that the BBCC was aware of that fact and in dialogue with their vendor about that 
possibility.  
 
Commissioner Sherman provided the motion language that had been used for special events in the City 
throughout 2020 to acknowledge such contingencies.  
 
The Commission agreed to use Commissioner Sherman’s recommended motion language for this item.  
 
In response to Commissioner Nickita, Mr. Bauman confirmed that hosting a private party at the fair the 
Wednesday before the fair opens generates more revenue than having the fair open to the public for an 
additional day. He said the planned party this year would be for the Young Presidents organization and 
their families, and would be under 300 guests. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Hoff, seconded by Commissioner Nickita: 
To approve a request from the Birmingham Bloomfield Chamber of Commerce to hold the Annual Village 
Fair and private party in Shain Park and on the surrounding streets and sidewalks, June 2 through June 6, 
2021, contingent upon compliance with all permit and insurance requirements and payment of all fees and, 
further, pursuant to any minor modifications or event cancellation that may be deemed necessary by 
administrative staff, leading up to or at the time of the event, due to public health and safety measures.  
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Hoff 
   Commissioner Nickita 
   Commissioner Host 
   Commissioner Sherman 
   Commissioner Baller 

Mayor Boutros 
Mayor Pro Tem Longe  

 
 Nays, None  

 
02-036-21  2021 Liquor Licenses for Birmingham Restaurants 
 
Commissioner Nickita recused himself from discussion and voting on the license for 220 Restaurant, citing 
an existing business relationship with the owners. 
 
Commissioner Sherman recused himself from discussion and voting on the license for The Morrie, citing 
the fact that a client of his was currently in an adverse position vis-a-vis The Morrie. 
 
The Commission agreed to postpone 220 Restaurant and The Morrie to the end of the 2021 liquor license 
review discussion due to the recusals. 
 
Mayor Boutros spoke in support of the restaurants and owners and thanked them for their work in the 



8  February 22, 2021 

City. 
 
Police Chief Clemence stated that Vinotecca had an outstanding tax bill of $1,294.86 from July 2020 per 
the most up-to-date spreadsheet from the Treasurer’s Office.  
 
Several Commissioners commented that the spreadsheet provided in their agenda did not reflect 
Vinotecca’s tax due. 
 
PD Ecker clarified that the Mad Hatter had plans to reopen. She said the issues with Bella Piatti were 
resolved, that Community Development was working with 220 Restaurant to resolve their issues, and that 
the Rugby Grille was currently in compliance with ordinances but that their adherence had been somewhat 
touch-and-go. She said that S3, Dick O’Dow’s, Birmingham Pub and Big Rock Chophouse had temporary 
signage out due to Covid-19. She noted that although the temporary allowance for that signage had 
recently expired, Community Development intended to bring a request for a renewal of the allowance back 
before the Commission in March 2021. In light of this, she said that Community Development was not 
concerned with the temporary signage out at S3, Dick O’Dow’s, Birmingham Pub and Big Rock Chophouse 
at this time. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Sherman, seconded by Commissioner Nickita: 
To approve the renewal for the 2021 licensing period of the Class B, Class C, and microbrewery liquor 
licenses, for which a current year application was received, for the following establishments: Adachi 
Restaurant Group, All Seasons, Bella Piatti, Big Rock Chop and Brewhouse, Birmingham Theatre, Bistro 
Joe’s, Churchill’s Bistro, Dick O’Dow’s, Elie’s Mediterranean Cafe, Emagine Palladium, Fleming’s, Forest 
Grille II LLC, Griffin Claw Brewery, Hyde Park Steakhouse, La Strada Cafe, Luxe Bar and Grille, Market 
North End, Phoenicia, Salvatore Scallopini, Streetside Seafood, Tallulah Wine Bar and Bistro, Toast, 
Townhouse, Triple Nickel, Whole Foods Market, Lincoln Hills Golf Course, and Springdale Golf Course.  
  
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Sherman   
   Commissioner Nickita 
   Commissioner Host 
   Commissioner Baller 

Mayor Boutros 
Mayor Pro Tem Longe  

   Commissioner Hoff 
 

 Nays, None  
 
02-037-21  Birmingham Sushi 
 
PD Ecker recommended a public hearing be set in order to encourage Birmingham Sushi to resolve its 
outstanding issue with the City of having an unpermitted outdoor platform. 
 
She confirmed for Mayor Pro Tem Longe that the City had already made efforts to resolve the issue with 
the establishment. She stated that the matter will be simple to resolve as long as the owners fill out the 
correct paperwork. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Sherman, seconded by Commissioner Hoff: 
To set a public hearing for 7:30 PM on Monday, March 22, 2021, that will be held over zoom to consider 
whether to file an objection with the Michigan Liquor Control Commission to the renewal of the license for 
consumption of intoxicating liquor on the premises currently held by the owners/operators of Birmingham 



9  February 22, 2021 

Sushi, for the following reasons: violation of Section 10-40(3). Further, to direct the City Manager to notify 
the owners/operators of, in writing, that they may submit any written material for consideration by the 
City Commission prior to the date of the public hearing or at the hearing, that the licensee may appear in 
person at the hearing or be represented by counsel and that the licensee may present witnesses or written 
evidence at the hearing. 
 
No vote was taken on the motion.  
 
02-038-21  Reconsideration of 2021 Liquor License Approvals for Hyde Park  
   Steakhouse and Tallulah Wine Bar and Bistro 
 
During the opportunity for comment on the previous motion, City Manager Markus said he had just received 
an updated list of establishments with outstanding taxes from Police Chief Clemence.  
 
Mayor Boutros read into the record that Hyde Park Steakhouse had outstanding taxes of $5,011.96 and  
Tallulah Wine Bar and Bistro had outstanding taxes of $460.95 as of the February 21, 2021 updated list. 
 
Police Chief Clemence confirmed that was the most up to date list he was aware of, and that he had 
received the information from Deputy Finance Director Todd on February 21, 2021. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Sherman, seconded by Commissioner Nickita: 
To reconsider the 2021 liquor license approvals of Hyde Park Steakhouse and Tallulah Wine Bar. 
  
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Sherman   
   Commissioner Nickita 
   Commissioner Host 
   Commissioner Baller 

Mayor Boutros 
Mayor Pro Tem Longe  

   Commissioner Hoff 
 

 Nays, None  
 
02-039-21  Community House 
 
Timothy Hunt, Sr. Vice President of Operations at the Community House, said Community House would be 
submitting their payment for their outstanding sidewalk bill on February 23, 2021. He apologized and said 
they were unaware they had an outstanding bill. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Hoff, seconded by Commissioner Baller: 
To set a public hearing for 7:30 PM on Monday, March 22, 2021, that will be held over zoom to consider 
whether to file an objection with the Michigan Liquor Control Commission to the renewal of the license for 
consumption of intoxicating liquor on the premises currently held by the owners/operators of Community 
House, for the following reasons: violation of Section 10-40(7). Further, to direct the City Manager to notify 
the owners/operators of, in writing, that they may submit any written material for consideration by the 
City Commission prior to the date of the public hearing or at the hearing, that the licensee may appear in 
person at the hearing or be represented by counsel and that the licensee may present witnesses or written 
evidence at the hearing. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Hoff 



10  February 22, 2021 

   Commissioner Baller 
   Commissioner Sherman   
   Commissioner Nickita 
   Commissioner Host 

Mayor Boutros 
Mayor Pro Tem Longe  

 
 Nays, None  

 
02-040-21  Hazel Ravines Downtown 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Hoff, seconded by Commissioner Nickita: 
To set a public hearing for 7:30 PM on Monday, March 22, 2021, that will be held over zoom to consider 
whether to file an objection with the Michigan Liquor Control Commission to the renewal of the license for 
consumption of intoxicating liquor on the premises currently held by the owners/operators of Hazel Ravines 
Downtown, for the following reasons: violation of Section 10-40(7). Further, to direct the City Manager to 
notify the owners/operators of, in writing, that they may submit any written material for consideration by 
the City Commission prior to the date of the public hearing or at the hearing, that the licensee may appear 
in person at the hearing or be represented by counsel and that the licensee may present witnesses or 
written evidence at the hearing. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Hoff 
   Commissioner Nickita 
   Commissioner Baller 
   Commissioner Sherman   
   Commissioner Host 

Mayor Boutros 
Mayor Pro Tem Longe  

 
 Nays, None  

 
02-041-21  Hyde Park Steakhouse 
 
MOTION: Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Longe, seconded by Commissioner Host: 
To set a public hearing for 7:30 PM on Monday, March 22, 2021, that will be held over zoom to consider 
whether to file an objection with the Michigan Liquor Control Commission to the renewal of the license for 
consumption of intoxicating liquor on the premises currently held by the owners/operators of Hyde Park 
Steakhouse, for the following reasons: violation of Section 10-40(7). Further, to direct the City Manager to 
notify the owners/operators of, in writing, that they may submit any written material for consideration by 
the City Commission prior to the date of the public hearing or at the hearing, that the licensee may appear 
in person at the hearing or be represented by counsel and that the licensee may present witnesses or 
written evidence at the hearing. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Mayor Pro Tem Longe  
   Commissioner Host 
   Commissioner Hoff 
   Commissioner Nickita 
   Commissioner Baller 
   Commissioner Sherman   

Mayor Boutros 



11  February 22, 2021 

 
 Nays, None  

 
02-042-21  Mad Hatter  
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Sherman, seconded by Commissioner Host: 
To set a public hearing for 7:30 PM on Monday, March 22, 2021, that will be held over zoom to consider 
whether to file an objection with the Michigan Liquor Control Commission to the renewal of the license for 
consumption of intoxicating liquor on the premises currently held by the owners/operators of Mad Hatter, 
for the following reasons: violation of Section 10-40(7). Further, to direct the City Manager to notify the 
owners/operators of, in writing, that they may submit any written material for consideration by the City 
Commission prior to the date of the public hearing or at the hearing, that the licensee may appear in 
person at the hearing or be represented by counsel and that the licensee may present witnesses or written 
evidence at the hearing. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Sherman  
   Commissioner Host 
   Mayor Pro Tem Longe  
   Commissioner Hoff 
   Commissioner Nickita 
   Commissioner Baller 

Mayor Boutros 
 

 Nays, None  
 
02-043-21  Pernoi 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Sherman, seconded by Commissioner Host: 
To set a public hearing for 7:30 PM on Monday, March 22, 2021, that will be held over zoom to consider 
whether to file an objection with the Michigan Liquor Control Commission to the renewal of the license for 
consumption of intoxicating liquor on the premises currently held by the owners/operators of Pernoi, for 
the following reasons: violation of Section 10-40(6). Further, to direct the City Manager to notify the 
owners/operators of, in writing, that they may submit any written material for consideration by the City 
Commission prior to the date of the public hearing or at the hearing, that the licensee may appear in 
person at the hearing or be represented by counsel and that the licensee may present witnesses or written 
evidence at the hearing. 
 
PD Ecker clarified that the City did pass a temporary resolution to allow isinglass and enclosures during the 
Covid-19 pandemic. Pernoi, however, has a clause in their SLUP that specifically prohibits the use of 
isinglass. In order to be permitted the use of isinglass, Pernoi would have to request permission from the 
City under the temporary resolution, which has not occurred. 
 
Kelly Allen, attorney for Pernoi, explained that on March 9, 2020 Pernoi asked the Commission to allow it 
the use of isinglass. The Commission granted that request but said Pernoi’s SLUP would have to be 
amended to complete the process. As a result of the adjustments that had to be made in response to the 
Covid-19 pandemic’s intensification at the end of March 2020, Pernoi did not go back to the Planning Board 
to amend their SLUP. Ms. Allen said she is now working with PD Ecker to try and resolve the isinglass issue, 
with the hope that it could be administratively approved. 
 



12  February 22, 2021 

PD Ecker confirmed she would continue working with Ms. Allen in hopes of resolving the issue in advance 
of the March 22, 2021 public hearing. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Sherman  
   Commissioner Host 
   Mayor Pro Tem Longe  
   Commissioner Hoff 
   Commissioner Nickita 

Mayor Boutros 
 

 Nays, Commissioner Baller 
 
 
02-044-21  Social Kitchen 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Nickita, seconded by Commissioner Hoff: 
To set a public hearing for 7:30 PM on Monday, March 22, 2021, that will be held over zoom to consider 
whether to file an objection with the Michigan Liquor Control Commission to the renewal of the license for 
consumption of intoxicating liquor on the premises currently held by the owners/operators of Social 
Kitchen, for the following reasons: violation of Section 10-40(7). Further, to direct the City Manager to 
notify the owners/operators of, in writing, that they may submit any written material for consideration by 
the City Commission prior to the date of the public hearing or at the hearing, that the licensee may appear 
in person at the hearing or be represented by counsel and that the licensee may present witnesses or 
written evidence at the hearing. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Nickita 
   Commissioner Hoff 
   Commissioner Sherman  
   Commissioner Host 
   Mayor Pro Tem Longe  

  Commissioner Baller 
Mayor Boutros 
 

 Nays, None 
 
02-045-21  Tallulah Wine Bar and Bistro 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Sherman, seconded by Commissioner Host: 
To set a public hearing for 7:30 PM on Monday, March 22, 2021, that will be held over zoom to consider 
whether to file an objection with the Michigan Liquor Control Commission to the renewal of the license for 
consumption of intoxicating liquor on the premises currently held by the owners/operators of Tallulah Wine 
Bar and Bistro, for the following reasons: violation of Section 10-40(7). Further, to direct the City Manager 
to notify the owners/operators of, in writing, that they may submit any written material for consideration 
by the City Commission prior to the date of the public hearing or at the hearing, that the licensee may 
appear in person at the hearing or be represented by counsel and that the licensee may present witnesses 
or written evidence at the hearing. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Sherman  
   Commissioner Host 
   Commissioner Nickita 



13  February 22, 2021 

   Commissioner Hoff 
   Mayor Pro Tem Longe  

  Commissioner Baller 
Mayor Boutros 
 

 Nays, None 
 
02-046-21  Townsend Hotel/Rugby Grille 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Nickita, seconded by Commissioner Hoff: 
To set a public hearing for 7:30 PM on Monday, March 22, 2021, that will be held over zoom to consider 
whether to file an objection with the Michigan Liquor Control Commission to the renewal of the license for 
consumption of intoxicating liquor on the premises currently held by the owners/operators of Townsend 
Hotel/Rugby Grille, for the following reasons: violation of Section 10-40(7) and Section 10-40(3). Further, 
to direct the City Manager to notify the owners/operators of, in writing, that they may submit any written 
material for consideration by the City Commission prior to the date of the public hearing or at the hearing, 
that the licensee may appear in person at the hearing or be represented by counsel and that the licensee 
may present witnesses or written evidence at the hearing. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Nickita 
   Commissioner Hoff 
   Commissioner Host 
   Commissioner Sherman      
   Mayor Pro Tem Longe  

  Commissioner Baller 
Mayor Boutros 
 

 Nays, None 
 
02-047-21  Vinotecca 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Sherman, seconded by Commissioner Host: 
To set a public hearing for 7:30 PM on Monday, March 22, 2021, that will be held over zoom to consider 
whether to file an objection with the Michigan Liquor Control Commission to the renewal of the license for 
consumption of intoxicating liquor on the premises currently held by the owners/operators of Vinotecca, 
for the following reasons: violation of Section 10-40(7). Further, to direct the City Manager to notify the 
owners/operators of, in writing, that they may submit any written material for consideration by the City 
Commission prior to the date of the public hearing or at the hearing, that the licensee may appear in 
person at the hearing or be represented by counsel and that the licensee may present witnesses or written 
evidence at the hearing. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Sherman  
   Commissioner Host 
   Commissioner Nickita 
   Commissioner Hoff    
   Mayor Pro Tem Longe  

  Commissioner Baller 
Mayor Boutros 
 

 Nays, None 



14  February 22, 2021 

 
02-048-21  Shift/Sidecar/Slice 
 
Kelly Allen, attorney for S3 and Rojo/Sidecar owner Steven Simon, stated that Mr. Simon was in the process 
of paying off the water bills owed from Rojo/Sidecar to the building owner at the Rojo/Sidecar location, 
James Esshaki. Ms. Allen said a payment plan for the water bills could likely be set up between Mr. Esshaki 
and the City. 
 
Ms. Allen said she was working with the Treasurer’s Office, the former lessees of the space where 
Rojo/Sidecar was, and Mr. Esshaki to determine which party is responsible to pay the backtaxes owed on 
the Rojo/Sidecar location. The matter was complicated by a sublease agreement between Rojo/Sidecar 
and the former lessees, who owned Max & Erma’s, and a bankruptcy on the part of the former lessees. 
She said that once the responsible party is determined the taxes would be paid. 
 
After discussion between the Commission, the City Attorney, Police Chief Clemence, and Ms. Allen it was 
clarified that since S3 is a different LLC than Rojo/Sidecar, S3 cannot be held accountable for the backtaxes 
and water bills owed by Rojo/Sidecar. 
 
Since S3 had neither backtaxes due nor zoning violations beyond the one mentioned by PD Ecker regarding 
temporary Covid-19 related signage, the Commission moved to renew S3’s liquor license. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Sherman, seconded by Commissioner Host: 
To approve the renewal for the 2021 licensing period of the liquor license, for which a current year 
application was received, for Shift/Sidecar/Slice. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Sherman  
   Commissioner Host 
   Commissioner Nickita 
   Commissioner Hoff    
   Mayor Pro Tem Longe  

  Commissioner Baller 
Mayor Boutros 
 

 Nays, None 
 
02-049-21  Rojo/Sidecar 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Sherman, seconded by Commissioner Nickita: 
To set a public hearing for 7:30 PM on Monday, March 22, 2021, that will be held over zoom to consider 
whether to file an objection with the Michigan Liquor Control Commission to the renewal of the license for 
consumption of intoxicating liquor on the premises currently held by the owners of the liquor license at 
what was formerly Rojo/Sidecar, for the following reasons: violation of Section 10-40(7). Further, to direct 
the City Manager to notify the owners/operators of, in writing, that they may submit any written material 
for consideration by the City Commission prior to the date of the public hearing or at the hearing, that the 
licensee may appear in person at the hearing or be represented by counsel and that the licensee may 
present witnesses or written evidence at the hearing. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Sherman  
   Commissioner Nickita 
   Commissioner Host 



15  February 22, 2021 

   Commissioner Hoff    
   Mayor Pro Tem Longe  

  Commissioner Baller 
Mayor Boutros 
 

 Nays, None 
 
02-050-21  220 Restaurant 
 
In reply to Commissioner Hoff, Police Chief Clemence confirmed that Mr. Elia was consistently responsive 
and helpful regarding police contacts with 220 Restaurant. Police Chief Clemence said nothing needed to 
be improved on by the management in terms of police contacts. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Sherman, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Longe: 
To approve the renewal for the 2021 licensing period of the liquor license, for which a current year 
application was received, for 220 Restaurant. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Sherman  
   Mayor Pro Tem Longe  
   Commissioner Host 
   Commissioner Hoff    

  Commissioner Baller 
Mayor Boutros 
 

 Nays, None 
    Recrused, Commissioner Nickita  

 
02-051-21  The Morrie 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Hoff, seconded by Commissioner Host: 
To approve the renewal for the 2021 licensing period of the liquor license, for which a current year 
application was received, for The Morrie. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, Commissioner Hoff  
   Commissioner Host 
   Mayor Pro Tem Longe  
   Commissioner Nickita  

  Commissioner Baller 
Mayor Boutros 
 

 Nays, None 
    Recrused, Commissioner Sherman 

 
Commission Discussion on items from prior meetings. 

Commission Items for Future Discussion. A motion is required to bring up the item for future 
discussion at the next reasonable agenda, no discussion on the topic will happen tonight. 

VIII. REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 
 



16  February 22, 2021 

IX. COMMUNICATIONS 
A. Hybrid & Virtual Meetings from Haig 

a. Public Involvement Through Zoom at Commission Meetings from Kucharek 
 

X. REPORTS 
A. Commissioner Reports  
B. Commissioner Comments 
 

Commissioner Host reminded everyone that residents are responsible for clearing the sidewalks of snow 
in front of their homes. He said he was glad to see that the last two Planning Board meetings regarding 
the master plan were so well-attended, and encouraged residents to keep participating in the master plan 
discussions. Finally, he invited residents to call or email him if they need assistance with a City-related 
issue, stating that he learns more about the City every time he has the opportunity to assist residents. 
 

C. Advisory Boards, Committees, Commissions’ Reports and Agendas 
1. Board of Zoning Appeals – February Meeting Summary 

D. Legislation 
E. City Staff 

1. SP+ Parking Update 
 
Police Commander Grewe provided the update. He also notified the Commission that he was working on 
compiling a report on all the expenses SP+ charges the City for, and said that once the report was 
complete he would bring it before the Commission.  
 
CM Markus provided a brief overview of some of the recommendations he would be endorsing from the 
approximately two-year-old Nelson-Nygaard report on the management of the City’s parking system. He 
said he would integrate some of the recommendations into the upcoming budgeting process for the 
Commission’s consideration, including the creation of a Parking Administrator position in the City. 
 
Commissioner Baller said he was glad to see CM Markus putting work into the parking issue, stating that 
the City’s engagement with the report from Nelson-Nygaard was long overdue. He said he felt that CM 
Markus’ approach reflected initiative and important efforts towards transparency. He said that these efforts 
will clearly benefit the City. 
 

2. Woodward Avenue Tunnel 
 
CM Markus reviewed the February 22, 2021 memorandum from James Hock, Interim HR Director/Assistant 
City Manager, regarding the Woodward Avenue Tunnel.  
CM Markus explained that because of the water main now running through the tunnel, the need for the 
tunnel to be updated to be ADA-compliant if it were re-opened, and the fact that the City would incur all 
the costs of updates and maintenance to the tunnel, it would likely be impractical to reopen the tunnel for 
pedestrian use.  
 
Commenting that the question of reopening the tunnel seems to arise every few years, he said he hoped 
this brief overview of the prohibitive challenges of reopening the tunnel would put public speculation about 
the feasibility of the tunnel’s use to rest. He said that if Birmingham were to ever pursue using a pedestrian 
tunnel under Woodward again, it would likely need to be an entirely new, ADA-compliant tunnel 
constructed in a different location. 
 



17  February 22, 2021 

For further detail, the relevant memorandum can be found in the evening’s agenda packet as Item 10E2.  
     
INFORMATION ONLY 
   

XI. ADJOURN 
 
Mayor Boutros adjourned the meeting at 10:49 p.m. 
 



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

02/24/2021

03/08/2021

PAPER CHECK

500.0048TH DISTRICT COURT000855*277934

445.50KATHERINE ABELA008226*277935

236.82AIRGAS USA, LLC003708277936

217.41APPLIED IMAGING007033277938

96.00ARTECH PRINTING INC000500277939

91.89AT&T006759*277940

396.94AT&T006759*277941

385.93AT&T006759*277942

472.76AT&T006759*277943

91.89AT&T006759*277944

187.45AT&T006759*277945

94.43AT&T007216*277946

142.98AT&T MOBILITY003703*277947

126.47MATTHEW J. BARTALINO003839*277949

1,164.49BOUND TREE MEDICAL, LLC003526277952

193.15BROWNELLS,  INC.004098277953

129.54BULLSEYE TELECOM INC006177*277954

60.99DAVID BUTTIGIEG008334*277955

615.00CAPITAL TIRE, INC.007732277957

833.03CAROLYN BORMANMISC*277958

798.00CENTER MASS INC003413277959

1,326.30CIANI, NICHOLASMISC*277960

251.87CINTAS CORPORATION000605277961

1,366.66CLEAR RATE COMMUNICATIONS, INC008006*277962

3,403.75CLEARVIEW CAPTIONING LLC009187277963

432.53MARK CLEMENCE000912*277964

74.87COL'S FAMILY RESTAURANT009167277966

166.93COMCAST008955*277967

258.35COMCAST BUSINESS007774*277968

1,675.13CONSUMERS ENERGY000627*277969

233.97CONTRACTORS CLOTHING CO002668277970

185.30CONTRACTORS CONNECTION INC001367277971

1,044.87COOL THREADS EMBROIDERY008512277972

3,800.00CREATIVE COLLABORATIONS009145*277973

1,194.02DAVID WRIGHTMISC*277974

182.44DE LAGE LANDEN FINANCIAL SVCS INC008005277975

53.95DES MOINES STAMP002719277976

51.30DETROIT HITCH CO004198*277977

129,040.50DRV CONTRACTORS, LLC006700*277978

111.23DTE ENERGY000179*277979

178.98DTE ENERGY000179*277980

44,269.26DTE ENERGY000180*277981

5B



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

02/24/2021

03/08/2021

3,250.00EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY002460277982

156.00FAST SIGNS001223277984

35.00FIRE DEFENSE EQUIP CO INC000213277985

106.25FLEETPRIDE INC006654277986

1,099.58FOSTER BLUE WATER OIL007212277987

40.00FRANK'S SHOE SERVICE008498277988

2,017.67GARDEN TRUST COMPNAY LLCMISC*277989

1,184.98GARY FARTHINGMISC*277990

38.96GORDON FOOD004604*277991

236.16GRAINGER008293277992

840.00GUNNERS METER & PARTS INC001531277995

376.00HAGOPIAN CLEANING SERVICES001377277996

99.00HAWTHORNE006845277997

1,425.14HENKE MFG005820277998

509.73HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES001956*277999

104.85HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES007211*278000

52.89J.B. DLCO & MULTISTATE001625278002

4,771.60J.T. EXPRESS, LTD.000344278003

1,105.97JAMES CLEARYMISC*278004

156.00JAY'S SEPTIC TANK SERVICE003823*278005

452.95JERRY'S TIRE INC008564278006

98.00CHRISTOPHER JUDKINS007244*278007

112.50KATHERINE ROSE COLLINS009238*278008

1,553.27KNAPHEIDE TRUCK EQUIPMENT000353*278009

137.80KATE LONG001577*278010

3,111.00MACALLISTER RENTALS007910278012

35,676.63MCKENNA ASSOCIATES INC000888278013

975.00MGSE SECURITY LLC009085*278015

22,176.79MICHIGAN MUNICIPAL LEAGUE001387*278017

178.46MICHIGAN.COM #1008007659*278018

57.97MIKE SAVOIE CHEVROLET INC000230278020

343.75MKSK INC008319278021

895.00NATIONAL TIME & SIGNAL CORP000668*278022

3,148.00NELSON BROTHERS SEWER001194278023

1,499.00NELSON BROTHERS SEWER001194*278023

897.08NETWORK SERVICES COMPANY007755*278024

1,642.94NILFISK, INC.005431278025

3,794.18NILS DANIELSONMISC*278026

455,374.14OAKLAND COUNTY000477*278027

1,116.00OAKLAND COUNTY TREASURER000919278028

341.40OFFICE DEPOT INC000481*278029

165.15PEPSI COLA001753*278031

309.38PK SAFETY SUPPLY008028278032



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

       AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

02/24/2021

03/08/2021

8,950.00 PLANTE & MORAN PLLC000486278033

194.16 R & R FIRE TRUCK REPAIR INC004137278034

96.08 REEM OKABMISC*278035

2,400.00 RICHARD TRUDO009144*278036

76.00 ROYAL OAK P.D.Q. LLC000218278037

86.37 SAM'S CLUB/SYNCHRONY BANK002806*278038

4,060.00 SHI INTERNATIONAL CORP.008815278039

154.10 SHRED-IT USA004202*278040

400.00 MICHAEL SHUKWIT009143*278041

209.66 SILK ABSTARCT COMPANYMISC*278042

3,000.00 STATE OF MICHIGAN001005278043

240.00 SUN SHADE WINDOW TINTING INC003630278044

241.50 TESSA BANKS009237*278045

600.00 TRI-COUNTY AQUATICS, INC.007587278046

21,845.94 UBS FIN SERVICES, INC005331278047

20.38 UPTOWN MARKET OF BIRMINGHAM008941278049

240.79 VAN DYKE GAS CO.000293*278050

79.00 SHARON VANHORNE009123*278051

583.02 VERIZON WIRELESS000158*278052

495.19 VERIZON WIRELESS000158*278053

663.21 VERIZON WIRELESS000158*278054

128.91 VERIZON WIRELESS000158*278055

1,247.57 VILLAGE AUTOMOTIVE006491278056

35.00 WALL STREET JOURNAL, THE000828278057

462.00 WATCHGUARD VIDEO006762278058

357.00 WATCHGUARD VIDEO006762*278058

63.54 PAUL WELLS000301*278060

10,056.71 WEST SHORE FIRE INC001490278061

1,516.24 WILSON, JEFFREY WMISC*278062

56.44 WOLVERINE005112278063

670.00 WOLVERINE POWER SYSTEMS004512*278064

598.30 XEROX CORPORATION008391*278065

746.45 YUE QIMISC*278066

61.12 ZORO TOOLS, INC.008902*278067

SUBTOTAL PAPER CHECK $808,879.73

ACH TRANSACTION

181,584.95 ABS- AUTOMATED BENEFIT SVCS, INC008847*3415

44,733.83 ABS- AUTOMATED BENEFIT SVCS, INC008847*3417

1,639.91 ABEL ELECTRONICS INC002284*3418

39,667.00 BEIER HOWLETT P.C.000517*3420

205.58 BEVERLY HILLS ACE007345*3421

1,218.00 BIRMINGHAM LAWN MAINTENANCE006683*3422

31.97 BIRMINGHAM OIL CHANGE CENTER, LLC007624*3423



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

       AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

02/24/2021

03/08/2021

2,690,810.57 BIRMINGHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS-TAXES008840*3424

115.50 BLUE WATER INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS INC000542*3425

1,125.00 BOB ADAMS TOWING0091833426

270.00 LISA MARIE BRADLEY003282*3427

1,215.00 CANFIELD EQUIPMENT SERVICE INC.0078753428

652.65 CROWN CASTLE FIBER LLC0091953429

3,220.22 EQUATURE000995*3430

156.66 EZELL SUPPLY CORPORATION000207*3431

650.40 FOUR SEASON RADIATOR SERVICE INC0002173432

3,737.63 G2 CONSULTING GROUP LLC007807*3433

174.40 GRAINGER000243*3434

15,375.00 HUBBELL ROTH & CLARK INC0003313436

122.99 INNOVATIVE OFFICE TECHNOLOGY GROUP0070353437

23,430.63 J.H. HART URBAN FORESTRY0002613438

322.40 JAX KAR WASH002576*3439

374.08 JOE'S AUTO PARTS, INC.003458*3440

157.50 HAILEY R KASPER007827*3442

761.68 KROPF MECHANICAL SERVICE COMPANY005876*3443

1,474.30 LEE & ASSOCIATES CO., INC.005550*3444

2,051.80 NYE UNIFORM COMPANY006359*3447

1,002,184.18 OAKLAND COUNTY TREASURER- TAX PYMNT008843*3448

356.45 OSCAR W. LARSON CO.002767*3449

6,700.00 PAUL C SCOTT PLUMBING INC006853*3450

228.20 PENCHURA, LLC006027*3451

4,085.30 ROAD COMM FOR OAKLAND CO000478*3452

71.00 ROSE PEST SOLUTIONS001181*3453

68,287.00 SOCRRA0002543454

281.91 TERMINAL SUPPLY CO.0002733455

574.50 VIGILANTE SECURITY INC000969*3456

1,639.77 WHITLOCK BUSINESS SYSTEMS, INC.007278*3457

159.40 WRIGHT TOOL COMPANY0009263458

SUBTOTAL ACH TRANSACTION $4,099,847.36



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

       AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

02/24/2021

03/08/2021

*-Indicates checks released in advance and prior to commission approval in order to avoid penalty
or to meet contractual agreement/obligation.

Mark Gerber
Finance Director/ Treasurer

All bills, invoices and other evidences of claim have been audited and approved for payment.

GRAND TOTAL $4,908,727.09



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

03/03/2021

03/08/2021

PAPER CHECK

248,013.05SOCWA001097*278068

637.1521ST CENTURY MEDIA- MICHIGAN005430278069

567.00KATHERINE ABELA008226*278070

4,399.38AIS CONSTRUCTION CO003431278072

641.84ALBERT KATZMANMISC*278073

239.52MIKE ALBRECHT002670*278074

756.08ALLIED INC001000278075

14,400.00AMCOBI008431*278076

94,290.00ANDRUS ARCHITECTURE009253*278077

7,526.64APPLIED IMAGING007033278078

1,805.00ASTI ENVIRONMENTAL008988278079

2,677.93AT&T006759*278081

501.24AT&T006759*278082

375.00AXON ENTERPRISE, INC.005590278083

141.10BATTERIES PLUS BULBS003012278086

118.65JACK TODD- PETTY CASH001086*278087

1,691.22BRYAN BROWNMISC*278088

163.20CANON SOLUTIONS AMERICA INC009078278089

835.00CAPITAL TIRE, INC.007732278091

1,557.00CASAZZA II, JAMES GMISC278092

890.47CHAPP & BUSHEY OIL CO. INC.006840*278093

216.31CINTAS CORPORATION000605278094

4,890.00CMP DISTRIBUTORS INC002234278095

392.00COL'S FAMILY RESTAURANT009167*278096

208.83COMCAST008955*278097

1,258.18COMCAST BUSINESS007774*278098

1,680.00CONSTANT CONTACT, INC.006172*278099

7,670.95CONSUMERS ENERGY000627*278100

259.20CONTRACTORS CONNECTION INC001367278101

529.94COOL THREADS EMBROIDERY008512278102

7,127.85CORELOGICMISC*278103

53.28DEAN SELLERS000233278105

59.95DETROIT BATTERY COMPANY LLC008559278106

22.59DTE ENERGY000179*278108

82.30DTE ENERGY000179*278109

14.95DTE ENERGY000179*278110

39.53DTE ENERGY000179*278111

605.90DTE ENERGY000179*278112

64.53DTE ENERGY000179*278113

15.58DTE ENERGY000179*278114

44.62DTE ENERGY000179*278115

1,904.56DTE ENERGY000179*278116

5C



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

       AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

03/03/2021

03/08/2021

14.95 DTE ENERGY000179*278117

3,344.35 DTE ENERGY000179*278118

5,978.46 DTE ENERGY000179*278119

1,874.35 DTE ENERGY000179*278120

6,491.41 DTE ENERGY000179*278121

331.96 DTE ENERGY000179*278122

41.62 DTE ENERGY000179*278123

1,864.31 DTE ENERGY000179*278124

28.60 DTE ENERGY000179*278125

360.64 DTE ENERGY000179*278126

432.37 DTE ENERGY000179*278127

16.57 DTE ENERGY000179*278128

76.04 DTE ENERGY000179*278129

117.29 DTE ENERGY000179*278130

47.63 DTE ENERGY000179*278131

1,380.39 DTE ENERGY000180*278132

476.12 ELDER FORD004671278134

2,029.55 ENVIRONMENTAL PRODUCTS & ACCESS LLC009271278135

2,360.00 ETNA SUPPLY001495278136

115.04 FAST SIGNS001223*278137

840.28 FEDEX000936278138

140.00 FIT PRO SERVICES009196278139

24,925.00 GAMCO INVESTORS INC002510278140

59.00 GARY KNUREK INC007172278141

442.45 GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SERVICES, IN006384278142

15,440.81 GREAT LAKES WATER AUTHORITY008007*278143

222.98 HALT FIRE INC001447278144

1,586.95 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES001956*278145

1,315.00 HYDROCORP000948278147

569.86 IBS OF SE MICHIGAN000342278148

1,300.00 IDEAL BUILDERS AND REMODELING INCMISC278149

335.17 INTERNATIONAL CONTROLS000984*278150

3,806.41 JOELSON, PETERMISC*278151

33.70 JOHN R. SPRING & TIRE CENTER INC.000347278152

1,977.71 JOSEPH MICHALAKMISC*278153

57.17 KROGER COMPANY000362*278154

1,954.18 LACAL EQUIPMENT INC001362278155

530.00 LAIRD PLASTICS INC002438278156

1,716.94 LIVE WELL CUSTOM HOMES LLCMISC*278157

2,200.00 LYNCH CUSTOM HOMESMISC278158

881.00 MACALLISTER RENTALS007910278159

60.00 MGFOA004738*278161

220.50 MICHIGAN SOLAR SOLUTIONSMISC278163



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

       AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

03/03/2021

03/08/2021

522.22 MIKE SAVOIE CHEVROLET INC000230278165

1,911.37 MOBILE HEALTH RESOURCES007163*278166

409.00 NELSON BROTHERS SEWER001194278167

423.54 OBSERVER & ECCENTRIC003461*278168

225.00 OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CENTERS004370*278169

871.65 OFFICE DEPOT INC000481*278171

15,000.00 PLANTE & MORAN CRESA, LLC008901278172

78.00 PTS COMMUNICATIONS006625278173

29.85 RAIN MASTER CONTROL SYSTEMS008342*278174

2,145.44 SAVERS WHOLESALE PRINTING009222278175

33.61 SITEONE LANDSCAPE SUPPLY, INC008073*278176

64,941.77 SP+ CORPORATION007907278177

221,222.05 STATE OF MICHIGAN001104278178

415.76 STERLING HEIGHTS TREASURY004914278179

336.00 TESSA BANKS009237*278180

15,723.64 THE HUNTINGTON NATIONAL BANKMISC*278181

183.42 THELMA GOLDEN002433278182

187.20 TIRE WHOLESALERS CO INC000275278183

136.14 VAN DYKE GAS CO.000293*278184

4,025.00 VANDYKE HORN PUBLIC RELATIONS LLC009177*278185

979.99 VERIZON WIRELESS000158*278186

49.30 VERIZON WIRELESS000158*278187

44.11 VILLAGE AUTOMOTIVE006491278188

157.00 WATERFORD REGIONAL FIRE DEPT.004497*278189

1,323.37 WEINGARTZ SUPPLY000299278190

1,255.62 WILLIAM DUNNMISC*278191

903.63 WINDSTREAM005794*278192

477.39 WINTER EQUIP CO, INC005657278193

11,273.60 WJE-WISS, JANNEY, ELSTNER ASSOC.INC007620278194

32.70 WOLVERINE005112278195

SUBTOTAL PAPER CHECK $842,681.65

ACH TRANSACTION

14,901.18 ABS- AUTOMATED BENEFIT SVCS, INC008847*3461

1,867.95 ABEL ELECTRONICS INC002284*3463

504.00 HANNAH CHUNG007575*3465

609.50 DORNBOS SIGN & SAFETY INC000565*3466

29,411.00 DUNCAN PARKING TECH INC0010773467

16,046.35 DUNCAN PARKING TECH INC001077*3467

522.15 EZELL SUPPLY CORPORATION000207*3468

100.00 FIRE SYSTEMS OF MICHIGAN LLC0012303469

51.00 HAYES PRECISION INC001672*3470

109,923.30 HUBBELL ROTH & CLARK INC0003313471

5,677.37 INSIGHT INVESTMENT008851*3472



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

       AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

03/03/2021

03/08/2021

152.74 JACK DOHENY COMPANIES INC0001863473

126.00 JAX KAR WASH002576*3474

1,561.35 JOE'S AUTO PARTS, INC.003458*3475

123.75 KELLER THOMA000891*3476

1,872.00 LEE & ASSOCIATES CO., INC.005550*3477

599.00 LOGICAL SOLUTIONS ENTERPRISE INC007865*3478

429.73 MOTOR CITY INDUSTRIAL0004623479

450.00 NEXT007856*3480

27,698.25 NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS0018643481

1,051.91 NYE UNIFORM COMPANY006359*3482

3,671.77 ROAD COMM FOR OAKLAND CO000478*3483

102.34 SOUTHEASTERN EQUIPMENT CO. INC0057873484

32,774.54 SYMETRA LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY004355*3485

254.19 TERMINAL SUPPLY CO.0002733486

758.36 TOTAL ARMORED CAR SERVICE, INC.002037*3487

944.84 TRUCK & TRAILER SPECIALTIES INC004887*3488

111,065.47 VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS002974*3489

SUBTOTAL ACH TRANSACTION $363,250.04

*-Indicates checks released in advance and prior to commission approval in order to avoid penalty
or to meet contractual agreement/obligation.

Mark Gerber
Finance Director/ Treasurer

All bills, invoices and other evidences of claim have been audited and approved for payment.

GRAND TOTAL $1,205,931.69



1 

MEMORANDUM 
Department of Public Services 

DATE: February 26, 2021 

TO: Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Lauren A. Wood, Director of Public Services 

SUBJECT: Spring 2021 Tree Purchase and Planting Project 

INTRODUCTION: 
Twice a year, the City of Birmingham plants trees in residential and major street rights-of-ways 
and parks as part of our tree replacement program.  Sealed bids were opened on Thursday, 
February 11, 2021 for the cost to provide and plant eighty-three (83) trees.  The Request for 
Proposals (RFP) was entered into the Michigan Inter-Governmental Trade Network (MITN) 
purchasing system.  The trees will be planted along various street rights-of-way and parks during 
the spring of 2021. 

BACKGROUND: 
This purchase will include providing all trees, planting, topsoil, mulch, and necessary pruning.  
Watering is the responsibility of the resident, and the contractor is to place watering notification 
flyers at every property receiving a new tree.  The trees also come with a 2-year warranty.  The 
majority of the planting will occur in the right of way on various residential streets, and some will be 
planted in City parks.   City employees or a contractor will water the park trees. 

Three (3) bidders responded to the request for proposals.   The result of the sealed bids follows in 
the table below. 

Bidder Base Bid Deviations? 
KLM Landscape $34,970.00 No 
Davey Tree Expert $35,939.00 No 
County Line Nurseries, Inc. $56,000.00 No 

KLM Landscape is able to supply all trees and perform all work as requested. 

LEGAL REVIEW: 
The City Attorney has completed a review of this contract agreement and approved with 
signature. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
This project was included in the 2020-2021 Approved Budget.  Funds are available from the Local 
Streets Fund-Forestry Service Contract account, the Major Streets Fund-Forestry Service Contract 
account, the Local Streets Fund-Operating Supplies account, the Major Streets Fund-Operating 
Supplies account, and the Parks Other Contractual Services account for these services. 

5D



 

2 
 
 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 
The Department of Public Services (DPS) mails a postcard to all residential addresses receiving a 
tree as part of the spring or fall planting program.  It provides details of the upcoming planting 
project and informs them they will be receiving a tree.  As mentioned, upon the tree planting, a 
door hanger is provided at the residence with tree care instructions including water requirements. 
 
SUMMARY: 
The RFP requires bidders to provide references, completed projects similar in scope, size and 
purpose, and written plan/timeline for the project.  After reviewing all submitted materials, checking 
references, and conducting an interview, the Department of Public Services recommends awarding 
the spring 2021 tree purchase and planting project to KLM Landscape.  They are a previous vendor 
for plantings and always complete the plant as well as any warranty replacements. Also, they are 
the lowest responsible and responsive bidder for the “Spring 2021 Tree Purchase and Planting 
Project.” 
 
This project consisting of 83 trees averages $421.33 per tree.  Some recent planting costs compare 
as follows:   
 

 Fall 2020:  $458.65 
 Spring 2020:  $595.00 
 Fall 2019:  $399.11  
 Spring 2019:  $354.93 

 
Upon award, the contractor will be notified to secure the tree stock and call MISS DIG before 
they begin planting. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
The Agreement including the required Insurance Certificate, Bidder’s Agreement, Cost Proposal, 
Completion Date, and Iran Sanctions Act Vendor Certification Form are attached for your review. 
 
SUGGESTED RESOLUTION: 
To approve the purchase and planting of eighty-three (83) trees from KLM Landscape for the 
Spring 2021 Tree Purchase and Planting Program for a total project cost not to exceed 
$34,970.00.  Funds are available from the Local Streets Fund-Forestry Service Contract account 
#203-449.005-819.0000, the Major Streets Fund-Forestry Service Contract account #202-
449.005-819.0000, the Local Streets Fund-Operating Supplies account #203-449.005-729.0000, 
the Major Streets Fund-Operating Supplies account #202-449.005-729.0000 and the Parks- Other 
Contractual Services account #101-751.000-811.0000 for these services.  Further, to authorize 
the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the agreement on behalf of the City upon receipt of the required 
insurance coverage. 





























1 

MEMORANDUM 
Department of Public Services 

DATE:  March 1, 2021 

TO: Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Carrie Laird, Parks and Recreation Manager 

APPROVED: Lauren A. Wood, Director of Public Services 

SUBJECT: Park Rules and Regulations Update 

INTRODUCTION: 
The Birmingham Code Article IV. Use of Parks allows the City Commission to adopt rules 
and regulations relating to the use of municipal parks and playgrounds.  Sec. 78-32. 
Regulations states:  “The Parks and Recreation Board shall recommend to the City 
Commission for adoption such rules and regulations pertaining to the conduct and use of 
parks and public grounds as are necessary to administer the same and to protect public 
property and the safety, health, morals and welfare of the public.” 

The City’s Park Rules and Regulations are periodically reviewed and updated as necessary 
by staff, reviewed with the Parks and Recreation Board and recommended to the City 
Commission for adoption.  The last revision to the Park Rules and Regulations occurred in 
2016. 

BACKGROUND: 
The Park Rules and Regulations are available on the Birmingham Website on the Parks 
and Recreation page, and a select few rules are posted on Park Signs located at each park 
throughout the City as shown in the examples below. 
 

5E



2 
 

The QR code on the signs link to the Park Rules and Regulations on the city website 
 
Supplemental signage is posted as appropriate in various locations, such as “Dogs Must 
be Leashed”, “No Dogs in the Play Area”, “Fishing Allowed for ages…” and various parking 
restrictions throughout the park system. 

       
 
Over the course of three Parks and Recreation Board meetings between September and 
December 2020, staff together with the Parks and Recreation Board reviewed the current 
Park Rules and Regulations and recommends changes.  Posted signage (park or activity 
specific) was incorporated as part of the review as well, such as the Skate Park Rules, 
Tennis Court Rules, and the Dog Park Rules. 
 
The recommended changes to the Park Rules and Regulations are as follows. 
 
Park Rules and Regulations- Recommended Changes: 
General changes:  Headings were added, font size and formatting adjustments were 
made, and reorganization for better reading and the ability to find items/topics. 
 
Rules 1-8, fall under heading:  Use of Parks and Park Permits: 
 
Rules 1, 2, and 3 were updated to include a hold harmless agreement as recommended 
by the City Attorney, minor clarification language added “City of Birmingham Park”, 
removal of duplicate language, and re-ordering to read better.  The Hold Harmless 
Agreement (attached to this report) will be executed as part of our park permit process. 
 
Rule 5:  Remove exception and added “or repair” after: A fee may be assessed should 
clean up... 
 
Rule 6:  Revision to change the process of disposing of left behind items.  The items are 
collected and available for pick up for 2 weeks.  This is a better reflection of what actually 
happens. 
 



3 
 

Rule 7:  Clarified language. 
 
Rule 8:  No change. 
 
Rule 9:  Remove the exisitng language: No person shall bring into, have in their 
possession, DRINK, OR CONSUME ANY INTOXICANT OR INTOXICATING 
BEVERAGE in any park areas and city owned properties with the exception of beer and 
wine sold by the City for consumption at Lincoln Hills Golf Course or Springdale Park, 
Springdale Park Shelter and Springdale Golf Course in conjunction with golf functions 
only.  
 
Recommended Change:  Add heading to include Intoxicants.  Replace with: 
Alcoholic Beverages & Intoxicants 
9.  It shall be unlawful for any person to possess or consume any alcoholic liquor, 
intoxicants, including spirits, beer or wine, in any recreational facility, city owned 
property or park operated by the City or during any function, sporting event, skating 
exhibition, dance or other event; unless such alcoholic beverages were purchased on 
city owned premises from a duly licensed vendor or served in accordance with a Special 
Event permit issued through the City Clerk’s office.  Birmingham Golf Courses have 
MLCC-issued liquor licenses. 
 
Rule 10 is now Rule 11 due to reorganization:  Heading: Park Hours.  Language now 
describes when parks are open as opposed to when closed.  Parks are open from 6:00 
am to 10:00 pm.  Public property has been changed to be open during the same hours as 
parks for consistency and enforceability (previously open from 6:00 am to 12:00 am).  A 
revision was made to eliminate the differences in open hours at Manor and Adams park 
in order to be consistent park system wide with the exception of the Skate Park: 8am to 
10 pm (addition) and Springdale Park which coincides with the hours of Springdale Golf 
Course.  These 2 exceptions are necessary due to park operations (locked, staffing, etc.). 
 
Rules 12 and 13.  Add heading, Animals.  No changes otherwise. 
 
Rule 13 is now 14 under the heading Sanitation:  The addition of “in an appropriate city 
waste receptacle or” in front of: in accordance with ordinance Section 18-35 Sanitation. 
 
Rule 14 is now Rule 15. Heading:  Sound Amplification. Added language:  Any 
amplification must be reasonable as to not disturb the peace. 
 
Rule 15 is now Rule 10: Moved up from Rule 15 to follow Alcoholic Beverages & 
Intoxicants, with the heading: Smoking.  Included marijuana and vapor-producing 
products and devices as part of smoking.  Moved the second part of the smoking rule 
regarding barbecue burners or cooking in the picnic area at Springdale to under heading 
Fires, now Rule 16, which now reads: 
Fires 
Rule 16. Open burning of any kind is prohibited at all city parks and facilities  No person 
shall drop, throw, or otherwise scatter lighted matches, burning cigarettes or cigars, 



4 
 

tobacco paper, charcoal or other flammable material at any park, facility or trail.  
However, the use of barbecue burners or cooking in the picnic area at Springdale Park is 
permissible. No person shall leave the immediate vicinity of any fire, which he/she has 
started or used without first extinguishing the fire. 
 
A new rule was added: 
Fireworks & Explosives 
17. No person shall bring into a park, or public property or have in his possession, or set 
off or otherwise cause to explode any firecrackers, torpedo, rocket or other fireworks or 
explosives, or discharge them or throw them into any park area from land or property 
adjacent thereto. 
 
Rules 16 and 18 are now Rules 18 and 19 due to organization/re-ordering.  Heading is 
Obstructions; Damage; Fences; Disposal.  Minor updated language.   Addition of 
“herbaceous plant” and “flower” when referring to plant material that may not be defaced, 
injured, removed or destroyed. 
 
Rules 17, 20 and 21 are now Rules 20, 21, 22 under heading:  Peddling; Vending; 
Advertising; Signs.  Minor clarification language and contact information. 
 
Rule 22 is now Rule 23.  Added heading Boating.  No other changes to this rule. 
 
Rules 24-26 fall under heading:  Fishing & Wildlife: 
 
Rule 23 is now Rule 24: Based on the City Attorney’s review and recommendation, 
removed age restrictions of under 14, and 62 and over from fishing in any water park in 
the City of Birmingham including Quarton Lake.  Added language Fishing is not allowed at 
the golf courses. 
 
Rule 26 is now 27:  Added heading Swimming.  No changes otherwise. 
 
Rules 19, 27 and 28 are now Rules 28, 29 and 30 under the heading Vehicles. 
 
Rule 27 is now Rule 29: Minor grammar/wording changes and the addition of “hoverboard” 
as a wheeled vehicle not allowed on tennis courts, basketball courts, fountains, and stone 
work ledges. 
 
Rule 28 is now Rule 30, and the addition of “or trail” follows “It is unlawful for any person 
to operate any motorized vehicle, trail bike, all-terrain vehicle, or similar type of sport 
vehicle anywhere in any park…” 
 
Rule 29 is now Rule 31 under the heading Parking.  No changes otherwise. 
 
Rule 30 is now Rule 32 under the heading Violations.  No changes otherwise. 
 
 



5 
 

LEGAL REVIEW: 
The City Attorney performed a review of the proposed changes to the Park Rules and 
Regulations, taking into consideration the Parks and Recreation Board’s comments, 
questions, and suggestions.  The proposed changes are a result of the City attorney, staff 
and Parks and Recreation Board efforts to improve the Rules and Regulations in order to 
better serve the community. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The rule changes affect a minimal number of posted signage, namely the Quarton Lake 
park identification signs (2) and supplemental signage regarding fishing.  Upon approval 
of the updated rules by the Parks and Recreation Board and the City Commission, new 
signs will be ordered and park maintenance staff will replace the signs.  The total 
estimated cost for these replacement signs will be $3,150.  There are funds available for 
park signs in the 2020-2021 budget under account 101-751.000-811.000, Parks Other 
Contractual Services. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS:  The Birmingham Park Rules and Regulations were discussed 
publicly at three Parks and Recreation Board Meetings.  The updated Park Rules and 
Regulations will be posted to the City website and shared on social media outlets.  
Homeowner associations will be notified of the changes as well. 
 
SUMMARY: 
The Parks and Recreation Board worked with City staff to update the City’s Park Rules and 
Regulations.  The Parks and Recreation Board on December 1, 2020 approved the 
revisions to the Park Rules.  The changes include a re-organization of the rules including 
the addition of headings to make it easier for the park patron to find the item of query or 
concern.  Outdated language or content has been eliminated and new language or content 
was added if missing.  Each item was reviewed and carefully thought out, with final review 
conducted by the City Attorney.  The changes as recommended will serve the community 
for years to come, and support our park system operation. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 2016 version of the City of Birmingham Park Rules and Regulations 
 A red-lined markup version showing all modifications to the Park Rules and 

Regulations 
 Hold Harmless Agreement as provided by the City Attorney 
 A clean copy of the Park Rules and Regulations updated with recommended 

changes 
 
SUGGESTED RESOLUTION: 
To adopt the updated Park Rules and Regulations as submitted with recommended 
changes. 



Rules and Regulations 
 
 1. The use of any facility is at your own risk. The City does not assume 
responsibility for injury or for any loss, theft or damage to personal items.  
 
2. A person holding a park permit shall maintain such permit in his or her 
possession at all times while utilizing the municipal facility. Such permit shall be 
presented by its holder upon request by a City official or employee. A permit 
does not give its holder exclusive use of the entire park, except for Springdale 
Shelter.  
 
3. A rental permit is required for reservation of all city facilities which would 
include rain dates and no refund of the rental fee shall be made due to 
inclement weather. Park permits may not be assigned or otherwise transferred.  
 
4. All set-up/clean-up must be done by the permit holder.  
 
5. All parks must be maintained and left in a neat and clean condition, with 
garbage and refuse prepared for proper disposal. The person or entity in whose 
name the rental permit is issued shall be responsible for leaving the facility in a 
clean and orderly condition. Further, the permit holder accepts full 
responsibility for all damage to City property as a result of its activities, 
ordinary wear and tear excepted. A fee may be assessed should clean up by the 
City become necessary. This fee shall include, but is not limited to, all labor, 
equipment and administration expense incurred by the City.  
 
6. Any equipment, valuables, or clothing left in or around the park shelter on 
closing shall be disposed of by the Department of Public Services.  
 
7. The City reserves first priority with regard to the use of all City Parks. A park 
permit grants its holder a license to use the specified park and or an area and is 
revocable by the City. The City may order revocation of a park permit, if 
warranted at any time, with refund of fees paid. All permits are granted with 
this understanding.  
 
8. The Director of Public Services may, subject to the approval of the City 
Manager and the City Commission, establish supplemental regulations for all 
uses requiring the issuance of a permit for use of municipal facilities, and fees 
for the use of the various facilities.  
 
9. No person shall bring into, have in their possession, DRINK, OR 
CONSUME ANY INTOXICANT OR INTOXICATING BEVERAGE in any park areas 
and city owned properties with the exception of beer and wine sold by the City for 
consumption at Lincoln Hills Golf Course or Springdale Park, Springdale Park 
Shelter and Springdale Golf Course in conjunction with golf functions only.  
 

 
 
10. The following city-owned or city-controlled areas shall be closed during the 
hours specified below. During such hours, no person shall enter into or remain 
in such property, except those persons whose presence is related to or in 
connection with a municipal activity or a project or activity which has been 
licensed to be operated or carried on within such public property, or persons 
who enter such property for the express purpose of parking or removing a 
vehicle legally parked upon such property and who, upon entering the parking 
area, immediately park or remove such vehicle. Such person shall not remain in 
the park for any other purpose. 
 

(1) Manor Park shall be closed from one hour after sundown to one 
hour before sunrise.  
(2) Adams Park shall be closed from 9:00 p.m. to 8:00 a.m. 
(3) Springdale Park hours shall coincide with Springdale Golf Course 
hours and park rentals. The closing of the park is up to the discretion of 
the City of Birmingham Representative on duty. 
(4) Except as provided in subsections (1), (2) and (3) of this section, all 
City Parks shall be closed between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 6:00 
a.m.  
(5) All public property not included in subsections (1), (2), (3) and (4) 
of this section shall be closed between the hours of 12:00 midnight and 
6:00 a.m. For purposes of this section, public property shall be deemed 
to be property zoned as public property under the provisions of 
chapter 126. 

 
11. Leashed dogs are allowed in any public park except in those areas as 
designated and posted by the Department of Public Services. Dogs are allowed 
on public property as long as they are restrained by a six foot maximum length 
chain or leash and under the reasonable control of some person. Owners and 
walkers of dogs on public property must comply with all City ordinances, 
including Chapter 18, Article II, pertaining to dogs and cats.  

Sec. 18-33 Restraint of dogs.  
It shall be unlawful for any owner of any dog to permit the dog to go beyond the 
premises of such owner unless restrained by a chain or leash and under the 
reasonable control of some person. (Code 1963, § 9.80(1))  
 
12. Dogs are not permitted in any public playground or in any other area 
designated by the Department of Public Services. These areas shall generally 
include, but shall not be limited to, areas under and immediately adjacent to 
play structures and play equipment; sandboxes; the playing surface of ball 
fields, soccer fields, tennis courts, outdoor ice rinks, golf courses and sledding 
hills, when such areas are in use; pavilions and stages; fountains; and in areas 
designated for City permitted events and functions of concentrated use during 
said event or function.  



Rules and Regulations 
 
13. The owner or walker of a dog is responsible for the collection of all fecal 
matter and the disposal of such fecal matter in an appropriate waste receptacle 
in accordance with ordinance Section 18-35.  

Sec. 18-35 Sanitation.  
(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to permit any animal owned or harbored 
by him to deposit fecal matter in any place other than the premises where the 
animal is harbored or kept, unless such fecal matter is immediately collected 
and removed to the premises where the animal is harbored or kept.  
(b) It shall be unlawful for any person to walk any animal on  
any property not owned by such person, whether public or private, unless such 
person has an appropriate device for the collection of fecal matter in his 
immediate possession and an appropriate depository for the transmission of 
fecal matter to the premises where the animal is harbored or kept.  
(Code 1963, § 9.95; Ord. No. 1586, 4-18-94)  
 
14. The use of loudspeakers or other equipment for the amplification of sound 
or music is prohibited, unless allowed by permit issued by the City.  
 
15. Smoking is not permitted in any building or structure in City Parks. No 
person shall ignite or use ground fire or open fire except with the expressed 
permission of the Department of Public Services, provided however, that this 
restriction shall not be applicable to the use of barbecue burners or cooking in 
the picnic area at Springdale Park. No person shall leave the immediate vicinity 
of any fire, which he/she has started or used without first extinguishing the fire.  
 
16. No person shall obstruct any walk or drive in any public park or playground. 
No person shall injure, mar or damage, in any manner, any monument, 
ornament, fence, bridge, seat, tree, fountain, shrub, flower, playground 
equipment, or other public property within or pertaining to such parks.  
 
17. No person shall engage in the business of peddling or vending in the city 
without first obtaining a license from the city clerk.  
 
18. No person shall interfere with any fence constructed in or about any park; or 
deface, injure, remove, or destroy any tree, shrub, sward, or turf in any park or 
boulevard; or remove any dirt, sand or earth from any park or boulevard, or 
otherwise remove, destroy or injure any property therein; or leave or deposit 
any filth, rubbish, dirt, wastepaper or other refuse in any place in any park or 
boulevard except in containers  
provided in parks for that purpose. Dumping or disposal of  
household or commercial waste transported from off-site to city property is 
prohibited.  
 
 

 
 
19. No vehicles, except authorized City vehicles, are allowed  
to be driven across lawns, sidewalks, or any other park surface for any reason.  
 
20. No person shall expose, distribute, place any sign, advertisement, circular 
notice, or statement, or display any banner, City of Birmingham emblem, or 
design without written permission from the City.  
 
21. Decorations may be attached to the Springdale shelter by means of 
masking or cellophane tape only. There should be no decorations drilled, 
fastened, or otherwise attached to the shelter with materials such as staples, 
nails, or tacks.  
 
22. No person shall place or operate any boat propelled by any engine in or 
upon waters in any park in the city, including the water of Quarton Lake.  
 
23. Fishing in any water park in the City of Birmingham, including Quarton Lake 
is restricted to minors under the age of fourteen (14) years, and residents’ sixty-
two (62) years of age and older, subject to State of Michigan fishing licenses 
regulations.  
 
24. No person shall feed any geese, ducks, birds or other fowl in any City Park or 
any municipal Golf Course.  
 
25. No person, except an authorized city employee shall injure, kill or capture 
any wild bird, or disturb any wild bird’s nest or the contents thereof.  
 
26. Swimming and/or wading is prohibited in any lake, river, public fountain or 
public pond in the City of Birmingham.  
 
27. No person shall operate, use, ride, or pull another individual on a wheeled 
vehicle, on City-owned tennis courts, basketball courts, fountains and stone 
work ledges. Vehicles not permitted include, but are not limited to in-line 
skates, skateboards, bicycles, wagons, roller-skates, and scooters.  
 
28. It is unlawful for any person to operate any motorized vehicle, trail bike, all-
terrain vehicle, or similar type of sport vehicle anywhere in a park, except for 
the proper use of golf carts on city golf courses.  
 
29. On-site parking at Barnum Park is limited to 3 hours and is exclusively for 
use of persons while they are using the Park.  
30. Violation of these rules or other posted rules is a misdemeanor punishable 
by a fine up to $500, or imprisonment for a term not exceeding 90 days, or both. 
 

City Commission Approval 07-25-2016 



Notes: 
Font changed from Cambria to Tahoma.   
Red underlined = New language 
Red strikeout= Remove 
Headings added, reorganization, font size adjustments 
Remove Bold, Italic, and ALL CAPS other than where appropriate 
 
Rules and Regulations 
Use of Parks & Park Permits 
 1. The use of any City of Birmingham park or facility is at your own risk. The 
City does not assume responsibility for injury or for any loss, theft or damage 
to personal items.  
 
3 2. A rental permit is required for reservation of all city facilities which 
would include rain dates and no. No refund of the rental fee shall be made 
due to inclement weather. Park permits may not be assigned or otherwise 
transferred. A hold harmless agreement mush be executed in order to obtain 
a permit. 
 
2 3. A person holding a park permit shall maintain such permit in his or her 
possession at all times while utilizing the municipal facility. Such permit shall 
be presented by its holder upon request by a City official or employee. A 
permit does not give its holder exclusive use of the entire park, except for 
Springdale Shelter.  
 
4. All set-up/clean-up must be done by the permit holder.  
 
5. All parks must be maintained and left in a neat and clean condition, with 
garbage and refuse prepared for proper disposal. The person or entity in 
whose name the rental permit is issued shall be responsible for leaving the 
facility in a clean and orderly condition. Further, the permit holder accepts 
full responsibility for all damage to City property as a result of its activities, 
ordinary wear and tear excepted. A fee may be assessed should clean up or 
repair by the City become necessary. This fee shall include, but is not limited 
to, all labor, equipment and administration expense incurred by the City.  
 
6. Any equipment, valuables, or clothing left in or around the park shelter on 
closing shall be disposed of by the Department of Public Services kept at the 
City of Birmingham Parks and Recreation office for two weeks.  Contact the 
office at (248) 530-1642 to make arrangements for pick-up.  
 
7. The City reserves first priority with regard to the use of all City Parks. A 
park permit grants its holder a permit license to use the specified park or 
public property for a specified date and time and or an area and is revocable 

by the City. The City may order revocation of a park permit, if warranted at 
any time with refund of fees paid. , and Aall permits are granted with this 
understanding.  
 
8. The Director of Public Services may, subject to the approval of the City 
Manager and the City Commission, establish supplemental regulations for all 
uses requiring the issuance of a permit for use of municipal facilities, and 
fees for the use of the various facilities.  
 
Alcoholic Beverages 
9. No person shall bring into, have in their possession, DRINK, OR 
CONSUME ANY INTOXICANT OR INTOXICATING BEVERAGE in any 
park areas and city owned properties with the exception of beer and wine 
sold by the City for consumption at Lincoln Hills Golf Course or Springdale 
Park, Springdale Park Shelter and Springdale Golf Course in conjunction with 
golf functions only.  
 
9.  It shall be unlawful for any person to possess or consume any alcoholic 
liquor, including spirits, beer or wine, in any recreational facility or park 
operated by the City or during any such function, sporting event, skating 
exhibition, dance or other event; unless such alcoholic beverages were 
purchased on the premises of a duly licensed vendor or served in accordance 
with a Special Event permit issued through the City Clerk’s office.  
Birmingham Golf Courses have MLCC-issued liquor licenses. 
 
Smoking 
15. Smoking is not permitted in any building or structure in City Parks. No 
person shall ignite or use ground fire or open fire except with the expressed 
permission of the Department of Public Services, provided however, that this 
restriction shall not be applicable to the use of barbecue burners or cooking 
in the picnic area at Springdale Park. No person shall leave the immediate 
vicinity of any fire, which he/she has started or used without first 
extinguishing the fire.   
10.  Smoking of tobacco or any other substance, or smoking, comsumption 
or use of marijuana products or derivatives, or use of vapor producing 
products such as an e-cigarette or similar device, is strictly prohibited in all 
buildings, facilities, parks, and playgrounds operated and maintained by the 
City of Birmingham. 
 
Park Hours 
10.11.City parks and public property are open between the hours of 6:00 am 
to 10:00 pm except as noted below.  The following city-owned or city-
controlled areas shall be closed during the hours specified below. During 
Between the hours of 10:00 pm to 6:00 am, parks and public property are 



closed and during such hours, no person shall enter into or remain in such 
property, except those persons whose presence is related to or in connection 
with a municipal activity. or a project or activity which has been licensed to 
be operated or carried on within such public property, or persons who enter 
such property for the express purpose of parking or removing a vehicle 
legally parked upon such property and who, upon entering the parking area, 
immediately park or remove such vehicle. Such person shall not remain in 
the park for any other purpose. 
 

(1) Manor Park shall be closed from one hour after sundown to one 
hour before sunrise.  
(2) Adams Park shall be closed from 9:00 p.m. to 8:00 a.m. 
(3)(1) Springdale Park hours shall coincide with Springdale Golf 
Course hours and park rentals. The closing of the park is up to the 
discretion of the City of Birmingham Representative on duty. 
(2) The Skate Park shall be closed from 10:00am to 8:00 am. 
(4) Except as provided in subsections (1), (2) and (3) of this section, 
all City Parks shall be closed between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 
6:00 a.m.  
(5) All public property not included in subsections (1), (2), (3) and 
(4) of this section shall be closed between the hours of 12:00 
midnight and 6:00 a.m.  

For purposes of this section, public property shall be deemed to be property 
zoned as public property under the provisions of chapter 126. 
 
Animals 
1112. Leashed dogs are allowed in any public park except in those areas as 
designated and posted by the Department of Public Services. Dogs are 
allowed on public property as long as they are restrained by a six foot 
maximum length chain or leash and under the reasonable control of some 
person. Owners and walkers of dogs on public property must comply with all 
City ordinances, including Chapter 18, Article II, pertaining to dogs and cats.  

Sec. 18-33 Restraint of dogs.  
It shall be unlawful for any owner of any dog to permit the dog to go beyond 
the premises of such owner unless restrained by a chain or leash and under 
the reasonable control of some person. (Code 1963, § 9.80(1))  
 
1213. Dogs are not permitted in any public playground or in any other area 
designated by the Department of Public Services. These areas shall generally 
include, but shall not be limited to, areas under and immediately adjacent to 
play structures and play equipment; sandboxes; the playing surface of ball 
fields, soccer fields, tennis courts, outdoor ice rinks, golf courses and 
sledding hills, when such areas are in use; pavilions and stages; fountains; 

and in areas designated for City permitted events and functions of 
concentrated use during said event or function.  
Sanitation 
1314. The owner or walker of a dog is responsible for the collection of all 
fecal matter and the disposal of such fecal matter in an appropriate city 
waste receptacle in accordance with ordinance Section 18-35 Sanitation. 

Sec. 18-35 Sanitation.  
(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to permit any animal owned or 
harbored by him to deposit fecal matter in any place other than the premises 
where the animal is harbored or kept, unless such fecal matter is 
immediately collected and removed to the premises where the animal is 
harbored or kept.  
(b) It shall be unlawful for any person to walk any animal on  
any property not owned by such person, whether public or private, unless 
such person has an appropriate device for the collection of fecal matter in his 
immediate possession and an appropriate depository for the transmission of 
fecal matter to the premises where the animal is harbored or kept.  
(Code 1963, § 9.95; Ord. No. 1586, 4-18-94)  
 
Sound Amplification 
1415. The use of loudspeakers or other sound enhancing equipment for the 
amplification of sound or music is prohibited, unless allowed by permit issued 
by the City.  Any amplification must be reasonable as to not not disturb the 
peace. 
 
Fires 
16. Open burning of any kind is prohibited at all city parks and facilities.  No 
person shall drop, throw, or otherwise scatter lighted matches, burning 
cigarettes or cigars, tobacco paper, charcoal or other flammable material at 
any park, facility or trail.  However, the use of barbecue burners or cooking 
in the picnic area at Springdale Park is permissible.  No person shall leave 
the immediate vicinity of any fire, which he/she has started or used without 
first extinguishing the fire. 
 
Fireworks & Explosives 
17. No person shall bring into a park or public property or have in his 
possession, or set off or otherwise cause to explode any firecrackers, 
torpedo, rocket or other fireworks or explosives, or discharge them or throw 
them into any park area from land or property adjacent thereto. 
 
Obstructions; Damage; Fences; Disposal 
1618. No person shall obstruct any walkway or driveway in any public park 
or playground. No person shall injure, mar or damage, in any manner, any 
monument, ornament, fence, bridge, seat, tree, fountain, shrub, herbaceous 



plant, flower, playground equipment, or other public property within or 
pertaining to such parks. 
 
1819. No person shall interfere with any fence constructed in or about any 
park; or deface, injure, remove, or destroy any tree, shrub, herbaceous 
plant, flower sward, or turf in any park or boulevard; or remove any dirt, 
sand or earth from any park or boulevard, or otherwise remove, destroy or 
injure any property therein; or leave or deposit any filth, rubbish, dirt, 
wastepaper or other refuse in any place in any park or boulevard except in 
containers provided in parks for that purpose. Dumping or disposal of  
household or commercial waste transported from off-site to city property is 
prohibited.  
 
Peddling; Vending; Advertising; Signs 
1720. No person shall engage in the business of peddling or vending in any 
City of Birmingham Park the city without first obtaining a license from the 
city clerk’s office.  Contact the office at (248) 530-1880 for additional 
information.  
 
2021. No person shall expose, distribute, place any sign, advertisement, 
circular notice, or statement, or display any banner, City of Birmingham 
emblem, or design without written permission from the City.  
 
2122. Decorations may be attached to the Springdale shelter by means of 
masking or cellophane tape only. There should be no decorations drilled, 
fastened, or otherwise attached to the shelter with materials such as staples, 
nails, or tacks 
 
Boating 
2223. No person shall place or operate any boat propelled by any engine in 
or upon waters in any park in the city, including the water of Quarton Lake.  
 
Fishing & Wildlife 
23. Fishing in any water park in the City of Birmingham, including Quarton 
Lake is restricted to minors under the age of fourteen (14) years, and 
residents’ sixty-two (62) years of age and older, subject to State of Michigan 
fishing licenses regulations.  
 
24.  Subject to State of Michigan fishing licenses regulations, fishing in any 
water park in the City of Birmingham, including Quarton Lake is allowed.  
Fishing is not allowed at either Lincoln Hills Golf Course or Springdale Golf 
Course. 
 

2425. No person shall feed any geese, ducks, birds or other fowl in any City 
Park or any municipal Golf Course.  
 
2526. No person, except an authorized city employee shall injure, kill or 
capture any wild bird, or disturb any wild bird’s nest or the contents thereof.  
 
Swimming 
2627. Swimming and/or wading is prohibited in any lake, river, public 
fountain or public pond in the City of Birmingham. 
 
Vehicles 
1928. No vehicles, except authorized City vehicles, are allowed  
to be driven across lawns, sidewalks, or any other  park surface for any 
reason.  
 
2729. No person shall operate, use, ride, or pull another individual on a 
wheeled vehicle, on City-owned tennis courts, basketball courts, fountains 
and stone work ledges. Wheeled prohibited Vvehicles not permitted include, 
but are not limited to in-line skates, skateboards, bicycles, hover boards, 
wagons, roller-skates, and scooters.  
 
2830. It is unlawful for any person to operate any motorized vehicle, trail 
bike, all-terrain vehicle, or similar type of motorized sport vehicle anywhere 
in a any park or trail, except for the proper use of golf carts on city golf 
courses.  
 
Parking 
2931. On-site parking at Barnum Park is limited to 3 hours and is exclusively 
for use of persons while they are using the Park.  
 
Violation of Park Rules & Regulations 
3032. Violation of these rules or other posted rules is a misdemeanor 
punishable by a fine up to $500, or imprisonment for a term not exceeding 
90 days, or both. 
 

 
City Commission Approval 7-25-2016 





Rules and Regulations 
 
Use of Parks & Park Permits 
1. The use of any City of Birmingham park or facility is at your own 
risk. The City does not assume responsibility for injury or for any 
loss, theft or damage to personal items.   
 
2. A rental permit is required for reservation of all city facilities. No 
refund of the rental fee shall be made due to inclement weather. 
Park permits may not be assigned or otherwise transferred.  A hold 
harmless agreement must be executed in order to obtain a permit.  
 
3. A person holding a park permit shall maintain such permit in his or 
her possession at all times while utilizing the municipal facility. Such 
permit shall be presented by its holder upon request by a City official 
or employee. A permit does not give its holder exclusive use of the 
entire park, except for Springdale Shelter.  
 
4. All set-up/clean-up must be done by the permit holder.  
 
5. All parks must be maintained and left in a neat and clean 
condition, with garbage and refuse prepared for proper disposal. The 
person or entity in whose name the rental permit is issued shall be 
responsible for leaving the facility in a clean and orderly condition. 
Further, the permit holder accepts full responsibility for all damage 
to City property as a result of its activities. A fee may be assessed 
should clean up or repair by the City become necessary. This fee 
shall include, but is not limited to, all labor, equipment and 
administration expense incurred by the City.  
 
6. Any equipment, valuables, or clothing left in or around the park 
shelter on closing shall be kept at the City of Birmingham Parks and 
Recreation office for two weeks.  Contact the office at (248) 530-
1642 to make arrangements for pick-up.    
 
7. The City reserves first priority with regard to the use of all City 
Parks. A park permit grants its holder a permit to use the park or 
public property for a specified date and time and is revocable by the 
City. The City may order revocation of a park permit, at any time 
with refund of fees paid, and all permits are granted with this 
understanding.  
 
8. The Director of Public Services may, subject to the approval of the 
City Manager and the City Commission, establish supplemental  

 
 
 
regulations for all uses requiring the issuance of a permit for use of 
municipal facilities and fees for the use of the various facilities.  
 
Alcoholic Beverages & Intoxicants 
9. It shall be unlawful for any person to possess or consume any 
alcoholic liquor, intoxicants, including spirits, beer or wine, in any 
recreational facility, city owned property or park operated by the City 
or during any function, sporting event, skating exhibition, dance or 
other event; unless such alcoholic beverages were purchased on city 
owned premises from a duly licensed vendor or served in accordance 
with a Special Event permit issued through the City Clerk’s office.  
Birmingham Golf Courses have MLCC-issued liquor licenses. 
 
Smoking 
10. Smoking of tobacco or any other substance, or smoking, 
consumption or use of marijuana products, or use of vapor 
producing products such as an e-cigarette or similar device, is strictly 
prohibited pursuant to city ordinance, in all buildings, facilities, parks 
and playgrounds operated and maintained by the City of 
Birmingham. 
 
Park Hours 
11. City parks and public property are open between the hours of 
6:00 am to 10:00 pm except as noted below or as posted.  Between 
the hours of 10:00 pm to 6:00 am, parks and public property are 
closed and during such hours, no person shall enter into or remain 
on such property, except those persons whose presence is related to 
or in connection with a municipal activity.   
 

(1) Springdale Park hours shall coincide with Springdale Golf 
Course hours and park rentals. The closing of the park is up 
to the discretion of the City of Birmingham Representative 
on duty. 
(2) The Skate Park shall be closed from 10:00 pm to 8:00 
am. 

 
For purposes of this section, public property shall be deemed to be 
property zoned as public property under the provisions of chapter 
126.   
 
 



Animals 
12. Leashed dogs are allowed in any public park except in those 
areas as designated and posted by the Department of Public 
Services. Dogs are allowed on public property as long as they are 
restrained by a six foot maximum length chain or leash and under 
the reasonable control of some person. Owners and walkers of dogs 
on public property must comply with all City ordinances, including 
Chapter 18, Article II, pertaining to dogs and cats.  

 
Sec. 18-33 Restraint of dogs.  

It shall be unlawful for any owner of any dog to permit the dog to go 
beyond the premises of such owner unless restrained by a chain or 
leash and under the reasonable control of some person. (Code 1963, 
§ 9.80(1))  
 
13. Dogs are not permitted in any public playground or in any other 
area designated by the Department of Public Services. These areas 
shall generally include, but shall not be limited to, areas under and 
immediately adjacent to play structures and play equipment; 
sandboxes; the playing surface of ball fields, soccer fields, tennis 
courts, outdoor ice rinks, golf courses and sledding hills, when such 
areas are in use; pavilions and stages; fountains; and in areas 
designated for City permitted events and functions of concentrated 
use during said event or function.  
 
Sanitation 
14. The owner or walker of a dog is responsible for the collection of 
all fecal matter and the disposal of such fecal matter in an 
appropriate city waste receptacle or in accordance with ordinance 
Section 18-35 Sanitation.  

 
Sec. 18-35 Sanitation.  

(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to permit any animal owned 
or harbored by him to deposit fecal matter in any place other than 
the premises where the animal is harbored or kept, unless such fecal 
matter is immediately collected and removed to the premises where 
the animal is harbored or kept.  
(b) It shall be unlawful for any person to walk any animal on  
any property not owned by such person, whether public or private, 
unless such person has an appropriate device for the collection of 
fecal matter in his immediate possession and an appropriate 
depository for the transmission of fecal matter to the premises 
where the animal is harbored or kept.  
(Code 1963, § 9.95; Ord. No. 1586, 4-18-94)  

Sound Amplification 
15. The use of loudspeakers or other sound enhancing equipment 
for the amplification of sound or music is prohibited, unless allowed 
by permit issued by the City.  Any amplification must be reasonable 
as to not disturb the peace. 
 
Fires 
16. Open burning of any kind is prohibited at all city parks and 
facilities  No person shall drop, throw, or otherwise scatter lighted 
matches, burning cigarettes or cigars, tobacco paper, charcoal or 
other flammable material at any park, facility or trail.  However, the 
use of barbecue burners or cooking in the picnic area at Springdale 
Park is permissible. No person shall leave the immediate vicinity of 
any fire, which he/she has started or used without first extinguishing 
the fire.  
 
Fireworks & Explosives 
17. No person shall bring into a park, or public property or have in 
his possession, or set off or otherwise cause to explode any 
firecrackers, torpedo, rocket or other fireworks or explosives, or 
discharge them or throw them into any park area from land or 
property adjacent thereto. 
 
Obstructions; Damage; Fences; Disposal 
18. No person shall obstruct any walkway or driveway in any public 
park or playground. No person shall injure, mar or damage, in any 
manner, any monument, ornament, fence, bridge, seat, tree, 
fountain, shrub, herbaceous plant, flower, playground equipment, or 
other public property within or pertaining to such parks.  
 
19. No person shall interfere with any fence constructed in or about 
any park; or deface, injure, remove, or destroy any tree, shrub, 
herbaceous plant, flower, or turf in any park or boulevard; or remove 
any dirt, sand or earth from any park or boulevard, or otherwise 
remove, destroy or injure any property therein; or leave or deposit 
any filth, rubbish, dirt, wastepaper or other refuse in any place in 
any park or boulevard except in containers provided in parks for that 
purpose. Dumping or disposal of household or commercial waste 
transported from off-site to city property is prohibited.  
 
Peddling, Vending, Advertising and Signs 
20. No person shall engage in the business of peddling or vending in 
any City of Birmingham Park without first obtaining a license from 



the city clerk’s office.  Contact the office at (248) 530-1880 for 
additional information. 
 
21. No person shall expose, distribute, place any sign, 
advertisement, circular notice, or statement, or display any banner, 
City of Birmingham emblem, or design without written permission 
from the City.  
 
22. Decorations may be attached to the Springdale shelter by means 
of masking or cellophane tape only. There should be no decorations 
drilled, fastened, or otherwise attached to the shelter with materials 
such as staples, nails, or tacks.  
 
Boating 
23. No person shall place or operate any boat propelled by any 
engine in or upon waters in any park in the city, including the water 
of Quarton Lake.  
 
Fishing and Wildlife 
24. Subject to State of Michigan fishing licenses regulations, fishing 
in any water park in the City of Birmingham, including Quarton Lake 
is allowed.  Fishing is not allowed at either Lincoln Hills Golf Course 
or Springdale Golf Course. 
 
25. No person shall feed any geese, ducks, birds or other fowl in any 
City Park or any municipal Golf Course.  
 
26. No person, except an authorized city employee shall injure, kill or 
capture any wild bird, or disturb any wild bird’s nest or the contents 
thereof.  
 
Swimming 
27. Swimming and/or wading is prohibited in any lake, river, public 
fountain or public pond in the City of Birmingham.  
 
Vehicles 
28. No vehicles, except authorized City vehicles, are allowed to be 
driven across lawns, sidewalks, or any other park surface for any 
reason.  
 
29. No person shall operate, use, ride, or pull another individual on a 
wheeled vehicle, on City-owned tennis courts, basketball courts, 
fountains and stone work ledges. Wheeled prohibited vehicles 

include, but are not limited to, in-line skates, skateboards, bicycles, 
hover boards, wagons, roller-skates, and scooters.  
 
30. It is unlawful for any person to operate any motorized vehicle, 
trail bike, all-terrain vehicle, or similar type of motorized sport 
vehicle anywhere in any park or trail, except for the proper use of 
golf carts on city golf courses.  
 
Violation of Rules & Regulations 
31. Violation of these rules or other posted rules is a misdemeanor 
punishable by a fine up to $500, or imprisonment for a term not 
exceeding 90 days, or both. 
 
 
 
 

City Commission Approval:  mm/dd/yyyy 
Parks and Recreation Board Approval 12/1/2020 

 



1 

MEMORANDUM 
Police Department 

DATE:  February 3, 2021 

TO:  Tom Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Chris Busen, Investigative Commander 

REFERENCE: Program Year 2021 High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area (HIDTA) 
sub recipient agreement between the County of Oakland and the 
City of Birmingham (Data Universal Numbering System ((DUNS)) 
#: 074239450) 

INTRODUCTION: 
The police department is a member of the Oakland County Sheriff’s Office Narcotic Enforcement 
Team (NET) by an approved inter-local agreement between the City and Oakland County. In 
addition to Birmingham, thirteen other communities are also members of NET by the inter-local 
agreement. 

BACKGROUND: 
In 2021, with the permission and cooperation of all fourteen member agencies, the Oakland 
County Sheriff’s Office applied for a grant through the Executive Board for Michigan High Intensity 
Drug Trafficking Area (HIDTA) requesting the United States Office of Drug Control Policy (ONDCP) 
grant NET an award of $115,500 for the program year 2021 (January 1, 2021 to December 31, 
2021). The grant award will allow partial funding for overtime reimbursement of NET investigators 
for drug investigations. Oakland County will reimburse the City up to $5,250.00 for qualifying NET 
related overtime. 

LEGAL REVIEW: 
Legal Counsel reviewed the inter-local agreement and no issues were found to exist. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
Non-applicable 

SUMMARY: 
In order to receive funds from the grant, the City of Birmingham is required to enter into a sub 
recipient agreement with Oakland County. The purpose of the agreement is to delineate the 
relationship and responsibilities regarding the County’s use of grant funds to reimburse 
municipalities for overtime incurred as it relates to participation in the Oakland County Narcotic 
Enforcement Team (NET).  

ATTACHMENTS: 
Program Year 2021 High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area (HIDTA) sub recipient agreement 
between the County of Oakland and the City of Birmingham.  

5F



2 
 
 

 
SUGGESTED RESOLUTION: 
 
To approve the Program Year 2021 High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area (HIDTA) Sub 
recipient agreement between the County of Oakland and the City of Birmingham. 
Further, to authorize the Mayor and the City Manager to sign the agreement on behalf 
of the City.   

 
 
 
 
 
 



2021 HIGH INTENSITY DRUG TRAFFICKING AREA (HIDTA) GRANT  
SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN  

OAKLAND COUNTY 
AND 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 
 

Page 1 of 12 
Rev. January 2021 

 

 

PROGRAM YEAR 2021 
 HIGH INTENSITY DRUG TRAFFICKING AREA (HIDTA)  

SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN  
THE COUNTY OF OAKLAND AND CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 

Data Universal Numbering System (DUNS) #: 074239450 
 
 
 
This Agreement is made between Oakland County, a Constitutional Corporation, 1200 North Telegraph, 
Pontiac, Michigan 48341 ("County") and City of Birmingham, 151 Martin St., Birmingham, MI 48009, 
a Michigan Municipal Corporation ("Municipality"). The County and Municipality shall be collectively 
referred to as the “Parties.” 
 
PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT.   
 
The Parties enter into this Agreement for the purpose of delineating their relationship and 
responsibilities regarding the County’s use of Grant funds (defined below) to reimburse the Municipality 
for overtime expenses that it incurred related to its participation in the Oakland County Narcotic 
Enforcement Team (“N.E.T.”), a multijurisdictional drug enforcement task force under the direction and 
supervision of the Oakland County Sheriff’s Office (“OCSO”). 
Under the Parties’ separate N.E.T. agreement, the Municipality is responsible for providing a full-time 
employee for participation in N.E.T. and for all costs associated with that employment, including 
overtime. 

The County, as the legal entity that administers N.E.T., submitted an Initiative Description and Budget 
Proposal (Exhibit A) to the Executive Board for Michigan HIDTA requesting the United States Office 
of National Drug Control Policy (“ONDCP”) to grant N.E.T. an award of $115,500.00 for program year 
(PY) 2021 to reimburse N.E.T. participating agencies for eligible law enforcement officer overtime. PY 
2021 begins January 1, 2021 and ends December 31, 2021. 

If ONDCP grants N.E.T. an award for PY 2021, the ONDCP disburses the HIDTA grant funds to the 
Michigan State Police (“MSP”). To receive the Grant funds for overtime costs, N.E.T. must submit 
requests for reimbursement with the required supporting documentation to Michigan HIDTA. If 
Michigan HIDTA approves the N.E.T. overtime reimbursement requests, the MSP should distribute the 
Grant funds to County on behalf of N.E.T. The County has the authority to allocate a portion of the 
Grant funds to reimburse the Municipality for qualifying overtime costs subject to the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement. 

In consideration of the mutual promises, obligations, representations, and assurances in this Agreement, 
the Parties agree to the following: 

1. DEFINITIONS.  The following terms, whether used in the singular or plural, within or without 
quotation marks, or possessive or nonpossessive, shall be defined, read, and interpreted as follows. 



2021 HIGH INTENSITY DRUG TRAFFICKING AREA (HIDTA) GRANT  
SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN  

OAKLAND COUNTY 
AND 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 
 

Page 2 of 12 
Rev. January 2021 

 

 

1.1. Claim means any alleged loss, claim, complaint, demand for relief or damages, cause of 
action, proceeding, judgment, deficiency, liability, penalty, fine, litigation, costs, and/or 
expenses, including, but not limited to, reimbursement for attorney fees, witness fees, court 
costs, investigation expenses, litigation expenses, and amounts paid in settlement, which are 
imposed on, incurred by, or asserted against the County or Municipality, or the County’s or 
Municipality’s agents or employees, whether such claim is brought in law or equity, tort, 
contract, or otherwise. 

1.2. Grant funds mean the funds that may be awarded to the County and the other participating 
agencies in N.E.T. pursuant to Michigan HIDTA Initiative Description and Budget Proposal 
Version 2021 (Exhibit A) submitted to Michigan HIDTA by County on behalf of itself and 
the other participating agencies in N.E.T. 

2. EXHIBITS.  The Exhibits listed below are incorporated and are part of this Agreement.  

2.1. Exhibit A – Michigan HIDTA Initiative Description and Budget Proposal Version 2021. 

2.2. Exhibit B - Template Request for HIDTA Overtime Reimbursement (Locals to County). 
2.3. Exhibit C – Sample letter regarding notification of current overtime pay rate. 

 
2.4. Exhibit D – Sample overtime slip, signed by the officer’s supervisor that supports each 

Request for HIDTA Overtime Reimbursement. 
 

2.5. Exhibit E – Sample paystub or payroll report that supports each Request for HIDTA 
Overtime Reimbursement. 
 

3. FEDERAL AWARD PROJECT DESCRIPTION. 

3.1. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (“CFDA”) #: 95.001 

3.2. Federal Awarding Agency: United States Office of National Drug Control Policy 
(“ONDCP”) 

3.3. Program: High Intensity Drug Trafficking Areas (HIDTA) 

3.3.1. HIDTA Objective: To reduce drug trafficking and drug production in the United States 
by: (A) facilitating cooperation among Federal, State, local, and tribal law enforcement 
agencies to share information and implement coordinated enforcement activities; (B) 
enhancing law enforcement intelligence sharing among Federal, State, local, and tribal law 
enforcement agencies; (C) providing reliable law enforcement intelligence to law 
enforcement agencies needed to design effective enforcement strategies and operations; and 
(D) supporting coordinated law enforcement strategies which maximize use of available 
resources to reduce the supply of illegal drugs in designated areas and in the United States 
as a whole. 



2021 HIGH INTENSITY DRUG TRAFFICKING AREA (HIDTA) GRANT  
SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN  

OAKLAND COUNTY 
AND 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 
 

Page 3 of 12 
Rev. January 2021 

 

 

3.4. Period of Performance: January 1, 2021 through December 31, 2021. 

3.5. The Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) is provided in the HIDTA Grant 
Agreement between ONDCP and MSP, which is incorporated into this Agreement by 
reference. 

4. USE OF HIDTA FUNDS.   

4.1. The total amount of the federal award for overtime costs committed to the Municipality and 
obligated by this action by the County to the Municipality is not to exceed $5,250.00 for each 
participating law enforcement officer. That amount is based on the number of N.E.T 
participating agencies and eligible law enforcement officers at the time this Agreement was 
executed by both Parties. If the number of N.E.T participating agencies and/or eligible law 
enforcement officers changes during the term of this Agreement, the total amount of the 
federal award for overtime costs committed to the Municipality and obligated by this action 
by the County to the Municipality amount may change as funds are available on a pro rata 
basis. Such commitment and obligation for overtime costs is contingent upon the ONDCP 
awarding the Grant funds to N.E.T and the MSP reimbursing the County. 

4.2. The County will reimburse the Municipality up to $5,250.00 for each participating law 
enforcement officer for qualifying N.E.T.-related overtime. That amount is based on the 
number of N.E.T participating agencies and eligible law enforcement officers at the time this 
Agreement was executed by both Parties. If the number of N.E.T participating agencies 
and/or eligible law enforcement officers changes during the term of this Agreement, the 
maximum reimbursement amount may change as funds are available on a pro rata basis.  
Such reimbursement shall only be made after the supporting documentation is submitted by 
the Municipality and approved by the County, as described in Paragraph 5.1.  Such 
reimbursement is contingent upon the ONDCP awarding the grant funds to N.E.T and the 
MSP reimbursing the County. 

4.2.1. HIDTA funds shall be used to pay overtime only if the overtime was performed in 
support of a HIDTA-designated Enforcement initiative or Intelligence and information 
Sharing Initiative. HIDTA funds shall not be used to pay overtime related to training 
attendance, financial management, drug treatment, drug demand reduction or prevention, or 
non-investigative related administrative work. 

4.2.2. No HIDTA funds shall be used to supplant the Municipality’s funds that would otherwise 
be made available for the same purposes. 

4.3. There is no research and development performed pursuant to this Agreement. 

4.4. No indirect costs shall be charged or reimbursed under performance of this Agreement.  

5. REIMBURSEMENT OF ELIGIBLE NET OVERTIME.  



2021 HIGH INTENSITY DRUG TRAFFICKING AREA (HIDTA) GRANT  
SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN  

OAKLAND COUNTY 
AND 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 
 

Page 4 of 12 
Rev. January 2021 

 

 

5.1. To request reimbursement for eligible N.E.T. overtime costs, the Municipality shall submit to 
the County the documentation described in the following subparagraphs no later than thirty 
(30) days after PY 2021 has expired. If the County, in its sole discretion, determines that the 
documentation submitted by the Municipality does not reconcile, then the Municipality shall 
provide any additional documentation requested by the County in order to process payment. 

5.1.1.  A fully completed and signed Request for HIDTA Overtime Reimbursement attached as 
Exhibit B.  

5.1.2. A letter substantively similar to the sample letter regarding notification of current 
overtime pay rate attached as Exhibit C.  

5.1.3. Overtime slips, signed by the officer’s supervisor, that support each Request for HIDTA 
Overtime Reimbursement. The overtime slips shall be substantively similar to the sample 
overtime slip attached as Exhibit D.  

5.1.4. The paystub or payroll report that supports each Request for HIDTA Overtime 
Reimbursement. The paystub or payroll report shall be substantively similar to the sample 
paystub attached as Exhibit E. 

5.2. County will only reimburse Municipality for approved overtime costs after County has 
received the Grant funds from MSP for that particular reimbursement request. 
 

6. GENERAL COMPLIANCE. 

6.1. The Municipality shall comply with to 28 C.F.R. Part 69 (New Restrictions on Lobbying) 
and 2 C.F.R. Part 25 (Universal Identifier and System of Award Management). 

6.2. The Municipality shall comply with the Government-wide Suspension and Debarment 
provision set forth at 2 CFR Part 180.  

6.3. The Municipality shall perform all activities in accordance with The Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements in 2 C.F.R. Part 200 (the “Part 200 
Uniform Requirements”), as adopted and implemented by the Office of National Drug 
Control Policy (ONDCP) in 2 C.F.R. Part 3603. For this award, the Part 200 Uniform 
Requirements supersede, among other things, the provisions of 28 C.F.R. Parts 66 and 70, as 
well as those of 2 C.F.R. Parts 215, 220, 225, and 230.  

6.4. The Municipality shall comply with ONDCP’s HIDTA Program Policy and Budget 
Guidance, all other applicable Federal, state, and local laws and regulations, and the terms 
and conditions contained in this Agreement. 

6.5. The Municipality shall comply with all applicable requirements for subrecipients that are 
provided in the HIDTA Grant Agreement between ONDCP and MSP. The HIDTA Grant 



2021 HIGH INTENSITY DRUG TRAFFICKING AREA (HIDTA) GRANT  
SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN  

OAKLAND COUNTY 
AND 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 
 

Page 5 of 12 
Rev. January 2021 

 

 

Agreement between ONDCP and MSP will be provided to the Municipality within a 
reasonable time after the County receives a copy of it. 

6.6. As specified in the HIDTA Program Policy and Budget Guidance, the Municipality must:  

6.6.1. Establish and maintain effective internal controls over the Federal award that provides 
reasonable assurance that Federal award funds are managed in compliance with Federal 
statutes, regulations and award terms and conditions. These internal controls should be in 
compliance with the guidance in “Standards for Internal Control in the Federal 
Government,” issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and the “Internal 
Control Integrated Framework,” issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of 
the Treadway Commission (COSO).  

6.6.2. Comply with Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the Federal 
awards.  

6.6.3. Evaluate and monitor compliance with applicable statute and regulations, and the terms 
and conditions of the Federal award.  

6.6.4. Take prompt action when instances of noncompliance are identified, including 
noncompliance identified in audit findings.  

6.6.5. Take reasonable measures to safeguard protected personally identified information (PII) 
and other information ONDCP or the Municipality designates consistent with applicable 
Federal, state, and local laws regarding privacy and obligations of confidentiality.  

7. FINANCIAL ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT REQUIREMENTS.    

7.1. The Municipality shall maintain standards of financial accountability that conform to 2 
C.F.R. §200.302 (Financial Management) and 2 C.F.R. §200.303 (Internal Controls).   

7.2. The Municipality shall comply with audit requirements contained in 2 C.F.R. Part 200, 
Subpart F, which requires the Municipality to have an annual audit conducted within nine (9) 
months of the end of their fiscal year, if the Municipality has an aggregate expenditure of 
more than $750,000 in federal funds in a fiscal year.  Any deficiencies noted in audit reports 
must be fully cleared by the Municipality within thirty (30) days after receipt of same. The 
Grant funds spent by the County on behalf of the Municipality for training expenses shall be 
included on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards if the Municipality is required 
to have a single audit performed. Municipalities that are exempt from the Single Audit 
requirements that receive less than $750,000 of total Federal funding must submit a Financial 
Statement Audit prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Auditing Standards 
(“GAAS”) if the audit includes disclosures that may negatively impact the HIDTA program 
including, but not limited to fraud, financial misstatements, and violations of any contract or 
grant provisions.  The County shall have the right to review and audit all records of the 
Municipality pertaining to any payment by the County. 



2021 HIGH INTENSITY DRUG TRAFFICKING AREA (HIDTA) GRANT  
SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN  

OAKLAND COUNTY 
AND 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 
 

Page 6 of 12 
Rev. January 2021 

 

 

8. CONFLICT OF INTEREST.  

8.1. The Municipality shall comply with the following ONDCP conflict of interest policies: 

8.1.1. As a non-Federal entity, you must maintain written standards of conduct covering 
conflicts of interest and governing the performance of your employees engaged in the 
selection, award, and administration of subawards and contracts. 

8.1.2. None of your employees may participate in the selection, award, or administration of a 
subaward or contract supported by a Federal award if he or she has a real or apparent 
conflict of interest. Such a conflict of interest would arise when the employee, officer, or 
agent, any member of his or her immediate family, his or her partner, or an organization 
which employs or is about to employ any of the parties indicated herein, has a financial or 
other interest in or a tangible personal benefit from an organization considered for a sub- 
award or contract. The officers, employees, and agents of the non-Federal entity must 
neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors, or anything of monetary value from 
subrecipients or contractors or parties to subawards or contracts. 

8.1.3. If you have a parent, affiliate, or subsidiary organization that is not a State, local 
government, or Indian tribe, you must also maintain written standards of conduct covering 
organizational conflicts of interest. Organizational conflicts of interest means that because 
of relationships with a parent company, affiliate, or subsidiary organization, you are unable 
or appear to be unable to be impartial in conducting a sub-award or procurement action 
involving a related organization.  

 
9. MANDATORY DISCLOSURE.  

9.1. As a non-Federal entity, the Municipality must disclose, in a timely manner, in writing to 
ONDCP all violations of Federal criminal law involving fraud, bribery or gratuity violations 
potentially affecting the Federal award. Non-Federal entities that have received a Federal 
award that includes the term and condition outlined in 200 CFR Part 200, Appendix XII 
“Award Term and Condition for Recipient Integrity and Performance Matters,” are required 
to report certain civil, criminal, or administrative proceedings to System for Award 
Management (SAM). Failure to make required disclosures can result in remedies such as: 
temporary withholding of payments pending correction of the deficiency, disallowance of all 
or part of the costs associated with noncompliance, suspension, termination of award, 
debarment, or other legally available remedies outlined in 2 CFR 200.338 “Remedies for 
Noncompliance”. 

10. RECORD RETENTION. 

10.1. The Municipality shall comply with the record retention provisions of 2 C.F.R. 200.333 
(Retention requirements for records). 



2021 HIGH INTENSITY DRUG TRAFFICKING AREA (HIDTA) GRANT  
SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN  

OAKLAND COUNTY 
AND 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 
 

Page 7 of 12 
Rev. January 2021 

 

 

10.2. The Municipality should, whenever practicable, collect, transmit, and store Federal award-
related information in open and machine readable formats rather than in closed formats or on 
paper in accordance with 2 C.F.R. 200.335 (Methods for collection, transmission and storage 
of information).  

11. ACCESS TO RECORDS. 

11.1. The Federal awarding agency, Inspectors General, the Comptroller General of the United 
States, and the County, or any of their authorized representatives, have the right of access to 
any documents, papers, or other records of the Municipal entity which are pertinent to the 
Federal award, in order to make audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcripts. The right also 
includes timely and reasonable access to the Municipality's personnel for the purpose of 
interview and discussion related to such documents. The right of access to the Municipality’s 
records is not limited to the required retention period but last as long as the records are 
retained. 

11.2. The Municipality shall permit the County and auditors to have access to the Municipality’s 
records and financial statements as necessary for the County to meet the requirements of 2 
C.F.R. Part 200. 

12. TERM. 

12.1. This Agreement and any amendments hereto shall be effective when executed by both Parties 
with concurrent resolutions passed by the governing bodies of each Party, and when the 
Agreement is filed according to MCL 124.510. The approval and terms of this Agreement 
and any amendments hereto shall be entered in the official minutes of the governing bodies 
of each Party. This Agreement shall end on December 31, 2021. 

13. ASSURANCES. 

13.1. Each Party shall be responsible for its own acts and the acts of its employees and agents, the 
costs associated with those acts, and the defense of those acts. 

13.2. The Parties have taken all actions and secured all approvals necessary to authorize and 
complete this Agreement.  The persons signing this Agreement on behalf of each Party have 
legal authority to sign this Agreement and bind the Parties to the terms and conditions 
contained herein.  

13.3. Each Party shall comply with all federal, state, and local ordinances, regulations, 
administrative rules, laws, and requirements applicable to its activities performed under this 
Agreement. 

14. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT.   

14.1. This Agreement may be terminated in whole or in part as follows: 



2021 HIGH INTENSITY DRUG TRAFFICKING AREA (HIDTA) GRANT  
SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN  

OAKLAND COUNTY 
AND 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 
 

Page 8 of 12 
Rev. January 2021 

 

 

14.1.1. by the County, if the Municipality fails to comply with the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement;  

14.1.2. by the County for cause;  

14.1.3. by the County with the consent of the Municipality, in which case the two parties must 
agree upon the termination conditions, including the effective date and, in the case of partial 
termination, the portion to be terminated;  

14.1.4. by the Municipality upon sending to the County written notification setting forth the 
reasons for such termination, the effective date, and, in the case of partial termination, the 
portion to be terminated. However, if the County determines in the case of partial 
termination that the reduced or modified portion of the subaward will not accomplish the 
purpose for which this Agreement was made, the County may terminate the Agreement in 
its entirety.  

14.2. The County must provide to the Municipality a notice of termination. Written suspension or 
notice of termination will be sent to the Municipality’s business address. If this Agreement is 
terminated or partially terminated, both the County and the Municipality remain responsible 
for compliance with the requirements at 2 CFR 200.343 Closeout and 2 CFR 200.344 Post-
closeout Adjustments and Continuing Responsibilities. 

15. CLOSEOUT. 

15.1. The County shall close-out this Agreement when it determines that all applicable 
administrative actions and all required work under this Agreement have been completed by 
Municipality.  

15.2.  The Municipality shall comply with the closeout provisions of 2 C.F.R. 200.343 (Closeout).  

16. POST-CLOSEOUT ADJUSTMENTS AND CONTINUING RESPONSIBILITIES.  

16.1. The closeout of this Agreement does not affect any of the following: 

16.1.1. The right of County to disallow costs and recover funds on the basis of a later audit or 
other review. The County must make any cost disallowance determination and notify the 
Municipality within the record retention period; 

16.1.2. The obligation of the Municipality to return any funds due as a result of later refunds, 
corrections, or other transactions including final indirect cost rate adjustments;  

16.1.3. Audit requirements in Subpart F—Audit Requirements of 2 C.F.R. Part 200.  

16.1.4. Records retention as required in Subpart D—Post Federal Award Requirements of this 
part, §200.333 Retention requirements for records through §200.337 Restrictions on public 
access to records.  



2021 HIGH INTENSITY DRUG TRAFFICKING AREA (HIDTA) GRANT  
SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN  

OAKLAND COUNTY 
AND 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 
 

Page 9 of 12 
Rev. January 2021 

 

 

17. REMEDIES FOR NONCOMPLIANCE. 

17.1. If the Municipality fails to comply with federal statutes, regulations, or the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement, the County may impose additional conditions, as described in 
2 CFR §200.207 Specific Conditions. If the County determines that noncompliance cannot be 
remedied by imposing additional conditions, the County may take one or more of the 
following actions, as appropriate in the circumstances: 

17.1.1. temporarily withhold cash payments pending correction of the deficiency by the 
Municipality or more severe enforcement action by the County; 

17.1.2. disallow (that is, deny both use of funds and any applicable matching credit for) all or 
part of the cost of the activity or action not in compliance;  

17.1.3. wholly or partly suspend or terminate the Agreement;  

17.1.4. recommend that the Federal awarding agency initiate suspension or debarment 
proceedings as authorized under 2 CFR Part 180 and Federal awarding agency regulations;  

17.1.5. withhold further funds for the project or program;  

17.1.6. take other remedies that may be legally available.  

18. NO THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARIES.  Except as provided for the benefit of the Parties, this 
Agreement does not and is not intended to create any obligation, duty, promise, contractual right or 
benefit, right to indemnification, right to subrogation, and/or any other right, in favor of any other 
person or entity. 

19. DISCRIMINATION.  The Parties shall not discriminate against their employees, agents, applicants 
for employment, or another persons or entities with respect to hire, tenure, terms, conditions, and 
privileges of employment, or any matter directly or indirectly related to employment in violation of 
any federal, state or local law. 

20. PERMITS AND LICENSES.  Each Party shall be responsible for obtaining and maintaining, 
throughout the term of this Agreement, all licenses, permits, certificates, and governmental 
authorizations necessary to carry out its obligations and duties pursuant to this Agreement. 

21. RESERVATION OF RIGHTS.  This Agreement does not, and is not intended to waive, impair, 
divest, delegate, or contravene any constitutional, statutory, and/or other legal right, privilege, 
power, obligation, duty, or immunity of the Parties. 

22. DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACT/ASSIGNMENT.  Neither Party shall delegate, subcontract, 
and/or assign any obligations or rights under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the 
other Party. 



2021 HIGH INTENSITY DRUG TRAFFICKING AREA (HIDTA) GRANT  
SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN  

OAKLAND COUNTY 
AND 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 
 

Page 10 of 12 
Rev. January 2021 

 

 

23. NO IMPLIED WAIVER.  Absent a written waiver, no act, failure, or delay by a Party to pursue or 
enforce any rights or remedies under this Agreement shall constitute a waiver of those rights with 
regard to any existing or subsequent breach of this Agreement.  No waiver of any term, condition, or 
provision of this Agreement, whether by conduct or otherwise, in one or more instances, shall be 
deemed or construed as a continuing waiver of any term, condition, or provision of this Agreement.  
No waiver by either Party shall subsequently affect its right to require strict performance of this 
Agreement. 

24. SEVERABILITY.  If a court of competent jurisdiction finds a term, or condition, of this Agreement 
to be illegal or invalid, then the term, or condition, shall be deemed severed from this Agreement.  
All other terms, conditions, and provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force. 

25. CAPTIONS.  The section and subsection numbers and captions in this Agreement are intended for 
the convenience of the reader and are not intended to have any substantive meaning.  The numbers 
and captions shall not be interpreted or be considered as part of this Agreement.  Any use of the 
singular or plural number, any reference to the male, female, or neuter genders, and any possessive 
or nonpossessive use in this Agreement shall be deemed the appropriate plurality, gender or 
possession as the context requires. 

26. NOTICES.  Notices given under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be personally 
delivered, sent by express delivery service, certified mail, or first-class U.S. mail postage prepaid, 
and addressed to the person listed below.  Notice will be deemed given on the date when one of the 
following first occur: (1) the date of actual receipt; (2) the next business day when notice is sent 
express delivery service or personal delivery; or (3) three days after mailing first class or certified 
U.S. mail. 

26.1. If Notice is sent to the County, it shall be addressed and sent to: Oakland County Board of 
Commissioners Chairperson, 1200 North Telegraph, Pontiac, Michigan 48341, with a copy 
to Oakland County Sheriff’s Office, Sheriff Fiscal Officer, 1200 N. Telegraph, Bldg. 38E, 
Pontiac, Michigan 48341. 

26.2. If Notice is sent to the Political Subdivision, it shall be addressed to: City of Birmingham. 

26.3. Either Party may change the address and/or individual to which Notice is sent by notifying 
the other Party in writing of the change.   

27. CONTACT INFORMATION. 



2021 HIGH INTENSITY DRUG TRAFFICKING AREA (HIDTA) GRANT  
SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN  

OAKLAND COUNTY 
AND 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 
 

Page 11 of 12 
Rev. January 2021 

 

 

County of Oakland 

Lieutenant Brent Miles 
Investigative & Forensic Services Division 
Narcotics Enforcement Team 
Office: 248-858-1722 
Fax: 248-858-1754 
Email: milesbr@oakgov.com 
 

City of Birmingham 

Commander Chris Busen 
Birmingham Police Department 
151 Martin 
Birmingham, MI 48009 
248-530-1764 
Email: cbusen@bhamgov.org 

 

  

28. GOVERNING LAW.  This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted, and enforced by the laws of 
the State of Michigan, without regard to Michigan’s conflict of laws provisions.   

29. AGREEMENT MODIFICATIONS OR AMENDMENTS.  Any modifications, amendments, 
rescissions, waivers, or releases to this Agreement must be in writing and executed by both Parties.   

30. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This Agreement represents the entire agreement and understanding 
between the Parties.  This Agreement supersedes all other oral or written agreements between the 
Parties. The language of this Agreement shall be construed as a whole according to its fair meaning, 
and not construed strictly for or against any Party. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, David T. Woodward, Chairperson, Oakland County Board of 
Commissioners, acknowledges that he has been authorized by a resolution of the Oakland County Board 
of Commissioners, a certified copy of which is attached, to execute this Agreement, and hereby accepts 
and binds the County to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 
 
 
EXECUTED: ____________________________________ DATE: ______________ 
 David T. Woodward, Chairperson 
 Oakland County Board of Commissioners 
 
WITNESSED:  _____________________________________ DATE: _______________ 
 Printed Name: 
 Title: 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, _______________________, acknowledges that he/she has been 
authorized by a resolution of the Municipality’s governing body, a certified copy of which is attached, to 
execute this Agreement, and hereby accepts and binds the Municipality to the terms and conditions of 
this Agreement. 
 

mailto:milesbr@oakgov.com
mailto:cbusen@bhamgov.org


2021 HIGH INTENSITY DRUG TRAFFICKING AREA (HIDTA) GRANT  
SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN  

OAKLAND COUNTY 
AND 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 
 

Page 12 of 12 
Rev. January 2021 

 

 

 
EXECUTED: ____________________________________ DATE: ______________ 
 Printed Name: 
 Title:  
 
WITNESSED:  _____________________________________ DATE: _______________ 
 Printed Name: 
 Title: 
 



MEMORANDUM 
Planning Division 

DATE: March 8th, 2021 

TO:  Thomas Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Nicholas Dupuis, City Planner 

APPROVED:  Jana Ecker, Planning Director 

SUBJECT: 670 S. Old Woodward – Right-of-Way Parking Request 

INTRODUCTION: 
The subject site, formerly Detroit Trading Co., is a single-story commercial building located at the 
southern end of Downtown Birmingham. The current site has an off-street parking facility with 
22 parking spaces available for use by the building. The subject building is not within the Parking 
Assessment District and therefore must provide the parking required for any use on-site. The 
applicant is currently seeking permission from the City Commission to include 8 metered parking 
spaces in front of the building in the City’s right-of-way along S. Old Woodward to assist them in 
meeting the parking requirements for a new tenant, Vibe Salon Suites, pursuant to Article 4, 
Section 4.45 (G)(4) of the Zoning Ordinance: 

4.45 PK-01 General Parking Standards 

G. Methods of Providing Parking Facilities: The required off-street parking facilities for 
buildings used for other than residential purposes may be provided by any one of the 
following methods: 

4. By providing the required off-street parking on the same lot as the building
being served, or where practical, and with the permission of the City
Commission, the area in the public right-of-way abutting the property in
question may be included as a portion of the required parking area if such area
is improved in accordance with plans which have been approved by the
engineering department.

BACKGROUND: 
The applicant submitted a Building Permit application for a new tenant proposed in the currently 
vacant commercial space. The tenant, Vibe Salon Suites, is considered a salon use that requires 
2 off-street parking spaces per service chair, booth or bed; or 1 off-street parking space per 300 
sq. ft. of floor area, whichever is greater. The buildout proposed shows 28 separate “salon suites” 
containing 32 total chairs/service stations. Based on the requirements, Vibe Salon Suites will 
require 64 off-street parking spaces based on the 32 chairs/service stations proposed. The 

5G



Building Permit application was denied by the Planning Division citing the 42 space parking 
deficiency present on the site. 
 
At this time, it is the understanding of the Planning Division that the applicant is requesting the 
8 right-of-way parking spaces to be counted towards the required off-street parking as one 
method to make the Vibe Salon Suite concept work in the space within the confines of the Zoning 
Ordinance. If granted, the applicant must further address any additional deficiencies through 
revised floor plans with less chairs/service stations, shared parking agreements, and/or the 
petitioning of a variance from the Board of Zoning Appeals in which the applicant would have to 
prove a hardship. 
 
Additionally, as required by the Ordinance, the Engineering Division inspected the area in the 
public right-of-way abutting the property in question to determine if any improvements would be 
required as a part of this consideration. In summation, the Engineering Division did not observe 
any improvements that would be required of the applicant to utilize the parking area. 
 
LEGAL REVIEW: 
The City Attorney has reviewed the documentation and has no concerns. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The proposed request has no fiscal impact on the City. 
 
PUBLIC INPUT: 
There has been no public input submitted in regards to the proposal. 
 
SUMMARY: 
In accordance with Article 4, section 4.43(G)(4) of the Zoning Ordinance, the applicant requests 
that the City Commission include 8 right-of-way parking spaces adjacent to their property in their 
required parking calculation. The inclusion of these spaces will enable the applicant to move closer 
to meeting the off-street parking requirements for the proposed salon. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 Letter from Dennis G. Cowan – Plunkett-Cooney  
 670 S. Old Woodward - Site Plan  

 
SUGGESTED RESOLUTION: 
To approve the use of 8 parking spaces in the right-of-way adjacent to the property located at 
670 S. Old Woodward to help fulfill the parking requirements per Article 4, section 4.43 (G)(4) of 
the Zoning Ordinance. 



A T T O R N E Y S  &  C O U N S E L O R S  A T  L A W  

38505 Woodward Ave., Suite 2000 • Bloomfield Hills, MI 48304 • T: (248) 901-4000 • F: (248) 901-4040 • plunkettcooney.com 

February 24, 2021 

VIA EMAIL TO: jecker@bhamgov.org

Jana Ecker 
Planning Director 
City of Birmingham 
151 Martin St. 
Birmingham, MI 48009 

Re: 670 S. Old Woodward 
 Request Pursuant to Zoning Ordinance 4.45 PK-01(G)(1) 

Dear Ms. Ecker: 

Please be advised that the undersigned and our Firm represent Vibe of Birmingham, LLC 
(“VIBE”), who will be operating VIBE Salon Suites at the above-referenced address. 

On behalf of VIBE, we are requesting that the Birmingham City Commission approve the 
inclusion of the eight (8) public parking spaces in front of the building to be allowed in its 
total parking count as permitted under Ordinance Sec. 4.45 PK-01(G)(1). 

We have attached a plan showing the building, the number of on-site parking spaces  
and the eight (8) spaces in the public right-of-way in front of the building prepared by 
Krieger Klatt Architects. 

Please advise when this matter will be placed on the Birmingham City Commission meeting 
agenda.  Frank Jarbou of VIBE and I plan to attend the meeting and answer any questions.  
In the meantime, should you or anyone else in the City reviewing this matter have any 
questions, please feel free to contact me at your earliest convenience. 

Sincerely, 

Dennis G. Cowan 
Direct Dial: (248) 901-4029 
Email: dcowan@plunkettcooney.com 

DGC/cmw 
Attachment 
cc: Frank Jarbou 
 Jeff Klatt 
 Nick DuPuis 
Open.28439.10892.25866296-1



16

8

S. Old Woodward

EXISTING 
ASPHALT 
PARKING 
LOT

EXISTING PARKING SPACES, 
REQUESTED USE FOR VIBE SALON

50.0'

EXISTING TRASH 
ENCLOSURE & GATE

8

EXISTING 
ONE-STORY 
GARAGE

EXISTING 
ONE-STORY 
GARAGE

EXISTING ONE-STORY 
PARKING STRUCTURE

EXISTING 
TWO-STORY 
BUILDING

EXISTING 
ONE-STORY 
BUILDING

VIBE SALON
EXISTING TWO-STORY 
GLASS & MASONRY 
BUILDING

11
4.

91
'

70'-0" WIDE 
ASPHALT RIGHT-OF-WAY

50.0'50.0' 50.0'

11
4.

91
'

EXISTING CMU SCREEN WALLEXISTING UTILITY 
POLE

EXISTING PROPERTY 
LINE

EXISTING BRICK 
PAVED SIDEWALK

V.I.F.

9' - 0"

V
.I.

F.

20
' -

 0
"

EXIST. DRIVEWAY

+/- 22' - 0"

EXISTING
ADJACANT 
ASPHALT 
PARKING 
LOT

EXISTING ADJACENT 
DRIVEWAY

EXISTING BRICK 
KNEE WALL 
+/- 2'-8" AFF

ADJACENT WOOD 
FENCE

ADJACENT WOOD 
FENCE

EXIST. TREE EXIST. TREE EXIST. TREE EXIST. TREE EXIST. TREE EXIST. TREE

LOT 9

LOT 10 LOT 11 LOT 12 LOT 13

EXISTING PARKING 
BUMP BLOCK

EXISTING CONC. 
SIDEWALK

PROJECT LOCATION

Project:

Do not scale drawings. Use
calculated dimensions only.
Verify existing conditions in field.

2120 E. 11 Mile Rd. | Royal Oak, MI 48067
P: 248.414.9270 F: 248.414.9275
www.kriegerklatt.com

Seal:

Note:

North Arrow:

Sheet Title:

Project Number:

Sheet Number:

Client:

Architectural Site
Plan

20-089

C.100

Vibe Salon Suites

Symmetry Property
Management (Frank Jarbou)

670 S. Old Woodward Suites
Birmingham MI 48009

Issued Description By

1/16" = 1'-0"

Site Plan

Zoning Information (City of Birmingham)
Parcel Identification Number: 1936253035
Zoned: B2B, General Business
Lot Area:  17,424 SQ. FT.
Maximum Lot Coverage Allowed: N/A

Lot Coverage (Footprints)
Existing to Remain.

Height
Maximum Building Height: 30.00' / 2 Stories
- Existing Roof Height at Top of Parapet: 26.66' +/-

Setback Information
1. Front Yard Required: 0.00'

- Existing Front Yard Setback to Remain

2. East Side Yard Required: 0.00'
- Existing Side Yard to Remain

3. West Side Yard Required: 0.00'
- Existing West Side Yard to Remain

4. Rear Yard Required: 20.00'
- Existing Rear Yard to Remain

Parking Information
Proposed : 23 Standard Parking Spaces

  1 Accessible Parking Spaces
  8 Angle Parking Spaces
32 Total Spaces Proposed

Sec. 22-340. - On-site parking.
(2) A parking space shall meet the following criteria in order to 
satisfy the requirements of this section:

a.Have a minimum length of 20 feet;
b.Have a minimum width of either the width of the 
existing driveway or nine feet, whichever is less;

N

North

Location Map
Scale: Not to Scale



1 

MEMORANDUM 
Engineering Department 

DATE: March 3, 2021 

TO: Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM: James J. Surhigh, Consulting City Engineer 
Scott Zielinski, Assistant City Engineer 

SUBJECT: Cranbrook Road Resurfacing Improvements 
Cost Sharing Agreement 

INTRODUCTION: 
The Road Commission for Oakland County (RCOC) will be resurfacing Canbrook Road 
between 14 Mile Road and Maple Road.  Since Cranbrook Road is under the jurisdiction 
of the RCOC and is along a common municipal boarder, costs for the project are shared 
by the RCOC, Bloomfield Township and the City of Birmingham. The RCOC has prepared 
a cost participation agreement for all parties for this project. 

BACKGROUND: 
The section of Cranbrook between Maple Road and 14 Mile Road is in need of 
rehabilitation, and the road is under RCOC’s jurisdiction. The project includes milling the 
existing asphalt surface, completing full-depth pavement repairs where needed, 
completing concrete curb repairs where needed, installing new 2” asphalt overlay, and 
other miscellaneous work. This project additionally includes replacing the traffic signal at 
Midvale Street, including, new pedestrian crossing equipment. The road width will remain 
essentially the same. However, the lane designations will change between Lincoln Road 
and Maple Road, where the existing 4 – lane configuration (2 north, 2 south) will change 
to a 3 – lane configuration (1 north, 1 south, 1 center left turn). 

During the design phase of this project, the design was presented to the Multi-Modal 
Transportation Board (MMTB). Comments from the MMTB were communicated to the 
RCOC and incorporated where feasible.  

This project is scheduled to take place this June through August, 2021. The project was 
originally scheduled to be completed in the summer of 2020, but at the city’s request the 
project was moved to 2021 to avoid conflicting with the Maple Road Reconstruction 
Project.  The RCOC solicited bids for the project which were opened on 12/15/2020. The 
Contract was awarded to Proline Asphalt Paving in the contracted amount of 
$1,396,105.00.  

The designated cost sharing split for the road construction is 50% RCOC, 25% Bloomfield 
Township, and 25% City of Birmingham.  The designated cost sharing split for the Traffic 
signal work is 25% RCOC, 25% Birmingham Public Schools, 25% Bloomfield Township, 
and 25% City of Birmingham. Therefore, the City’s total share of the cost is $287,038, 
which includes $23,897 for the traffic signal work and $263,141 for the roadwork.  

5H



2 
 
 

 
The City’s share of the cost will be funded using available Tri-Party Program funds, in 
addition to a one-time payment for the balance after applying the Tri-Party funds. The 
Tri-Party Program was established by the RCOC to assist local agencies with funding for 
RCOC road projects in their corporate boundaries. Under the Tri-Party Program, the City’s 
contributions are equally matched by both the RCOC and Oakland County (for every dollar 
the City put in, three dollars are available). RCOC sets the contribution limits, and the 
City’s current annual contribution is $5,894. Because there are few RCOC jurisdiction roads 
within the City limits, this funding is infrequently utilized. Therefore, Tri-party funds are 
available for use on this project from fiscal year 2007 to the present fiscal year (2021), 
plus an advancement on contributions that would be made from 2022 and 2023 are being 
allowed. By leveraging Tri-Party Program funds, the actual capital outlay required from 
the City is reduced to $166,799. 

 
LEGAL REVIEW:  

The attached Cost Participation Agreement was prepared by The Board of Road 
Commissioners of the County of Oakland legal staff.  The City Attorney has reviewed the 
document with respect to form, and no changes were required. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  

The City’s responsibility to the Board of County Road Commissioners is $166,799.00 which 
is less than the amount included in the fiscal 2021-2022 budget for this project. This 
amount includes expenditure of accumulated Tri-Party program funds, along with 
contributions that would be made for fiscal year 2022 and 2023. The Finance Department 
reviewed the proposed cost participation breakdown and had no objections.  

 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 

The RCOC is responsible for notifying the public prior to the start of the project. The RCOC 
will be administering the contract and will have a full-time inspector during construction. 

 
SUMMARY: 

RCOC will be resurfacing Cranbrook Road over the summer of 2021, which will include 
replacing the traffic signal at Midvale and reconfiguring the lane designations from 
between Lincoln Road and Maple Road from 4 lanes (2 north, 2 south) to 3 lanes (1 north, 
1 south, 1 center left turn). Pedestrian cross-walks and ADA ramps will also be improved. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:   

• Cost Participation Agreement (5 pages) 
• Construction Plans (65 sheets) 
 

SUGGESTED RESOLUTION: 
To approve the Cost Participation Agreement with the Board of Road Commissioners of 
The County of Oakland, agreeing to pay the City’s share of construction costs related to 
the road resurfacing and traffic signal improvements on Cranbrook Road between 14 Mile 
Road and Maple Road. The total amount of the City’s share of the cost is $166,799: with 
$7,965 for traffic signal work to be charged to 202-303.001-971.0100, Major Street Fund 
Traffic Controls; and, $158,834 for roadwork to be charged to the Major Streets Fund 
Public Construction, 202-449.001-981.0100.  
 
Also, to direct the Mayor to sign the agreement on behalf of the City.   













PROJECT NO. 55201 PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD- 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD . 

:a 
<( ..,. 
0 
ici 
' 

0 > 

w 
I 

O> � 
0 

� 
0 

� 

ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY 

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION 

14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM AND BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP 

RCOC JOB NO. 55201 

p CY
w 

ci (/) 

CY I

-<: 

� 
'<{' MAPLE 

UN COLN t 

FOURTEEN 

SCALE 

FULL SIZE (22"xJ4") 

TITLE SHEET 

PLAN SHEET 

PROFILE HOR. 

PROFILE VER. 

QUARTON 

FIELD 

t 

P.O.E. 

STA.68+24 

ROAD 

➔ 
START 
STA.100+23 

MILE RD.�<-

1" = 

1" = 

1" = 

1" = 

. 
0 
CY 

BEVERLY 

HILLS 

3000 

30 

30 

6 

THIRTEEN M,LE 

SCALE 

REDUCED SIZE (11"x17") 

FT TITLE SHEET 1" = 6000 FT 
FT PLAN SHEET 1· = 60 FT 
FT PROFILE HOR. 1" = 60 FT 
FT PROFILE VER. 1" = 6 FT 

ROAD 
BEAVER 

55201 

DRIVE 
w 

u 
CY 
w 

EC 

SAXON ROAD 

R 

BEVERLY 

ROAD 

0
-<:
0
CY 

ROAD 
0 

u:::: 
I 
I-

a 
(/) 

0 

c§ 
CY 

u 
CY 
w 

a: 

• 

FINAL PLANS 

11/24/2020 

PROJECT LIMITS 

I ,.a ... 

P.0.E.

12+96 

68+24 

TRAFFIC VOLUME (AADT) 

ROAD NAME 2020 2035 

CRANBROOK RD 4800 6440 

COMMERCIAL 2% 2% 

POSTED 
SPEED 
{EXISTING) 

DESIGN 
SPEED 

DESIGN SPEED 

CRANBROOK ROAD 

MAPLE ROAD 

CRANBROOK ROAD 

MAPLE ROAD 

LEGEND 

---

< 

-CRANBROOK 
DETOUR ROUTE 

- LINCOLN
DETOUR ROUTE

- TRAFFIC FLOW

ANDREA 
LEIGH 
PIKE 

ENGINEER 

No. 

30MPH 

40MPH 

30MPH 

40MPH 

PREPARED UNDER THE SUPERVISION 
OF ANDREA L. PIKE, PE 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

THE IMPROVEMENTS COVERED BY THESE PLANS SHALL BE DONE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 
PROPOSAL AND ACCOMPANYING SPECIFICATIONS FOR THIS PROJECT INCLUDING THE 2012 
MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR 
CONSTRUCTION AND MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION LOCAL AGENCY 
PROGRAMS GUIDELINES FOR GEOMETRICS DATED JULY 24, 2017 SECTION: RESURFACING, 
RESTORATION, AND REHABILITATION (3R). 

PAVEMENT MARKING AND PLACING OF TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS SHALL BE DONE IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE CURRENT EDITION OF THE MICHIGAN MANUAL OF UNIFORM TRAFFIC 
CONTROL DEVICES, AS AMENDED. THIS WORK WILL BE DONE PRIOR TO THE FINAL 
ACCEPTANCE OF THIS PROJECT. 

THE LOCATION OF ALL PUBLIC UTILITIES SHOWN ON THESE PLANS IS TAKEN FROM THE BEST 
AVAILABLE DATA. THE BOARD OF ROAD COMMISSIONERS FOR OAKLAND COUNTY WILL NOT 
BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY OMISSION OR VARIATIONS FROM THE LOCATIONS SHOWN. 
PURSUANT TO PUBLIC ACT 174 OF 2013 AS A CONDITION OF THIS CONTRACT NOTICE SHALL 
BE GIVEN TO MISS DIG PRIOR TO UNDERGROUND WORK TO BE PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH THIS CONTRACT. PHONE (800) 482-7171, (248) 647-7344, OR 811. 

THE ROAD COMMISSION FOR OAKLAND COUNTY, AS AN AUTHORIZED PUBLIC AGENCY UNDER 
THE EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL PROGRAM-PUBLIC ACT 451, HAS PROVIDED 
FOR EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL BY MEANS OF SODDING, SEEDING AND OTHER 
METHODS. THE ROAD COMMISSION WILL MAINTAIN THESE FACILITIES UPON COMPLETION OF 
THE CONTRACT. 

THE ELEVATIONS ARE BASED ON NAVO 88, GEOID03. 
THE COORDINATES ARE BASED ON NAO 1983, US STATE PLANE 1983, MICHIGAN SOUTH 2113. 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 

BOARD OF ROAD COMMISSIONERS 

FOR OAKLAND COUNTY 

BOARD OF ROAD COMMISSIONERS 

GREGORY C. JAMIAN 

RONALD J. FOWKES 

ANDREA LALONDE 

CHAIRMAN 

VICE CHAIRMAN 

COMMISSIONER 

DENNIS G. KOLAR, P.E. - MANAGING DIRECTOR 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM AND 
BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP 

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION 
ROAD--------------------------

CONTRACT FOR 1.2 MILES OF HMA COLDMILLING, HMA PAVING, CONCRETE CURB/CURB 
AND GUTTER REPAIRS, HMA SHOULDER WIDENINGS, ADA SIDEWALK RAMP 
IMPROVEMENTS, PAVEMENT MARKINGS, AND SIGNAL UPGRADES. 

z 
0 

"'o 
!:: ci: 
::! 0 
ID a: 1----------------.----------------ci:w:l: ..IWo.
a: C(
0 ::!: 
ci: 001-
a: 

0 
� ci: 

PLANS PREPARED BY 

� 
HUBBELL, ROTH & CLARK, INC 
CONSULTING ENGINEERS SINCE 1915 

RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL 

�_:7� 
SAMUEL FITZER, P .f!. 
DIRECTOR OF ENGINEERING 

BASE PLANS TO R.C.O.C. 

PRELIMINARY PLANS TO R.C.0.C. 

FINAL PLANS TO R.C.0.C. 

DAIE 

I I /.J. '-/)2?:W 
DATE 

REVISIONS 

DESCRIPTION 

GARY PIOl' OWIC .E .• PTO.E. 
COUNTY HIGHWAY ENGINEER/ 
DEPUTY MANAGING DIRECTOR 

(SEAL! 

RECCMMENOED 

FOR APPROU'Al 

8V OATE 

ALP 8/30 

ALP 10/01 

ALP 11/12 

DATE 

APPROVED 

8Y DATE 

Oo 
Oa: 
a:w
I= 
ci: ::!: 
a: "" 
o-,-

w 
::!: 
ci: 
z 

� 
a 
a: 
0. 

...... 
0 .., 
"' It) 
"' 0 
"' CJ) .. .,... 
a: 0

wN 
ID 0 

I :ii 1J: 
:::, :l:z .. 
I- a:
UW 

W
W 

-,� 
oc,
a: z
0. w

>L------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------_.___________________________ ......__..__.,...__ 

INDEX OF SHEETS
1 - COVER

2 TO 4 - NOTE SHEET
5 - LEGEND

6 TO 9 - MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC & DETOUR PLAN
10 TO 14 - TYPICAL CROSS SECTIONS
15 TO 18 - PROJECT DETAILS
19 TO 23 - HORIZONTAL LAYOUT
24 TO 25 - SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL PLAN
26 TO 35 - CONSTRUCTION PLANS

36 - STORM SEWER PROFILE
37 TO 43 - DETAIL GRADES
44 TO 55 - PAVEMENT MARKINGS & SIGNING
56 TO 61 - SIGNAL PLANS
62 TO 63 - SOIL BORING LOGS
64 TO 65 - QUANTITY SUMMARY SHEETS
66 TO 67 - OCWRC DETAIL SHEETS

PROJECT NO.
55201



DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

PROJECT NOTES

2 of 67



DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

PROJECT NOTES

3 of 67



DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

PROJECT NOTES

AS-DIRECTED QUANTITIES

PAY ITEM QTY UNIT

Mobilization, Max. $147,000 1 LS

Exploratory Investigation, Vertical 10 Ft

Aggregate Base, 21AA, RCOC 250 Ton

Dr Structure, Adj, Add Depth 10 Ft

Dr Structure, Cleaning 5 Ea

Public Utility Structure, Adj, Add Depth 10 Ft

Pavt Joint and Crack Repr, Det 7 1000 Ft

Pavt Joint and Crack Repr, Det 8 1000 Ft

Hand Patching 150 Ton

Pavt, Cleaning, RCOC 1 LS

Sidewalk, Conc, 6 inch 100 Sft

Sprinkler Line 50 Ft

Sprinkler Head, Relocate 5 Ea

Sprinkler Head, Replace 5 Ea

Reimbursed Permit Fees 4700 Dlr

4 of 67

TS Face, Bag
TS Face, Bag, Rem

6 

6

Ea

Ea



DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

GUY

G-V

LEGEND

LEGEND

5 of 67



MAPLE RD MAPLE RD
LA

H
SE

R
 R

D

C
R

AN
BR

O
O

K
R

D LINCOLN

FOURTEEN MILE RD

SO
U

TH
FI

EL
D

 R
D

SAXON DR

R IVERSI DE

LINCOLN

DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

DETOUR PLAN

C
O

VI
N

G
TO

N

- CRANBROOK DETOUR
ROUTE

LEGEND

- TRAFFIC FLOW

- TRAFFIC SIGN

M4-8a

SP-1

W20-3

W20-1

D3-1
M4-9(L)

TYPE III
R11-4

D3-1
M4-9(L)

SP-1
W20-2

D3-1

D3-1
M4-9(L)

D3-1
M4-9(R)

SP-1

W20-2
D3-1

D3-1
M4-9(S)

D3-1
M4-9(L)

SP-1
W20-2

D3-1

D3-1
M4-9(R)

D3-1
M4-9(R)

SP-1

W20-2
D3-1

D3-1
M4-9(S)

SP-1

W20-3

W20-2

D3-1
M4-9(R)

M4-8a

D3-1
M4-9(L)

CRANBROOK
MAINTAINING TRAFFIC NOTES:

1. ACCESS MUST BE MAINTAINED TO ALL LOCAL TRAFFIC AT ALL TIMES UNLESS DIRECTED OTHERWISE
BY THE ENGINEER. CONCRETE DRIVEWAYS WIDER THAN 20' ARE TO BE PAVED HALF-WIDTH IN
ORDER TO MAINTAIN TRAFFIC UNLESS OTHERWISE DIRECTED BY THE ENGINEER. IF A PARCEL HAS
MORE THAN ONE DRIVEWAY FOR ACCESS, ONE DRIVEWAY MAY BE CLOSED FOR CONSTRUCTION.

2. ACCESS MUST BE MAINTAINED TO ALL RESIDENCES, BUSINESSES, SCHOOLS, AND HOSPITALS AT ALL
TIMES.

3. ACCESS TO POLO PLACE SHALL BE MAINTAINED AT ALL TIMES.

4. SUFFICIENT TYPE III BARRICADES ARE REQUIRED TO BE PLACED FROM CURB TO CURB, WITH NO
GAPS.

R11-2
(MOUNTED BEHIND TYPE III BARRICADE

LIGHTED ON SEPARATE SUPPORT)

ROAD
CLOSED

M4-9(L)

M4-9(R)

M4-9(S)

M4-8a

W20-2

W20-3
(36")

CLOSED
AHEAD

DETOUR
AHEAD

END
DETOUR

ROAD

D3-1

SP-1

ROAD CLOSED
TO

THRU TRAFFIC

R11-4
(MOUNTED BEHIND TYPE III BARRICADE

LIGHTED ON SEPARATE SUPPORT)

C
H

ES
TE

R
FI

EL
D

TYPE III
R11-2

TYPE III
R11-2

TYPE III
R11-4

TYPE III
R11-2

D3-1
M4-9(S)

SP-1

W20-2
D3-1

D3-1
M4-9(S)

SP-1

W20-2
D3-1

D3-1
M4-9(S)

SP-1

W20-2
D3-1

D3-1
M4-9(R)

SP-1

W20-2
D3-1

D3-1
M4-9(R)

SP-1

W20-2
D3-1

D3-1
M4-9(L)

- LINCOLN DETOUR
ROUTE

D3-1
M4-9(S)

TYPE III
R11-4

TYPE III
R11-4

D3-1

SP-1

W20-2
D3-1

W20-3
(48")

CLOSED
AHEAD

ROAD

*

*
*

* * *

*

*

*
*

*

**

* - W20-3 (36")

- CHANNELIZING DEVICENOTE:
TRAFFIC CONTROL TO BE
REMOVED DAILY WHEN NO WORK
IN PROGRESS AT THIS LOCATION.

- WORK ZONE

ROAD
WORK
AHEAD

END
ROAD WORK

W20-1

R5-18c
G20-2

W20-1

R5-18c

G20-2

G20-2

R5-18c
W20-1

R5-18cW20-1

R5-18c

W20-2

W20-1R5-18c

G20-2

6 of 67



DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC NOTES & DETAILS

SIZESIGN QTY

ROAD
CLOSED R11-2 48X30 13

ROAD CLOSED
TO

THRU TRAFFIC
R11-4 60X30 4

SP-1 96X42 12

W20-2 48X48 12

W20-3 48X48 2

ROAD
CLOSED
AHEAD

DETOUR
AHEAD

END
DETOUR

30X24

M4-8a 24X18 2

18

M4-9(L) 30X24 6

M4-9(R) 30X24 6

M4-9(S) 6

D3-1 30X8

10D3-1 48X12

R9-9 830X18
SIDEWALK

CLOSED

MOT QUANTITIES

PAY ITEM QTY UNIT

Maintenance Gravel 100 Ton

Barricade, Type III, High Intensity, Double Sided, Lighted, Furn 60 Ea

Barricade, Type III, High Intensity, Double Sided, Lighted, Oper 60 Ea

Pedestrian Type II Barricade, Temp 8 Ea

Channelizing Device, 42 inch, Fluorescent, Furn 50 Ea

Channelizing Device, 42 inch, Fluorescent, Oper 50 Ea

Lighted Arrow, Type C, Furn 4 Ea

Lighted Arrow, Type C, Oper 4 Ea

Minor Traf Devices 1 LS

Pavt Mrkg, Wet Reflective, Type NR, Paint, 4 inch, White, Temp 3500 Ft

Pavt Mrkg, Wet Reflective, Type NR, Paint, 4 inch, Yellow, Temp 10000 Ft

Pavt Mrkg, Wet Reflective, Type R, Tape, 4 inch, White, Temp 3500 Ft

Pavt Mrkg, Wet Reflective, Type R, Tape, 4 inch, Yellow, Temp 10000 Ft

Plastic Drum, Fluorescent, Furn 150 Ea

Plastic Drum, Fluorescent, Oper 150 Ea

Sign Cover 5 Ea

Sign, Type B, Temp, Prismatic, Furn 1160 Sft

Sign, Type B, Temp, Prismatic, Oper 1160 Sft

Sign, Type B, Temp, Prismatic, Special, Furn 336 Sft

Sign, Type B, Temp, Prismatic, Special, Oper 336 Sft

Traf Regulator Control 1 LS

MAINTAINING TRAFFIC NOTES

1. WORK ON CRANBROOK SHALL BE PERFORMED UNDER A FULL ROAD CLOSURE. WORK ON MAPLE ROAD
SHALL BE PERFORMED UNDER FLAG CONTROL UTILIZING THE FOLLOWING MOT TYPICALS: RCOC-1, 
RCOC-3, RCOC-4, RCOC-7, AND TABLES 1 & 2.

2. LOCAL TRAFFIC SHALL BE MAINTAINED TO POLO PLACE, ERNEST W. SEAHOLM HIGH SCHOOL, PRIVATE
RESIDENCE DRIVES, AND BUSINESS DRIVES AT ALL TIMES.

3. ACCESS MUST BE MAINTAINED TO ALL DRIVEWAYS AT ALL TIMES UNLESS DIRECTED OTHERWISE BY 
THE ENGINEER. DRIVEWAYS WIDER THAN 20' ARE TO BE PAVED HALF WIDTH IN ORDER TO MAINTAIN 
TRAFFIC ULESS OTHERWISE DIRECTED BY THE ENGINEER. IF A PARCEL HAS MORE THAN ONE 
DRIVEWAY FOR ACCESS, ONE DRIVEWAY MAY BE CLOSED AT A TIME FOR CONSTRUCTION.

4. PLACE TYPE III BARRICADES AND R11-4 SIGNS ON CRANBROOK ROAD AT EACH OF THE FOLLOWING 
SIDE STREET LOCATIONS: NORTHLAWN BLVD, FAIRWAY DR, HILLSIDE DR, W. LINCOLN ST, MIDDLEBURY 
LN, WESTBOURNE DR, S. CRANBROOK CROSS RD, S. WILLIAMSBURY ROAD, MIDVALE RD, S. GLENGARRY
RD, BRYN MAWR ST, WHITELEIGH RD, AND DEVON LN.

W20-1 48X48 7

ROAD
WORK
AHEAD

W20-3 36X36 13

ROAD
CLOSED
AHEAD

END
ROAD WORK G20-2 48X24 7

48X48R5-18c 7

7 of 67



DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC DETAILS

TYPICAL TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL
FOR CLOSING A CENTER-LANE FOR

LEFT TURN ONLY AND AN
ADJACENT THROUGH LANE ON A MULTI-LANE

UNDIVIDED ROADWAY.

CONTRACTOR FLAGGING SHALL BE USED WHERE
DIRECTED BY ENGINEER TO MAINTAIN ONE LANE LOCAL
ACCESS TRAFFIC AROUND WORK ZONE.

OTHER THAN POINTS OF FULL CLOSURE APPROVED BY
THE ENGINEER TO REMAIN CLOSED OVER NIGHT, ROADS
IN WORK ZONE SHALL BE OPEN AT NIGHT TO 2 WAY
LOCAL TRAFFIC FROM EITHER END OF PROJECT UP TO
FULL CLOSURE POINT WITH A MINIMUM 22' TRAVELED
WAY LINED WITH PLASTIC DRUMS.  LIGHTED TYPE III
BARRICADES SHALL BE REPLACED TIGHTLY ACROSS
CLOSED ROAD AT BOTH ENDS.  FULL CLOSURES
APPROVED BY ENGINEER TO REMAIN CLOSED OVER
NIGHT.

ALL NON-APPLICABLE SIGNING WITHIN THE CIA SHALL BE
MODIFIED TO FIT CONDITIONS, COVERED OR REMOVED.

DISTANCES BETWEEN SIGNS, THE VALUES FOR WHICH
ARE SHOWN IN TABLE D, ARE APPROXIMATE AND MAY
NEED ADJUSTING AS DIRECTED BY ENGINEER.

THE MAXIMUM RECOMMENDED DISTANCE(S) BETWEEN
CHANNELING DEVICES IN THE TAPER AREA(S) SHOULD BE
15 FEET AND SHOULD BE EQUAL IN FEET TO TWICE THE
POSTED SPEED IN MILES PER HOUR IN THE PARALLEL
AREA(S).

THE TYPE A WARNING FLASHER SHOWN ON THE
WARNING SIGNS SHALL BE POSITIONED ON THE SIDE OF
THE SIGN NEAREST THE ROADWAY.

ALL 4' x 4' WARNING SIGNS, TYPE III BARRICADES, THEIR
TEMPORARY SUPPORT SYSTEMS AND LIGHTING
REQUIREMENTS SHALL BE FABRICATED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE CURRENT STANDARD PLAN.

ALL TRAFFIC REGULATORS SHALL BE PROPERLY
TRAINED AND SUPERVISED.

IN ANY OPERATION INVOLVING MORE THAN ONE TRAFFIC
REGULATOR, ONE PERSON SHOULD BE DESIGNATED AS
HEAD TRAFFIC REGULATOR.

ALL TRAFFIC REGULATORS' CONDUCT, THEIR EQUIPMENT
AND TRAFFIC REGULATING PROCEDURES SHALL
CONFIRM TO THE CURRENT EDITION OF THE MICHIGAN
MANUAL OF UNIFORM TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES
(MMUTCD).

WHEN TRAFFIC REGULATING IS ALLOWED DURING THE
HOURS OF DARKNESS, APPROPRIATE LIGHTING SHALL BE
PROVIDED TO SUFFICIENTLY ILLUMINATE THE  TRAFFIC
REGULATORS STATIONS.

THE MAXIMUM DISTANCE BETWEEN THE TRAFFIC
REGULATORS SHALL BE NO MORE THAN 2 MILES IN
LENGTH UNLESS RESTRICTED FURTHER IN THE SPECIAL
PROVISIONS FOR MAINTAINING TRAFFIC.  ALL
SEQUENCES OF MORE THAN 2 MILES IN LENGTH WILL
REQUIRE WRITTEN PERMISSION FROM THE ENGINEER
BEFORE PROCEEDING.

WHEN INTERSECTING ROAD OR SIGNIFICANT TRAFFIC
GENERATORS (SHOPPING CENTERS, MOBILE HOME
PARKS ETC.) OCCUR WITHIN THE ONE-LANE TWO-WAY
OPERATION, INTERMEDIATE TRAFFIC REGULATORS AND
APPROPRIATE SIGNING SHALL BE PLACED AT THESE
LOCATIONS.

MAX LENGTH OF FLAGGING CONTROLLED WORK ZONE
SHALL BE APPROVED BY ENGINEER.

PAID AS:
Sign, Type B, Temp, Prismatic, Furn - 48 Sft
Sign, Type B, Temp, Prismatic, Oper - 48 Sft

TEMPORARY SIGN QUANTITIES BY CONTRACTOR

REV.  3/20/08FILE: G:\Traffic Engineering\Typ Temp Traffic Control\RCOC-3

RCOC-3

TYPICAL TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL FOR
CLOSING

A CENTER-LANE FOR LEFT TURN ONLY AND AN
ADJACENT THROUGH LANE IN EACH DIRECTION

 ON A MULTI-LANE UNDIVIDED ROADWAY.

CONTRACTOR FLAGGING SHALL BE USED WHERE
DIRECTED BY ENGINEER TO MAINTAIN ONE LANE LOCAL
ACCESS TRAFFIC AROUND WORK ZONE.

OTHER THAN POINTS OF FULL CLOSURE APPROVED BY
THE ENGINEER TO REMAIN CLOSED OVER NIGHT, ROADS
IN WORK ZONE SHALL BE OPEN AT NIGHT TO 2 WAY
LOCAL TRAFFIC FROM EITHER END OF PROJECT UP TO
FULL CLOSURE POINT WITH A MINIMUM 22' TRAVELED
WAY LINED WITH PLASTIC DRUMS.  LIGHTED TYPE III
BARRICADES SHALL BE REPLACED TIGHTLY ACROSS
CLOSED ROAD AT BOTH ENDS.  FULL CLOSURES
APPROVED BY ENGINEER TO REMAIN CLOSED OVER
NIGHT.

ALL NON-APPLICABLE SIGNING WITHIN THE CIA SHALL BE
MODIFIED TO FIT CONDITIONS, COVERED OR REMOVED.

DISTANCES BETWEEN SIGNS, THE VALUES FOR WHICH
ARE SHOWN IN TABLE D, ARE APPROXIMATE AND MAY
NEED ADJUSTING AS DIRECTED BY ENGINEER.

THE MAXIMUM RECOMMENDED DISTANCE(S) BETWEEN
CHANNELING DEVICES IN THE TAPER AREA(S) SHOULD BE
15 FEET AND SHOULD BE EQUAL IN FEET TO TWICE THE
POSTED SPEED IN MILES PER HOUR IN THE PARALLEL
AREA(S).

THE TYPE A WARNING FLASHER SHOWN ON THE
WARNING SIGNS SHALL BE POSITIONED ON THE SIDE OF
THE SIGN NEAREST THE ROADWAY.

ALL 4' x 4' WARNING SIGNS, TYPE III BARRICADES, THEIR
TEMPORARY SUPPORT SYSTEMS AND LIGHTING
REQUIREMENTS SHALL BE FABRICATED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE CURRENT STANDARD PLAN.

ALL TRAFFIC REGULATORS SHALL BE PROPERLY
TRAINED AND SUPERVISED.

IN ANY OPERATION INVOLVING MORE THAN ONE TRAFFIC
REGULATOR, ONE PERSON SHOULD BE DESIGNATED AS
HEAD TRAFFIC REGULATOR.

ALL TRAFFIC REGULATORS' CONDUCT, THEIR EQUIPMENT
AND TRAFFIC REGULATING PROCEDURES SHALL
CONFIRM TO THE CURRENT EDITION OF THE MICHIGAN
MANUAL OF UNIFORM TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES
(MMUTCD).

WHEN TRAFFIC REGULATING IS ALLOWED DURING THE
HOURS OF DARKNESS, APPROPRIATE LIGHTING SHALL BE
PROVIDED TO SUFFICIENTLY ILLUMINATE THE  TRAFFIC
REGULATORS STATIONS.

THE MAXIMUM DISTANCE BETWEEN THE TRAFFIC
REGULATORS SHALL BE NO MORE THAN 2 MILES IN
LENGTH UNLESS RESTRICTED FURTHER IN THE SPECIAL
PROVISIONS FOR MAINTAINING TRAFFIC.  ALL
SEQUENCES OF MORE THAN 2 MILES IN LENGTH WILL
REQUIRE WRITTEN PERMISSION FROM THE ENGINEER
BEFORE PROCEEDING.

WHEN INTERSECTING ROAD OR SIGNIFICANT TRAFFIC
GENERATORS (SHOPPING CENTERS, MOBILE HOME
PARKS ETC.) OCCUR WITHIN THE ONE-LANE TWO-WAY
OPERATION, INTERMEDIATE TRAFFIC REGULATORS AND
APPROPRIATE SIGNING SHALL BE PLACED AT THESE
LOCATIONS.

MAX LENGTH OF FLAGGING CONTROLLED WORK ZONE
SHALL BE APPROVED BY ENGINEER. M. LUTFI

PAID AS:
Sign, Type B, Temp, Prismatic, Furn - 64 Sft

Oper - 64 Sft

TEMPORARY SIGN QUANTITIES BY CONTRACTOR

REV.  3/20/08FILE: G:\Traffic Engineering\Typ Temp Traffic Control\RCOC-1

RCOC-4

TYPICAL TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL
 FOR A TWO-LANE TWO-WAY ROADWAY

 WHERE ONE LANE IS CLOSED
UTILIZING TRAFFIC REGULATORS.

CONTRACTOR FLAGGING SHALL BE USED WHERE
DIRECTED BY ENGINEER TO MAINTAIN ONE LANE LOCAL
ACCESS TRAFFIC AROUND WORK ZONE.

OTHER THAN POINTS OF FULL CLOSURE APPROVED BY
THE ENGINEER TO REMAIN CLOSED OVER NIGHT, ROADS
IN WORK ZONE SHALL BE OPEN AT NIGHT TO 2 WAY
LOCAL TRAFFIC FROM EITHER END OF PROJECT UP TO
FULL CLOSURE POINT WITH A MINIMUM 22' TRAVELED
WAY LINED WITH PLASTIC DRUMS.  LIGHTED TYPE III
BARRICADES SHALL BE REPLACED TIGHTLY ACROSS
CLOSED ROAD AT BOTH ENDS.  FULL CLOSURES
APPROVED BY ENGINEER TO REMAIN CLOSED OVER
NIGHT.

ALL NON-APPLICABLE SIGNING WITHIN THE CIA SHALL BE
MODIFIED TO FIT CONDITIONS, COVERED OR REMOVED.

DISTANCES BETWEEN SIGNS, THE VALUES FOR WHICH
ARE SHOWN IN TABLE D, ARE APPROXIMATE AND MAY
NEED ADJUSTING AS DIRECTED BY ENGINEER.

THE MAXIMUM RECOMMENDED DISTANCE(S) BETWEEN
CHANNELING DEVICES IN THE TAPER AREA(S) SHOULD BE
15 FEET AND SHOULD BE EQUAL IN FEET TO TWICE THE
POSTED SPEED IN MILES PER HOUR IN THE PARALLEL
AREA(S).

THE TYPE A WARNING FLASHER SHOWN ON THE
WARNING SIGNS SHALL BE POSITIONED ON THE SIDE OF
THE SIGN NEAREST THE ROADWAY.

ALL 4' x 4' WARNING SIGNS, TYPE III BARRICADES, THEIR
TEMPORARY SUPPORT SYSTEMS AND LIGHTING
REQUIREMENTS SHALL BE FABRICATED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE CURRENT STANDARD PLAN.

ALL TRAFFIC REGULATORS SHALL BE PROPERLY
TRAINED AND SUPERVISED.

IN ANY OPERATION INVOLVING MORE THAN ONE TRAFFIC
REGULATOR, ONE PERSON SHOULD BE DESIGNATED AS
HEAD TRAFFIC REGULATOR.

ALL TRAFFIC REGULATORS' CONDUCT, THEIR EQUIPMENT
AND TRAFFIC REGULATING PROCEDURES SHALL
CONFIRM TO THE CURRENT EDITION OF THE MICHIGAN
MANUAL OF UNIFORM TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES
(MMUTCD).

WHEN TRAFFIC REGULATING IS ALLOWED DURING THE
HOURS OF DARKNESS, APPROPRIATE LIGHTING SHALL BE
PROVIDED TO SUFFICIENTLY ILLUMINATE THE  TRAFFIC
REGULATORS STATIONS.

THE MAXIMUM DISTANCE BETWEEN THE TRAFFIC
REGULATORS SHALL BE NO MORE THAN 2 MILES IN
LENGTH UNLESS RESTRICTED FURTHER IN THE SPECIAL
PROVISIONS FOR MAINTAINING TRAFFIC.  ALL
SEQUENCES OF MORE THAN 2 MILES IN LENGTH WILL
REQUIRE WRITTEN PERMISSION FROM THE ENGINEER
BEFORE PROCEEDING.

WHEN INTERSECTING ROAD OR SIGNIFICANT TRAFFIC
GENERATORS (SHOPPING CENTERS, MOBILE HOME
PARKS ETC.) OCCUR WITHIN THE ONE-LANE TWO-WAY
OPERATION, INTERMEDIATE TRAFFIC REGULATORS AND
APPROPRIATE SIGNING SHALL BE PLACED AT THESE
LOCATIONS.

MAX LENGTH OF FLAGGING CONTROLLED WORK ZONE
SHALL BE APPROVED BY ENGINEER.

M. LUTFI

PAID AS:
Sign, Type B, Temp, Prismatic, Furn - 96 Sft
Sign, Type B, Temp, Prismatic, Oper - 96 Sft

TEMPORARY SIGN QUANTITIES BY CONTRACTOR

RCOC-1
REV.  3/20/08FILE: G:\Traffic Engineering\Typ Temp Traffic Control\RCOC-1

7A of 67



DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC DETAILS

CONTRACTOR FLAGGING SHALL BE USED WHERE
DIRECTED BY ENGINEER TO MAINTAIN ONE LANE LOCAL
ACCESS TRAFFIC AROUND WORK ZONE.

OTHER THAN POINTS OF FULL CLOSURE APPROVED BY
THE ENGINEER TO REMAIN CLOSED OVER NIGHT, ROADS
IN WORK ZONE SHALL BE OPEN AT NIGHT TO 2 WAY
LOCAL TRAFFIC FROM EITHER END OF PROJECT UP TO
FULL CLOSURE POINT WITH A MINIMUM 22' TRAVELED
WAY LINED WITH PLASTIC DRUMS.  LIGHTED TYPE III
BARRICADES SHALL BE REPLACED TIGHTLY ACROSS
CLOSED ROAD AT BOTH ENDS.  FULL CLOSURES
APPROVED BY ENGINEER TO REMAIN CLOSED OVER
NIGHT.

ALL NON-APPLICABLE SIGNING WITHIN THE CIA SHALL BE
MODIFIED TO FIT CONDITIONS, COVERED OR REMOVED.

DISTANCES BETWEEN SIGNS, THE VALUES FOR WHICH
ARE SHOWN IN TABLE D, ARE APPROXIMATE AND MAY
NEED ADJUSTING AS DIRECTED BY ENGINEER.

THE MAXIMUM RECOMMENDED DISTANCE(S) BETWEEN
CHANNELING DEVICES IN THE TAPER AREA(S) SHOULD BE
15 FEET AND SHOULD BE EQUAL IN FEET TO TWICE THE
POSTED SPEED IN MILES PER HOUR IN THE PARALLEL
AREA(S).

THE TYPE A WARNING FLASHER SHOWN ON THE
WARNING SIGNS SHALL BE POSITIONED ON THE SIDE OF
THE SIGN NEAREST THE ROADWAY.

ALL 4' x 4' WARNING SIGNS, TYPE III BARRICADES, THEIR
TEMPORARY SUPPORT SYSTEMS AND LIGHTING
REQUIREMENTS SHALL BE FABRICATED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH THE CURRENT STANDARD PLAN.

ALL TRAFFIC REGULATORS SHALL BE PROPERLY
TRAINED AND SUPERVISED.

IN ANY OPERATION INVOLVING MORE THAN ONE TRAFFIC
REGULATOR, ONE PERSON SHOULD BE DESIGNATED AS
HEAD TRAFFIC REGULATOR.

ALL TRAFFIC REGULATORS' CONDUCT, THEIR EQUIPMENT
AND TRAFFIC REGULATING PROCEDURES SHALL
CONFIRM TO THE CURRENT EDITION OF THE MICHIGAN
MANUAL OF UNIFORM TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES
(MMUTCD).

WHEN TRAFFIC REGULATING IS ALLOWED DURING THE
HOURS OF DARKNESS, APPROPRIATE LIGHTING SHALL BE
PROVIDED TO SUFFICIENTLY ILLUMINATE THE  TRAFFIC
REGULATORS STATIONS.

THE MAXIMUM DISTANCE BETWEEN THE TRAFFIC
REGULATORS SHALL BE NO MORE THAN 2 MILES IN
LENGTH UNLESS RESTRICTED FURTHER IN THE SPECIAL
PROVISIONS FOR MAINTAINING TRAFFIC.  ALL
SEQUENCES OF MORE THAN 2 MILES IN LENGTH WILL
REQUIRE WRITTEN PERMISSION FROM THE ENGINEER
BEFORE PROCEEDING.

WHEN INTERSECTING ROAD OR SIGNIFICANT TRAFFIC
GENERATORS (SHOPPING CENTERS, MOBILE HOME
PARKS ETC.) OCCUR WITHIN THE ONE-LANE TWO-WAY
OPERATION, INTERMEDIATE TRAFFIC REGULATORS AND
APPROPRIATE SIGNING SHALL BE PLACED AT THESE
LOCATIONS.

MAX LENGTH OF FLAGGING CONTROLLED WORK ZONE
SHALL BE APPROVED BY ENGINEER.

TYPICAL TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL
 FOR A ONE-LANE CLOSURE ON AN
UNDIVIDED MULTI-LANE ROADWAY.

NO SPEED REDUCTION

M. LUTFI

PAID AS:
Sign, Type B, Temp, Prismatic, Furn - 32 Sft

Oper - 32 Sft

TEMPORARY SIGN QUANTITIES BY CONTRACTOR

REV.  11/21/08FILE: G:\Traffic Engineering\Typ Temp Traffic Control\RCOC-7

RCOC-7

TABLES FOR
"L", "D" AND "B" VALUES

REV.  8/1/08FILE: G:\Traffic Engineering\Typ Temp Traffic Control\Table

TABLESM. LUTFI 1 OF 2

OFFSET
FEET

POSTED SPEED LIMIT, MPH (PRIOR TO WORK AREA)

MINIMUM MERGING TAPER LENGTH "L" (FEET)

"L" = W x S WHERE POSTED SPEED PRIOR TO
       60   THE WORK AREA IS 40 MPH OR LESS

THE FORMULAS FOR THE MINIMUM LENGTH OF A
MERGING TAPER IN DERIVING THE "L" VALUES
SHOWN IN THE ABOVE TABLES ARE AS FOLLOWS:

"L" = W x S WHERE POSTED SPEED PRIOR TO THE
            WORK AREA IS 45 MPH OR GREATER

L = MINIMUM LENGTH OF MERGING TAPER
S = POSTED SPEED LIMIT IN MPH

     PRIOR TO WORK AREA
W = WIDTH IN OFFSET

TAPER LENGTH

L       MINIMUM
1/2 L - MINIMUM

1/ 3  L - MINIMUM
100'  - MAXIMUM
100'  - MINIMUM

       (PER LANE)

TYPES OF TAPERS
UPSTREAM TAPERS
MERGING TAPER
SHIFTING TAPER
SHOULDER TAPER
TWO-WAY TRAFFIC TAPER
DOWNSTREAM TAPERS
(USE IS OPTIONAL)

TA
PE

R 
LE

NG
TH

 "L
" I

N 
FE

ET

1

101
212
313
424
525

636
737
838
949

10410

11511
12512
13513
14614
15715 225

210
195
180
165

150
135
120
105
90

75
60
45
30
15

307
286
266
245
225

204
184
163
143
123

102
82
61
41
20

400
374
347
320
293

267
240
213
187
160

133
107
80
53
27

675
630
585
540
495

450
405
360
315
270

225
180
135
90
45

750
700
650
600
550

500
450
400
350
300

250
200
150
100
50

825
770
715
660
605

550
495
440
385
330

275
220
165
110
55

900
840
780
720
660

600
540
480
420
360

300
240
180
120
60

975
910
845
780
715

650
585
520
455
390

325
260
195
130
65

1050
980
910
840
770

700
630
560
490
420

350
280
210
140
70
70656055504540353025

2

TABLES FOR
"L", "D" AND "B" VALUES

REV.  8/1/08FILE: G:\Traffic Engineering\Typ Temp Traffic Control\ ables

TABLES-2M. LUTFI 2 OF 2

DISTANCE BETWEEN TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES "D"
AND LENGTH OF LONGITUDINAL BUFFER SPACE ON

"WORK ZONE CONSTRUCTION SPEED ZONE" SEQUENCES
"D"

DISTANCES

D (FEET)

MPH
SPEED*

250 300 350 400 450 500 550 600 650 700

GUIDELINES FOR LENGTH OF
LONGITUDINAL BUFFER SPACE "B"

LENGTH
FEET

20 33
5025
8330

13235
18140
23045
27950
32955
41160
47665
54270

* POSTED SPEED, OFF PEAK 85TH PERCENTILE SPEED PRIOR TO WORK STARTING, OR THE ANTICIPATED
  OPERATING SPEED

1 BASED UPON AMERICAN ASSOCIATION OF STATE HIGHWAY AND TRANSPORTATION OFFICIALS (AASHTO)
   BRAKING DISTANCE PORTION OF STOPPING SIGHT DISTANCE FOR WET AND LEVEL PAVEMENTS (A POLICY
   ON GEOMETRICS DESIGN OF HIGHWAY AND STREETS), AASHTO.  THIS AASHTO DOCUMENT ALSO RECOMMENDS
   ADJUSTMENTS FOR THE EFFECT OF GRADE ON STOPPING AND VARIATION FOR TRUCKS.

POSTED SPEED LIMIT, MPH (PRIOR TO WORK AREA)

70656055504540353025

8 of 67



DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

SIGN DETAILS

5.
5

5

6.9 39.7 5 7.9 5 24.6

4
5

16.1 5.8 5 14 5 7.5 5 21.5

4
5

20.4 25.5 5 24.7

4
1.
3

2.1
91.8

4
5

14.5 30.9 5 31.1

6.9

16.1

20.4

2.1
14.5

5.
2

48

96

SP-1; 

3.0" Radius, 1.3" Border, 0.8" Indent, Black on, Orange; 

"CRANBROOK RD CLOSED",  D; "14 MILE TO MAPLE",  D; "FOLLOW DETOUR",  D; "STARTING XX-XX-XX",  D; 

Table of widths and spaces

6.9
C
3.4 0.9

R
3.4 0.9

A
4.2 0.9

N
3.4 1.2

B
3.3 1.2

R
3.4 0.9

O
3.5 0.9

O
3.6 1.1

K
3.5 5.0

R
3.3 1.2

D
3.4

5.0
C
3.3 1.0

L
3.0 0.9

O
3.6 0.9

S
3.4 1.1

E
3.1 0.9

D
3.4 6.9

16.1
1
1.2 0.9

4
3.7 5.0

M
3.9 1.1

I
0.8 1.2

L
3.0 1.0

E
3.0 5.0

T
3.1 0.9

O
3.5 5.0

M
3.9 0.9

A
4.2 1.0

P
3.3 1.2

L
3.0 1.0

E
3.0 16.1

20.4
F
3.0 1.0

O
3.5 1.2

L
3.0 0.9

L
3.1 0.9

O
3.5 1.0

W
4.4 5.0

D
3.3 1.2

E
3.0 0.7

T
3.0 0.9

O
3.6 1.1

U
3.4 1.2

R
3.3 20.4

2.1 91.8 2.1

14.5
S
3.4 0.9

T
3.0 0.4

A
4.1 1.0

R
3.3 1.0

T
3.0 1.0

I
0.7 1.2

N
3.4 1.1

G
3.4

5.0
X
3.4 0.9

X
3.4 0.6

-
2.5 0.9

X
3.4 0.9

X
3.4 0.6

-
2.5 0.9

X
3.4 0.9

X
3.4 14.5

CRAN B ROO K R D CLOS ED
1 4 M I L E TO MAP LE

S TART I N G XX-XX- XX

FO L LOW D ETO U R

3
6

2.5
33.1 3 6.9

2.5

3

12

48

D3-1; 

1.5" Radius, 0.4" Border, 0.4" Indent, Black on, Orange; 

"CRANBROOK RD",  C 31% spacing; 

Table of widths and spaces

2.5
C
3.2 0.4

R
3.2 0.4

A
3.7 0.3

N
3.3 0.4

B
3.3 0.4

R
3.2 0.4

O
3.4 0.3

O
3.5 0.4

K
3.3

3.0
R
3.3 0.4

D
3.2 2.5

CRANBROOK RD 1.
5

5

1.2
27.6

1.2

1.
5

8

30

D3-1; 

1.5" Radius, 0.4" Border, 0.4" Indent, Black on, Orange; 

"CRANBROOK",  C 31% spacing; 

Table of widths and spaces

1.2
C
2.7 0.3

R
2.7 0.3

A
3.1 0.3

N
2.7 0.3

B
2.8 0.3

R
2.7 0.3

O
2.9 0.2

O
2.9 0.4

K
2.7 1.2

CRANBROOK

9 of 67



DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

TYPICAL SECTIONS

10 of 67



DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

TYPICAL SECTIONS

11 of 67



DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

TYPICAL SECTIONS

12 of 67



DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

TYPICAL SECTIONS

13 of 67



DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

TYPICAL SECTIONS

14 of 67



DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

PROJECT DETAILS

15 of 67



DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

PROJECT DETAILS

16 of 67



DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

PROJECT DETAILS

17 of 67



DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

PROJECT DETAILS

18 of 67



CONSTRUCTION CENTERLINE LAYOUT

TAG

L1

C1

L2

C2

LINE/CHORD
LENGTH

136.1930

302.885

576.0485

756.630

LINE/CHORD
DIRECTION

N3° 43' 39"W

N6° 27' 34"W

N8° 56' 30"W

N8° 20' 30"W

MID
ORDINATE

3.745

1.417

RADIUS

3063.5772

50506.9366

DELTA

5°40'01"

0°51'30"

PI
NORTHING
EASTING

N:377731.6538
E:13425738.1950

N:378824.2410
E:13425566.4877

START
STATION

10+00

11+36

14+39

20+15

START
NORTHING
EASTING

N:377444.4248
E:13425756.6387

N:377580.3296
E:13425747.7843

N:377881.2915
E:13425713.7100

N:378450.3394
E:13425624.1750

END
STATION

11+36

14+39

20+15

27+72

END
NORTHING
EASTING

N:377580.3296
E:13425747.7843

N:377580.3296
E:13425713.7100

N:378450.3394
E:13425624.1750

N:378450.3394
E:13425514.4079

TRAVERSE POINTS

PT. #

3000

3002

3100

3101

3102

3103

3104

COORDINATES

N:377697.3900
E:13425755.4801

N:378926.3000
E:13425573.7101

N:377692.6830
E:13425551.7958

N:377453.1983
E:13425737.5661

N:377907.3589
E:13425691.5446

N:378119.4594
E:13425655.8428

N:378630.5165
E:13425573.4204

ELEV.

728.12

739.53

729.59

724.71

721.13

721.76

737.17

DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

HORIZONTAL CONTROL

BENCHMARK

BM. # DESCRIPTION ELEV.

400

N.W. CORNER OF SOCWA
CHAMBER LID. SOUTH SIDE OF
14 MILE RD. 140' WEST OF
CRANBROOK RD.

729.49

401
SE FLANGE BOLT ON HYD. AT
NW CORNER OF CARRIAGE LN.
AND CRANBROOK RD.

725.79

402
MAG, WEST FACE MULI-POPLAR
EAST SIDE OF CRANBROOK RD.
30' NORTH OF 14 MILE RD.

723.61

301
ARROW ON HYD. AT NE
CORNER OF CRANBROOK RD.
AND NORTHLAWN

741.97

19 of 67



CONSTRUCTION CENTERLINE LAYOUT

TAG

C2

L3

L4

C3

L5

L6

LINE/CHORD
LENGTH

756.630

300.9197

331.2593

214.396

363.9620

245.4224

LINE/CHORD
DIRECTION

N8° 20' 30"W

N8° 17' 10"W

N8° 04' 18"W

N3° 37' 20"W

N0° 47' 53"E

N0° 42' 50"E

MID
ORDINATE

1.417

4.110

RADIUS

50506.9366

1400.0000

DELTA

0°51'30"

8°46'58"

PI
NORTHING
EASTING

N:378824.2410
E:13425566.4877

N:379931.1848
E:13425409.5406

START
STATION

20+15

27+72

30+73

34+04

36+19

39+83

START
NORTHING
EASTING

N:378450.3394
E:13425624.1750

N:379198.9649
E:13425514.4079

N:379496.7433
E:13425471.0408

N:379824.7209
E:13425424.5289

N:380038.6889
E:13425410.9841

N:380402.6156
E:13425416.0541

END
STATION

27+72

30+73

34+04

36+19

39+83

42+28

END
NORTHING
EASTING

N:378450.3394
E:13425514.4079

N:379496.7433
E:13425471.0408

N:379824.7209
E:13425424.5289

N:379824.7209
E:13425410.9841

N:380402.6156
E:13425416.0541

N:380648.0190
E:13425419.1118

TRAVERSE POINTS

PT. #

3003

3004

3016

COORDINATES

N:379436.8800
E:13425501.0301

N:379892.5300
E:13425381.2301

N:380544.6040
E:13425442.9071

ELEV.

738.07

736.79

742.01

DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

HORIZONTAL CONTROL

BENCHMARK

BM. # DESCRIPTION ELEV.

302

MAG NAIL IN EAST FACE OF
GUY POLE AT NORTHWEST
CORNER OF CRANBROOK
ROAD AND MIDDLEBURY
LANE

740.33

303

ARROW ON HYDRANT,
EAST SIDE OF CRANBROOK
ROAD, IN ISLAND BETWEEN
HILLSIDE DRIVE AND
FAIRWAY DRIVE.

741.56

304

PAINTED "X" NORTH RIM
BEEHIVE CB ±20' WEST
EDGE CRANBROOK ±100'
SOUTH OF LINCOLN

733.68

305

V. MAG. EAST ROOT 24"
LOCUST EAST SIDE OF
CRANBROOK RD. ±150'
NORTH OF LINCOLN

742.35

20 of 67



CONSTRUCTION CENTERLINE LAYOUT

TAG

L6

L7

L8

L9

L10

L11

LINE/CHORD
LENGTH

245.4224

840.5548

147.6029

314.1698

214.0664

531.2673

LINE/CHORD
DIRECTION

N0° 42' 50"E

N0° 46' 59"E

N0° 45' 54"E

N0° 47' 03"E

N0° 33' 32"E

N0° 45' 34"E

MID
ORDINATE RADIUS DELTA

PI
NORTHING
EASTING

START
STATION

39+83

42+28

50+69

52+16

55+30

57+44

START
NORTHING
EASTING

N:380402.6156
E:13425416.0541

N:380648.0190
E:13425419.1118

N:381488.4953
E:13425430.5994

N:381636.0851
E:13425432.5704

N:381950.2255
E:13425436.8702

N:382164.2816
E:13425438.9579

END
STATION

42+28

50+69

52+16

55+30

57+44

62+76

END
NORTHING
EASTING

N:380648.0190
E:13425419.1118

N:381488.4953
E:13425430.5994

N:381636.0851
E:13425432.5704

N:381950.2255
E:13425436.8702

N:382164.2816
E:13425438.9579

N:382695.5022
E:13425445.9990

TRAVERSE POINTS

PT. #

3017

3018

3022

COORDINATES

N:381113.0830
E:13425397.4941

N:381582.2700
E:13425460.2801

N:381904.4921
E:13425409.4885

ELEV.

744.69

746.87

748.97

DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

HORIZONTAL CONTROL

BENCHMARK

BM. # DESCRIPTION ELEV.

306
TOP OF "O" IN OPEN ON HYD. EAST
SIDE OF CRANBROOK RD. ±75'
SOUTH OF CRANBROOK CROSS RD.

746.03

307 V. MAG EASTERLY ROOT 26" MAPLE
AT HSE# 338 CRANBROOK RD. 752.26

21 of 67



CONSTRUCTION CENTERLINE LAYOUT - CRANBROOK ROAD

TAG

L11

L12

L13

L14

L15

L16

LINE/CHORD
LENGTH

531.2673

85.7507

205.4516

118.9097

97.1934

87.7468

LINE/CHORD
DIRECTION

N0° 45' 34"E

N0° 40' 54"E

N0° 23' 16"E

N0° 23' 53"E

N1° 32' 00"W

N2° 40' 02"W

MID
ORDINATE RADIUS DELTA

PI
NORTHING
EASTING

START
STATION

57+44

62+76

63+61

65+67

66+86

67+83

START
NORTHING
EASTING

N:382164.2816
E:13425438.9579

N:382695.5022
E:13425445.9990

N:382781.2469
E:13425447.0192

N:382986.6937
E:13425448.4098

N:383105.6006
E:13425449.2358

N:383202.7592
E:13425446.6350

END
STATION

62+76

63+61

65+67

66+86

67+83

68+71

END
NORTHING
EASTING

N:382695.5022
E:13425445.9990

N:382781.2469
E:13425447.0192

N:382986.6937
E:13425448.4098

N:383105.6006
E:13425449.2358

N:383202.7592
E:13425446.6350

N:383290.4110
E:13425442.5519

TRAVERSE POINTS

PT. #

3019

3023

COORDINATES

N:382441.6850
E:13425414.7901

N:382737.6036
E:13425399.5469

ELEV.

753.99

756.10

DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

HORIZONTAL CONTROL

BENCHMARK

BM. # DESCRIPTION ELEV.

308 V. MAG WEST ROOT 14" MAPLE AT
HSE# 166 CRANBROOK RD. 756.81

22 of 67



CONSTRUCTION CENTERLINE LAYOUT - MAPLE ROAD

TAG

L17

L18

L19

L20

LINE/CHORD
LENGTH

238.4712

203.4783

141.8405

125.7826

LINE/CHORD
DIRECTION

N87° 22' 49"E

N86° 59' 00"E

N84° 59' 04"E

N87° 04' 55"E

MID
ORDINATE RADIUS DELTA

PI
NORTHING
EASTING

START
STATION

100+00

102+38

104+42

105+84

START
NORTHING
EASTING

N:383106.3047
E:13424932.3254

N:383117.2051
E:13425170.5473

N:383127.9131
E:13425373.7437

N:383140.3134
E:13425515.0412

END
STATION

102+38

104+42

105+84

107+10

END
NORTHING
EASTING

N:383117.2051
E:13425170.5473

N:383127.9131
E:13425373.7437

N:383140.3134
E:13425515.0412

N:383146.7164
E:13425640.6606

TRAVERSE POINTS

PT. #

3020

3024

COORDINATES

N:383087.3200
E:13425484.4611

N:383151.8595
E:13425066.8305

ELEV.

757.87

760.91

DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

HORIZONTAL CONTROL

BENCHMARK

BM. # DESCRIPTION ELEV.

309
ARROW ON HYD. NE CORNER
MAPLE & N GLENGARY RD. ±40' E.
OF INTERSECTION.

762.91

23 of 67



TROY

SOUTHFIELD ROYAL OAK

SESC NOTES

SITE MAP

A. SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL

B. PROJECT LOCATION
P.O.B. LATITUDE: 42°31'52"     LONGITUDE: -83°14'41"

BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP, T2N R10E

ROUGE RIVER WATERSHED

C. GENERAL NOTES

1. ALL SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL (SESC) ITEMS SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH MDOT 2012 STANDARD
SPECIFICATIONS FOR CONSTRUCTION AND THE MDOT SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL MANUAL. IN
ADDITION, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL FOLLOW ANY LOCAL SESC RULES AND REGULATIONS, ALONG WITH RCOC'S NOTICE
TO BIDDERS, CONTRACTOR MATERIAL DISPOSAL NOTICE AND FORM FOR ALL MATERIALS THAT ARE DISPOSED OF OFF
THE PROJECT SITE.

2. SEDIMENTATION FROM EROSIONS OF THE WORK SITE SHALL BE CONTAINED ON SITE AND NOT ALLOWED TO COLLECT IN
ANY ADJACENT AREAS OR IN WATERWAYS. WATERWAYS INCLUDE BOTH NATURAL AND MAN-MADE OPEN DITCHES,
STREAMS, STORM DRAINS, LAKES, PONDS AND WETLANDS. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CONDUCT WORK IN A MANNER
SUCH THAT ALL SOIL, FUELS, OILS, BITUMINOUS MATERIALS, CHEMICALS, SANITARY SEWAGE, AND OTHER HARMFUL
MATERIALS, RESULTING FROM THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE PROJECT, ARE CONFINED WITHIN PROJECT LIMITS AND
PREVENTED FROM ENTERING WATERCOURSES, RIVERS, LAKES, RESERVOIRS, OR GROUND WATER.

3. STAGE THE WORK AS SHOWN IN PLANS OR DIRECTED BY THE ENGINEER TO ENSURE PROGRESSIVE STABILIZATION OF
DISTURBED EARTH. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PRESERVE NATURAL VEGETATION AS MUCH AS POSSIBLE AND CONDUCT
HIS OPERATIONS IN SUCH A MANNER AS TO MINIMIZE THE AREAS LEFT BARREN DURING CONSTRUCTION.  THE
CONTRACTOR WILL ONLY BE ALLOWED TO DISTURB ONLY THOSE AREAS ABSOLUTELY REQUIRED FOR THE
CONSTRUCTION OF THE PROJECT THAT ARE WITHIN THE GRADING LIMITS. AREAS OUTSIDE THE GRADING LIMITS MUST BE
RESTORED AND WILL NOT BE PAID FOR SEPARATELY.

4. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL INSPECT SESC MEASURES DAILY TO ENSURE THEIR EFFECTIVENESS AND WHEN NECESSARY,
IMMEDIATELY REPAIR OR INSTALL ADDITIONAL CONTROLS. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REMOVE SEDIMENT COLLECTED IN
CULVERTS AND SUMPS OF ALL DRAINAGE STRUCTURES CONSTRUCTED WITH THE PROJECT WHEN SUCH SEDIMENT
EXCEEDS HALF OF THE SUMP DEPTH OR CULVERT DIAMETER. THE ENGINEER WILL INSPECT CULVERTS, SUMPS, AND ALL
SESC ITEMS AFTER STORMS AND DIRECT THE CONTRACTOR TO CLEANOUT CULVERTS, SUMPS, AND ALL SESC ITEMS.
CLEARING CULVERTS AND SUMPS FOR SEDIMENTATION CONTROL IS CONSIDERED MAINTENANCE AND WILL NOT BE PAID
FOR SEPARATELY.

5. ALL TEMPORARY SESC DEVICES SHALL BE PERIODICALLY MAINTAINED AND CLEANED OF ALL ACCUMULATED SEDIMENT
TO ENSURE THEY REMAIN OPERATIONAL UNTIL ALL DISRUPTED AREAS ARE PERMANENTLY STABILIZED, AT WHICH TIME,
THEY SHALL BE REMOVED.

6. PERMANENT SESC MEASURES FOR ANY DISTURBED AREA SHALL BE COMPLETED WITHIN FIVE DAYS AFTER FINAL
GRADING OF THE SECTION OR ANY PORTION THEREOF. THE CONTRACTOR WILL MAINTAIN AND REPAIR PERMANENT
RESTORATION ITEMS UNTIL FINAL ROAD ACCEPTANCE.

7. ALL AREAS TEMPORARILY STABILIZED DURING THE NON-GROWING SEASON SHALL BE PERMANENTLY STABILIZED
IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE NEXT PLANTING SEASON. ALL STRAW OR HAY MULCH SHALL BE
REMOVED OR DEEPLY INCORPORATED INTO THE SOIL BEFORE PROVIDING PERMANENT STABILIZATION. DORMANT
SEEDING IS ALSO RECOMMENDED FOR EARLY SPRING GROWTH.

8. IN ADDITION TO SESC MEASURES, CONSTRUCT BARRIERS TO PROTECT CRITICAL EROSION AREAS AND TO PREVENT
UNWANTED ACCESS BY VEHICLES, EQUIPMENT, AND PEDESTRIANS. POTENTIAL AREAS THAT MAY NEED BARRIERS ARE
HIGHLY ERODIBLE AREAS SUCH AS, TREE CANOPIES, SEDIMENT AND RETENTION PONDS, COFFERDAMS, BARREN LAND,
AND SLOPES GREATER THAN 1:3.

9. IF RUNOFF OCCURS FROM SOIL STOCKPILES, SEDIMENT CONTROL FENCING WILL BE PLACED AT THE BASE OF THE
STOCKPILE TO RETAIN SOIL, OR AS DIRECTED BY THE ENGINEER.

10. MINIMIZE DUST AND THE TRACKING OF LOOSE MATERIALS FROM THE CONSTRUCTION WORK SITE ONTO PUBLIC
ROADWAYS AND INTO THE WATERS OF THE STATE. ANY MATERIALS TRACKED ONTO PUBLIC ROADWAYS SHALL BE
REMOVED AS SOON AS POSSIBLE AS FOLLOWED AND PAID FOR IN THE PAVEMENT CLEANING SPECIAL PROVISION.

11. CONSTRUCT CHECK DAMS IN DITCHES IMMEDIATELY AFTER DITCHING, AS SHOWN ON THE PLANS OR AS DIRECTED BY
THE ENGINEER. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN THE CHECK DAMS DURING THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE PROJECT,
INCLUDING THE TOTAL REMOVAL AND DISPOSAL OF COLLECTED SEDIMENT UPON COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT.
REMOVE CHECK DAM AFTER PERMANENT VEGETATION IS ESTABLISHED.

12. TURF ESTABLISHMENT IS THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR AS SPECIFIED IN THE TURF ESTABLISHMENT
SPECIAL PROVISION.

13. FOR FINAL PROJECT ACCEPTANCE AND SESC PERMIT CLOSING, THE REMOVAL OF TEMPORARY SESC MEASURES,
CONSTRUCTION OF PERMANENT SESC MEASURES, AND 90 PERCENT VEGETATIVE GROWTH ON DISTURBED AREAS ARE
REQUIRED. IN ADDITION, PAVEMENT, DITCHES, GUTTERS, CATCH BASINS, AND STORM SEWERS MUST BE FREE OF
ACCUMULATED SEDIMENT.

14. MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT:

A. PAYMENT FOR THE SESC ITEMS WILL INCLUDE FURNISHING, PLACING, MAINTAINING AND REMOVING THESE ITEMS AS
REQUIRED, IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE DETAILS SHOWN ON THE PLANS OR AS SPECIFIED. MAINTENANCE OR REMOVAL OF
THE TEMPORARY SESC ITEMS WILL NOT BE PAID FOR SEPARATELY.

B. REMOVAL AND DISPOSAL OF ACCUMULATED SEDIMENT OR DEBRIS WILL NOT BE PAID FOR SEPARATELY.

C. ALL AREAS DISTURBED BY THE CONTRACTOR AND SUBCONTRACTORS BEYOND THE SLOPE STAKE LINE (SSL) SHALL BE
RESTORED. NO ADDITIONAL PAYMENT OR COMPENSATION WILL BE MADE FOR THIS ACTIVITY.

D. THE COST OF PROJECT CLEANUP IS INCLUDED IN THE CONTRACT UNIT PRICES FOR OTHER RELEVANT PAY ITEMS.

D. TYPICAL CONSTRUCTION SEQUENCE

1. REMOVE TREES AND CLEAR PRIOR TO INSTALLING SESC ITEMS, IF APPLICABLE.

2. PRIOR TO GRUBBING, STRIPING TOP SURFACE, EARTH EXCAVATION, OR GRADING, ALL SESC ITEMS MUST BE IN PLACES
SHOWN ON THE PLANS. THEY INCLUDE BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE FOLLOWING.

A. INSTALL GEOTEXTILE SILT FENCE ON THE DOWNWARD SLOPES OF THE DISTURBED AREAS.

B. WHERE PRACTICAL, PROTECT DISTURBED AREAS WITH TEMPORARY OR PERMANENT VEGETATIVE COVER.

C. PROTECT EXISTING AND NEW CATCH BASINS AND INLETS WITH APPROVED INLET FILTER PROTECTION.

3. IMMEDIATELY AFTER INSTALLING STORM SEWER; INSTALL FABRIC DROPS AT INLETS AND CATCH BASINS, AND RIP RAP AT
END SECTION OUTFALLS AS SHOWN ON THE PLANS.

4. CLEAR ALL ACCUMULATED SILT AND SEDIMENT PERIODICALLY AND AFTER STORM EVENTS TO MAINTAIN THE
EFFECTIVENESS OF THE CONTROL MEASURES.  NEW CONTROL MEASURES WILL BE NEEDED WHEN ORIGINAL CONTROL
MEASURES ARE DAMAGED.

D. PROJECT SPECIFIC REQUIREMENTS
THE FOLLOWING MEASURES SHALL BE INCORPORATED INTO THIS PROJECT AS PROVISIONAL PAY ITEMS:

1. MUD MATS ARE TO BE USED WHERE CONTRACTOR USES UNPAVED OPEN AREAS FOR PROJECT STORAGE THROUGHOUT
THE PROJECT.

DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

55201

24 of 67



DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

SESC PLAN  - P.O.B. TO STA. 30+50

13B

68

68

23B

23B

34B

34B

34B

34B
34B

68

ShbuaB

ShbuaB

OAKLAND COUNTY SOIL MAP
LEGEND

MAP UNIT SYMBOL MAP UNIT NAME

13B
Oshtemo-Boyer loamy
sands, 0 to 6 percent

slopes

23B
Sisson fine sandy loam,

1 to 6 percent slopes

34B
Kibbie fine sandy loam,
0 to 4 percent slopes

68 Cohoctah-Fox
association

ShbuaB
Shebeon-Urban land

complex, 0 to 4 percent
slopes

AS-DIRECTED SESC QUANTITIES

PAY ITEM QTY UNIT

Erosion Control, Silt Fence, RCOC 500 Ft

Erosion Control, Inlet Protection, Fabric Drop, RCOC 5 Ea

25 of 67



STRUCTURE ADJUST

TYPE

SAN

STM

STM

STM

OWNER

DPW

RCOC

RCOC

DPW

STATION
OFFSET

13+00, 32' L

13+14, 99' L

15+34, 13' L

15+77, 9' R

EX. RIM

725.48

725.77

721.02

721.27

PR RIM

725.48

726.50

721.06

721.44

COVER

EX.

G

EX.

EX.

DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

CONSTRUCTION PLAN  - P.O.B. TO STA. 16+50

BENCHMARK

BM. # DESCRIPTION ELEV.

400

N.W. CORNER OF SOCWA
CHAMBER LID. SOUTH SIDE OF 14
MILE RD. 140' WEST OF
CRANBROOK RD.

729.49

401
SE FLANGE BOLT ON HYD. AT NW
CORNER OF CARRIAGE LN. AND
CRANBROOK RD.

725.79

402
MAG, WEST FACE MULI-POPLAR
EAST SIDE OF CRANBROOK RD. 30'
NORTH OF 14 MILE RD.

723.61

CONSTRUCTION  QUANTITIES - THIS SHEET

PAY ITEM QTY UNIT

Curb and Gutter, Rem 55 Ft

Pavt, Rem 251 Syd

Wood Post, Rem 5 Ea

Excavation, Earth, RCOC 953 Syd

Aggregate Base, Conditioning 27 Syd

Aggregate Base, 8 inch, 21AA, RCOC 387 Syd

Trenching 4.3 Sta

Shoulder, 21AA 50 Ton

Dr Structure Cover, Adj, Case 1 1 Ea

Dr Structure Cover, Adj, Case 2 1 Ea

Dr Structure Cover, Type G 1 Ea

Public Utility Structure Cover, Adj, Case 1, RCOC 2 Ea

HMA Surface, Rem 193 Syd

Hand Patching 36 Ton

HMA, 5E3 217 Ton

Edge Trimming, RCOC 587 Ft

Joint, HMA Plane of Weakness 507 Ft

Cold Milling Pavt 709 Syd

Conc Base Cse, Nonreinf, 6 inch 7 Syd

Curb and Gutter, Conc, Det B2 135 Ft

Spillway, Conc, RCOC 16 Ft

Curb Ramp Opening, Conc 13 Ft

Post, Mailbox 1 Ea

Post, Flexible, Delineator, RCOC 4 Ea

Riprap, Plain, RCOC 6 Syd

Turf Establishment, THM Seed, Regular Mulch,
Performance, RCOC 337 Syd

LEGEND

26 of 67



STRUCTURE ADJUST

TYPE

STM

STM

STM

CS

OWNER

DPW

DPW

DPW

DPW

STATION
OFFSET

17+61, 13' L

19+33, 13' R

22+25, 0' L

22+33, 18' R

EX. RIM

723.94

730.14

743.40

738.17

PR RIM

724.11

730.31

738.43

738.34

COVER

EX.

EX.

EX.

EX.

DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

CONSTRUCTION PLAN  - STA. 16+50 TO STA. 23+50

BENCHMARK

BM. # DESCRIPTION ELEV.

301
ARROW ON HYD. AT NE CORNER
OF CRANBROOK RD. AND
NORTHLAWN

741.97

CONSTRUCTION  QUANTITIES - THIS SHEET

PAY ITEM QTY UNIT

Pavt, Rem 33 Syd

Excavation, Earth, RCOC 831 Syd

Trenching 9.3 Sta

Shoulder, 21AA 90 Ton

Public Utility Structure Cover, Adj, Case 1, RCOC 4 Ea

Hand Patching 43 Ton

HMA, 5E3 435 Ton

Edge Trimming, RCOC 920 Ft

Joint, HMA Plane of Weakness 920 Ft

Cold Milling Pavt 2160 Syd

Turf Establishment, THM Seed, Regular Mulch,
Performance, RCOC 426 Syd

LEGEND

27 of 67



STRUCTURE ADJUST

TYPE

CS

STM

CS

STM

CS

CS

OWNER

DPW

DPW

DPW

RCOC

DPW

DPW

STATION
OFFSET

25+40, 20' R

26+57, 14' L

28+92, 22' R

29+03, 23' R

29+17, 1' L

29+26, 24' R

EX. RIM

740.03

740.15

738.80

738.61

739.16

738.63

PR RIM

740.03

740.32

738.97

738.50

739.33

738.8

COVER

EX.

EX.

EX.

K

EX.

EX.

STRUCTURE SCHEDULE

STR.
NO.

1

2

STATION/
OFFSET

29+26, 17.0' R

29+79, 23.3' R

STR.
DIA.

4.0'

2.0'

STR.
TYPE

MH

INL

COVER
TYPE

B

K

DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

CONSTRUCTION PLAN  - STA. 23+50 TO STA. 30+50

BENCHMARK

BM. # DESCRIPTION ELEV.

303

ARROW ON HYDRANT, EAST SIDE
OF CRANBROOK ROAD, IN ISLAND
BETWEEN HILLSIDE DRIVE AND
FAIRWAY DRIVE

741.56

CONSTRUCTION  QUANTITIES -
THIS SHEET

PAY ITEM QTY UNIT

Pavt, Rem 62 Syd

Excavation, Earth, RCOC 1029 Syd

Aggregate Base, 8 inch, 21AA,
RCOC 249 Syd

Trenching 11.6 Sta

Shoulder, 21AA 80 Ton

Sewer, CL IV, 12 inch Tr Det B 77 Ft

Dr Structure Cover, Adj, Case 1 2 Ea

Dr Structure Cover, Type B 1 Ea

Dr Structure Cover, Type K 1 Ea

Dr Structure, 24 inch dia 1 Ea

Dr Structure, 48 inch dia 1 Ea

Dr Structure, Tap, 12 inch 1 Ea

Public Utility Structure Cover,
Adj, Case 2 1 Ea

Public Utility Structure Cover,
Adj, Case 1, RCOC 4 Ea

CONSTRUCTION  QUANTITIES -
THIS SHEET

HMA Surface, Rem 251 Syd

Hand Patching 74 Ton

HMA, 5E3 469 Ton

Edge Trimming, RCOC 1170 Ft

Joint, HMA Plane of Weakness 1170 Ft

Cold Milling Pavt 1915 Syd

Conc Base Cse, Nonreinf, 6
inch 13 Syd

Curb and Gutter, Conc, Det C4 36 Ft

Curb and Gutter, Conc, Det C6 66 Ft

Curb and Gutter, Conc, Det C4,
RCOC 26 Ft

Curb Ramp Opening, Conc 32 Ft

Post, Flexible, Delineator,
RCOC 2 Ea

Turf Establishment, THM Seed,
Regular Mulch, Performance,
RCOC

418 Syd

LEGEND

28 of 67



STRUCTURE ADJUST

TYPE

CS

STM

WTR

CS

WTR

STM

STM

OWNER

DPW

RCOC

DPW

DPW

DPW

DPW

RCOC

STATION
OFFSET

31+51, 12' R

33+68, 23' R

35+56, 18' R

35+96, 32' R

36+07, 52' R

36+48, 21' L

36+50, 19' R

EX. RIM

736.79

735.27

737.15

737.46

736.95

737.82

737.70

PR RIM

736.96

735.27

737.32

737.63

736.99

737.82

737.70

COVER

EX.

K

EX.

EX.

EX.

K

K

DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

CONSTRUCTION PLAN  - STA. 30+50 TO STA. 36+50

BENCHMARK

BM. # DESCRIPTION ELEV.

304
PAINTED "X" NORTH RIM BEEHIVE
CB ±20' WEST EDGE CRANBROOK
±100' SOUTH OF LINCOLN

733.68

CONSTRUCTION  QUANTITIES - THIS SHEET

PAY ITEM QTY UNIT

Curb and Gutter, Rem 99 Ft

Curb, Rem 88 Ft

Pavt, Rem 86 Syd

Excavation, Earth, RCOC 382 Syd

Aggregate Base, Conditioning 124 Syd

Trenching 2.6 Sta

Shoulder, 21AA 45 Ton

Dr Structure Cover, Adj, Case 1 3 Ea

Dr Structure Cover, Type K 3 Ea

Public Utility Structure Cover, Adj, Case 1, RCOC 4 Ea

HMA Surface, Rem 45 Syd

Hand Patching 14 Ton

HMA, 5E3 500 Ton

HMA Approach 3 Ton

Edge Trimming, RCOC 260 Ft

Joint, HMA Plane of Weakness 260 Ft

Cold Milling Pavt 2648 Syd

Conc Base Cse, Nonreinf, 6 inch 35 Syd

Curb, Conc, Det E4 72 Ft

Curb and Gutter, Conc, Det B2 47 Ft

Curb and Gutter, Conc, Det C6 78 Ft

Spillway, Conc, RCOC 16 Ft

Curb Ramp Opening, Conc 28 Ft

Post, Flexible, Delineator, RCOC 3 Ea

Riprap, Plain, RCOC 3 Syd

Turf Establishment, THM Seed, Regular Mulch,
Performance, RCOC 208 Syd

Monument Box Adjust 1 Ea

Monument Box 1 Ea

LEGEND

29 of 67



STRUCTURE ADJUST

TYPE

STM

STM

STM

STM

STM

STM

OWNER

DPW

RCOC

RCOC

RCOC

DPW

DPW

STATION
OFFSET

37+47, 15' L

37+82, 27' L

40+07, 20' R

40+07, 21' L

40+17, 16' L

43+19, 19' L

EX. RIM

738.81

738.63

740.28

740.22

740.56

742.60

PR RIM

738.85

738.63

740.28

740.22

740.60

742.64

COVER

EX.

K

K

K

EX.

EX.

CONSTRUCTION  PLAN  - STA. 36+50 TO STA. 43+50
DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

BENCHMARK

BM. # DESCRIPTION ELEV.

302

MAG NAIL IN EAST FACE OF GUY
POLE AT NORTHWEST CORNER OF
CRANBROOK ROAD AND
MIDDLEBURY LANE

305

TOP OF "O" IN WORD "OPEN" ON
HYD. EAST SIDE OF CRANBROOK
RD. ±75' SOUTH OF CRANBROOK
CROSS RD.

CONSTRUCTION  QUANTITIES - THIS SHEET

PAY ITEM QTY UNIT

Curb and Gutter, Rem 60 Ft

Curb, Rem 219 Ft

Pavt, Rem 140 Syd

Sidewalk, Rem 5 Syd

Excavation, Earth, RCOC 295 Syd

Aggregate Base, Conditioning 47 Syd

Aggregate Base, 4 inch, 21AA, RCOC 6 Syd

Aggregate Base, 8 inch, 21AA, RCOC 155 Syd

Dr Structure Cover, Adj, Case 1 3 Ea

Dr Structure Cover, Type K 3 Ea

Public Utility Structure Cover, Adj, Case 1, RCOC 3 Ea

HMA Surface, Rem 144 Syd

HMA, 5E3 567 Ton

Cold Milling Pavt 3000 Syd

Conc Base Cse, Nonreinf, 6 inch 21 Syd

Curb, Conc, Det E4 211 Ft

Curb and Gutter, Conc, Det C6 34 Ft

Detectable Warning Surface 8 Ft

Curb Ramp Opening, Conc 16 Ft

Sidewalk Ramp, Conc, 6 inch 38 Sft

Turf Establishment, THM Seed, Regular Mulch,
Performance, RCOC 152 Syd

LEGEND

30 of 67



STRUCTURE ADJUST

TYPE

STM

STM

STM

STM

STM

STM

STM

STM

OWNER

RCOC

RCOC

RCOC

DPW

RCOC

RCOC

DPW

RCOC

STATION
OFFSET

43+56, 20' L

43+85, 20' R

46+65, 20' R

46+70, 15' L

46+97, 20' L

50+02, 20' R

50+16, 17' L

50+32, 20' L

EX. RIM

742.16

742.72

743.56

743.89

743.49

744.94

745.17

744.98

PR RIM

742.16

742.72

743.56

743.93

743.49

744.94

745.21

744.98

COVER

K

K

K

EX.

K

K

EX.

K

CONSTRUCTION PLAN  - STA. 43+50 TO STA. 50+50
DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

BENCHMARK

BM. # DESCRIPTION ELEV.

306
TOP OF "O" IN OPEN ON HYD. EAST
SIDE OF CRANBROOK RD. ±75'
SOUTH OF CRANBROOK CROSS RD.

746.03

CONSTRUCTION  QUANTITIES - THIS SHEET

PAY ITEM QTY UNIT

Curb and Gutter, Rem 35 Ft

Curb, Rem 60 Ft

Pavt, Rem 181 Syd

Excavation, Earth, RCOC 222 Syd

Aggregate Base, Conditioning 50 Syd

Aggregate Base, 8 inch, 21AA, RCOC 168 Syd

Dr Structure Cover, Adj, Case 1 6 Ea

Dr Structure Cover, Type K 6 Ea

Public Utility Structure Cover, Adj, Case 1, RCOC 2 Ea

HMA Surface, Rem 190 Syd

Hand Patching 2 Ton

HMA, 5E3 568 Ton

HMA Approach 1 Ton

Cold Milling Pavt 3127 Syd

Conc Base Cse, Nonreinf, 6 inch 17 Syd

Curb, Conc, Det E4 55 Ft

Curb and Gutter, Conc, Det C6 35 Ft

Driveway Opening, Conc, Det M, RCOC 5 Ft

Turf Establishment, THM Seed, Regular Mulch,
Performance, RCOC 54 Syd

LEGEND

31 of 67



STRUCTURE ADJUST

TYPE

CS

STM

STM

STM

STM

STM

STM

OWNER

DPW

RCOC

DPW

RCOC

DPW

RCOC

RCOC

STATION
OFFSET

51+14, 34' R

51+62, 20' R

53+07, 18' L

54+63, 20' R

56+77, 17' L

56+84, 21' L

56+85, 20' R

EX. RIM

745.75

745.54

747.05

748.04

750.24

750.15

750.17

PR RIM

745.79

745.54

747.09

748.04

750.28

750.15

750.17

COVER

EX.

K

EX.

K

EX.

D

D

CONSTRUCTION PLAN  - STA. 50+50 TO STA. 57+50
DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

BENCHMARK

BM. # DESCRIPTION ELEV.

307
V. MAG ON EASTERLY ROOT OF 26"
MAPLE AT HSE# 338 CRANBROOK
RD.

752.26

CONSTRUCTION  QUANTITIES -
THIS SHEET

PAY ITEM QTY UNIT

Tree Trimming 1 LS

Curb and Gutter, Rem 112 Ft

Curb, Rem 163 Ft

Pavt, Rem 435 Syd

Sidewalk, Rem 78 Syd

Excavation, Earth, RCOC 644 Syd

Aggregate Base, Conditioning 169 Syd

Aggregate Base, 4 inch, 21AA,
RCOC 104 Syd

Aggregate Base, 8 inch, 21AA,
RCOC 370 Syd

Dr Structure Cover, Adj, Case 1 4 Ea

Dr Structure Cover, Type D 2 Ea

Dr Structure Cover, Type K 2 Ea

Public Utility Structure Cover, Adj,
Case 1, RCOC 3 Ea

CONSTRUCTION  QUANTITIES -
THIS SHEET

HMA Surface, Rem 424 Syd

Hand Patching 68 Ton

HMA, 5E3 605 Ton

HMA Approach 5 Ton

Cold Milling Pavt 3325 Syd

Conc Base Cse, Nonreinf, 6 inch 35 Syd

Driveway, Nonreinf, Conc, 6 inch 33 Syd

Curb, Conc, Det E4 124 Ft

Curb and Gutter, Conc, Det C4 7 Ft

Curb and Gutter, Conc, Det C6 115 Ft

Detectable Warning Surface 21 Ft

Curb Ramp Opening, Conc 36 Ft

Sidewalk Ramp, Conc, 6 inch 706 Sft

Turf Establishment, THM Seed,
Regular Mulch, Performance,
RCOC

195 Syd

LEGEND

NOTE: IF SIGNAL IS INSTALLED AFTER
FINAL RESTORATION IS COMPLETE,
DAMAGE TO TURF WILL BE REPAIRED
AT CONTRACTORS EXPENSE.

32 of 67



STRUCTURE ADJUST

TYPE

STM

STM

STM

STM

STM

OWNER

RCOC

DPW

DPW

RCOC

RCOC

STATION
OFFSET

59+39, 18' R

59+42, 17' L

63+52, 16' L

63+62, 20' L

63+63, 20' R

EX. RIM

753.87

752.82

759.40

755.35

755.26

PR RIM

753.87

752.86

755.61

755.35

755.26

COVER

K

EX.

EX.

D

K

CONSTRUCTION PLAN  - STA. 57+50 TO STA. 64+50
DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

BENCHMARK

BM. # DESCRIPTION ELEV.

308 V. MAG WEST ROOT 14" MAPLE AT
HSE# 166 CRANBROOK RD. 756.81

CONSTRUCTION  QUANTITIES - THIS SHEET

PAY ITEM QTY UNIT

Curb and Gutter, Rem 54 Ft

Curb, Rem 215 Ft

Pavt, Rem 169 Syd

Excavation, Earth, RCOC 134 Syd

Aggregate Base, Conditioning 242 Syd

Dr Structure Cover, Adj, Case 1 3 Ea

Dr Structure Cover, Type D 1 Ea

Dr Structure Cover, Type K 2 Ea

Public Utility Structure Cover, Adj, Case 1, RCOC 2 Ea

HMA Surface, Rem 91 Syd

Hand Patching 6 Ton

HMA, 5E3 570 Ton

HMA Approach 6 Ton

Cold Milling Pavt 3141 Syd

Conc Base Cse, Nonreinf, 6 inch 71 Syd

Driveway, Nonreinf, Conc, 6 inch 98 Syd

Curb, Conc, Det E4 187 Ft

Curb and Gutter, Conc, Det C4 16 Ft

Curb and Gutter, Conc, Det C6 93 Ft

Turf Establishment, THM Seed, Regular Mulch,
Performance, RCOC 134 Syd

LEGEND

33 of 67



STRUCTURE ADJUST

TYPE

STM

OWNER

RCOC

STATION
OFFSET

64+84, 19' L

EX. RIM

755.64

PR RIM

755.64

COVER

D

DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

CONSTRUCTION PLAN  - STA. 64+50 TO 66+50

CONSTRUCTION  QUANTITIES - THIS SHEET

PAY ITEM QTY UNIT

Curb and Gutter, Rem 186 Ft

Curb, Rem 80 Ft

Pavt, Rem 26 Syd

Excavation, Earth, RCOC 45 Syd

Aggregate Base, Conditioning 120 Syd

Aggregate Base, 8 inch, 21AA, RCOC 17 Syd

Dr Structure Cover, Adj, Case 1 1 Ea

Dr Structure Cover, Type D 1 Ea

HMA Surface, Rem 79 Syd

Hand Patching 7 Ton

HMA, 5E3 187 Ton

HMA Approach 9 Ton

Cold Milling Pavt 1031 Syd

Conc Base Cse, Nonreinf, 6 inch 59 Syd

Conc Pavt, Misc, Nonreinf, 7 inch 17 Syd

Curb, Conc, Det E4 20 Ft

Curb and Gutter, Conc, Det C4 150 Ft

Driveway Opening, Conc, Det M, RCOC 116 Ft

Turf Establishment, THM Seed, Regular Mulch,
Performance, RCOC 28 Syd

LEGEND

34 of 67



STRUCTURE ADJUST

TYPE

STM

CS

WTR

CS

STM

STM

CS

STM

STM

STM

TELE

TELE

OWNER

RCOC

DPW

DPW

DPW

RCOC

RCOC

DPW

RCOC

DPW

DPW

ATT

ATT

STATION
OFFSET

100+56, 33' L

100+97, 20' L

103+03, 26' L

103+75, 20' L

104+66, 24' R

104+77, 34' L

104+92, 19' L

104+98, 48' L

105+26, 26' R

105+31, 54' L

105+46, 44' R

105+52, 38' R

EX. RIM

761.15

761.51

760.15

759.86

758.59

758.29

758.53

758.13

758.12

757.83

757.51

757.65

PR RIM

761.15

761.55

760.19

759.90

758.59

758.29

758.57

758.13

758.16

757.87

757.51

757.65

COVER

K

EX.

EX.

EX.

K

K

EX.

K

EX.

EX.

EX.

EX.

DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

CONSTRUCTION PLAN  - MAPLE ROAD

BENCHMARK

BM. # DESCRIPTION ELEV.

309
ARROW ON HYD. NE CORNER
MAPLE & N GLENGARY RD. ±40' E.
OF INTERSECTION.

756.81

CONSTRUCTION  QUANTITIES - THIS
SHEET

PAY ITEM QTY UNIT

Curb and Gutter, Rem 335 Ft

Pavt, Rem 61 Syd

Sidewalk, Rem 63 Syd

Excavation, Earth, RCOC 251 Syd

Aggregate Base, Conditioning 182 Syd

Aggregate Base, 4 inch, 21AA,
RCOC 89 Syd

Dr Structure Cover, Adj, Case 1 4 Ea

Dr Structure Cover, Type K 4 Ea

Public Utility Structure Cover, Adj,
Case 1, RCOC 9 Ea

HMA Surface, Rem 39 Syd

HMA, 5E3 816 Ton

CONSTRUCTION  QUANTITIES - THIS
SHEET

Cold Milling Pavt 4495 Syd

Conc Base Cse, Nonreinf, 6 inch 40 Syd

Conc Pavt with Integral Curb,
Nonreinf, 7 inch 42 Syd

Curb and Gutter, Conc, Det C4 205 Ft

Detectable Warning Surface 41 Ft

Sidewalk, Conc, 4 inch 160 Sft

Curb Ramp Opening, Conc 66 Ft

Sidewalk Ramp, Conc, 6 inch 446 Sft

Turf Establishment, THM Seed,
Regular Mulch, Performance, RCOC 185 Syd

Monument Box Adjust 1 Ea

Monument Box 1 Ea

LEGEND

35 of 67



DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

STORM SEWER PROFILE

36 of 67



DETAILED GRADES

PT #

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

12

14

16

19

20

101

102

103

104

106

107

108

109

110

111

113

115

117

118

NORTHING
EASTING

N:377803.1390
E:13425703.8847

N:377811.7138
E:13425702.7072

N:377805.4088
E:13425711.0193

N:377810.8975
E:13425724.3901

N:377799.3696
E:13425725.9800

N:377812.8366
E:13425738.2551

N:377754.9394
E:13425744.7282

N:377797.4832
E:13425712.1076

N:377789.3827
E:13425727.2765

N:377787.5722
E:13425713.4388

N:377787.2211
E:13425710.7920

N:377797.1203
E:13425709.4657

N:377733.2974
E:13425575.0197

N:377735.3895
E:13425655.2509

N:377737.7726
E:13425711.2156

N:377751.8297
E:13425709.6998

N:377732.2974
E:13425575.0282

N:377740.2371
E:13425655.0640

N:377742.8972
E:13425654.8334

N:377736.1952
E:13425675.2423

N:377741.9658
E:13425675.0185

N:377740.5088
E:13425634.9765

N:377756.2716
E:13425704.2927

N:377753.7943
E:13425731.8296

N:377744.6303
E:13425674.8242

N:377757.9683
E:13425702.2308

ELEV.

723.18

722.99

723.16

723.50

723.72

722.90

724.38

723.24

723.90

723.30

723.63

723.24

728.93

726.86

725.48

724.44

728.97

726.58

726.58

726.27

725.93

727.16

724.33

724.54

726.26

724.66

DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

DETAIL GRADES

FULL SIZE (22"x34")  1" = 10'
REDUCED SIZE (11"x17")  1" = 20'

37 of 67



DETAILED GRADES

PT #

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

NORTHING
EASTING

N:381557.7137
E:13425489.4600

N:381557.3794
E:13425484.4500

N:381532.4341
E:13425489.2200

N:381532.0017
E:13425483.0762

N:381519.5831
E:13425455.2400

N:381514.3473
E:13425452.4700

N:381515.1826
E:13425411.8000

N:381510.1305
E:13425411.7900

N:381519.6856
E:13425456.5200

N:381514.7012
E:13425456.9100

N:381516.1027
E:13425489.4500

N:381521.0953
E:13425489.1800

N:381515.7752
E:13425483.4600

N:381520.7677
E:13425483.1900

N:381530.0704
E:13425483.2100

N:381530.5494
E:13425489.2000

ELEV.

746.31

746.11

745.95

745.75

745.49

745.46

745.59

745.56

745.50

745.55

746.65

746.60

746.60

746.55

745.80

745.90

DETAILED GRADES

PT #

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

NORTHING
EASTING

N:381559.3374
E:13425484.4700

N:381559.6409
E:13425489.4800

N:381568.5538
E:13425489.6100

N:381568.5741
E:13425484.6100

N:381573.5537
E:13425489.6300

N:381573.5741
E:13425484.6300

N:381515.1810
E:13425409.1300

N:381510.1818
E:13425409.0500

N:381520.0800
E:13425461.4900

N:381515.0919
E:13425461.8900

N:381510.2002
E:13425402.9500

N:381515.1966
E:13425402.7600

N:381515.0063
E:13425397.7800

N:381510.0099
E:13425397.9700

N:381514.4041
E:13425453.5478

N:381498.1586
E:13425484.4885

ELEV.

746.21

746.31

747.00

746.95

747.05

747.00

745.59

745.56

745.60

745.65

745.98

746.03

746.08

746.03

745.87

747.75

DETAILED GRADES

PT #

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

NORTHING
EASTING

N:381498.5095
E:13425490.5161

N:381516.8461
E:13425504.4301

N:381521.6865
E:13425504.1647

N:381569.5590
E:13425503.5867

N:381574.3636
E:13425503.2456

N:381583.5189
E:13425490.0052

N:381583.3101
E:13425485.2246

N:381514.9508
E:13425391.7300

N:381509.6259
E:13425391.8652

N:381515.6294
E:13425489.9824

N:381516.3782
E:13425504.4595

N:381502.9350
E:13425490.7214

N:381574.0869
E:13425490.1542

N:381574.6838
E:13425499.8145

N:381581.0324
E:13425490.4147

ELEV.

747.78

747.65

747.50

747.94

748.11

747.55

747.51

746.55

746.47

747.50

747.65

747.50

747.51

747.85

747.51

LEGEND

SLOPE IS 2% OR LESS IN ALL DIRECTIONS

DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

DETAIL GRADES

FULL SIZE (22"x34")  1" = 10'
REDUCED SIZE (11"x17")  1" = 20'

38 of 67



DETAILED GRADES

PT #

200

202

203

204

205

206

211

212

213

214

215

226

227

NORTHING
EASTING

N:377968.5910
E:13425685.5040

N:377968.9862
E:13425687.9335

N:378022.5241
E:13425679.2526

N:378022.0838
E:13425676.8845

N:377994.3524
E:13425681.3678

N:377994.7419
E:13425683.7437

N:377973.4105
E:13425687.2605

N:377978.0491
E:13425686.4640

N:377977.6596
E:13425684.0880

N:378013.6516
E:13425680.6912

N:378013.2720
E:13425678.3137

N:379223.8601
E:13425527.2222

N:379235.0928
E:13425528.8424

ELEV.

721.21

721.21

721.52

721.52

721.69

721.34

721.06

721.28

721.52

721.46

721.70

739.73

739.65

DETAILED GRADES

PT #

228

229

230

231

232

233

234

235

236

237

238

239

240

NORTHING
EASTING

N:379244.7401
E:13425531.7837

N:379254.6414
E:13425538.8395

N:379255.5909
E:13425539.8490

N:379301.1923
E:13425535.5173

N:379304.9407
E:13425531.5271

N:379314.7515
E:13425521.4059

N:379320.5573
E:13425518.9756

N:379331.7147
E:13425517.3812

N:379339.9978
E:13425516.1975

N:379346.7604
E:13425516.2178

N:379360.1055
E:13425523.9369

N:379362.0676
E:13425526.7900

N:379391.4931
E:13425534.4785

ELEV.

739.53

739.35

739.38

739.03

739.00

738.94

738.82

738.50

738.56

738.60

738.67

738.69

738.78

DETAILED GRADES

PT #

241

242

243

245

246

247

248

249

250

251

252

253

254

NORTHING
EASTING

N:379394.4957
E:13425519.7254

N:379403.6929
E:13425509.2926

N:379418.6104
E:13425502.5596

N:379234.8010
E:13425530.8210

N:379243.8959
E:13425533.6085

N:379253.1520
E:13425540.1772

N:379254.1069
E:13425541.1898

N:379302.9910
E:13425537.2210

N:379306.7692
E:13425533.2546

N:379316.3430
E:13425523.3369

N:379320.9110
E:13425521.4505

N:379332.0073
E:13425519.8727

N:379340.3515
E:13425518.6724

ELEV.

738.39

738.31

738.35

740.23

739.53

739.35

739.61

739.22

739.00

738.94

739.25

738.93

738.99

DETAILED GRADES

PT #

255

256

257

258

259

260

261

262

263

265

NORTHING
EASTING

N:379346.3696
E:13425518.6871

N:379358.1655
E:13425525.5121

N:379359.9387
E:13425528.1043

N:379396.2357
E:13425520.7186

N:379404.7817
E:13425510.9705

N:379419.3691
E:13425504.3915

N:379393.4905
E:13425534.5794

N:379406.7687
E:13425507.5233

N:379407.6281
E:13425509.3294

N:379223.5746
E:13425529.2013

ELEV.

739.03

738.67

738.94

738.39

738.31

738.35

739.07

738.29

738.76

739.73

DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

DETAIL GRADES

FULL SIZE (22"x34")  1" = 10'
REDUCED SIZE (11"x17")  1" = 20'

39 of 67



DETAILED GRADES

PT #

300

301

302

303

304

305

307

308

309

320

321

322

323

324

325

326

327

NORTHING
EASTING

N:379575.1238
E:13425447.8053

N:379629.7108
E:13425440.0641

N:379621.8876
E:13425441.1735

N:379589.9570
E:13425445.7017

N:379606.6499
E:13425443.3344

N:379574.7494
E:13425445.1650

N:379589.5826
E:13425443.0614

N:379606.2755
E:13425440.6941

N:379621.5133
E:13425438.5341

N:379976.3626
E:13425441.2972

N:379978.8979
E:13425442.3376

N:379986.0364
E:13425446.7681

N:379988.5973
E:13425448.9473

N:379988.1563
E:13425449.4597

N:379985.6104
E:13425447.3034

N:379978.6081
E:13425442.9699

N:379976.0958
E:13425442.0149

ELEV.

737.04

736.66

736.71

736.99

736.80

737.04

737.32

737.13

736.71

736.94

736.96

737.02

737.05

737.53

737.02

736.96

737.31

DETAILED GRADES

PT #

328

329

330

331

332

333

334

335

336

337

338

339

340

341

342

343

344

NORTHING
EASTING

N:380073.9674
E:13425431.7340

N:380046.5539
E:13425438.7201

N:380041.2180
E:13425444.4575

N:380034.5032
E:13425472.0745

N:380067.7416
E:13425431.5650

N:380048.1963
E:13425437.4419

N:380039.6087
E:13425446.9429

N:380034.9046
E:13425461.7377

N:380064.6360
E:13425431.5886

N:380067.8843
E:13425430.9338

N:380064.5935
E:13425431.0356

N:380047.8394
E:13425437.0578

N:380045.9394
E:13425438.5882

N:380039.2062
E:13425446.6842

N:380040.8212
E:13425444.1643

N:380034.4067
E:13425461.6878

N:380033.9484
E:13425472.1408

ELEV.

738.29

737.47

737.33

737.16

738.29

737.94

737.68

737.35

738.22

737.93

737.80

737.52

737.47

737.26

737.33

736.93

736.79

DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

DETAIL GRADES

FULL SIZE (22"x34")  1" = 10'
REDUCED SIZE (11"x17")  1" = 20'

40 of 67



DETAILED GRADES

PT #

337

338

339

340

341

342

343

344

345

346

347

348

349

350

351

352

353

354

355

356

357

358

NORTHING
EASTING

N:382945.1171
E:13425429.6195

N:382777.9612
E:13425425.9324

N:382797.7179
E:13425426.2511

N:382820.0667
E:13425426.5885

N:382858.5073
E:13425426.9038

N:382880.5134
E:13425427.1632

N:382893.8768
E:13425423.0523

N:382945.1305
E:13425427.6365

N:382945.1837
E:13425424.6369

N:382968.0889
E:13425425.0431

N:382968.0358
E:13425428.0427

N:382990.9410
E:13425428.4489

N:382990.9942
E:13425425.4494

N:382997.4727
E:13425428.5419

N:383020.0305
E:13425428.8078

N:383032.9549
E:13425428.9602

N:383031.8402
E:13425425.4616

N:383059.5745
E:13425429.2739

N:383089.3912
E:13425421.2596

N:383085.9616
E:13425423.3371

N:383079.5120
E:13425425.2929

N:383079.9264
E:13425427.1332

ELEV.

755.93

755.48

755.61

756.14

755.77

755.84

756.27

756.40

756.78

756.89

756.53

756.66

756.99

756.27

756.60

756.73

757.21

757.51

757.31

757.61

757.46

757.46

DETAILED GRADES

PT #

359

360

361

362

400

401

402

403

404

405

406

407

408

410

411

412

413

414

415

416

417

418

NORTHING
EASTING

N:382938.6257
E:13425427.8482

N:382941.8741
E:13425427.3500

N:382893.8118
E:13425427.3200

N:382892.9721
E:13425426.0770

N:382777.9124
E:13425428.3699

N:382797.7027
E:13425428.5039

N:382820.0359
E:13425428.7229

N:382858.4923
E:13425429.1135

N:382880.4992
E:13425429.2625

N:382893.7976
E:13425429.4067

N:382919.9926
E:13425429.5243

N:382938.6470
E:13425429.5705

N:382941.8589
E:13425429.5923

N:382968.0213
E:13425430.1835

N:382990.9270
E:13425430.4611

N:382994.2732
E:13425430.4844

N:382997.4593
E:13425430.4732

N:383020.0113
E:13425430.4367

N:383032.9441
E:13425430.5265

N:383059.5613
E:13425431.1791

N:383085.7905
E:13425425.5054

N:383090.3070
E:13425422.6259

ELEV.

755.93

755.95

755.75

755.78

755.48

755.61

755.67

755.77

755.84

755.75

755.79

755.89

755.91

756.06

756.19

756.21

756.23

756.56

756.73

757.04

757.61

757.85

DETAILED GRADES

PT #

419

420

421

422

423

424

425

426

427

428

429

430

431

432

433

434

435

436

437

438

439

440

NORTHING
EASTING

N:383031.5444
E:13425425.9433

N:383020.0658
E:13425425.8080

N:382997.4936
E:13425425.5419

N:382995.5467
E:13425422.5296

N:382991.0474
E:13425422.4498

N:382968.1421
E:13425422.0436

N:382940.7376
E:13425421.5576

N:382938.6789
E:13425424.8486

N:382945.2192
E:13425422.6373

N:382968.1244
E:13425423.0435

N:382991.0297
E:13425423.4497

N:382994.2901
E:13425428.0495

N:382920.0149
E:13425427.6288

N:382894.9963
E:13425424.7096

N:382904.1275
E:13425429.4850

N:382945.2369
E:13425421.6374

N:382781.9335
E:13425428.4504

N:382782.1024
E:13425416.3289

N:382792.9935
E:13425416.7021

N:382861.2090
E:13425419.6114

N:382877.6193
E:13425420.0571

N:382920.0239
E:13425424.7893

ELEV.

756.88

756.80

756.49

756.51

756.55

756.45

756.34

756.20

756.31

756.42

756.52

756.29

755.83

755.84

755.70

756.34

755.56

755.77

755.82

756.25

756.28

756.02

DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

DETAIL GRADES

FULL SIZE (22"x34")  1" = 10'
REDUCED SIZE (11"x17")  1" = 20'

41 of 67



DETAILED GRADES

PT #

500

501

502

503

504

505

506

507

508

509

510

511

512

513

514

515

516

517

518

NORTHING
EASTING

N:383073.0926
E:13425478.0985

N:383076.8187
E:13425478.2589

N:383082.0377
E:13425478.7165

N:383098.6659
E:13425485.7294

N:383104.2416
E:13425490.6663

N:383104.7224
E:13425491.2597

N:383092.5374
E:13425481.6680

N:383167.1353
E:13425505.3203

N:383167.6313
E:13425496.4593

N:383171.4815
E:13425487.4782

N:383179.7040
E:13425476.6955

N:383194.1774
E:13425469.8534

N:383194.6774
E:13425471.6314

N:383180.9711
E:13425478.2149

N:383172.7667
E:13425488.1599

N:383169.6670
E:13425496.8659

N:383168.8232
E:13425505.4327

N:383097.6172
E:13425487.2419

N:383081.7456
E:13425480.5329

ELEV.

757.08

757.14

757.24

757.69

757.62

757.59

757.55

756.94

757.01

757.08

757.24

757.41

757.42

757.24

757.10

757.48

757.42

757.69

757.24

DETAILED GRADES

PT #

519

520

521

524

526

528

529

530

531

532

533

534

535

536

537

538

539

540

541

NORTHING
EASTING

N:383076.7375
E:13425480.1442

N:383073.0488
E:13425480.0620

N:383091.6374
E:13425483.5169

N:383181.4826
E:13425487.2880

N:383176.5066
E:13425487.7858

N:383181.2009
E:13425482.2912

N:383081.9755
E:13425492.9336

N:383081.7993
E:13425498.0776

N:383077.0701
E:13425498.0846

N:383076.9764
E:13425493.0263

N:383076.8837
E:13425488.0271

N:383081.8828
E:13425487.9344

N:383102.7875
E:13425492.0207

N:383103.3735
E:13425492.6147

N:383097.8367
E:13425492.2364

N:383177.2213
E:13425497.2322

N:383182.0278
E:13425496.9612

N:383191.5107
E:13425482.0187

N:383191.5483
E:13425486.2362

ELEV.

757.14

757.41

758.03

757.24

757.17

757.24

757.88

758.25

757.97

757.80

757.72

757.80

757.65

758.00

757.65

757.72

757.79

757.71

757.74

DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

DETAIL GRADES

FULL SIZE (22"x34")  1" = 10'
REDUCED SIZE (11"x17")  1" = 20'

LEGEND

SLOPE IS 2% OR LESS IN ALL DIRECTIONS

42 of 67



DETAILED GRADES

PT #

600

601

602

603

604

605

606

607

608

609

610

611

NORTHING
EASTING

N:383153.4883
E:13425236.6486

N:383153.7972
E:13425243.8505

N:383158.3259
E:13425294.9435

N:383156.6134
E:13425300.7222

N:383158.3942
E:13425333.6066

N:383158.8268
E:13425341.5951

N:383161.2214
E:13425395.5728

N:383164.0233
E:13425406.0522

N:383167.3992
E:13425412.7153

N:383175.9687
E:13425423.2182

N:383180.1333
E:13425426.0356

N:383183.6008
E:13425427.7968

ELEV.

759.90

759.85

759.57

759.54

759.17

759.08

758.55

758.31

758.36

758.26

758.21

758.13

DETAILED GRADES

PT #

612

613

614

615

616

617

618

619

620

621

622

623

NORTHING
EASTING

N:383184.4569
E:13425425.9890

N:383180.9374
E:13425424.4070

N:383176.9507
E:13425421.5954

N:383168.8971
E:13425411.9195

N:383165.6160
E:13425405.2496

N:383163.2813
E:13425395.5566

N:383160.8239
E:13425341.4870

N:383160.3913
E:13425333.4984

N:383158.6104
E:13425300.6140

N:383156.3070
E:13425295.0525

N:383160.4480
E:13425295.9135

N:383165.7395
E:13425287.1417

ELEV.

757.52

758.68

758.28

758.36

758.78

759.02

759.55

759.64

760.01

759.57

759.97

759.70

DETAILED GRADES

PT #

624

625

626

627

628

629

630

631

632

633

634

635

NORTHING
EASTING

N:383163.7486
E:13425246.7883

N:383157.1807
E:13425241.8941

N:383153.6674
E:13425240.8280

N:383155.4291
E:13425236.5652

N:383155.6365
E:13425240.7434

N:383157.0562
E:13425269.3543

N:383154.9247
E:13425269.4694

N:383164.7218
E:13425268.9260

N:383176.7427
E:13425416.8794

N:383176.5222
E:13425411.8806

N:383171.5187
E:13425411.9113

N:383171.2318
E:13425402.3784

ELEV.

759.83

759.30

759.87

760.40

760.34

759.70

759.70

759.72

758.35

758.40

758.40

758.92

DETAILED GRADES

PT #

636

637

638

639

640

641

642

643

644

645

646

647

NORTHING
EASTING

N:383175.9149
E:13425402.4552

N:383183.5607
E:13425411.9425

N:383183.6524
E:13425416.8457

N:383168.3035
E:13425341.1403

N:383168.7165
E:13425347.1275

N:383173.5746
E:13425346.9054

N:383172.6483
E:13425326.9238

N:383167.7335
E:13425327.1686

N:383167.9331
E:13425333.1488

N:383172.9277
E:13425332.9173

N:383173.2982
E:13425340.9087

N:383155.7865
E:13425243.7651

ELEV.

758.95

758.92

758.74

759.45

759.28

759.29

759.42

759.41

759.53

759.54

759.46

759.85

DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

DETAIL GRADES

FULL SIZE (22"x34")  1" = 30'
REDUCED SIZE (11"x17")  1" = 60'

LEGEND

SLOPE IS 2% OR LESS IN ALL DIRECTIONS

43 of 67



DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

PAVEMENT MARKING PLAN - P.O.B. TO 25+50

PAVEMENT MARKING QUANTITIES - THIS SHEET

PAY ITEM QTY UNIT

Pavt Mrkg, Sprayable Thermopl, 4 inch, Yellow 2415 Ft

Pavt Mrkg, Sprayable Thermopl, 6 inch, White 2475 Ft

Pavt Mrkg, Cold Plastic, 18 inch, Stop Bar 11 Ft

44 of 67



DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

PAVEMENT MARKING PLAN - 25+50 TO 41+50

PAVEMENT MARKING QUANTITIES - THIS SHEET

PAY ITEM QTY UNIT

Pavt Mrkg, Sprayable Thermopl, 4 inch, Yellow 3390 Ft

Pavt Mrkg, Sprayable Thermopl, 6 inch, White 2940 Ft

Pavt Mrkg, Cold Plastic, 18 inch, Stop Bar 35 Ft

Pavt Mrkg, Cold Plastic, Right-Turn Arrow Symbol 2 Ea

Pavt Mrkg, Cold Plastic, School 1 Ea

45 of 67



DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

PAVEMENT MARKING PLAN - 41+50 TO 57+50

PAVEMENT MARKING QUANTITIES - THIS SHEET

PAY ITEM QTY UNIT

Pavt Mrkg, Sprayable Thermopl, 4 inch, Yellow 3715 Ft

Pavt Mrkg, Sprayable Thermopl, 6 inch, White 2840 Ft

Pavt Mrkg, Cold Plastic, 24 inch, Crosswalk Line 144 Ft

Pavt Mrkg, Cold Plastic, 18 inch, Stop Bar 57 Ft

Pavt Mrkg, Cold Plastic, Left-Turn Arrow Symbol 1 Ea

Pavt Mrkg, Cold Plastic, School 1 Ea

46 of 67



DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

PAVEMENT MARKING PLAN - 57+50 TO P.O.E.

PAVEMENT MARKING QUANTITIES - THIS SHEET

PAY ITEM QTY UNIT

Pavt Mrkg, Sprayable Thermopl, 4 inch, Yellow 2120 Ft

Pavt Mrkg, Sprayable Thermopl, 6 inch, White 1965 Ft

Pavt Mrkg, Cold Plastic, 18 inch, Stop Bar 33 Ft

Pavt Mrkg, Cold Plastic, Left-Turn Arrow Symbol 2 Ea

Pavt Mrkg, Cold Plastic, Right-Turn Arrow Symbol 2 Ea

47 of 67



DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

PAVEMENT MARKING PLAN - MAPLE RD

PAVEMENT MARKING QUANTITIES - THIS SHEET

PAY ITEM QTY UNIT

Pavt Mrkg, Sprayable Thermopl, 4 inch, Yellow 1025 Ft

Pavt Mrkg, Sprayable Thermopl, 6 inch, White 230 Ft

Pavt Mrkg, Cold Plastic, 6 inch, Crosswalk Line 500 Ft

Pavt Mrkg, Cold Plastic, 18 inch, Stop Bar 66 Ft

Pavt Mrkg, Cold Plastic, Left-Turn Arrow Symbol 1 Ea

48 of 67



DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

PERMANENT SIGNING PLAN - P.O.B. TO 25+50

DO
NOT
PASS

SPEED
LIMIT
30
SPEED
LIMIT
30

STOP

STOP

LEGAL LOADING
ENGORCED

SINGLE AXLE   18000 LBS
TANDEM        26000 LBS

LEGAL LOADING
ENGORCED

SINGLE AXLE   18000 LBS
TANDEM        26000 LBS

RD14 MILE

SIGNING QUANTITIES - THIS SHEET

PAY ITEM QTY UNIT

Post, Steel, 3 lb 146 Ft

Sign, Type II, Rem 1 Ea

Sign, Type IIA 11 Sft

Sign, Type III, Erect, Salv 1 Ea

Sign, Type III, Rem 9 Ea

Sign, Type IIIA 12 Sft

Sign, Type IIIB 19 Sft

NEXT INTERSECTION
14 Mile Rd

SPEED
LIMIT
30

SPEED
LIMIT
30

49 of 67



DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

PERMANENT SIGNING PLAN - 25+50 TO 41+50

SPEED
LIMIT
30
SPEED
LIMIT
30

SPEED
LIMIT
30

SPEED
LIMIT
30

SPEED
LIMIT
30

SPEED
LIMIT
30

DO
NOT
PASS

RDLINCOLN

Lincoln Rd
NEXT INTERSECTION

RDLINCOLN

R dL i n c o l n

Middlebury Ln

C ra n b ro o k R d

L nM i d d l e b u ry

SIGNING QUANTITIES - THIS SHEET

PAY ITEM QTY UNIT

Post, Steel, 3 lb 307 Ft

Sign, Type II, Rem 2 Ea

Sign, Type IIA 11 Sft

Sign, Type III, Rem 24 Ea

Sign, Type IIIA 59 Sft

Sign, Type IIIB 59 Sft

Sign, Type V, Rem 1 Ea

Sign, Type VB 8 Sft

Street Sign Post 1 Ea

Sign, Type III, Erect, Salv 5 Ea

RIGHT LANE
MUST

TURN RIGHT

RIGHT LANE
MUST

TURN RIGHT

AH EA D

A H EA D

STOP

STOP

C ra n b ro o ks

L i n c o l nw

C ra n b ro o ks

L i n c o l nw

50 of 67



DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

PERMANENT SIGNING PLAN - 41+50 TO 57+50

SPEED
LIMIT
30

SPEED
LIMIT
30

AH EA D

SPEED
LIMIT
30

SPEED
LIMIT
30

PEDESTRIANS 
MUST USE

CROSSWALK
PEDESTRIANS 
MUST USE

CROSSWALK
Glengarry Rd S

C ra n b ro o k R d

G l e n g a r ry R d

Westbourne Rd

C ra n b ro o k R d

Williambury Rd S

C ra n b ro o k R d

W i l i a u r dl m b y R

Cranbrook Cross Rd S

C ra n b ro o k R d

Cranbrook R dCross
We s t b o u r n e D r

SIGNING QUANTITIES - THIS SHEET

PAY ITEM QTY UNIT

Post, Steel, 3 lb 174 Ft

Sign, Type III, Rem 18 Ea

Sign, Type IIIA 85 Sft

Sign, Type IIIB 10 Sft

Street Sign Post 4 Ea

Sign, Type III, Erect, Salv 2 Ea

AH EA D

51 of 67



DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

PERMANENT SIGNING PLAN - 57+50 TO P.O.E.

RIGHT LANE
MUST

TURN RIGHT

RIGHT LANE
MUST

TURN RIGHT

SPEED
LIMIT
30

SPEED
LIMIT
30

ONLYONLY ONLY

RDMAPLE

Rd
NEXT SIGNAL
Maple

Whiteleigh Rd

C ra n b ro o k R d

W h i t e l e i g h R d

SIGNING QUANTITIES - THIS SHEET

PAY ITEM QTY UNIT

Post, Steel, 3 lb 186 Ft

Sign, Type II, Rem 1 Ea

Sign, Type IIA 8 Sft

Sign, Type III, Rem 15 Ea

Sign, Type IIIA 29 Sft

Sign, Type IIIB 22 Sft

Street Sign Post 1 Ea

ONLYONLY ONLY

52 of 67



DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

PERMANENT SIGNING PLAN - MAPLE RD

SPEED
LIMIT
40

SPEED
LIMIT
40CENTER

LANE

ONLY

SPEED
LIMIT
35

SPEED
LIMIT
35

SIGNING QUANTITIES - THIS SHEET

PAY ITEM QTY UNIT

Post, Steel, 3 lb 46 Ft

Sign, Type III, Rem 6 Ea

Sign, Type IIIB 14 Sft

53 of 67



DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

SPECIAL DETAIL SIGNS

5.
5

5

9.61 6.64 4 13.61 4 7.66 4 6.87

4
4

5.58 12.99 4 37.85

9.61

5.58

5.
5

24

66

D3-2 (1.2) 35 mph or less; 

1.63" Radius, 0.75" Border, White on, Green; 

"14", ClearviewHwy-3-W; "Mile", ClearviewHwy-3-W; 

"Rd", ClearviewHwy-3-W; Arrow A-5 - 6.88" 0'; 

"NEXT", ClearviewHwy-3-W; 

"INTERSECTION", ClearviewHwy-3-W; 

Table of widths and spaces

9.61

1
2.00 1.08

4
3.56

4.00

M
4.12 1.38

i
1.08 1.35

l
1.42 0.93

e
3.33

4.00

R
3.36 1.02

d
3.28 4.00 6.87 9.61

5.58

N
2.96 1.17

E
2.22 0.58

X
3.05 0.46

T
2.55

4.00

I
0.72 1.16

N
2.96 0.81

T
2.55 0.82

E
2.21 0.95

R
2.69 0.68

S
2.57 0.95

E
2.22 0.79

C
2.89 0.48

T
2.55 0.81

I
0.73 0.99

O
3.35 1.01

N
2.96 5.58

NEXT INTERSECTION
14 Mile Rd

5.
5

5
9.35 6.87 4 24.78 4 7.65

4
4

5.58 12.99 4 37.85

9.35

5.58
5.
5

24
66

D3-2 (1.2) 35 mph or less; 

1.63" Radius, 0.75" Border, White on, Green; 

Arrow A-5 - 6.88" 180'; "Lincoln", ClearviewHwy-3-W; 

"Rd", ClearviewHwy-3-W; "NEXT", ClearviewHwy-3-W; 

"INTERSECTION", ClearviewHwy-3-W; 

Table of widths and spaces

9.35 6.87

4.00

L
2.55 0.98

i
1.08 1.35

n
3.17 1.24

c
3.05 0.88

o
3.50 1.27

l
1.41 1.13

n
3.17

4.00

R
3.36 1.02

d
3.27 9.35

5.58

N
2.96 1.17

E
2.22 0.58

X
3.05 0.46

T
2.55

4.00

I
0.72 1.16

N
2.96 0.81

T
2.55 0.82

E
2.21 0.95

R
2.69 0.68

S
2.57 0.95

E
2.22 0.79

C
2.89 0.48

T
2.55 0.81

I
0.73 0.99

O
3.35 1.01

N
2.96 5.58

Lincoln Rd
NEXT INTERSECTION

5.
5

5

8.05 20.25 4 7.65

4
4

5.85 13 4 19.3

8.05

5.85

5.
5

24

48

D3-2 (1.1) 35 mph or less; 

1.63" Radius, 0.75" Border, White on, Green; 

"Maple", ClearviewHwy-3-W; 

"Rd", ClearviewHwy-3-W; 

"NEXT", ClearviewHwy-3-W; 

"SIGNAL", ClearviewHwy-3-W; 

Table of widths and spaces

8.05

M
4.12 1.27

a
3.36 1.27

p
3.28 1.27

l
1.41 0.94

e
3.33

4.00

R
3.36 1.02

d
3.27 8.05

5.85

N
2.96 1.18

E
2.21 0.59

X
3.05 0.45

T
2.56

4.00

S
2.57 0.95

I
0.73 0.99

G
3.07 1.02

N
2.96 0.81

A
3.35 0.81

L
2.04 5.85

Rd
NEXT SIGNAL
Maple

6
6

7.24 22.32 5 6.2 7.24

6

18

48

W16-8P; 

3.00" Radius, 1.25" Border, 0.75" Indent, Black on, Yellow; 

"Lincoln",  B; "Rd",  B; 

Table of widths and spaces

7.24

L

2.25 1.30

i

0.75 1.68

n

2.53 1.34

c

2.53 1.02

o

2.63 1.34

l

0.75 1.67

n

2.53

5.00

R

2.54 1.12

d

2.54 7.24

R dL i n c o l n

54 of 67



DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

SPECIAL DETAIL SIGNS

2
8

0.77
30.36

1
16.72

2
4

13.380.77

2

6

12

54

D3-1 (12inch); 

1.50" Radius, 0.50" Border, White on, Green; 

"Cranbrook",  B 10% spacing; "Cross",  B 10% spacing; 

"Rd",  B 0% spacing; 

Table of widths and spaces

0.77

C

3.38 0.19

r

2.57 0.08

a

3.38 0.22

n

3.39 0.22

b

3.38 0.18

r

2.57 0.08

o

3.52 0.12

o

3.52 0.18

k

3.38

1.00

C

3.37 0.19

r

2.57 0.09

o

3.51 0.12

s

3.38 0.11

s

3.38

1.00

R

1.69 -0.00

d

1.69 0.77

2
8

2.95
41.97

2
4

2 4.13
2.95

2

6

12
54

D3-1 (12inch); 

1.50" Radius, 0.50" Border, White on, Green; 

"Cranbrook",  B; "Rd",  B; 

Table of widths and spaces

2.95

C

3.38 1.90

r

2.57 0.86

a

3.38 2.23

n

3.38 2.23

b

3.38 1.78

r

2.57 0.85

o

3.52 1.26

o

3.52 1.78

k

3.38

2.00

R

1.69 0.75

d

1.69 2.95

C ra n b ro o k R d

2
8

3.53
40.81

2
4

2 4.13
3.53

2

6

12

54

D3-1 (12inch); 

1.50" Radius, 0.50" Border, White on, Green; 

"Glengarry",  B; "Rd",  B; 

Table of widths and spaces

3.53

G

3.38 1.90

l

1.00 1.78

e

3.38 1.83

n

3.38 1.78

g

3.38 1.78

a

3.38 2.23

r

2.57 1.35

r

2.57 0.73

y

4.39

2.00

R

1.69 0.75

d

1.69 3.53

G l e n g a r ry R d

2
8

3.96 41.28

2
4

2 3.8
2.96

2

6

12

54

D3-1 (12inch); 

1.50" Radius, 0.50" Border, White on, Green; 

"Middlebury",  B 70% spacing; "Ln",  B 70% spacing; 

Table of widths and spaces

3.96

M

3.87 1.66

i

1.00 1.24

d

3.38 1.25

d

3.38 1.56

l

1.00 1.25

e

3.38 1.27

b

3.38 1.25

u

3.38 1.56

r

2.57 0.51

y

4.39

2.00

L

1.50 0.61

n

1.69 2.96

2
8

2.29
43.76

2
4

2
3.662.29

2

6

12

54

D3-1 (12inch); 

1.50" Radius, 0.50" Border, White on, Green; 

"Westbourne",  B 70% spacing; "Dr",  B 70% spacing; 

Table of widths and spaces

2.29

W

5.00 0.95

e

3.38 0.85

s

3.38 0.80

t

2.64 1.27

b

3.38 0.89

o

3.51 1.25

u

3.38 1.56

r

2.57 0.95

n

3.38 1.24

e

3.38

2.00

D

1.69 0.68

r

1.29 2.29

2
8

2.09
43.69

2
4

2 4.13
2.09

2

6

12

54

D3-1 (12inch); 

1.50" Radius, 0.50" Border, White on, Green; 

"Whiteleigh",  B; "Rd",  B; 

Table of widths and spaces

2.09

W

5.00 1.54

h

3.39 2.22

i

1.00 1.63

t

2.64 1.31

e

3.38 1.82

l

1.00 1.78

e

3.38 1.83

i

1.00 1.78

g

3.38 2.23

h

3.38

2.00

R

1.68 0.76

d

1.69 2.09

W h i t e l e i g h R d

2
8

2.93
42.35

2
4

2
3.792.93

2

6

12

54

D3-1 (12inch); 

1.50" Radius, 0.50" Border, White on, Green; 

"Williambury",  B 55% spacing; "Rd",  B 55% spacing; 

Table of widths and spaces

2.93

W

5.00 0.85

i

1.00 1.23

l

1.00 1.22

l

1.00 1.23

i

1.00 0.98

a

3.38 1.22

m

5.68 1.23

b

3.38 0.98

u

3.38 1.22

r

2.57 0.40

y

4.40

2.00

R

1.68 0.42

d

1.69 2.93

2
8

3.53
40.81

2
4

2 4.13
3.53

2

6

12

54

D3-1 (12inch); 

1.50" Radius, 0.50" Border, White on, Green; 

"Glengarry",  B; "Rd",  B; 

Table of widths and spaces

3.53

G

3.38 1.90

l

1.00 1.78

e

3.38 1.83

n

3.38 1.78

g

3.38 1.78

a

3.38 2.23

r

2.57 1.35

r

2.57 0.73

y

4.39

2.00

R

1.69 0.75

d

1.69 3.53

G l e n g a r ry R d

55 of 67



SIGNAL LEGEND SHEET
DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD 56 of 67



SIGNAL NOTE SHEET
DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD 57 of 67



CRANBROOK & MIDVALE  TRAFFIC SIGNAL REMOVAL

REMOVAL PLAN
M

ID
VA

LE
 S

T.

CRANBROOK RD.

CO 572

QUANTITIES - THIS SHEET

NO. PAY ITEM QTY UNIT

TS, Span Wire Mtd, Rem 2 Ea

Hh, Rem 2 Ea

Controller and Cabinet, Rem 1 Ea

Pedestal Fdn, Rem 1 Ea

Pedestal, Rem 1 Ea

Pushbutton, Rem 2 Ea

Serv Disconnect, Rem 1 Ea

Span Wire, Rem 1 Ea

TS, Pedestrian, Bracket Arm Mtd, Rem 1 Ea

TS, Pedestrian, Pedestal Mtd, Rem 1 Ea

DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

EX
. R

.O
.W

.

EX
. R

.O
.W

.

EX
. R

.O
.W

.
EX. R.O.W.

EX. R.O.W.

58 of 67



DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

CRANBROOK & MIDVALE  TRAFFIC SIGNAL INSTALL

INSTALL PLAN
M

ID
VA

LE
 S

T.

CRANBROOK RD.

CO 572

FACING NORTH C.S.#3

ONE-WAY, 24"X30"
NON-ILLUMINATED

ONLY

QUANTITIES - THIS SHEET

NO. PAY ITEM QTY UNIT

Hh, Round 2 Ea

Hh, Square, RCOC 1 Ea

Mast Arm Pole, Cat III 1 Ea

Mast Arm, 25 foot, Cat III 1 Ea

Mast Arm, 45 foot, Cat III 1 Ea

Mast Arm Pole Fdn, RCOC 15 Ft

Digital Loop Detector 1 Ea

Pedestal, Fdn 3 Ea

Pedestal, Alum, RCOC 3 Ea

Pushbutton and Sign 2 Ea

Pushbutton Support Post, RCOC 1 Ea

TS, Pedestrian, One Way Pedestal Mtd (LED) Countdown 2 Ea

TS, Pedestrian, Two Way Pedestal Mtd (LED) Countdown 1 Ea

TS, One Way Mast Arm Mtd (LED) 6 Ea

Bracket, Truss, With 18 Foot Arm 1 Ea

Casing 12 Ft

Camera, Traffic Monitoring, RCOC 1 Ea

Street Name Sign, One Way, 8 foot, Non-Illuminated, RCOC 1 Ea

Street Name Sign, Two Way, 6 foot, Non-Illuminated, RCOC 1 Ea

Case Sign, One Way, 24 inch by 30 inch, Non-Illuminated, RCOC 1 Ea

Traf Loop 2 Ea

Serv Disconnect 1 Ea

Cabinet, ITS Type, Delivered, RCOC 1 Ea

Cabinet, ITS Type, RCOC 1 Ea

Controller, Digital Type, Delivered, RCOC 1 Ea

Global Positioning System Module 1 Ea

Wood Pole, Fit Up, TS Cable Pole 1 Ea

Cable, Sec, 600V, 1, 2/C#4, #6 Ground, RCOC 100 Ft

Conduit, DB, 1, 1 1/4 inch 70 Ft

Conduit, DB, 1, 3 inch 60 Ft

Conduit, DB, 3, 3 inch 10 Ft

Conduit, Directional Bore, 2, 3 inch, RCOC 120 Ft

Exploratory Investigation, Vertical 20 Ft

5.
15

6
12

5.05 66.46 5 14.815 5.05

5.
15

7
22

.3
13

96.375

5.
15

6
12

4.179 48.258 4 11.759 4.179

5.
15

7
22

.3
13

72.375

EX
. R

.O
.W

.

EX
. R

.O
.W

.

EX
. R

.O
.W

.
EX. R.O.W.

EX. R.O.W.

59 of 67



DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

CRANBROOK & MAPLE  TRAFFIC SIGNAL INSTALL

INSTALL PLAN

M
AP

LE
 R

D
.

CRANBROOK RD.

CO 056

QUANTITIES - THIS SHEET

NO. PAY ITEM QTY UNIT

Traf Loop 4 Ea

Digital Loop Detector 1 Ea
EX

. R
.O

.W
.

EX. R
.O

.W
.

EX
. R

.O
.W

.

EX
. R

.O
.W

.

EX. R.O.W.

EX. R.O.W.
EX. R.O.W.

FACING EAST/WEST
T.S. #4, #8, #9

ONE-WAY, 12"X27"
NON-ILLUMINATED
C.S. #1, #3, #4, #5

FACING NORTH/SOUTH
C.S. #2

ONE-WAY, 24"X30"
NON-ILLUMINATED

ONLY

60 of 67



DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

R

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

CRANBROOK & MIDVALE  TRAFFIC SIGNAL CABLING
CO 572

EXISTING
DTE WOOD POLE

CABLE INSTALL DIAGRAM

61 of 67



DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

SOIL BORINGS

62 of 67



DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

SOIL BORINGS

63 of 67



QUANTITY SUMMARY
DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD 64 of 67

TS FACE, BAG
TS FACE, BAG, REM

Ea
Ea

6
6



QUANTITY SUMMARY
DATE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DESIGN PHASE

PROJECT NO. 55201      PROJECT NAME: CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION - 14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 N
O

. 5
52

01
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

: 
H

R
C

 2
01

90
53

7
P

R
O

JE
C

T
 N

A
M

E
: 

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 R

O
A

D
 R

E
H

A
B

IL
IT

A
T

IO
N

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 1
4 

M
IL

E
 R

O
A

D
 T

O
 M

A
P

L
E

 R
O

A
D

CRANBROOK ROAD REHABILITATION
14 MILE ROAD TO MAPLE ROAD 65 of 67

4700



BOL.lED WAlERPROOF CAST IRON JMNHOLE 
COYER WITH BOLTED FRAME EQLW. TO 
EAST JORDAN NO. 1040.\ WITH PRESSURE 
TMllfT COYER. 

FOUR CADMIUM COlilED 5/8" DIA. lHREADED 
STUDS WITH ¥4• x 2• 11 �• lHICK METAL 
=�• �� to

x J�. THICK NEOPRENE 
BOLTED WATERPROOF CAST IRON MANHOI.£ 
C<MR WllH BOLTED FRAME EQUAL TO 
EAST JORDAN NO. 1040A WllH PRESSURE 
TIGHT C<MR. 

FOUR CADMIUM COATED 5� JllA. lHREADED 
STUDS 'MlH ,V4• x 2" x 1 /8 lHICK METAL 
WASHER, 3/4• x 2• x 1 /1,:' TI-IICK NEOPRENE 

� 
SEALING WASHER AND NUTs. 

1 •x1 • E-Z STIK PRE-FORMED BUTYL SEALANT 
2 EACH COURSE (OUTSIDE a: INSIDE OF 

�
3• IMIN,) OR 6" CONCREIE GRADE RINGS 
wml FINISH TOP AND IICJl10M SURFACES. 
MAXIMUM ADJIJSTMENT - 1e•. 

�S������r,>OA AND 
MSHro M-198 (OR APPRO'IED EllUAlJ 

MANHOI.£ SIEl'S TO BE PIASIIC CMTED 
Sim. MEETING lHE REQUIREMENTS IN 
ASTM D-4101, 1YPE II, GRADE 49108, MA. 
:,op: P,S.I. 

-��E.
l�Al.1.ED 

DURING MAN� MANUFACTURE. PIACE AT 16" 
CEN. ON CEN. 45" FROM CENTERLINE OF 
SEWER. FIRST SIEP TO BE PIACED AT A 
MAXIMUM DISTANCE OF 21" FROM lHE 
FINISHED RIM ELEVATION. 

IE!] 

IE!] 

IE!] 

STANDARD MANHOLE 

CONE SECT10N WITH MODIFIED TONGUE 4r: 
CROOYE JOINTS AND WITH STUD INSERIS 
CAST IN PLACE. TOP TO HAYE FINISH 
SURFACE. 

ASI\I C478 RISER SECTIONS WITH 
MOOIFIED TONGUE I: GROO\IE JOINTS. 

MANHOLE MANUFACTURER SHAU. INSFAU. 
1• DIA. CW.VANIZED STEB.. PIPE AND 
CAP AT PIPE CROWN, FLUSH WITH OUTSIDE 
WALL AND EXTENDING 3• INSIDE. 
ODNTR.ICIOR TO SEIL AFIER COMPLEIION 
OF 1ESIS. L.OCAlED AT lUP OF PIPE 
ELEVATION. 

MAX. PIPE SIZE FOR MAX. PIPE SIZE FOR 
SlRAIQff THRU INSTAl.1.ATION RIGHT ANGLE INSTALLATION 

24• ,r 

OPTIONAL GROUND LEVEL CLEANOUT. 

tr' CONCREIE 
�.l'ir.�ED 
IN Wlimf �FBAFFLE 

r==•/4 """"'.,;;;;;;-+--4' """"'=1 

12• MIN. 

TI-E CONTRACTOR SHAU. PROYIDE A GREASE TANK CF 
�TJNbF�P�

1
m.�i

M
� ��s.r=>Lc».Ds 

DOUBLE-COMPARTMENT 
GREASE INTERCEPTOR TANK 

FOR OUTLET PIPE BURIAL 42" AND DEEPER 

REVISION BLOCK 
Pareel Base J Source Date: 
Rev. Rev. R�. 

1•x1• E-Z STIK PRE-FORMED BUTYL SEAi.NiT 
2 E:ACH COURSE (OUISIDE lo INSIDE OF 

�������l?o.. AND 
MSHTO M-1•6 (OR APPRO'IEll EllUAlJ 

MANHOLE STEPS TO BE PL.AS11C COATED 
STEEL MEETING lHE REQUIREMENTS IN 
AS1M D-4101, TYPE II, GRADE 49108. 
M.A. INDUSTRIES P.S. I, POL 'IPROP'llENE, 
OR APPR0',£0 EQUAL STEPS TO BE 
INSTAllED DURING MANHQ.£ MANUFACTURE. 
PLACE AT 16" C. TO C, 45 DEGREES FROM 
CENlERUNE CF SEWER. 

RES-SEAL LINK
OR KOR-til-

� 
B 

S1EB.. KORBAND 
MANHa.E JOIN 

CONCRETE FlOW CHANNEL UP TO SPRINGUNE 
OF PIPE WllH 3/4" TO 1" GAP AT PIPE 
ENDS PROVIDED TO MAINTAIN JOINT FLEXIBILITY. 

: \l...fj:��ffSTM't����,'&1 
1RANSITION SECTION MUST BE 
ARST SECTION BELOW CONE. 

1'" TO 1-JI" ANGULAR GRADED 
STONE OR CAREFULLY AND UNl�LY 
TAMPED SAND IN MAXIMUM 8" LAl£RS. 

STANDARD OVERSIZED MANHOLE 

� 
5' 
.. 
T 

!IEcuRE IN PLACE WIIH 2 1 • 
REMOYABLE PIPE CAP. SUP-0N FIT 
/TOP lWC lHIROS OF END

bf
OIIED) 

STAINLESS SIEEl. SHEET M SCREWS 
AT 180' DEGREES M'Nfr. 

DROP PIPE LOCAllON SHAU. NOT 
INTERFERE WITH MANHOLE SJEPS. 
OR STEPS MD CONE SECTION 
SHALL BE REPOSITlONED. 

IE!] 

MANHOI.£ SIZING CHART 
MAX. PIPE SIZE FOR 

"�T
P
:fcd�ff.R SlRAIGHT lHRU INST. 

36" 24" 
42" 36" 

110" 42" 

RES-� LINK-� PRESS WEDGE II 
!lM,�OR� BOO �1ll,il[a',Ni£s!I 
MANHOI.£ JOIN� � APPRD',£0 EQUAL) 

1'" TO 1)1" ANGIJINI GRADED 
STONE OR CAREFULLY AND UNIFORMLY 
TAMPED SAND IN MAXIMUM 8" LAYERS. 

PIPE TO BE a• DIAMETER PIPE. 
1
�,:<�E 

T
�=PI� OF 

R li\VE SOLVENT-WELDED JOINlS. 
PIPE SHALL EE �TB..Y 

DURING BACK AWNG OPERATIONS. 

II 

')).l'T§-iaiiaiie,.;;;,.;;,;,;,is1Tsa,l'fi!, 

UP TO 10• .. 4' 

UP TO 1s• 10" 4' 

UP TO 30• 18" 5' 

EXTERIOR DROP CONNECTION 
(REQUIRES ADVANCED APPROVAL BY WRC) 

1'" TO 1 JI" ANGULAR GRADED 
STONE OR CAREFULLY AND UNIFORMLY 
TAMPED SAND IN MAXIMUM e• LAYERS • 

Ba.. lED WAlERPRO<F CAST IRON MANHa.E 
COVER WllH BOLTED FRAME EQUAL TO 
EAST JORDAN NO. 1040A 'MTH PRESSURE 
TIGHTCO\fR. 

1•,c1• E-Z STIK PRE-FORMED BUTYL SEALANT-
2 EACH COURSE

l
OUTSIDE lo INSIDE OF 

TI-IREADED STUDS CONFORMING TO 
FEDERAL SPEaFI TION SS-SS-Z10A AND 
AASHTO M-1118 (OR APPROVED EQUAL) 

3eoO PSI MONa.JlHIC-POURED 
CONC. MINIMUM ENCASEMENT 12". 

SANITARY SEWER CONSTRUCTION NOTES 

1. AU. CONsrRUC110N SHAU. CONFORM TO lHE CURRENT SFANDARDS AND SPEaFICATIONS OF lHE LOCAL UNIT OF 
GOYERNMENT AND lHE WATER RESOURCES COMMISSIONER (WRC), AU. SANITARY SEWER CONSIRUCTION SHAU. 
HAVE FULL-TIME INSPEC110N SUPERVISIED BY A SFATE OF MICHIGAN LICENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER PRO',!DEO BY, 
OR CAUSED 10 BE PROVIDED BY, THE LOCAL UNIT OF QOVERNMENT. 

2. AT AU. CONNECIIONS TO WRC SEWERS OF EXIDISIONS, AND BEFORE SFART OF CONSTRUC110N, lHE ODNIRACTOR 
MUST OBTAIN A SEWER INSPECTION PERMIT ISSUED BY WRC. GRA\'IIY SEWER PERMIT CHANGES ARE 1250 FOR 
EACH CONNECTION PWS $25 FOR E:ACH MANHOLE CONSIRUCTED. PRESSURE SEWER PERMIT CHARGES ARE 1250 
PER 2,460 L.F. OF FORCE MAIN WIIH A MINIMUM PERMIT FEE OF 1250, FAIWRE TO PASS Alff TEST SEGMENT 
Will. RESULT IN AN ADDmONAI.. CHARGE TO THE CONTRACTOR FOR EACH RETEST, IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE NJtCNf. 
PRICE SCHEDULE. lHE CONTRACTOR stW.L ALSO HAVE POSTED Wl1H WRC A 15,000 SUREIY BOND AND $SOO 
CASH DEPOSIT. lHE ODNIRACTOR SHAU. N011FY lHE LOCAL UNIT OF GCMRNMENT AND WRC (248-8S8-110!5) 
24 HOURS PRIOR TO lHE BEGINNING OF Alff CONSIRUC110N. FINAL ACCEPTANCE TESTS MUST BE WITNESSIED BY 

COUNIY PERSONNEL AND MUsr BE SCHEDULED BY MUNICIPAIJIY OR rrs CONSULTANT IN MNANCE WIIH 24 HOUR 
NOTICE AT 248-858-11CM5. 

3. NO SEWER INsrAU.AllON SHAU. HAVE AN INFILTRAllON EXCEEDING 100 GALLONS PER INCH DIAMETER PER MILE OF 
PIPE IN A 24 HOUR PERIOD, AND NO SINGI.£ RUN OF SEWER BETWEEN MANHOLES SHAU. EXCEED 100 GM.1.DNS 
PER INCH DIAMETER PER MILE. AIR TESTS IN LIEU OF INALTRA110N TESTS SHALL BE AS SPECIAED IN THE 
WAlER RESOURCES COMMISSIONER STANDARDS. ONLY PIPE AND PIPE JOINTS APPROVED BY WRC MAY BE 
USED FOR SANITARY SEWER CONSIRUC110N. 

4. l..OCAlED IN lHE ARST IMNHOLE UPSTREAM FROM lHE POINT OF AU. CONNECTIONS TO AN EXISTING WRC SEWER, 
OR EXIENSION THERETO, A TEMPORARY 12-INCH DEEP SUMP SHAil. BE PROVIDED IN THE ARST MANHOLE N!D/f. 
lHE CONNECIION WIHICH WILL BE FILL.ED IN AFTER SUCCESSFUL COMP1£110N OF Alff ACCEPTANCE TEST UP TO 
THE STANl»RD FIUET PRCMDED FOR THE FLOW CHN\INEL A WATERTIGHT BULKHEAD SHAU. BE PRCMDED ON lHE 
OOWNSTRE:.IM SIDE OF lHE SUMP MANHOLE. 

S. AT AU. TIMES WHEN LAYING OF NEW PIPE IS NOT ACTUALLY IN PROGRESS, THE UPSTRE'AM OPEN END OF THE PIPE 
SHAU. BE CLOSED BY TEMPORARY WATERTIGHT PLUGS OR BY OIHER APPROVED MrANS. IF WATER IS IN lHE TRENCH 
WIHEN WORK IS RESUMED, lHE PLUG SHAU. NOT BE REMO'IEil UNTIL lHE MNGER OF WATER ENTERING lHE PIPE 
HAS PASSIED. 

6. AU. BUILDING LEADS AND RISERS SHAU. BE SIX INCH SOR 23.S IBS PIPE WIIH CHEMICAi.LY FUSIED JOINTS OR AN 
APPRO'IED EllUAL PIPE AND JOINT. BUILDING LEADS TO BE FURNISHED WITH REMOVABLE AIRTMllfT AND WATERTIGHT 
STOPPERs. 

7. AU. RIGID SEWER PIPE SHALL BE INSTAl.llD IN a.ASS -S- BEDDING OR BETTER. AU. FlEXIBLE. SEMI-FLEXIBLE, OR 
COMPOSITE SEWER PIPE SHAU. BE INSl'AU.ED IN CONFORMANCE TO WRC SPrlllflCATlONS. 

8. AU. NEW MANHOLES SHAU. HAVE WRC APPROVED FLEXIBLE, WATERTIGHT SEILS WHERE PIPES PASS lHROUGH WAILS. 

MANHOLE CONSTRUCTED OVER EXISTING SEWER 

MANHOLES SHAU. BE OF PRE CAST SECIIONS WITH MOOIFIED GROOVE TONGUE AND RUBBER GASKET lYPE JOINTS, 
PRE CAST MANHOI.£ CONE SECTIONS SHAU. BE WRC APPROVED MOOIFIED ECCENTRIC CONE lYPE. AU. MANHOLES 
SHAU. BE PROVIDED WIIH BOLTED, WATERTIGHT COI/ERS. 

lRANSITION SECTION MUST BE 
FIRST SECTION BELOW CONE. 

)(.• 10 11,• ANGULAR GRADED 
STONE OR CAREFULLY AND UNIFORMLY 
TAMPED SAND IN MAXIMUM e• LAYERS. 

MANHa.E SIZING C>IART 
9. AT AU. CONNECIIONS TO MANHOLES ON WRC SEWERS, OR EXIDISIONS lHERETO, DROP CONNECllONS WILL BE 

REQUIRED WHEN THE DIFFERENCE IN INVERT ELEVATIONS EXCEEDS 18 INCHES. 
� 

4' 

.. 

.. 
7' 

MAX. PIPE SIZE � 
S'IRAIGHT lHRU INST. 

24" 

36" 

42" 

60" 

10. TAPS TO EXISTING MANHOLES SHALL BE MADE BY CORING. TI-IE CONTRACTOR SHAU. PLACE A KOR-N-SEAL BOOT 
(OR WRC APPRO'IED EllUAlJ AFTER CORING IS COMPLETED. BLIND DRIWNG WILL ONLY BE PERMITTED IN LIEU OF 

CORING WIIH PRIOR WRC APPROVAL 

11. MNIIHOLES CONSIRUCTED DIRECTLY ON WRC SEWERS stW.l. EE PRC7\'IDED WITH COVERS READING 
'WATER RESOURCES COMMISSIONER-SANITARY" IN RAISED LEITERS. 

12. NO GROUND WATER, STORM WATER, CONSIRUCTION WATER, DOWN SPOUT DRAINMIE OR WEEP TILE DRAINAGE 
SHAU. BE ALL.OWED TO ENTER Alff SANITARY SEWER INSFAU.AllON. 

13. PRIOR TO Alff EXCAVATION, lHE CONIRACTOR SHAU. TELEPHONE MISS DIG (800-482-7171) FOR lHE LOCATION 
OF UNDERGROOND PIPELINE AND CABLE FACILITIES AND SHAil. ALSO NCJTIFY REPRESENTATIVES OF OTHER ununES 
l..OCAlED IN lHE VICINnY OF lHE WORK. 

14. AN 18 INCH MINIMUM VERIICAl. SEPARATION AND A 10 FOOT MINIMUM HORIZONTAL SEPARAllON 
MUSF BE MAINTAINED BEIWEEN SANITARY SEWER AND WATER MAIN. 

15. NEW MANH01£S BUILT OVER AN EXISTING SANITARY SEWER SHAU. HAVE MONOI.IIHIC POURED IICJl10MS. 
HS. IF TI-IE STRUCTURE FAl.1.S WITHIN THE R<WJBED OF A GRAVEL RQtD OR Wl1HIN THE UNPAVED SHOULDER OF A 

PA',£0 ROAD, lHE COVER SHAU. BE SIX (6") INCHES BEL.OW lHE FINISHED GRAVEL SURFACE. 

H IIBNm' IP DBAP fPHI 
(ON 5' DIA. OR LARGER MANH01£S ONL'I) 
POLYVIN'l'I. CHLORIDE (Piel SEWER PIPE TEE 
(ASJM D-3034) OR ACRII..ONrTRIL£-BUTADIENE
Sl'rlEIE (ABS) SEWER PIPE TEE (AS1M 0-2680) 
WITH REMOVABLE PIPE CAP, SI.JP-ON FIT. SECURE 
IN PLACE WITH WITH 2 fax1 "SHEET METAL SCREWS 
AT 180' APART. 

BETWEEN � BOWL AND MANHOLE 
� �Mi�TH��&°·• 
BUIYL, 81(-00011-1). 

TAPS TO EXISTING MANHOLES SHALL BE 
MAil£ BY CORING WITH lHE ODNTR.ICl0R 
USING A KOR-N-SEAL BOOr (OR APPROYED 
EQUAL), BLIND DRIWNG WILL ONLY BE 

E,.�'M.i.l..�sr"Rr � 
�"""'----

ATTACH DROP BOWi. TO DROP PIPE 
USING FERNCO FLEXABLE COUPLING 
WITH STAINLESS SIEEl. STRAPS. 

1'" TO 111" ANGU'-'R GRADED 
STONE OR CAREFULLY AND UNIFORMLY 
TAMPED SAND IN MAXIMUM e• LAYERS. 

_JI_:�,.---��� ��� POINT 
FORM SMOOTH UNIFORM Ci-WIINEL IN 

CONCREIE FILL. 

INTERIOR DROP CONNECTION 

ORIG. DATE: 

No.: By: Date: Description: 
SANITARY SEWER DETAILS AND NOTES 

SCALE: 
ONE PUBLIC WORKS DRIVE, BLDG 95 WEST 

WATERFORD, MICHIGAN 
48328-1907 

DESIGNED BV: 
SHEET NO.: 

DRAWN BY: 66 of 67



SET RIM A MINIMUM OF 12• MKNf. LEVEL 
OF STANDINC WATER. 

BOLTED WATERPROOF CAST IRON MANHOLE 
00\IER WITH BOLTED FRAME EQUAL TO 
EAST JORIMN NO. 104M WITH PRESSURE 
TIGHT COVER. 
1• ,c 1• E-Z STIIC PRE-FORMED BUTYL 
SEALANT 2 EAa-1 caJRSE (OUTSIDE a: 
INSIDE OF lHREADED STUDS) 
CONFORMING 10 FEDERAL SPEaFICAllON 
SS-SS-ZIOA AND MSHlO M-188 (OR 
APPR0\£1l EQUAL) 

IMNHOt.E RIM ADJUSTMENT CHART 

GRAVEL ROAD SHOULDER 8 BELOW FINISH GRADE 
PAVEMENT GREENBELT FLUSH WIIH FINISH GRADE 

FOUR CADMIUM COA.TED 5/s• DIA. THREADED 
sruDS WITH ¼'4. x 2• x 11s· THICK METAL 
WASHER, J/4• x 2• x 1/11f• lHICIC NEOPRENE 
SEAL.IC wAsHER AND NUTS. 

BOLTED WAlERPROOF CAST IRON MANHOLE 
COYER WITH BOLTED FRAME EQUAi.. TO 
EAST JORl:IIN NO. 1040A WITH PRESSURE 
TIGHT COVER. 

SAND OR GRAVEL BACl<FIU. 
COMPM:IED 10 100ll DENSITY. 

_.ll!;L_-1,_....:il!lil._=---1r....,,�mo�s'/i:'/.:/"�z.,_�SE';::..���ESS��1Cr�·• 

SEE STANDARD MANHOLE DRAWING 
FOR OTHER IMNHOt.E DETAILS. 

El<-0089-1) SPREID OYER ALL ADJUSTMENT 
MAlERW.. 
� 8 MIL PLASTIC COYER 
OVER BUTYL 

SEE STANDARD MANHOLE DRAWING 
FOR OTHER MANHOLE DETAILS. 

ADJUSTMENT DETAIL 

fl MilXNEBIC SFN (PRESS SEAL CASKET CO., 
FIS'f STIK All. WEAlHER 1ROWEl.ABLE BUTYL 
BK-0089-1) SPR£AD OVER ALL ADJUSTMENT 
MAlERW.. 
.GElllEEBAHE 8 MIL PLASTIC CCNER 
OVER BUTYL 

ADJUSTMENT DETAIL FOR 
MANHOLE TOPS WITHIN FLOOD PRONE AREAS MANHOLE TOPS WITHIN PAVEMENT AREAS 

(2) CLOSED 
PICK HOL£S 

r-·· D"-1 L
�_Jr 
I-Jll"D"--1 

£AST JORDAN IRON WORKS 
HEAW DUTY MAIDIIAI. ASIM M8 CL35 
COYER WT., 150 LBS., CATALOG NO. 1040,\ 
PATTERN NO. 1040A, PRODUCT NO. 1040XX 0AKCOSTD. 
2" RAISED L£11ERS, 1 " RAISED L£TlERS 
ALL RECESSED FLUSH. 

£AST JORDIIN IRON WORKS 
HEAVY DUTY MATERIAL ASTU M8 CLJ5 
COYER WT., 150 LBS., CATALOG NO. 1040APT 
PATTERN NO. 10- PRODUCT NO. NCROll-1280 C 
2" RAISED L£TlER$, 1" RAISED L£TTERS, J/4" RAISED L£T1ERS 
ALL RECESSED FUJSH. 

OIi' IIEIWEEN PFE DES stW.L.IEMSIIW.LNJ POSSHILE WITH A. 
IMJCIIIJII Of 1•. 

r«nE: PFE SHi\LL IE BEDDED IN SWIJMD PLA.STIC PIPE BEDDINQ. 

WYE PIPE INSERTION WITH FLEXIBLE COUPLINGS 

(RIGID PIPE) 

LOCAL MUNICIPALITIES MANHOLE COVER W.R.C. LETTERED MANHOLE COVER 

BOLTED WATERPROOF CAST IRON liMNHOLE 
COt'ER WITH BOI..TED FRAME EQUAL TO 
EAST JORIMN NO. 104M WITH PRESSURE 
l1ClHT COVER. 

1• x 1• E-Z STIIC PRE-FORMED BUTYL 
SEALANT 2 EACH COURSE (OUlSIDE o1c 

�N��
D
�EaFICAllON 

SS-SS-ZIOA AND MSHlO M-11111 (OR 
APPR0\£1l EQUAL) 

fl ASJJWfRI? SfN (PRESS SEAL CMSKET CO., 
EASY STIK AU. WEATHER lROWWBLE BUTYL 
BK-OOS-1) SPREAD OYER ALL ADJUSTMENT 
MAlERW.. 
� 8 lilL PLASTIC 00\IER 
OVER BUTYL 

FOUR CADMIUM CQA1ED 5/8" O"- THREADED 
STUDS WITH '!/4" x 2" x v.s• THICK METAL ::::• � tD

x J�.• lHICK NEOPRENE 

FLAT TOP MANHOLE 

J/4• TO 1)r GAP TO BE 
PR<WIDED TO IMINTAIN JOINT 
FLElCIBIU1Y. 

FORM SMOOTH AND UNIFORM 
CHNilNaB IN CONCRETE FILL 

� INSTALL TEMPORARY MECtwtlCAL 
SM.E WATERTIGHT BULKHEAD, 
TO BE REMl'.WED ONLY AFTER 
DIRECTED BY ENGINEER AFTER 
SUCCESSFUU.Y PASSING APPLICABLE 
1ES11NG. 

INSTALL CONCRETE Fll IN 
SUMP AFTER 
�J¥= 
10 FINAL CO 
TEST. 

�EN.I 
MANHOLE 

WATER RESOURCES COMMISSIONER 
GRAVITY BUILDING LEAD REQUIREMENTS AND DETAILS 

1. ALL BUIDING LEAD WORK MUST BE PERFORMED UNDER WATER RESOURCES COIIMISSK»tER 
(WRC) AND� LOCAL UNIT Of 00\DNMENT INSPECTICIII. 

2. FOR ALL WRC-CFERAlED SYSlEMS, CALL 248-ee&-111O 24-HDURS IN ADVANCE OR W0RIC 
TO SCHEDULE INSPECllON. 

3. NO SANITARY SEWER MAY BE USED AS A a.EANOUT Cf' IEWAlERING OUllET. 

4. YftERE AN EXISTING BUILDING LEAD IS BEING EXTENDED, DISSMLAR TYPES AND SIZES Cf' 
PIPE SHALL BE JOINED USING AN NtC APPRO\£D ADA.PlER. 

5. APPRCMD BUILDING LEAD PF'E FOR GRA.\11Y SEWER LEADS: 
A. ABS PLASTIC, AS1M D2751, SOR 23.a. 
B. PYC PLAS11C, AS1M DJ0J4, SDR 23.5 OR ASTM D2U5, SCHEDULE 40. 
C. 

�
LE

���.:;.
r.

SH���t:� ���8:'�ufi��fr_
A.21

DlJ�-
11TE. OR VERl-111E. 

D. ANY DE\1A110NS FROM SPECIAED ABl:NE. REQUIRE APPROVAi.. BY WRC. 

8. A.l.10WAl!ILE TYPES Cf' SEWER PIPE ADAPTERS: 
A. FERNCO ADAPTERftE)UCER DONUTS. 
B. FERNCO FLEXIBLE COUPLING. 
C. MISSION a.AV BAND-SEAL COlAJNG. 
D. SMITH-BLAIR STAINLESS STEEi.. REPAIR a.AMP. 
E. HURCN-a.JNTON o-RNO ADA.PlER. 
F. HAMIL11lN-KENT GEAR GltlP ADAP1ER, 
G. PLANT FABRICAlED JOINT CCJIP.IERSICIII PIPE. 

APPROYAI.. MAY BE GIVEN TO AI..TERNAlE 
MATERIALS AND IETHODS TO ACHIEVE 
a.ASS B BEDDING. 

STANDARD BEDDING 
(CLASS B) 

FORM SMOOlH AND UNFORM 
�NEIS IN CONCRETE FILL 

5" LAYERS OF CAREFUU.Y 
COMPACTED a.ASS I SAND 
OR M" 10 111" ANGULNI 
GRADED STONE. (OR � EDlW.) 

KOR-N-TEE TAP FOR CONCRETE PIPE 

NOTE: SURFACE OF lMIN 
EPOXY APPI..JCA110N. 
m���,R 
EPOXY. 

SEWER TAP-ALL SIZES OF MAIN SEWER PIPES 
VITRIFIED CLAY 

ALL HOUSE LcAD PIPE TO BE WRC 
APPROVED MAlERIAL AND JOINT. 

\_CO� a, l!9l!f CONNECl10N W/ 
3/4 TO 11( GAP TO BE 
PRCMDED TO MAINTAIN JOINT 
FLEXIBIUTY. 

10' BELOW FIRST FLOOR----� 
�:.-==M)FOR 

EXl'ERIOR MANHOLE WALL 

W&u�10
lTER 

1DIT BUUCHEAD 

FORM SMOOTH �NEI. 
THROUGH EXISTING BENCH 

REMOVABLE WAmmGHT AND 
AIRTIGHT STOPPER IS RECOMMENDED 
OR SUPPi.JED BY PIPE NtD JOINT 
MANUFNJTURER 

PLACE PIPE AGAINST UNDISTIJRBED 
GROUND, BICK FILI. WITH CARE 10 
AVOID SETTLEMENT 

HOUSE LEAD DETAIL 

TESTING BULKHEAD WITH PIPE TAP 

REVISION BLOCK 
Pare.I Ba .. I Source Data: NIA 

Rav. Rav. Rav. 

No.: Date: 
Description: 

SUMP MANHOLE FOR TESTING, 
CLEANING AND DEWATERING 

SANITARY SEWER DETAILS AND NOTES 

ORIG.DATE: 

SCALE: 

DESIGNED BY: 

DRAWN BY: 

ONE PUBLIC WORKS DRIVE, BLDG 95 WEST 
WATERFORD, MICHIGAN 

48328-1907 

SHEET NO.: 
67 of 67



MEMORANDUM 

DATE:  March 4, 2021 

TO:  Thomas M. Markus 

FROM:  Mary M. Kucharek 

SUBJECT:  Electronic Filing of Real and Personal Property Statements 

INTRODUCTION: 

• The question arose as to “who has the authority to authorize the use of electronic
signatures?”

LEGAL REVIEW: 

• MCL § 211.19(9)(4) states:

“Local tax collecting units shall accept (non-expired) personal identification
numbers as electronic signatures on real and personal property statements filed
electronically, unless a local tax collecting unit has not provided for the electronic
filing of such statements.”

SUMMARY: 

• Persons must receive their personal identification numbers by submitting an
electronic signature declaration for real and personal property statement forms
with the Michigan Department of Treasury.  Once they send this document in, the
personal identification numbers are sent to persons which then authorize them to
use that ID as their signature.

• While the City of Birmingham contracts with the County of Oakland to be the
assessor of its taxes, the City is still considered the local tax collecting unit.
Therefore, if the City of Birmingham wants to it may accept personal identification
numbers as electronic signatures for personal and property statements that are
filed electronically.

ATTACHMENTS: 

• Form 5278
• Bulletin No. 2 Regarding Electronic Filing from the State Tax Commission
• Resolution

5I



 
SUGGESTED RESOLUTION: 
 

• To authorize the use of personal identification numbers acquired from the Michigan 
Department of Treasury as electronic signatures for the purpose of filing personal and 
property taxes that are filed electronically. 



CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION AUTHORIZING 

ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES FOR ELECTRONIC FILING 
OF REAL AND PERSONAL PROPERTY STATEMENTS 

 
At a meeting of the City Commission of the City of Birmingham, Oakland County, 
Michigan, held on the 15th day of March, 2021, at City Hall, 151 Martin Street, 
Birmingham, MI, 48009. 

 
 
Moved by:      Seconded by:      
 

 
WHEREAS, as a local tax collecting unit, the City of Birmingham has the authority 

pursuant to MCL § 211.19(9)(4) to accept personal identification numbers acquired from the 
Michigan Department of Treasury as electronic signatures on real and personal property 
statements filed electronically. 

 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City of Birmingham does hereby authorize the use 

of personal identification numbers acquired from the Michigan Department of Treasury as 
electronic signatures on real and personal property statements filed electronically. 

 
 

 Passed, adopted and approved this    day of   , 2021. 

AYES:            
            

 
NAYS:            

            
 
PRESENT:            

            
 
ABSENT:            

            
 

 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 

 I, Alexandria D. Bingham, being the duly appointed and qualified Clerk of the City of 
Birmingham, Oakland County, Michigan, do hereby certify and declare that the foregoing is a true 
and correct copy of Resolution, the original of which is on file in my office, adopted by the City 
of Birmingham Commission at a regular meeting held on March 8, 2021. 
 
           
      Alexandria D. Bingham, City Clerk 



5102 (Rev. 04-15) 

RICK SNYDER 
GOVERNOR 

TO: 

FROM: 

RE: 

STATE OF MICHIGAN 

DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY 
LANSING 

Assessors and Equalization Directors 

State Tax Commission 

NICK A. KHOURI 
STATE TREASURER 

Bulletin No. 2 
April 17, 2017 
Electronic Filing 

Electronic Filing of Real Property Statements, Personal Property Statements and 
the Combined Document (Fmm 5278) 

Bulletin 19 of 2011 is rescinded. 

MCL 211.19 describes the requirements for filing of real and personal prope1iy statements. 

Section 19(1) - Requires the supervisor or the assessing officer, upon entering office, to make a 
full and accurate dete1mination of the taxable status of all property (real and personal) and the 
individuals to whom it should be assessed. 

Section 19(2) - States that the supervisor or assessing officer shall require the submission of a 
personal prope1iy statement (State Tax Commission Fmm L-4175) by the responsible person(s) 
whom the supervisor or assessor believes has personal property by Febmary 20, except as 
othe1wise provided in MCL 2l1.9m, 9n or 9o. There are no current statutmy provisions, which 
would provide for an extension of the Febmary 20 filing date. The supervisor or assessing 
officer shall provide notice no later than January 10 each year. The notice shall include 
infmmation regarding the Eligible Personal Property Exemptions (MCL 21 l.9m and MCL 
21 l.9n) and the Small Business Taxpayer Exemption (MCL21 l.9o) and an explanation where 
additional info1mation regarding these exemptions and the required fo1ms are available. 

Section 19(3) - If a supervisor, an assessing officer, a county tax or equalization department, or 
the state tax commission considers it necessary to require from any person a statement of REAL 
prope1iy assessable to that person, it shall notify the person, and that person shall submit the 
statement. See also Attorney General Opinion No. 6555 of 1988 regarding the authority to 
require a real property statement. 

Section 19( 4) - Contains language that gives the local unit the option to provide for and accept 
electronic filing of either the personal property statement and/or the real property statement. 
This will be discussed later in this bulletin. 

Section 19(5) The personal propetiy statement identified in Section 19(2) and the real prope1iy 
statement identified in Section 19(3) shall be in a manner and form as prescribed by the State 
Tax Commission. It is the responsibility of the State Tax commission to set forth a single 

P.O BOX 30471 •LANSING, MICHIGAN 48909-7971 
www.michigan.gov/statetaxcommission • (517) 335-3429 



Bulletin 2 of 2017 
Page2 
April 17, 2017 

standard and reporting format for permissible electronic filing of the personal property statement 
and/or real property statement with the local unit. 

Section 19(6) - Permits the taxpayer submitting a personal property statement and/or a real 
property statement to sign the form manually (original signature), by facsimile signature or 
electronically by an approved electronic personal identification number (PIN) signature.) The 
State Tax Commission's electronic and facsimile signature policies are discussed later in this 
bulletin. Prohibits the supervisor or assessor from requiring a taxpayer to file a requested or 
required statement before the statutory annual filing date of February 20. 

Section 19(7) - The real and personal property statements (hard copy and electronic versions) 
requested and required to be filed must be submitted on State Tax Commission authorized or 
approved forms and/or electronic format. Failure to use the State Tax Commission authorized or 
approved form and/or electronic format shall constitute an improper filing. Further, the 
statement must be signed by one of the 3 following methods: 1) manually, 2) by facsimile 
signature, 3) or by electronic personal identification number (PIN) signature. Advises and 
requires the supervisor or assessor to retain and preserve all statements that are not in the proper 
form or are not properly signed. The improperly filed statement may still be used to make the 
assessment and as evidence in any proceeding regarding the assessment. The statement and all 
supporting documentation submitted shall be held confidential pursuant to Section 23 of the 
GPTA, even though the statement was not properly filed with the local unit supervisor or 
assessor. 

Section 19(8) States that an electronically filed personal property statement, real property 
statement, or the Eligible Manufacturing Personal Property Tax Exemption Claim, Ad Valorem 
Personal Property Statement and Report of Fair Market Value of Qualified New and Previously 
Existing Personal Property (Combined Document) under MCL 21 l.9m or 9n, or under MCL 
211.1057 the State Essential Services Assessment Act, an electronic personal identification 
number (PIN) signature shall be accepted by the local unit provided that the procedure prescribed 
by the STC for accepting electronic signatures is followed. A facsimile signature shall also be 
accepted provided that the procedure prescribed by the STC for accepting facsimile signatures is 
followed. These procedures are discussed later in this bulletin. 

Section 19(9) - Indicates that the Department of Treasury's use of a personal property statement 
or information on a personal property tax statement must adhere to the provisions 
regarding disclosure of info1mation as stated in the Revenue Act, specifically MCL 
205.28(1)(f). 

Electronic Filing of Personal Property Statements and Real Property 
Statement(s) 

Unlike the electronic filing of federal or state income tax returns to a central location, there are 
over 1500 local units within the State of Michigan that could authorize the acceptance of 
electronically filed real and personal property statements. The electronic filing fonnat prescribed 
by the STC is tab delimited (spreadsheet) export. 



Bulletin 2 of 201 7 
Page 3 
April 17, 2017 

State Tax Commission Electronic Signature Policy for Personal Property 
Statements and Real Property Statements 

1. In order to use an electronic signature, a personal identification number must be 
issued by conventional mail to the individual who signed the form. Personal 
identification numbers are to be treated as confidential information (to be 
disseminated only for use in the assessment process) and will not be issued over the 
telephone. Upon written request, personal identification numbers may be issued by 
facsimile or by electronic mail. 

2. Upon receipt of the personal identification number, an individual may use this 
number in lieu of his or her actual signature on Real and Personal Prope1iy 
Statements which are filed electronically as long as the following declaration is 
accepted when filing the statement: 

By submitting this personal prope1iy statement electronically, you are 
declaring that you are the person responsible for filing this business return 
on behalf of the owner or corporation and that you concur that the issued 
PIN shall be used in lieu of an actual signature when filing this statement. 
Additionally you declare that you have filled out the f01m to the best of 
your ability and have answered all questions fully. 

3. Personal identification numbers will expire one year from the date of issuance. 

4. Loca tax collecting units shall accept (non-expired) personal identification numbers 
as electronic signatures on Real and Personal Property Statements filed electronically, 
unless the local tax collecting unit has nof provided for the electronic filing of such 
statements. 

State Tax Commission Facsimile Signatures Policy for Personal Property 
Statements and Real Property Statements 

The following constitutes the procedure prescribed by the State Tax Commission under 
authority of Section 19(8) relating to the acceptance of facsimile signatures by local tax 
collecting units for Personal Property Statements and Real Property Statements. 

1. An individual desiring to use a facsimile signature on a Real or Personal Prope1iy 
Statement shall first properly complete Form 3980, Facsimile Signature Declaration 
for Real and Personal Prope1iy Statements, and submit this f01m to the State Tax 
Commission. Form 3980 will not be treated as confidential information. It shall be 
the responsibility of the individual submitting this form to verify that the fmm was 
properly completed and has been received by the State Tax Commission. 

2. After the form has been properly completed by the individual submitting the fmm and 
has been received by the State Tax Commission, the individual may use this facsimile 



Bulletin 2 of 2017 
Page4 
April 17, 2017 

signature in lieu of his or her actual signature on Real and Personal Property 
Statements which are not filed electronically, until the expiration date for the 
facsimile signature. The expiration date for use of the facsimile signature will be one 
year from the date a properly completed Form 3980 is received by the State Tax 
Commission. 

3. Local tax collecting units shall accept a facsimile signature (prior to the expiration 
date of the facsimile signature) for which a properly completed Form 3980 has been 
received by the State Tax Commission. In such cases, the facsimile signature shall be 
accepted in place of an actual signature on a Real or Personal Property Statement 
which has been filed non-electronically. 

4. Properly completed Forms 3980 filed by Februaiy 1 will be processed by February 
15. Properly completed Forms 3980 received after February 1, will be processed on a 
first-come-first-served basis with no guarantee of processing prior to February 20. 

Electronic Filing of the Combined Document (Form 5278) 

The following constitutes the procedure prescribed by the State Tax Commission under 
authority of Section 19(8) relating to the acceptance of electronic and facsimile signatures by 
local tax collecting units for the Combined Document, Form 5278. 

1. An individual desiring to use an electronic signature or facsimile signature on a 
Combined Document, Form 5278, is not required to complete and file Form 3980, 
Facsimile Signature Declaration for Real and Personal Property Statements, or any other 
forms. In order to receive the EMPP exemption, the eligible claimant is required to 
register on Michigan Treasury Online (MTO) or utilize an approved e-Filing software 
vendor. The eligible claimant must then certify and electronically pay the ESA tax 
liability shown on that certified statement. The claimant's registration on MTO or 
utilization of an approved e-Filing software vendor provides sufficient verification to 
utilize an electronic signature or facsimile signature on the Combined Document (Form 
5278). 

2. Local tax collecting units shall accept all (non-expired) personal identification numbers 
as electronic signatures on the Combined Document (Fo1m 5278) filed electronically. 

3. Local tax collecting units cannot adopt a policy or procedure to limit the claimant's 
ability to provide for the electronic filing of the Combined Document (Form 5278) by 
February 20. 



Michigan Department of Treasury 
3976 (Rev. 10-15) 

Electronic Signature Declaration for Real and Personal Property Statements 
Issued under Public Act 267 of 2002. Fiiing Is voluntary. 

INSTRUCTIONS: Michigan Compiled Law (MCL) 211.19 allows the use of an electronic signature on a Real Property Statement and on a Personal 
Property Statement (Form 632- L-4175) filed electronically. An individual desiring to use an electronic signature on a Real or Personal Property Statement 
must first properly complete this form and submit it to the Property Services Division of the Michigan Department of Treasury. Upon receipt of a properly 
completed Form 3976, the Property Services Division will issue a personal identification number (PIN) by conventional mail to the person who signs this 
form. This PIN may then be used in lieu of an actual signature when filing a Real or Personal Property Statement electronically. The PIN expires one year 
from the date of Issuance. 

Name and Address (City, State, ZIP Code) of Person Authorized Below to Obtain this Request Taxpayer Name 

Contact E-mail Address 

Contact Telephone Number 

The State Tax Commission has adopted a procedure for acceptance of electronic signatures by local tax collecting units. This procedure is 
provided on the reverse side of this form. The user of this form is strongly urged to read this procedure before completing this form. 

THIS FORM IS CONSIDERED CONFIDENTIAL AND INFORMATION ON THIS FORM IS TO BE USED ONLY IN THE ASSESSMENT PROCESS. 

DECLARATION 
I, , being duly sworn, depose and say that each Real Property Statement 
containing the personal identification number to be assigned to me by the Property Services Division, Is a true and complete statement 
of all real property owned by me in the assessing district for which the statement is made on the date of the statement. I further depose 
and say that each Personal Property Statement containing this personal identification number is a true and correct statement of all 
tangible personal property owned or held by in the assessing district for which the statement is 
made on the 31st day of December Immediately preceding the year of the personal property statement. 

Must be signed by owner, partner, corporate officer, or a duly authorized agent with attached Power of Attorney, Letter of Authority, etc. 

Signed (Must be actual signature) 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 

Notary Public, State of 

Signature of Notary Public 

Printed Name of Notary Public 

PIN Number 

Date of PIN Issuance 

REQUIRED NOTARIZATION 

day of 

County 

SS 

My Commission Expires 

Acting In the County of 

FOR Property Services Division USE ONLY 
Issuance Code 

Date of PIN Expiration 

Mail the ORIGINAL declaration to: 
Michigan Department of Treasury 

Property Services Division 
P.O. Box 30790 

Lansing, Ml 48909 

Title 

,20 

If you have any questions, contact the Michigan Department ofTreasury Property Services Division at 517-373-0500. 



3976, Page 2 

State Tax Commission 
Electronic Signature Policy 

"1. An individual desiring to use an electronic signature on a Real or Personal Property Statement shall first properly 
complete Form 3976, Electronic Signature Declaration for Real and Personal Property Statements, and submit this 
form to the Property Services Division of the Michigan Department of Treasury. This form is hereby incorporated 
as part of the State Tax Commission procedure for acceptance of electronic and facsimile signatures by local tax 
collecting units ... 

2. The Property Services Division will review the submitted form and, if properly completed, will issue a personal 
identification number by conventional mail to the individual who signed the form. Personal identification numbers 
are to be treated as confidential information (to be disseminated only for use in the assessment process) and will 
not be issued over the telephone. Upon written request, personal identification numbers may be issued by facsimile 
or by electronic mail. 

3. Upon receipt of the personal identification number form the Property Services Division, an individual may use the 
number in lieu of his or her actual signature on Real and Personal Property Statements which are filed electronically, 
until expiration of the personal identification number. Personal identification numbers will expire one year from the 
date of issuance. 

4. Personal identification numbers can be verified after their use by assessment administration personnel by 
completing Form 3979, Request for Verification of Personal Identification Number Used on a Real Personal Property 
Statement, and by sending this form to the Property Services Division. Form 3979 is hereby incorporated as part 
of the State Tax Commission procedure for acceptance of electronic and facsimile signatures by local tax collecting 
units ... Upon receipt of Form 3979, the Property Services Division will release a copy of Form 3976 (showing the 
personal identification number issued and the signature of the individual to whom this number was issued) to the 
requesting party. 

5. Local tax collecting units shall accept (non-expired) personal identification numbers which have been issued by the 
Property Services Division as electronic signatures on Real and Personal Property Statements filed electronically, 
unless the local tax collecting unit has not provided for the electronic filing of such statements. 

Properly completed Forms 3976 filed by February 1 will be processed by the Property Services Division 
and personal identification numbers issued by February 15 (five days before the statutory filing deadline 
for Personal Property Statements). Even if properly completed Forms 3976 are received after February 1, 
every attempt will be made to process them by February 20. However, these forms will be processed on a 
first-come first-served basis with no guarantee that a personal identification number will be issued prior to 
February 20." (Emphasis added) 



1

MEMORANDUM 
Planning Division 

DATE: March 8th, 2021 

TO: Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Nicholas J. Dupuis, City Planner 

APPROVED: Jana L. Ecker, Planning Director 

SUBJECT: Public Hearing – Special Land Use Permit and Final Site Plan and 
Design Review – 219 Elm – All Seasons 2 

INTRODUCTION: 
The subject site, 219 Elm Street, is located at the north end of the Triangle District in the MU3 
(Triangle Overlay) and O2 (Office/Commercial) Zoning Districts. Presently, the 0.35 acre parcel 
contains a modest two-story office building, a parking lot with roughly 25 off-street parking 
spaces, six mature trees, and various landscaping elements. The site is directly adjacent to the 
existing All Seasons of Birmingham senior living establishment that was completed around 2015. 

At this time, the applicant is seeking approval from the City Commission for a Special Land Use 
Permit to permit independent senior living in the O2 Zoning District. As advised by the applicant, 
the All Seasons 2 development is proposed for seniors in a younger age bracket (55-75) that 
desire more independence than what the All Seasons 1 development was intended to offer. 
Although separate buildings, residents of the All Seasons 2 will have access to the amenities 
available in the All Seasons 1 building, and a site connection plan has been provided for such an 
occasion. Although this purely residential model differs from the mixed-use developments that 
have been erected in the area, the massing of the building and the proposed streetscape elements 
offer a similar experience from the pedestrian point-of-view. 

BACKGROUND: 
On May 13th, 2020 the Planning Board accepted the Community Impact Study for the 
development. The following month on June 10th, the Planning Board approved the Preliminary 
Site Plan with the following conditions:  

1. The applicant must submit plans showing the side setback at the NORTH at a minimum
of 10 ft. or obtain a variance from the Board of Zoning Appeals;

2. The applicant must complete the requirements of 3.08 (E) to receive additional building
height;

3. The applicant must submit a rooftop plan showing a detailed rooftop use including any

7A



2
 

proposed structures; 
4. The applicant must provide construction details on the proposed parking lot screen wall; 
5. The applicant must submit details on all proposed RTUs and details on the proposed 

screen wall to ensure the RTUs are fully screened from public view; 
6. The applicant must submit material specifications, samples, and glazing calculations for 

the proposed building at Final Site Plan review; 
7. The applicant must submit details on the types and placement of all proposed light 

fixtures, as well as a photometric plan showing illumination levels at all property lines; 
and, 

8. The applicant comply with the requests of all City Departments. 
 
On December 9th, 2020, the Planning Board recommended approval to the City Commission of 
the Final Site Plan for 219 Elm St. subject to the following conditions:  
 

1. The Planning Board approves the projections into the right-of-way on the west side of the 
building fronting Elm Street and on the south side facing the public alley; 

2. The applicant must either remove the awnings, or provide an easement acceptable to the 
City Attorney with the neighboring property owner for the use of the air rights to the north 
of the building;  

3. The applicant must provide specification sheets for all rooftop and ground mounted 
mechanical units, and the applicant must provide screening for the ground-mounted 
mechanical units or obtain a variance from the Board of Zoning Appeals;  

4. The applicant must submit corrected landscaping plans showing the proposed locations of 
all planting material;  

5. The applicant must provide lighting for the parking facility that meets the requirements of 
Article 4, Section 4.21 (F) or obtain a variance from the Board of Zoning Appeals;  

6. The applicant must submit material specification sheets for all of the required materials; 
and 

7. The applicant must comply with the requests of all City departments. 
 
On January 27th, 2021, the Planning Board recommended approval to the City Commission the 
Special Land Use Permit for 219 Elm St. – All Seasons 2 – subject to the conditions of Final Site 
Plan approval. 
 
LEGAL REVIEW: 
The City Attorney has reviewed this request and has no concerns. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
There are no fiscal impacts for this agenda item. 
 
 
 



3
 

SUMMARY: 
The applicant is requesting that the City Commission approve the Special Land Use Permit, Final 
Site Plan and Design Review application to allow the construction and operation of the All Seasons 
2 independent senior living facility at 219 Elm St. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Please find attached the following documents for your review: 
 

 Draft Special Land Use Permit Resolution 
 Proposed site plans 
 Staff Report to the Planning Board 
 Application and additional documents submitted by applicant 
 Meeting minutes 

 
SUGGESTED RESOLUTION: 
To APPROVE the Special Land Use Permit, Final Site Plan and Design Review application to allow 
the construction and operation of the All Seasons 2 independent senior living facility at 219 Elm 
St. 
 

OR 
 
To DENY the Special Land Use Permit, Final Site Plan and Design Review application to allow the 
construction and operation of the All Seasons 2 independent senior living facility at 219 Elm St. 
 
 
  



4
 

ALL SEASONS 2 
219 ELM ST. 

SPECIAL LAND USE PERMIT 
2021 

 
WHEREAS, ALL SEASONS 2 filed an application pursuant to Article 7, section 7.34 of Chapter 
126, Zoning, of the City Code to operate an independent senior living facility in the O2 Zoning 
District in accordance w i t h  Article 2 , Section 2.23(C)(2) of Chapter 126, Zoning, of the 
City Code; 
 
WHEREAS, The land for which the Special Land Use Permit is sought is located on the east 
side of Elm St., north of Forest and south of Maple; 
 
WHEREAS, The land is zoned O2, and is located in the MU3 zone within the Triangle Overlay 
District, which permits the operation of an independent senior living facility with a Special 
Land Use Permit; 

 
WHEREAS, Article 7, section 7.34 of Chapter 126, Zoning requires a Special Land Use 

Permit to be considered and acted upon by the Birmingham City Commission, after receiving 
recommendations on the site plan and design from the Planning Board for the proposed Special 
Land Use; 

 
WHEREAS, The applicant submitted an application for a Special Land Use Permit 

and Final Site Plan and Design Review for ALL SEASONS 2 to operate at 219 Elm St.; 
 
WHEREAS,  The Planning Board on December 9, 2020 reviewed the application for Final 

Site Plan and Design Review and recommended approval to the City Commission to permit the 
building and site design of ALL SEASONS 2 at 219 Elm St. with the following conditions: 

 
1. The Planning Board approves the projections into the right-of-way on the west 

side of the building fronting Elm Street and on the south side facing the public 
alley; 

2. The applicant must either remove the awnings, or provide an easement acceptable 
to the City Attorney with the neighboring property owner for the use of the air 
rights to the north of the building;  

3. The applicant must provide specification sheets for all rooftop and ground mounted 
mechanical units, and the applicant must provide screening for the ground-
mounted mechanical units or obtain a variance from the Board of Zoning Appeals;  

4. The applicant must submit corrected landscaping plans showing the proposed 
locations of all planting material;  

5. The applicant must provide lighting for the parking facility that meets the 
requirements of Article 4, Section 4.21 (F) or obtain a variance from the Board of 
Zoning Appeals;  

6. The applicant must submit material specification sheets for all of the required 
materials; and 

7. The applicant must comply with the requests of all City departments. 
 
WHEREAS,  The Planning Board on January 27, 2021 reviewed the application for Special 



5
 

Land Use Permit and recommended approval to the City Commission to permit the operation of 
ALL SEASONS 2 at 219 Elm St. subject to the conditions of Final Site Plan approval; 

 
WHEREAS, The Birmingham City Commission has reviewed t h e  ALL SEASONS 2 Special 

Land Use Permit application and the standards for such review as set forth in Article 7, section 
7.36 of Chapter 126, Zoning, of the City Code; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, The Birmingham City Commission finds the 

standards imposed under the City Code have been met, subject to the conditions below, and that 
the ALL SEASONS 2 application for a Special Land Use Permit and Final Site Plan and Design at 219 
Elm St. is hereby approved; 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Commission determines that to assure 

continued compliance with Code standards and to protect public health, safety, and welfare, this 
Special Land Use Permit is granted subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. ALL SEASONS 2 shall abide by all provisions of the Birmingham City Code; 

and 
2. The Special Land Use Permit Amendment may be canceled by the City 

Commission upon finding that the continued use is not in the public 
interest. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That failure to comply with any of the above conditions shall 

result in termination of the Special Land Use Permit. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, Except as herein specifically provided, ALL SEASONS 2 and its 

heirs, successors, and assigns shall be bound by all ordinances of the City of Birmingham in 
effect at the time of the issuance of this permit, and as they may be subsequently amended. 
Failure of ALL SEASONS 2 to comply with all the ordinances of the City may result in the 
Commission revoking this Special Land Use Permit. 

 
MAY IT BE FURTHER RESOLVED that ALL SEASONS 2 is recommended for the operation 

of an independent senior living facility, subject to final inspection. 
 
I, Alexandria Bingham, Acting City Clerk of the City of Birmingham, Michigan, do hereby certify 
that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the resolution adopted by the Birmingham City 
Commission at its regular meeting held on March 8, 2021. 
 
 
 

 

Alexandria Bingham 
City Clerk 

 



SHEET NUMBER

DATE

CHECKED BY

CAD FILENAME

DRAWN BY

C
LI

EN
T/

PR
O

JE
C

T
SH

EE
T 

TIT
LE

PRELIMINARY

BIDS

PERMITS

CONSTRUCTION

REVISIONS

JOB NUMBER

10-09-2020

11-10-2020

02-05-2021

00-00-00

1975

02-05-2021

PM

AVB

C
O

P
Y

R
I
G

H
T



1 10

1

A505

5

A501

1

A504

3

A503

4.9 5.9

3 4 65 87

A
B

D

C

E

F

H

G

1

A502

FROST SLAB

FROST SLAB

FROST SLAB FROST SLAB
FROST SLAB

FROST SLAB

ELEVATOR PIT

ELEVATOR SUMP PIT

DRAIN TILE SUMP PIT

A632

2

3.2

J

K

L

-

---

BOOSTER 
PUMP

FIRE PUMP

DROPPED STAIR AND 
LANDING ABOVE

SLOPING GARAGE FLOOR ABOVE

DRAWN BY

FILE NAME

CHECKED BY

JOB NUMBER

DATE

SHEET NUMBER

REVISIONS

PRELIMINARY

BIDS

PERMITS

CONSTRUCTION

01-18-2021

MM-DD-YYYY

MM-DD-YYYY

MM-DD-YYYY

COPYRIGHT 2021

ALEXANDER V.
BOGAERTS + ASSOC.

C
L

IE
N

T
/ 

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S

H
E

E
T

 T
IT

L
E

NOTE TO BUILDING OFFICIAL:
THIS DRAWING IS NOT VALID 
UNLESS THE SIGNATURE AND 
SEAL ARE IN BLUE INK. BIM 360://All Seasons

Birmingham/All
Seasons.rvt

2
/2

5
/2

0
2

1
 1

:0
8
:2

0
 P

M

Author

Checker

1975

-

A200

B
e
zt

a
k
 C

o
m

p
a
n

ie
s

A
ll 

S
e
a
s
o
n
s
 o

f 
B

ir
m

in
g
h

a
m

 P
h
2

B
ir

m
in

g
h

a
m

 M
I

P
u
m

p
 R

o
o
m

 a
n
d
 F

o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 P

la
n

3/16" = 1'-0"A401

1 Pump Rm / Foundation

FOUNDATION PLAN NOTES:
1. REFER TO STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS BY OTHERS 
FOR DIMENSIONS, NOTES, AND STRUCTURAL 
DETAILS. FOUNDATION DRAWINGS ARE PROVIDED 
FOR SLAB AND INSULATION INFORMATION ONLY,

City Comm 02-26-21



Washer
Dryer

DN

DW

D
W

D
W

DN DN

DN

Washer Dryer

A402 1

1
' -

 9
 3

/8
"

7
1

' -
 8

"

6
1

' -
 1

0
"

7
' -

 6
 5

/8
"

5' - 8"

2
' -

 4
"

8
' -

 0
"

6
0

' -
 8

"

2
0

' -
 9

 3
/4

"

2
1

' -
 3

 1
/8

"

13' - 6"7' - 0"8' - 4" 20' - 0" 7' - 0" 20' - 0"

1 2 10

14' - 6 1/2" 7' - 0"

1

A505

10' - 5 3/4"15' - 11 3/8"

5' - 5 5/8"5' - 5 5/8"

10' - 9 1/2" 10' - 9 1/2" 10' - 9 1/2" 10' - 9 1/2" 10' - 9 1/2"

1
0

' -
 4

"

1
3

' -
 8

 1
/2

"

5

A501

A632

1

A634

1

A631

3

1

A504

3

A503

Unit 103

103

Unit 102

102

Type A Unit 101

101

2
6

' -
 1

0
 1

/8
" 2

0
' -

 1
 3

/8
"

6
' -

 2
 1

/8
"

Electrical #2

107

Electrical #1

106

W3

W1

47' - 8" 5' - 0" 37' - 5 1/2"

FINISHED

5' - 0" 14' - 11 1/8" 2' - 2 3/4"

A633

1

A403

1

A401

1

Stair A

001

Type A Garage

111

Garage

112

Garage

113

Garage

114

Garage

115

Garage

116

Garage

117

Garage

118

Garage

120

Stair B

002

Corridor

104

Entrance

100

Vest

100A

Trash/ Recycle

109

Storage

110

ADA Trash

105

+0'-0" = 769.40

+0'-0"

+0'-0"

-1'-0"

-1'-0"

+0'-0"

+0'-0"+0'-0"

-1'-0"

-1'-0"

+0'-0"

-0'-11.4"

+0'-0"

TENANT METERS

FDC GAS METER

20' - 0 1/2" 13' - 8 3/8"

001B

100A

100B

111B 112B 113B 114B 115B 116B 117B 118B 119B 120B

002B

002A

117A

107

116A115A

106B

113A

121105

112A

111A

109B

110

PATIO PATIO
PATIO

4.9 5.9

3 4 6 95 87

A

B

11' - 2 3/8" 10' - 4 1/8"

114A

A4041

D

C

E

F

H

F
IN

IS
H

E
D

5
' -

 1
1

"

6
' -

 2
"

G

5
' -

 9
 3

/4
"

8' - 6" 26' - 11 3/8" 2' - 4 3/8" 11' - 1 3/4" 39' - 11" 11' - 1 3/4" 2' - 4 3/8" 26' - 11 7/8" 5' - 8 1/8"
1' - 0 3/8"

7
1

' -
 0

"

3
1

' -
 8

 1
/2

"
6

' -
 5

 5
/8

"
9

' -
 3

 1
/8

"
2

3
' -

 6
 3

/4
"

1
0
"

2
7

' -
 4

 1
/4

"
6

' -
 5

 5
/8

"
1

6
' -

 7
 7

/8
"

1
8

' -
 1

0
 3

/8
"

8
"

136' - 9 3/8"

36' - 10 3/8" 11' - 8 1/8" 38' - 7 1/2" 49' - 7 1/2"

127' - 11 5/8" 8' - 9 3/4"

8
"

8
"

W2

W4

W9

W1

W1

W9

W9

W2

W7 W7

W7W7

W1

W3

W5

W6

W6

W5

W5

109A

W9 W10W9 W9 W9 W9 W9 W9 W9

Garage

119

A301

3

A301

2
A302.1

3

FEC
FE

FE

ELEVATOR 
PERIMETER DRAIN 
TILE SUMP

MAIL

1

A502

JC

121
106A

-

A405 1A4052

-

---
-

---

W
S

0"

0" -4"

-2" -4" -6" -8"

1 2 3 4 5
118A

Fire Command

108 Mech

122

STATUS INDICATOR PANELS

36X36 TABLE
FOR 

24X36 PLANS

FA CONTROL PANELS
67

PLAN STORAGE RACK

108

119A 120A

121

-14"

-6"
-10"

S
L
O

P
E

 1
:4

8

S
L
O

P
E

 2
" S

L
O

P
E

 1
:4

8

-6"

-10" -14"

-16"

-8"
-12"

-18"

-10"
-14"

-20"

-14"
-18"

S
L
O

P
E

 1
:4

8

S
L
O

P
E

 1
:9

6

-4"
-4"
-8"

-10"

S
L
O

P
E

 1
:9

6

-4"

S
L
O

P
E

 1
:4

8

-4"

-12"

S
L
O

P
E

 1
:4

8

-4"
-8"

S
L
O

P
E

 1
:4

8

S
L
O

P
E

 1
:9

6

-8"

7' - 10 1/4" 9' - 4 1/2" 5' - 0"

5' - 4" 11' - 6 3/4"

6' - 5 1/2" 5' - 0" 14' - 5 3/4" 9' - 1 5/8" 13' - 4 3/8" 8' - 3 5/8" 14' - 2 3/8" 8' - 3 5/8" 13' - 2 3/8" 4' - 10 1/2" 6' - 7 1/2" 4' - 10 1/2"
7 1/4"

8' - 2 1/2"

7
' -

 5
 1

/4
"

1
4

' -
 2

 1
/4

"
5

' -
 1

0
 3

/8
"

9
' -

 1
 3

/4
"

4
' -

 6
 3

/8
"

T
Y

P

1
' -

 0
"

3
' -

 6
 3

/8
"

6
' -

 7
 7

/8
"

4
' -

 2
 3

/4
"

001A

-21 1/8"

11' - 0 1/2"

3.2

J

K

L

136' - 9 3/8"

A405 A405 43

DRAWN BY

FILE NAME

CHECKED BY

JOB NUMBER

DATE

SHEET NUMBER

REVISIONS

PRELIMINARY

BIDS

PERMITS

CONSTRUCTION

01-18-2021

MM-DD-YYYY

MM-DD-YYYY

MM-DD-YYYY

COPYRIGHT 2021

ALEXANDER V.
BOGAERTS + ASSOC.

C
L

IE
N

T
/ 

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S

H
E

E
T

 T
IT

L
E

NOTE TO BUILDING OFFICIAL:
THIS DRAWING IS NOT VALID 
UNLESS THE SIGNATURE AND 
SEAL ARE IN BLUE INK. BIM 360://All Seasons

Birmingham/All
Seasons.rvt

2
/2

5
/2

0
2

1
 1

:0
8
:2

1
 P

M

Author

Checker

1975

-

A201

B
e
zt

a
k
 C

o
m

p
a
n

ie
s

A
ll 

S
e
a
s
o
n
s
 o

f 
B

ir
m

in
g
h

a
m

 P
h
2

B
ir

m
in

g
h

a
m

 M
I

C
o
m

p
o
s
it
e
 G

ro
u
n

d
 F

lo
o
r

3/16" = 1'-0"A401

1 First Floor Plan

DIMENSION NOTES:
1. ALL ABOVE GRADE PERIMETER DMENSIONS 
ARE TO FACE OF SHEATHING.
2. ALL BELOW GRADE PERIMETER DIMENSIONS 
ARE TO THE FOLLOWING:
A. POURED CONCRETE WALLS - EXTERIOR FACE 
OF WALL
B. COLUMNS OR POSTS - CENTERLINE OF 
COLUMN OR POST
3. TRENCH FOOTINGS ARE CENTERED ON THE 
EXTERIOR WALL AND EXTEND BEYOND THE FACE 
OF THE WALL
4. FOOTING WIDTHS VARY - REFER TO 
STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS FOR WIDTH OF ALL 
FOOTINGS

NOTE:
GYPSUM BOARD INSTALLED DURING THE ROUGH 
FRAMING PROCESS TO BE MOLD AND MILDEW 
RESISTANT TYPE I APPROVED FOR TEMPORARY 
EXPOSURE UNTIL THE SHELL IS ENCLOSED

NOTE:
SHAFTWALL LINER PANELS USED IN FOREWALL 
AND SIMILAR ASSEMBLIES INSTALLED DURING 
THE ROUGH FRAMING PROCESS TO BE MOLD 
AND MILDEW RESISTANT TYPE I APPROVED FOR 
TEMPORARY EXPOSURE UNTIL THE SHELL IS 
ENCLOSED

NOTE:
FIRE EXTINGUISHER CABINET LOCATIONS SHALL 
BE SPACED FOR A 75' MAX TRAVEL DISTANCE 
UNLESS DIRECTED OTHERWISE BY THE LOCAL 
FIRE MARSHAL

PRELIM. 02-18-21

City Comm 02-26-21



D
W

D
W

Washer
Dryer

D
W

Washer
Dryer

DW
Washer
Dryer

Washer
Dryer

Washer
Dryer

Washer
Dryer

D
W

D
W

A402 1

1 2 10

40' - 6" 41' - 7" 40' - 8 3/8"

5' - 8"8' - 4" 13' - 8 1/2" 12' - 7 1/2"14' - 2" 13' - 8 1/2" 14' - 2" 13' - 8 1/2" 12' - 4 7/8" 13' - 3 1/2"

1
' -

 8
"

2
' -

 0
"

3
' -

 0
"

13' - 11 5/8" 14' - 2" 24' - 2 7/8" 14' - 2 5/8" 14' - 1 5/8"14' - 2"24' - 5 1/2"

15' - 0"

1

A505

5

A501

---

-A631

5

A634

2

1

A504
3

A503

Unit 201

201

Unit 202

202

Unit 203

203

Unit 206

206

A633

2

A403

1

A401

1

Trash/ Recycle

211

203B

001C

002C

Corridor

210

4.9 5.9

3 4 6 95 87

A

B

A4041

D

C

E

F

H

G

Mech

212

Unit 205

205

212

211

A302.1

3
A302.1

2

A302.1

1

A302.2

1
A302.2

2
A302.2

3

1

A502

FE

-

A405 1A4052

5
' -

 1
1

 1
/8

"
9

' -
 8

 5
/8

"
2

' -
 6

 1
/2

"

3
' -

 6
 1

/2
"

2
' -

 4
 5

/8
"

3
' -

 6
 3

/8
"

5
' -

 3
 3

/8
"

7
' -

 5
 1

/4
"

4' - 6 5/8"

6' - 10" 3' - 2 7/8" 9' - 1 1/2" 7' - 0 7/8" 5' - 0" 10' - 7 1/2" 5' - 7 3/4"

20' - 0 5/8" 5' - 0" 22' - 8 5/8"

16' - 1 1/2" 5' - 0" 44' - 9 7/8" 18' - 8" 1' - 11 1/4"

21' - 4 5/8" 5' - 0" 34' - 5" 5' - 0" 13' - 0 1/2" 4' - 1 5/8" 3' - 9 5/8"

Unit 204

204

Stair A

001 Stair B

002

3.2

J

K

L

-

---

1
' -

 8
"

A405 A405 43

DRAWN BY

FILE NAME

CHECKED BY

JOB NUMBER

DATE

SHEET NUMBER

REVISIONS

PRELIMINARY

BIDS

PERMITS

CONSTRUCTION

01-18-2021

MM-DD-YYYY

MM-DD-YYYY

MM-DD-YYYY

COPYRIGHT 2021

ALEXANDER V.
BOGAERTS + ASSOC.

C
L

IE
N

T
/ 

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S

H
E

E
T

 T
IT

L
E

NOTE TO BUILDING OFFICIAL:
THIS DRAWING IS NOT VALID 
UNLESS THE SIGNATURE AND 
SEAL ARE IN BLUE INK. BIM 360://All Seasons

Birmingham/All
Seasons.rvt

2
/2

5
/2

0
2

1
 1

:0
8
:2

3
 P

M

Author

Checker

1975

-

A202

B
e
zt

a
k
 C

o
m

p
a
n

ie
s

A
ll 

S
e
a
s
o
n
s
 o

f 
B

ir
m

in
g
h

a
m

 P
h
2

B
ir

m
in

g
h

a
m

 M
I

C
o
m

p
o
s
it
e
 S

e
c
o
n
d

 F
lo

o
r

3/16" = 1'-0"A401

1 Second Floor Plan

PRELIM. 02-18-21

City Comm 02-26-21



D
W

D
W

Washer
Dryer

D
W

Washer
Dryer

DW
Washer
Dryer

Washer
Dryer

Washer
Dryer

Washer
Dryer

D
W

D
W

A402 1

1 2 10

1

A505

5

A501

---

-

A631

6

A634

3

1

A504
3

A503

Unit 305

305

Unit 306

306

Unit 301

301

Unit 302

302

Unit 303

303

Unit 304

304

A633

3

A403

1

A401

1

Trash/ Recycle

311

BALCONY

001D

002D

4.9 5.9

3 4 6 95 87

A

B

A4041

D

C

E

F

H

G

Mech

312

A302.1

3

A302.1

2

A302.2

1
A302.2

2

A302.2

3

FEC

1

A502

FE

---

-

-

A405 1A4052

Stair A

001 Stair B

002

Corridor

310

3.2

J

K

L

-

---

A405 A405 43

DRAWN BY

FILE NAME

CHECKED BY

JOB NUMBER

DATE

SHEET NUMBER

REVISIONS

PRELIMINARY

BIDS

PERMITS

CONSTRUCTION

01-18-2021

MM-DD-YYYY

MM-DD-YYYY

MM-DD-YYYY

COPYRIGHT 2021

ALEXANDER V.
BOGAERTS + ASSOC.

C
L

IE
N

T
/ 

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S

H
E

E
T

 T
IT

L
E

NOTE TO BUILDING OFFICIAL:
THIS DRAWING IS NOT VALID 
UNLESS THE SIGNATURE AND 
SEAL ARE IN BLUE INK. BIM 360://All Seasons

Birmingham/All
Seasons.rvt

2
/2

5
/2

0
2

1
 1

:0
8
:2

5
 P

M

Author

Checker

1975

-

A203

B
e
zt

a
k
 C

o
m

p
a
n

ie
s

A
ll 

S
e
a
s
o
n
s
 o

f 
B

ir
m

in
g
h

a
m

 P
h
2

B
ir

m
in

g
h

a
m

 M
I

C
o

m
p

o
s
it
e

 T
h

ir
d

 F
lo

o
r

3/16" = 1'-0"A401

1 Third Floor Plan

PRELIM. 02-18-21

City Comm 02-26-21



Washer
Dryer

D
W

Washer
Dryer

W
a
s
h
e
r

D
ry

e
r

D
W

Washer
Dryer

D
W

Washer
Dryer

D
W

DW

A402 1

1 2 10

1

A505

5

A501

---

-

A634

4

A631

4

1

A504 3

A503

Unit 403

403

Unit 404

404

Unit 402

402

Unit 401

401

2
1

' -
 3

"

A633

4

Unit 405

405

Corridor

410

A403

1

A401

1

Trash/ Recycle

411

001E

002E

4.9 5.9

3 4 6 95 87

A

B

A4041

D

C

E

F

H

G

W2
W7

W7

W7

W7

W7W7

W7

W7

W2 W2

A304.1

2

A304.1

1

A304.2

1
A304.2

2

A304.2

3

1

A502

FE

-

A405 1A4052

5
' -

 1
1

"
9

' -
 8

 5
/8

"
2

' -
 6

 1
/2

"

6' - 10" 18' - 4" 5' - 0" 11' - 10 1/2"

4' - 6 5/8"

26' - 7 3/8" 5' - 0" 16' - 6 5/8"

22' - 11 3/4" 5' - 0" 35' - 0 1/8" 5' - 0" 16' - 3 1/4" 4' - 2 1/2" 3' - 9 5/8"

63' - 8 3/8" 5' - 0" 15' - 3 1/8" 2' - 2 3/8"

3
' -

 6
 3

/8
"

2
' -

 4
 5

/8
"

3
' -

 6
 3

/8
"

7
' -

 5
 1

/4
"

Stair A

001
Stair B

002

3.2

J

K

L

-

---

A405 A405 43

DRAWN BY

FILE NAME

CHECKED BY

JOB NUMBER

DATE

SHEET NUMBER

REVISIONS

PRELIMINARY

BIDS

PERMITS

CONSTRUCTION

01-18-2021

MM-DD-YYYY

MM-DD-YYYY

MM-DD-YYYY

COPYRIGHT 2021

ALEXANDER V.
BOGAERTS + ASSOC.

C
L

IE
N

T
/ 

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S

H
E

E
T

 T
IT

L
E

NOTE TO BUILDING OFFICIAL:
THIS DRAWING IS NOT VALID 
UNLESS THE SIGNATURE AND 
SEAL ARE IN BLUE INK. BIM 360://All Seasons

Birmingham/All
Seasons.rvt

2
/2

5
/2

0
2

1
 1

:0
8
:2

8
 P

M

Author

Checker

1975

-

A204

B
e
zt

a
k
 C

o
m

p
a
n

ie
s

A
ll 

S
e
a
s
o
n
s
 o

f 
B

ir
m

in
g
h

a
m

 P
h
2

B
ir

m
in

g
h

a
m

 M
I

C
o
m

p
o
s
it
e
 F

o
u
rt

h
 F

lo
o
r

3/16" = 1'-0"A401

1 Fourth Floor Plan

City Comm 02-26-21



D
W

Washer
Dryer

DW

DW

W
a
s
h
e
r

D
ry

e
r

DW

Washer
Dryer

A402 1

1 2 10

1

A505

5

A501

---

-A631

2

A634

5

1

A504

3

A503

Unit 504

504

Unit 503

503

Unit 502

502

Unit 501

501

A633

5

A403

1

A401

1

Corridor

510

Trash/ Recycle

511

A511

4.9 5.9

3 4 6 95

002F

87

136' - 9 3/8"

A

B

A4041

D

C

E

F

H

G

001F

W2

W2

W7

A305.1

1
A305.1

2

A305.2

1
A305.2

2

5
5

' -
 1

 3
/4

"

1
6

' -
 2

 3
/8

"
6

' -
 5

 5
/8

"
2

6
' -

 4
 7

/8
"

4
' -

 9
 3

/8
"1

' -
 3

 1
/2

"

1

A502

FE

Corr Mech

512

-

A405 1A4052

7
' -

 3
 7

/8
"

2
' -

 5
 1

/8
"

3
' -

 2
 3

/4
"

6' - 0 5/8" 7' - 3 7/8"

4' - 7 1/8" 3' - 8 1/8"

12' - 8 5/8" 5' - 0" 94' - 8 1/2" 1' - 7 7/8"3' - 4 1/4"

2' - 2 1/4" 5' - 6 1/2" 5' - 0" 65' - 5 1/2" 5' - 0" 21' - 1 1/2" 4' - 2 1/2" 3' - 9 5/8"

6
 3

/4
"

6
' -

 3
 7

/8
"

Stair A

001 Stair B

002

3.2

J

K

L

-

---

A405 A405 43

DRAWN BY

FILE NAME

CHECKED BY

JOB NUMBER

DATE

SHEET NUMBER

REVISIONS

PRELIMINARY

BIDS

PERMITS

CONSTRUCTION

01-18-2021

MM-DD-YYYY

MM-DD-YYYY

MM-DD-YYYY

COPYRIGHT 2021

ALEXANDER V.
BOGAERTS + ASSOC.

C
L

IE
N

T
/ 

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S

H
E

E
T

 T
IT

L
E

NOTE TO BUILDING OFFICIAL:
THIS DRAWING IS NOT VALID 
UNLESS THE SIGNATURE AND 
SEAL ARE IN BLUE INK. BIM 360://All Seasons

Birmingham/All
Seasons.rvt

2
/2

5
/2

0
2

1
 1

:0
8
:3

0
 P

M

Author

Checker

1975

-

A205

B
e
zt

a
k
 C

o
m

p
a
n

ie
s

A
ll 

S
e
a
s
o
n
s
 o

f 
B

ir
m

in
g
h

a
m

 P
h
2

B
ir

m
in

g
h

a
m

 M
I

C
o

m
p

o
s
it
e

 F
if
th

 F
lo

o
r

3/16" = 1'-0"A401

1 Fifth Floor Plan

PRELIM. 02-18-21

City Comm 02-26-21



D
W

A402 1

1 2 10

1

A505

5

A501

1

A504

3

A503

A631

8

A632

8

A633

6

A403

1

A401

1

002G

601

Vest

601

4.9 5.9

3 4 6 95 87

GENERATOR

001G

A

B

A4041

2' - 0"

2' - 0"

D

C

E

F

H

G

DOAU

HEAT PUMPS

A634

6

FEC

4' H PLANTER
WRAPPED W SIDING

F
IR

E
P

L
A

C
E

 
A

N
D

 H
A

R
T

H

G
A

S
 G

R
IL

L
S

4' H PLANTER
WRAPPED W SIDING

4' H PLANTER
WRAPPED W SIDING

4' H PLANTER
WRAPPED W SIDING

1

A502

-

A405 1A4052

A4062

A406 1

A210

1

A210

2

45

3

Stair A

001
Stair B

002

CHIMNEY

Elevator

005

CHIMNEY

3.2

J

K

L

-

---

A405 A405 43

DRAWN BY

FILE NAME

CHECKED BY

JOB NUMBER

DATE

SHEET NUMBER

REVISIONS

PRELIMINARY

BIDS

PERMITS

CONSTRUCTION

01-18-2021

MM-DD-YYYY

MM-DD-YYYY

MM-DD-YYYY

COPYRIGHT 2021

ALEXANDER V.
BOGAERTS + ASSOC.

C
L

IE
N

T
/ 

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S

H
E

E
T

 T
IT

L
E

NOTE TO BUILDING OFFICIAL:
THIS DRAWING IS NOT VALID 
UNLESS THE SIGNATURE AND 
SEAL ARE IN BLUE INK. BIM 360://All Seasons

Birmingham/All
Seasons.rvt

2
/2

5
/2

0
2

1
 1

:0
8
:3

2
 P

M

Author

Checker

1975

-

A206

B
e
zt

a
k
 C

o
m

p
a
n

ie
s

A
ll 

S
e
a
s
o
n
s
 o

f 
B

ir
m

in
g
h

a
m

 P
h
2

B
ir

m
in

g
h

a
m

 M
I

C
o

m
p

o
s
it
e

 R
o
o

f 
T

e
rr

a
c
e

3/16" = 1'-0"A210

1 Roof Terrace Plan

City Comm 02-26-21



Ground Level
0"

Second Floor
14' - 5 1/2"

Third Floor
25' - 6 1/8"

FF @ Trash/FP
-1' - 0"

Fourth Floor
37' - 4 3/4"

Fifth Floor
49' - 3 3/8"

Roof
60' - 8"

1 2 10

1

A505

1

A504

3

A503

Chimney
76' - 0"

Elev pit
-5' - 6"

4.9 5.93 4 6 95 87

Top of Penthouse
70' - 8"

Underside of
Hoistway

74' - 4 1/4"

Pump Rm
-12' - 0"

A B A A AB B

C C

C C

C C

E

D D

E

D

E

D

F F
B

F
B

F
G

H

B

K K K K K

KKKKLL M MN N

O OK

5
' -

 4
"

1
0

' -
 0

"

1
5

' -
 4

"
1

1
' -

 4
 5

/8
"

1
1

' -
 1

0
 5

/8
"

1
1

' -
 1

0
 5

/8
"

1
1

' -
 0

 5
/8

"
1

4
' -

 5
 1

/2
"

1
2

' -
 0

"

3.2

KJ

JM M

M

-

---

DRAWN BY

FILE NAME

CHECKED BY

JOB NUMBER

DATE

SHEET NUMBER

REVISIONS

PRELIMINARY

BIDS

PERMITS

CONSTRUCTION

01-18-2021

MM-DD-YYYY

MM-DD-YYYY

MM-DD-YYYY

COPYRIGHT 2021

ALEXANDER V.
BOGAERTS + ASSOC.

C
L

IE
N

T
/ 

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S

H
E

E
T

 T
IT

L
E

NOTE TO BUILDING OFFICIAL:
THIS DRAWING IS NOT VALID 
UNLESS THE SIGNATURE AND 
SEAL ARE IN BLUE INK. BIM 360://All Seasons

Birmingham/All
Seasons.rvt

2
/2

5
/2

0
2

1
 1

:0
8
:3

7
 P

M

Author

Checker

1975

-

A401

B
e
zt

a
k
 C

o
m

p
a
n

ie
s

A
ll 

S
e
a
s
o
n
s
 o

f 
B

ir
m

in
g
h

a
m

 P
h
2

B
ir

m
in

g
h

a
m

 M
I

W
e
s
t 

E
le

va
ti
o
n
 (

E
lm

 S
tr

e
e
t)

3/16" = 1'-0"A201

1 West (Front) Elevation

City Comm 02-26-21

CLAY CHIMNEY 
POT
(NON-OPERABLE)
ON CEMENT WASH

4" STONE 
CAP ON 4" 
STONE BAND

1X3 CEMENT FIBER
TRIM W/ ALUM CAP
@ROOFTOP WALLS
(TYP.)

SCREENWALL
AT EMERG
GENERATOR

EMERG GENERATOR (BEYOND)

STONE PANELS

12" PROJECTION x
24" HIGH EIFS 
CORNICE WITH 
STUCCO FINISH

FABRIC AWNING 
24" PROJECTION 
(TYP.)

1x4 
CEMENTFIBER 
TRIM SURROUND 
(TYP.)

FULL-DEPTH BRICK (TYP.)

DOUBLE REVEAL (3" AND 4") 
CEMENT FIBER SIDING 
(TYP.)

12" PROJECTION x
24" HIGH EIFS 
CORNICE WITH 
STUCCO FINISH

24" PROJECTION x
24" HIGH EIFS 
CORNICE WITH 
STUCCO FINISH

STONE SILL 
(TYP.)

1X4 CEMENTFIBER BOARD 
SURROUND W PANEL 
MOLDING ON CEMENT FIBER 
PANEL (TYP.)

12" HIGH FLARED STONE LINTEL w/ 
14"x14" HIGH STONE KEY (TYP.)

DRIP MOULD ON 1x12 
CEMENTFIBER BOARD 
TRIM (TYP.)

3" STONE BAND 
PROJECT 1" (TYP.)

10" RADIUSED STONE ARCH 
W/ 2" STONE TOP

STONE PANELS (TYP.)

5" STONE BAND. PROJECT 1" (TYP.)

GAS METER

FIRE DEPT. CONN.
WALL MOUNTED LIGHT FIXTURE (TYP.)12" HIGH STONE LINTEL - EXTEND 

4" PAST MASONRY OPENING (TYP.)
42" HIGH IRON GATE (TYP.)

2" TRIM ON 12" 
RADIUSED WOOD 
TRIM (TYP.)

OPEN TO BEYONDOPEN TO BEYONDOPEN TO BEYOND

OPEN AIR 3"x12" TRELLIS @5'-0" 
O.C. (BEYOND) (TYP.)

42" HIGH ALUMINUM RAILING (TYP.)

24" PROJECTION x 24" HIGH EIFS 
CORNICE WITH STUCCO FINISH

12" PROJECTION x 24" HIGH EIFS 
CORNICE WITH STUCCO FINISH

BUILDING FACADE AREA CALCULATIONS

WEST (FRONT) ELEVATION - FIRST FLOOR
WINDOWS 564 SF
SKIN 1408 SF
TOTAL: 1972 SF

FLOORS 2 THROUGH ROOF
WEST (FRONT) ELEVATION NORTH ELEVATION EAST ELEVATION SOUTH ELEVATION
WINDOWS 2172 SF WINDOWS 197 SF WINDOWS 1850 SF WINDOWS 288 SF
SKIN 4099 SF SKIN 2806 SF SKIN 4421 SF SKIN 2714 SF
TOTAL: 6271 SF TOTAL: 3003 SF TOTAL: 6271 SF TOTAL: 3002 SF



Ground Level
0"

Second Floor
14' - 5 1/2"

Third Floor
25' - 6 1/8"

Fourth Floor
37' - 4 3/4"

Fifth Floor
49' - 3 3/8"

Roof
60' - 8"

5

A501
Chimney

76' - 0"

Elev pit
-5' - 6"

Top of Penthouse
70' - 8"

Underside of
Hoistway

74' - 4 1/4"

ABDEFH G

5
' -

 4
"

1
0

' -
 0

"
1

1
' -

 4
 5

/8
"

1
1

' -
 1

0
 5

/8
"

1
1

' -
 1

0
 5

/8
"

1
1

' -
 0

 5
/8

"
1

4
' -

 5
 1

/2
"

1

A502

P Q

R

P

P

P

P

Q

Q

Q

R

R

H

S

JKL

2
' -

 0
"

DRAWN BY

FILE NAME

CHECKED BY

JOB NUMBER

DATE

SHEET NUMBER

REVISIONS

PRELIMINARY

BIDS

PERMITS

CONSTRUCTION

01-18-2021

MM-DD-YYYY

MM-DD-YYYY

MM-DD-YYYY

COPYRIGHT 2021

ALEXANDER V.
BOGAERTS + ASSOC.

C
L

IE
N

T
/ 

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S

H
E

E
T

 T
IT

L
E

NOTE TO BUILDING OFFICIAL:
THIS DRAWING IS NOT VALID 
UNLESS THE SIGNATURE AND 
SEAL ARE IN BLUE INK. BIM 360://All Seasons

Birmingham/All
Seasons.rvt

2
/2

5
/2

0
2

1
 1

:0
8
:4

1
 P

M

Author

Checker

1975

-

A402

B
e
zt

a
k
 C

o
m

p
a
n

ie
s

A
ll 

S
e
a
s
o
n
s
 o

f 
B

ir
m

in
g
h

a
m

 P
h
2

B
ir

m
in

g
h

a
m

 M
I

N
o

rt
h

 (
L

e
ft

 S
id

e
) 

E
le

va
ti
o

n

3/16" = 1'-0"A201

1 North (Left side) Elevation

City Comm 02-26-21

CLAY CHIMNEY 
POT
(NON-OPERABLE)
ON CEMENT WASH

4" STONE 
CAP ON 4" 
STONE BAND

STONE PANELS

12" PROJECTION x
24" HIGH EIFS 
CORNICE WITH 
STUCCO FINISH

FABRIC AWNING 
24" PROJECTION 
(TYP.)

1x4 
CEMENTFIBER 
TRIM SURROUND 
(TYP.)

DOUBLE REVEAL (3" AND 4") 
CEMENT FIBER SIDING 
(TYP.)

STONE SILL 
(TYP.)

12" HIGH STONE LINTEL EXTEND 4" 
PAST MASONRY OPENING (TYP.)

10" RADIUSED STONE ARCH 
W/ 2" STONE TOP

STONE PANELS (TYP.)

SPANDREL GLASS (TYP. AT STAIRS)

FULL DEPTH BRICK (TYP.)

DRIP MOULD ON 1x12 
CEMENTFIBER BOARD TRIM 
(TYP.)

44" HIGH x 32" PROJECTION x 8 1/2" 
WIDE BRACKET (TYP.)

4" WIDE REVEAL (TYP.)

FIRE RATED GLASS 
CONSTRUCTION (TYP.)

SCREENWALL 
(TYP.)

12" RADIUSED STONE ARCH (TYP.)

42" HIGH ALUMINUM RAILING (TYP.)

12" PROJECTION x 24" HIGH EFIS 
CORNICE WITH STUCCO FINISH

WALL MOUNTED LIGHT FIXTURE (TYP.)

24" PROJECTION x 24" HIGH EFIS 
CORNICE WITH STUCCO FINISH

10" RADIUSED STONE ARCH W/ 
2" STONE TOP (TYP.)



Ground Level
0"

Second Floor
14' - 5 1/2"

Third Floor
25' - 6 1/8"

FF @ Trash/FP
-1' - 0"

Fourth Floor
37' - 4 3/4"

Fifth Floor
49' - 3 3/8"

Roof
60' - 8"

1210

1

A505
1

A504

3

A503

Chimney
76' - 0"

FF @ Stair B
-1' - 9 1/8"

Elev pit
-5' - 6"

4.95.9 3469 58 7

Top of Penthouse
70' - 8"

Underside of
Hoistway

74' - 4 1/4"

Pump Rm
-12' - 0"

K

K

K

K K

K

K

K

K

K

K

T

T

T

T

T

T

T

T T

T

T

T

U

U

U U

U

U U

U

U

3.2

DRAWN BY

FILE NAME

CHECKED BY

JOB NUMBER

DATE

SHEET NUMBER

REVISIONS

PRELIMINARY

BIDS

PERMITS

CONSTRUCTION

01-18-2021

MM-DD-YYYY

MM-DD-YYYY

MM-DD-YYYY

COPYRIGHT 2021

ALEXANDER V.
BOGAERTS + ASSOC.

C
L

IE
N

T
/ 

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S

H
E

E
T

 T
IT

L
E

NOTE TO BUILDING OFFICIAL:
THIS DRAWING IS NOT VALID 
UNLESS THE SIGNATURE AND 
SEAL ARE IN BLUE INK. BIM 360://All Seasons

Birmingham/All
Seasons.rvt

2
/2

5
/2

0
2

1
 1

:0
8
:4

7
 P

M

Author

Checker

1975

-

A403

B
e
zt

a
k
 C

o
m

p
a
n

ie
s

A
ll 

S
e
a
s
o
n
s
 o

f 
B

ir
m

in
g
h

a
m

 P
h
2

B
ir

m
in

g
h

a
m

 M
I

E
a

s
t 

(R
e

a
r)

 E
le

va
ti
o

n

3/16" = 1'-0"A201

1 East (Rear) Elevation

City Comm 02-26-21

LIGHT FIXTURES (TYP.)

FULL LIGHT DOOR AND SIDELITE

CALL BOX

CLAY CHIMNEY 
POT
(NON-OPERABLE)
ON CEMENT WASH

4" STONE 
CAP ON 4" 
STONE BAND

STONE PANELS

12" PROJECTION x
24" HIGH EIFS 
CORNICE WITH 
STUCCO FINISH

FABRIC AWNING 
24" PROJECTION 
(TYP.)

1x4 
CEMENTFIBER 
TRIM SURROUND 
(TYP.)

DOUBLE REVEAL (3" AND 4") 
CEMENT FIBER SIDING 
(TYP.)

STONE SILL 
(TYP.)

12" HIGH STONE LINTEL EXTEND 4" 
PAST MASONRY OPENING (TYP.)

STONE PANELS (TYP.)

FULL DEPTH BRICK (TYP.)

DRIP MOULD ON 1x12 
CEMENTFIBER BOARD TRIM 
(TYP.)

44" HIGH x 32" PROJECTION x 8 1/2" 
WIDE BRACKET (TYP.)



Ground Level
0"

Second Floor
14' - 5 1/2"

Third Floor
25' - 6 1/8"

FF @ Trash/FP
-1' - 0"

Fourth Floor
37' - 4 3/4"

Fifth Floor
49' - 3 3/8"

Roof
60' - 8"

5

A501
Chimney

76' - 0"

FF @ Stair B
-1' - 9 1/8"

Elev pit
-5' - 6"

Top of Penthouse
70' - 8"

Underside of
Hoistway

74' - 4 1/4"

A B C F H

1

A502

Pump Rm
-12' - 0"

Q

Q Q Q

QQ

Q Q

V

V

V

V

VW

J K L

DRAWN BY

FILE NAME

CHECKED BY

JOB NUMBER

DATE

SHEET NUMBER

REVISIONS

PRELIMINARY

BIDS

PERMITS

CONSTRUCTION

01-18-2021

MM-DD-YYYY

MM-DD-YYYY

MM-DD-YYYY

COPYRIGHT 2021

ALEXANDER V.
BOGAERTS + ASSOC.

C
L

IE
N

T
/ 

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S

H
E

E
T

 T
IT

L
E

NOTE TO BUILDING OFFICIAL:
THIS DRAWING IS NOT VALID 
UNLESS THE SIGNATURE AND 
SEAL ARE IN BLUE INK. BIM 360://All Seasons

Birmingham/All
Seasons.rvt

2
/2

5
/2

0
2

1
 1

:0
8
:5

2
 P

M

Author

Checker

1975

-

A404

B
e
zt

a
k
 C

o
m

p
a
n

ie
s

A
ll 

S
e
a
s
o
n
s
 o

f 
B

ir
m

in
g
h

a
m

 P
h
2

B
ir

m
in

g
h

a
m

 M
I

S
o
u
th

 (
R

ig
h
t 

S
id

e
) 

E
le

va
ti
o
n

3/16" = 1'-0"A201

1 South (Right side) Elevation

City Comm 02-26-21

12" PROJECTION x
24" HIGH EIFS 
CORNICE WITH 
STUCCO FINISH

FABRIC AWNING 
24" PROJECTION 
(TYP.)

DOUBLE REVEAL (3" AND 4") 
CEMENT FIBER SIDING 
(TYP.)

STONE SILL 
(TYP.)

12" HIGH STONE LINTEL EXTEND 4" 
PAST MASONRY OPENING (TYP.)

10" RADIUSED STONE ARCH 
W/ 2" STONE TOP

STONE PANELS (TYP.)

FULL DEPTH BRICK (TYP.)

DRIP MOULD ON 1x12 
CEMENTFIBER BOARD TRIM 
(TYP.)

44" HIGH x 32" PROJECTION x 8 1/2" 
WIDE BRACKET (TYP.)

CLAY CHIMNEY 
POT
(NON-OPERABLE)
ON CEMENT WASH

4" STONE 
CAP ON 4" 
STONE BAND

STONE PANELS



Ground Level
0"

Second Floor
14' - 5 1/2"

Third Floor
25' - 6 1/8"

Fourth Floor
37' - 4 3/4"

Fifth Floor
49' - 3 3/8"

Roof
60' - 8"

5

A501

Chimney
76' - 0"

FF @ Stair B
-1' - 9 1/8"

Elev pit
-5' - 6"

Top of Penthouse
70' - 8"

Underside of
Hoistway

74' - 4 1/4"

AB D E F HG

1

A502

Pump Rm
-12' - 0"

A600

1

A601

1

J K L

1
2

' -
 0

"
1

4
' -

 5
 1

/2
"

1
1

' -
 0

 5
/8

"
1

1
' -

 1
0

 5
/8

"
1

1
' -

 1
0

 5
/8

"
1

1
' -

 4
 5

/8
"

1
0

' -
 0

"

T/O Pavers
61' - 11 3/4"

DRAWN BY

FILE NAME

CHECKED BY

JOB NUMBER

DATE

SHEET NUMBER

REVISIONS

PRELIMINARY

BIDS

PERMITS

CONSTRUCTION

01-18-2021

MM-DD-YYYY

MM-DD-YYYY

MM-DD-YYYY

COPYRIGHT 2021

ALEXANDER V.
BOGAERTS + ASSOC.

C
L

IE
N

T
/ 

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S

H
E

E
T

 T
IT

L
E

NOTE TO BUILDING OFFICIAL:
THIS DRAWING IS NOT VALID 
UNLESS THE SIGNATURE AND 
SEAL ARE IN BLUE INK. BIM 360://All Seasons

Birmingham/All
Seasons.rvt

2
/2

5
/2

0
2

1
 1

:0
8
:5

4
 P

M

Author

Checker

1975

-

A504

B
e
zt

a
k
 C

o
m

p
a
n

ie
s

A
ll 

S
e
a
s
o
n
s
 o

f 
B

ir
m

in
g
h

a
m

 P
h
2

B
ir

m
in

g
h

a
m

 M
I

B
u

ild
in

g
 S

e
c
ti
o

n
 D

3/16" = 1'-0"A200

1 Section D

City Comm 02-26-21



ALL SEASONS OF BIRMINGHAM
219 ELM STREET

ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN ARE THE PROPERTY OF

PEA, INC. THEY ARE SUBMITTED ON THE CONDITION

THAT THEY ARE NOT TO BE USED, REPRODUCED, OR

COPIED, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, OR USED FOR

FURNISHING INFORMATION TO OTHERS, WITHOUT THE

PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT OF PEA, INC. ALL COMMON

LAW RIGHTS OF COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE ARE

HEREBY SPECIFICALLY RESERVED.     ©  2020 PEA, INC.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED

CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE

AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE

CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION

OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS

AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE

MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED

TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,

INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR

ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE

OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY

ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN

PROFESSIONAL.

PEA JOB NO. 2012-049

D
E

S
.

CAUTION!!

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS

DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS

EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE

COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE

FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

D
N

.
S

U
R

.
P

.
M

.

3 FULL WORKING DAYS

BEFORE YOU DIG CALL

www.missdig.org

1-800-482-7171

(TOLL FREE)

MISS DIG System, Inc.

811

Know what's below

Call
before you dig

www.peainc.com

SEPTEMBER 25, 2020

NOT  FOR  CONSTRUCTION

2430 Rochester Ct., Ste. 100

Troy, MI  48083-1872

t: 248.689.9090

f: 248.689.1044

PEA, Inc.

SCALE: 1" = 10'

T
M

K
T

M
K

K
T

R
J
B

T

N
o

.
B

Y
C

H
K

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N
D

A
T

E

P
A

R
T

 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
N

E
 
1

/
4

 
O

F
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
3

6
,
 
T

.
 
2

N
.
,
 
R

.
 
1

0
E

.
,

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
B

R
I
M

I
N

G
H

A
M

,
 
O

A
K

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

B
E

Z
T

A
K

 
C

O
M

P
A

N
I
E

S

3
1

7
3

1
 
N

O
R

T
H

W
E

S
T

E
R

N
 
H

W
Y

,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
2

5
0

W
 

F
A

R
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
H

I
L

L
S

,
 
M

I
 
4

8
3

3
4

A
L

L
 
S

E
A

S
O

N
S

 
O

F
 
B

I
R

M
I
N

G
H

A
M

 
P

H
.
 
I
I

1
T

M
K

J
B

T
R

E
V

I
S

I
O

N
S

 
P

E
R

 
R

E
V

I
E

W
 
D

A
T

E
D

 
D

E
C

E
M

B
E

R
 
9

,
 
2

0
2

0
1
/
2
6
/
2
0
2
0

2
T

M
K

J
B

T
A

D
D

E
D

 
C

A
R

P
O

R
T

2
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
0

COVER

C
O

V
E

R
 
S

H
E

E
T

PHASE 2 



ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN ARE THE PROPERTY OF

PEA, INC. THEY ARE SUBMITTED ON THE CONDITION

THAT THEY ARE NOT TO BE USED, REPRODUCED, OR

COPIED, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, OR USED FOR

FURNISHING INFORMATION TO OTHERS, WITHOUT THE

PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT OF PEA, INC. ALL COMMON

LAW RIGHTS OF COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE ARE

HEREBY SPECIFICALLY RESERVED.     ©  2020 PEA, INC.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED

CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE

AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE

CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION

OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS

AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE

MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED

TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,

INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR

ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE

OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY

ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN

PROFESSIONAL.

PEA JOB NO. 2012-049

D
E

S
.

CAUTION!!

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS

DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS

EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE

COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE

FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

D
N

.
S

U
R

.
P

.
M

.

3 FULL WORKING DAYS

BEFORE YOU DIG CALL

www.missdig.org

1-800-482-7171

(TOLL FREE)

MISS DIG System, Inc.

811

Know what's below

Call
before you dig

www.peainc.com

SEPTEMBER 25, 2020

NOT  FOR  CONSTRUCTION

2430 Rochester Ct., Ste. 100

Troy, MI  48083-1872

t: 248.689.9090

f: 248.689.1044

PEA, Inc.

SCALE: 1" = 10'

T
M

K
T

M
K

K
T

R
J
B

T

N
o

.
B

Y
C

H
K

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N
D

A
T

E

P
A

R
T

 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
N

E
 
1

/
4

 
O

F
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
3

6
,
 
T

.
 
2

N
.
,
 
R

.
 
1

0
E

.
,

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
B

R
I
M

I
N

G
H

A
M

,
 
O

A
K

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

B
E

Z
T

A
K

 
C

O
M

P
A

N
I
E

S

3
1

7
3

1
 
N

O
R

T
H

W
E

S
T

E
R

N
 
H

W
Y

,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
2

5
0

W
 

F
A

R
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
H

I
L

L
S

,
 
M

I
 
4

8
3

3
4

A
L

L
 
S

E
A

S
O

N
S

 
O

F
 
B

I
R

M
I
N

G
H

A
M

 
P

H
.
 
I
I

1
T

M
K

J
B

T
R

E
V

I
S

I
O

N
S

 
P

E
R

 
R

E
V

I
E

W
 
D

A
T

E
D

 
D

E
C

E
M

B
E

R
 
9

,
 
2

0
2

0
1
/
2
6
/
2
0
2
0

2
T

M
K

J
B

T
A

D
D

E
D

 
C

A
R

P
O

R
T

2
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
0

P-1.0

T
O

P
O

G
R

A
P

H
I
C

 
S

U
R

V
E

Y



ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN ARE THE PROPERTY OF

PEA, INC. THEY ARE SUBMITTED ON THE CONDITION

THAT THEY ARE NOT TO BE USED, REPRODUCED, OR

COPIED, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, OR USED FOR

FURNISHING INFORMATION TO OTHERS, WITHOUT THE

PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT OF PEA, INC. ALL COMMON

LAW RIGHTS OF COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE ARE

HEREBY SPECIFICALLY RESERVED.     ©  2020 PEA, INC.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED

CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE

AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE

CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION

OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS

AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE

MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED

TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,

INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR

ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE

OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY

ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN

PROFESSIONAL.

PEA JOB NO. 2012-049

D
E

S
.

CAUTION!!

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS

DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS

EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE

COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE

FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

D
N

.
S

U
R

.
P

.
M

.

3 FULL WORKING DAYS

BEFORE YOU DIG CALL

www.missdig.org

1-800-482-7171

(TOLL FREE)

MISS DIG System, Inc.

811

Know what's below

Call
before you dig

www.peainc.com

SEPTEMBER 25, 2020

NOT  FOR  CONSTRUCTION

2430 Rochester Ct., Ste. 100

Troy, MI  48083-1872

t: 248.689.9090

f: 248.689.1044

PEA, Inc.

SCALE: 1" = 10'

T
M

K
T

M
K

K
T

R
J
B

T

N
o

.
B

Y
C

H
K

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N
D

A
T

E

P
A

R
T

 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
N

E
 
1

/
4

 
O

F
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
3

6
,
 
T

.
 
2

N
.
,
 
R

.
 
1

0
E

.
,

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
B

R
I
M

I
N

G
H

A
M

,
 
O

A
K

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

B
E

Z
T

A
K

 
C

O
M

P
A

N
I
E

S

3
1

7
3

1
 
N

O
R

T
H

W
E

S
T

E
R

N
 
H

W
Y

,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
2

5
0

W
 

F
A

R
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
H

I
L

L
S

,
 
M

I
 
4

8
3

3
4

A
L

L
 
S

E
A

S
O

N
S

 
O

F
 
B

I
R

M
I
N

G
H

A
M

 
P

H
.
 
I
I

1
T

M
K

J
B

T
R

E
V

I
S

I
O

N
S

 
P

E
R

 
R

E
V

I
E

W
 
D

A
T

E
D

 
D

E
C

E
M

B
E

R
 
9

,
 
2

0
2

0
1
/
2
6
/
2
0
2
0

2
T

M
K

J
B

T
A

D
D

E
D

 
C

A
R

P
O

R
T

2
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
0

P-2.0

P
R

E
L

I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
S

I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N



ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN ARE THE PROPERTY OF

PEA, INC. THEY ARE SUBMITTED ON THE CONDITION

THAT THEY ARE NOT TO BE USED, REPRODUCED, OR

COPIED, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, OR USED FOR

FURNISHING INFORMATION TO OTHERS, WITHOUT THE

PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT OF PEA, INC. ALL COMMON

LAW RIGHTS OF COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE ARE

HEREBY SPECIFICALLY RESERVED.     ©  2020 PEA, INC.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED

CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE

AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE

CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION

OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS

AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE

MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED

TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,

INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR

ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE

OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY

ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN

PROFESSIONAL.

PEA JOB NO. 2012-049

D
E

S
.

CAUTION!!

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS

DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS

EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE

COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE

FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

D
N

.
S

U
R

.
P

.
M

.

3 FULL WORKING DAYS

BEFORE YOU DIG CALL

www.missdig.org

1-800-482-7171

(TOLL FREE)

MISS DIG System, Inc.

811

Know what's below

Call
before you dig

www.peainc.com

SEPTEMBER 25, 2020

NOT  FOR  CONSTRUCTION

2430 Rochester Ct., Ste. 100

Troy, MI  48083-1872

t: 248.689.9090

f: 248.689.1044

PEA, Inc.

SCALE: 1" = 10'

T
M

K
T

M
K

K
T

R
J
B

T

N
o

.
B

Y
C

H
K

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N
D

A
T

E

P
A

R
T

 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
N

E
 
1

/
4

 
O

F
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
3

6
,
 
T

.
 
2

N
.
,
 
R

.
 
1

0
E

.
,

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
B

R
I
M

I
N

G
H

A
M

,
 
O

A
K

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

B
E

Z
T

A
K

 
C

O
M

P
A

N
I
E

S

3
1

7
3

1
 
N

O
R

T
H

W
E

S
T

E
R

N
 
H

W
Y

,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
2

5
0

W
 

F
A

R
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
H

I
L

L
S

,
 
M

I
 
4

8
3

3
4

A
L

L
 
S

E
A

S
O

N
S

 
O

F
 
B

I
R

M
I
N

G
H

A
M

 
P

H
.
 
I
I

1
T

M
K

J
B

T
R

E
V

I
S

I
O

N
S

 
P

E
R

 
R

E
V

I
E

W
 
D

A
T

E
D

 
D

E
C

E
M

B
E

R
 
9

,
 
2

0
2

0
1
/
2
6
/
2
0
2
0

2
T

M
K

J
B

T
A

D
D

E
D

 
C

A
R

P
O

R
T

2
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
0

P-3.0

P
R

E
L

I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
G

R
A

D
I
N

G
 
A

N
D

 
U

T
I
L

I
T

Y
 
P

L
A

N



ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN ARE THE PROPERTY OF

PEA, INC. THEY ARE SUBMITTED ON THE CONDITION

THAT THEY ARE NOT TO BE USED, REPRODUCED, OR

COPIED, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, OR USED FOR

FURNISHING INFORMATION TO OTHERS, WITHOUT THE

PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT OF PEA, INC. ALL COMMON

LAW RIGHTS OF COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE ARE

HEREBY SPECIFICALLY RESERVED.     ©  2020 PEA, INC.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED

CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE

AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE

CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION

OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS

AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE

MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED

TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,

INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR

ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE

OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY

ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN

PROFESSIONAL.

PEA JOB NO. 2012-049

D
E

S
.

CAUTION!!

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS

DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS

EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE

COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE

FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

D
N

.
S

U
R

.
P

.
M

.

3 FULL WORKING DAYS

BEFORE YOU DIG CALL

www.missdig.org

1-800-482-7171

(TOLL FREE)

MISS DIG System, Inc.

811

Know what's below

Call
before you dig

www.peainc.com

SEPTEMBER 25, 2020

NOT  FOR  CONSTRUCTION

2430 Rochester Ct., Ste. 100

Troy, MI  48083-1872

t: 248.689.9090

f: 248.689.1044

PEA, Inc.

SCALE: 1" = 10'

T
M

K
T

M
K

K
T

R
J
B

T

N
o

.
B

Y
C

H
K

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N
D

A
T

E

P
A

R
T

 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
N

E
 
1

/
4

 
O

F
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
3

6
,
 
T

.
 
2

N
.
,
 
R

.
 
1

0
E

.
,

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
B

R
I
M

I
N

G
H

A
M

,
 
O

A
K

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

B
E

Z
T

A
K

 
C

O
M

P
A

N
I
E

S

3
1

7
3

1
 
N

O
R

T
H

W
E

S
T

E
R

N
 
H

W
Y

,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
2

5
0

W
 

F
A

R
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
H

I
L

L
S

,
 
M

I
 
4

8
3

3
4

A
L

L
 
S

E
A

S
O

N
S

 
O

F
 
B

I
R

M
I
N

G
H

A
M

 
P

H
.
 
I
I

1
T

M
K

J
B

T
R

E
V

I
S

I
O

N
S

 
P

E
R

 
R

E
V

I
E

W
 
D

A
T

E
D

 
D

E
C

E
M

B
E

R
 
9

,
 
2

0
2

0
1
/
2
6
/
2
0
2
0

2
T

M
K

J
B

T
A

D
D

E
D

 
C

A
R

P
O

R
T

2
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
0

P-4

E
X

I
S

T
I
N

G
 
C

O
N

D
I
T

I
O

N
S

SCALE: SEE DWG



ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN ARE THE PROPERTY OF

PEA, INC. THEY ARE SUBMITTED ON THE CONDITION

THAT THEY ARE NOT TO BE USED, REPRODUCED, OR

COPIED, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, OR USED FOR

FURNISHING INFORMATION TO OTHERS, WITHOUT THE

PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT OF PEA, INC. ALL COMMON

LAW RIGHTS OF COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE ARE

HEREBY SPECIFICALLY RESERVED.     ©  2020 PEA, INC.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED

CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE

AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE

CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION

OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS

AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE

MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED

TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,

INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR

ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE

OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY

ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN

PROFESSIONAL.

PEA JOB NO. 2012-049

D
E

S
.

CAUTION!!

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS

DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS

EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE

COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE

FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

D
N

.
S

U
R

.
P

.
M

.

3 FULL WORKING DAYS

BEFORE YOU DIG CALL

www.missdig.org

1-800-482-7171

(TOLL FREE)

MISS DIG System, Inc.

811

Know what's below

Call
before you dig

www.peainc.com

SEPTEMBER 25, 2020

NOT  FOR  CONSTRUCTION

2430 Rochester Ct., Ste. 100

Troy, MI  48083-1872

t: 248.689.9090

f: 248.689.1044

PEA, Inc.

SCALE: 1" = 10'

T
M

K
T

M
K

K
T

R
J
B

T

N
o

.
B

Y
C

H
K

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N
D

A
T

E

P
A

R
T

 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
N

E
 
1

/
4

 
O

F
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
3

6
,
 
T

.
 
2

N
.
,
 
R

.
 
1

0
E

.
,

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
B

R
I
M

I
N

G
H

A
M

,
 
O

A
K

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

B
E

Z
T

A
K

 
C

O
M

P
A

N
I
E

S

3
1

7
3

1
 
N

O
R

T
H

W
E

S
T

E
R

N
 
H

W
Y

,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
2

5
0

W
 

F
A

R
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
H

I
L

L
S

,
 
M

I
 
4

8
3

3
4

A
L

L
 
S

E
A

S
O

N
S

 
O

F
 
B

I
R

M
I
N

G
H

A
M

 
P

H
.
 
I
I

1
T

M
K

J
B

T
R

E
V

I
S

I
O

N
S

 
P

E
R

 
R

E
V

I
E

W
 
D

A
T

E
D

 
D

E
C

E
M

B
E

R
 
9

,
 
2

0
2

0
1
/
2
6
/
2
0
2
0

2
T

M
K

J
B

T
A

D
D

E
D

 
C

A
R

P
O

R
T

2
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
0

P-5.0

S
I
T

E
 
C

O
N

N
E

C
T

I
V

I
T

Y
 
P

L
A

N



ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN ARE THE PROPERTY OF

PEA, INC. THEY ARE SUBMITTED ON THE CONDITION

THAT THEY ARE NOT TO BE USED, REPRODUCED, OR

COPIED, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, OR USED FOR

FURNISHING INFORMATION TO OTHERS, WITHOUT THE

PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT OF PEA, INC. ALL COMMON

LAW RIGHTS OF COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE ARE

HEREBY SPECIFICALLY RESERVED.     ©  2020 PEA, INC.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED

CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE

AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE

CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION

OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS

AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE

MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED

TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,

INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR

ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE

OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY

ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN

PROFESSIONAL.

PEA JOB NO. 2012-049

D
E

S
.

CAUTION!!

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS

DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS

EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE

COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE

FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

D
N

.
S

U
R

.
P

.
M

.

3 FULL WORKING DAYS

BEFORE YOU DIG CALL

www.missdig.org

1-800-482-7171

(TOLL FREE)

MISS DIG System, Inc.

811

Know what's below

Call
before you dig

www.peainc.com

SEPTEMBER 25, 2020

NOT  FOR  CONSTRUCTION

2430 Rochester Ct., Ste. 100

Troy, MI  48083-1872

t: 248.689.9090

f: 248.689.1044

PEA, Inc.

SCALE: 1" = 10'

T
M

K
T

M
K

K
T

R
J
B

T

N
o

.
B

Y
C

H
K

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N
D

A
T

E

P
A

R
T

 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
N

E
 
1

/
4

 
O

F
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
3

6
,
 
T

.
 
2

N
.
,
 
R

.
 
1

0
E

.
,

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
B

R
I
M

I
N

G
H

A
M

,
 
O

A
K

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

B
E

Z
T

A
K

 
C

O
M

P
A

N
I
E

S

3
1

7
3

1
 
N

O
R

T
H

W
E

S
T

E
R

N
 
H

W
Y

,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
2

5
0

W
 

F
A

R
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
H

I
L

L
S

,
 
M

I
 
4

8
3

3
4

A
L

L
 
S

E
A

S
O

N
S

 
O

F
 
B

I
R

M
I
N

G
H

A
M

 
P

H
.
 
I
I

1
T

M
K

J
B

T
R

E
V

I
S

I
O

N
S

 
P

E
R

 
R

E
V

I
E

W
 
D

A
T

E
D

 
D

E
C

E
M

B
E

R
 
9

,
 
2

0
2

0
1
/
2
6
/
2
0
2
0

2
T

M
K

J
B

T
A

D
D

E
D

 
C

A
R

P
O

R
T

2
/
2
5
/
2
0
2
0

L-1.0

KEY:

= GENERAL SITE TREES

= SHRUBS

= GROUNDCOVERS

= EXISTING TREE TO BE SAVED

WITH TREE PROTECTION FENCE

1375

NOAH A.

No.

LANDSCAPE

BIRMELIN

ARCHITECT

S

T

A

T

E

 
 
  

O

F

    

M

I
C

H

I

G

A

N

R

E
G

I
S

T

E

R

E

D

L

A

N

D
S

C

A

P

E

A

R

C

H

I

T

E
C

T

L
A

N
D

S
C

A
P

E
 
P

L
A

N



ORIGINAL ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
E

V
I
S

I
O

N
S

THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN ARE THE PROPERTY OF

PEA, INC. THEY ARE SUBMITTED ON THE CONDITION

THAT THEY ARE NOT TO BE USED, REPRODUCED, OR

COPIED, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, OR USED FOR

FURNISHING INFORMATION TO OTHERS, WITHOUT THE

PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT OF PEA, INC. ALL COMMON

LAW RIGHTS OF COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE ARE

HEREBY SPECIFICALLY RESERVED.     ©  2020 PEA, INC.

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED

CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE

AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE

CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION

OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS

AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE

MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED

TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION

CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,

INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL

HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR

ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE

OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY

ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN

PROFESSIONAL.

PEA JOB NO. 2012-049

D
E

S
.

CAUTION!!

THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS

DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS

EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE

COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE

FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND

ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

D
N

.
S

U
R

.
P

.
M

.

3 FULL WORKING DAYS

BEFORE YOU DIG CALL

www.missdig.org

1-800-482-7171

(TOLL FREE)

MISS DIG System, Inc.

811

Know what's below

Call
before you dig

www.peainc.com

SEPTEMBER 25, 2020

NOT  FOR  CONSTRUCTION

2430 Rochester Ct., Ste. 100

Troy, MI  48083-1872

t: 248.689.9090

f: 248.689.1044

PEA, Inc.

SCALE: 1" = 10'

T
M

K
T

M
K

K
T

R
J
B

T

N
o

.
B

Y
C

H
K

D
E

S
C

R
I
P

T
I
O

N
D

A
T

E

P
A

R
T

 
O

F
 
T

H
E

 
N

E
 
1

/
4

 
O

F
 
S

E
C

T
I
O

N
 
3

6
,
 
T

.
 
2

N
.
,
 
R

.
 
1

0
E

.
,

C
I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
B

R
I
M

I
N

G
H

A
M

,
 
O

A
K

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
U

N
T

Y
,
 
M

I
C

H
I
G

A
N

B
E

Z
T

A
K

 
C

O
M

P
A

N
I
E

S

3
1

7
3

1
 
N

O
R

T
H

W
E

S
T

E
R

N
 
H

W
Y

,
 
S

U
I
T

E
 
2

5
0

W
 

F
A

R
M

I
N

G
T

O
N

 
H

I
L

L
S

,
 
M

I
 
4

8
3

3
4

A
L

L
 
S

E
A

S
O

N
S

 
O

F
 
B

I
R

M
I
N

G
H

A
M

 
P

H
.
 
I
I

1
T

M
K

J
B

T
R

E
V

I
S

I
O

N
S

 
P

E
R

 
R

E
V

I
E

W
 
D

A
T

E
D

 
D

E
C

E
M

B
E

R
 
9

,
 
2

0
2

0
1
/
2
6
/
2
0
2
0

L-2.0

P
R

E
L

I
M

I
N

A
R

Y
 
L

A
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 
 
D

E
T

A
I
L

S

1375

NOAH A.

No.

LANDSCAPE

BIRMELIN

ARCHITECT

S

T

A

T

E

 
 
  

O

F

    

M

I
C

H

I

G

A

N

R

E
G

I
S

T

E

R

E

D

L

A

N

D
S

C

A

P

E

A

R

C

H

I

T

E
C

T



Drawing Note

THIS DRAWING WAS GENERATED FROM AN ELECTRONIC
IMAGE FOR ESTIMATION PURPOSE ONLY. LAYOUT TO BE
VERIFIED IN FIELD BY OTHERS.

A
L
L
 S

E
A
S
O

N
S
 O

F
 B

IR
M

IN
G

H
A
M

 -
 P

H
A
S
E
 2

P
H

O
T
O

M
E
T
R
IC

 E
X
T
E
R
IO

R
 P

L
A
N

P
R
E
P
A
R
E
D

 F
O

R
: 

X
A
N

D
E
R
 V

. 
B
O

G
A
E
R
T
S
 +

 A
S
S
O

C
IA

T
E
S

G
A
S
S
E
R
 B

U
S
H

 A
S
S
O

C
IA

T
E
S

 
W

W
W

.G
A
S
S
E
R
B
U

S
H

.C
O

M

Designer

TV/KB

Date

9/11/2020
rev. 2/25/2021

Scale

Not to Scale

Drawing No.

#20-53754-V4

1 of 5

Statistics

Description Symbol Avg Max Min Max/Min Avg/Min Avg/Max

1ST FLOOR 0.6 fc 5.9 fc 0.0 fc N/A N/A 0.1:1

1ST FLOOR UNIT ENTRANCE (TYP.) 5.1 fc 5.1 fc 5.1 fc 1.0:1 1.0:1 1.0:1

2ND FLOOR BALCONY 2.0 fc 3.3 fc 1.2 fc 2.8:1 1.7:1 0.6:1

3RD FLOOR BALCONY 2.0 fc 2.9 fc 1.2 fc 2.4:1 1.7:1 0.7:1

4TH FLOOR BALCONY (TYP.) 0.2 fc 0.3 fc 0.1 fc 3.0:1 2.0:1 0.7:1

5TH FLOOR BALCONY (TYP.) 0.2 fc 0.3 fc 0.1 fc 3.0:1 2.0:1 0.7:1

CARPORT 0.8 fc 2.0 fc 0.2 fc 10.0:1 4.0:1 0.4:1

DTE SCREEN WALL AREA 2.1 fc 5.9 fc 0.6 fc 9.8:1 3.5:1 0.4:1

ROOFTOP EGRESS PATH 4.7 fc 13.8 fc 0.6 fc 23.0:1 7.8:1 0.3:1

ROOFTOP TERRACE 1.9 fc 28.7 fc 0.0 fc N/A N/A 0.1:1

General Note

1.  SEE SCHEDULE FOR LUMINAIRE MOUNTING HEIGHT.
2.  CALCULATIONS ARE SHOWN IN FOOTCANDLES AT: 0' - 0" ABOVE GRADE/FINISHED FLOOR

THE ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT MUST DETERMINE APPLICABILITY OF THE LAYOUT TO EXISTING / FUTURE
FIELD CONDITIONS.  THIS LIGHTING LAYOUT REPRESENTS ILLUMINATION LEVELS CALCULATED FROM
LABORATORY DATA TAKEN UNDER CONTROLLED CONDITIONS IN ACCORDANCE WITH ILLUMINATING
ENGINEERING SOCIETY APPROVED METHODS.  ACTUAL PERFORMANCE OF ANY MANUFACTURER'S LUMINAIRE
MAY VARY DUE TO VARIATION IN ELECTRICAL VOLTAGE, TOLERANCE IN LAMPS, AND OTHER VARIABLE FIELD
CONDITIONS.  MOUNTING HEIGHTS INDICATED ARE FROM GRADE AND/OR FLOOR UP.

THESE LIGHTING CALCULATIONS ARE NOT A SUBSTITUTE FOR INDEPENDENT ENGINEERING ANALYSIS OF
LIGHTING SYSTEM SUITABILITY AND SAFETY.  THE ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT IS RESPONSIBLE TO REVIEW
FOR MICHIGAN ENERGY CODE AND LIGHTING QUALITY COMPLIANCE.

UNLESS EXEMPT, PROJECT MUST COMPLY WITH LIGHTING CONTROLS REQUIRMENTS DEFINED IN ASHRAE 90.1
2013. FOR SPECIFIC INFORMATION CONTACT GBA CONTROLS GROUP AT ASG@GASSERBUSH.COM OR 734-266-
6705.

1.5

0.4

1.5

0.7

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.2

1.2

5.8

2.6

1.0

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.3

1.0

3.5

2.3

0.9

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

1.0

0.5

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.6

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.6

2.0

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

1.1

1.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

1.2

1.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.9

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.5

1.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.4

1.8

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.7

0.6

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

1.2

0.8

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

1.4

2.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

1.0

2.6

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.5

1.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.5

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

1.5

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.6

1.6

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

1.0

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.2

1.2

0.9

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.9

2.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.5

2.4

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.2

0.8

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.5

1.3

0.8

0.6

1.1

0.1

0.5

0.1

0.1

0.5

3.2

0.1

2.4

0.1

0.1

0.6

2.0

0.1

0.1

0.3

1.0

0.3

0.3

0.8

0.9

0.4

0.5

1.7

0.6

0.4

0.9

1.0

0.4

0.3

0.5

0.5

0.3

0.4

0.8

0.9

0.4

0.5

1.7

0.6

0.4

1.1

1.2

0.5

0.3

0.6

0.7

0.4

0.4

1.3

1.4

0.6

0.5

1.7

1.9

0.6

0.4

0.8

0.8

0.4

0.4

0.8

0.8

0.4

0.5

1.7

1.9

0.6

0.4

1.3

1.5

0.6

0.3

0.6

0.7

0.4

0.4

1.0

1.1

0.5

0.5

1.7

0.6

0.4

0.8

0.9

0.4

1.4

1.0

4.6

1.2

0.7

1.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.6

5.9

2.0 2.0 2.0

5.9

5.1

A

A A A

B1

B1C

C C C C C C

D D D D D
D

FFFFF

B2

B2

B2

Plan View - FIRST
Scale - 1/8" = 1ft

Ordering Note

FOR INQUIRIES CONTACT GASSER BUSH AT
QUOTES@GASSERBUSH.COM OR 734-266-
6705.

Schedule

Symbol Label QTY Manufacturer Catalog Number Description Lamp
Number
Lamps

Lumens
per Lamp

LLF Wattage Mounting Height

A
5 BEGA 55821+K3 LED RECESSED DOWNLIGHT LED 1 326 0.9 6 11'-2" & 13'-4"

B1
5 TECH LIGHTING 700OWSPITSC-LED830 PITCH LED WALL MOUNT LUMINAIRE LED 1 803 0.9 26.2 9'-0"

B2
3 TECH LIGHTING 700OWSPITSC-LED830 PITCH LED WALL MOUNT LUMINAIRE LED 1 803 0.9 26.2 4'-6"

C
11 BROWNLEE LIGHTING 7176-18-H8LED-30K BEAM LED WALL SCONCE LED 1 698 0.9 7.88131 6'-6"

D
6 VISA LIGHTING OW1721-L30K-L WALL MOUNT OUTDOOR SQUARE LED 1 1415 0.9 30.3 6'-6"

E
21 TECH LIGHTING 700OSWEND92730x120 WEND STEP LIGHT LED 1 344 0.9 12.1 1'-6"

F
5 Brownlee Lighting Inc 7162-B06-35K HI-IMPACT CEILING MOUNT LUMINAIRE LED 1 6 7'-0"0.9694



Drawing Note

THIS DRAWING WAS GENERATED FROM AN ELECTRONIC
IMAGE FOR ESTIMATION PURPOSE ONLY. LAYOUT TO BE
VERIFIED IN FIELD BY OTHERS.

A
L
L
 S

E
A
S
O

N
S
 O

F
 B

IR
M

IN
G

H
A
M

 -
 P

H
A
S
E
 2

P
H

O
T
O

M
E
T
R
IC

 E
X
T
E
R
IO

R
 P

L
A
N

P
R
E
P
A
R
E
D

 F
O

R
: 

X
A
N

D
E
R
 V

. 
B
O

G
A
E
R
T
S
 +

 A
S
S
O

C
IA

T
E
S

G
A
S
S
E
R
 B

U
S
H

 A
S
S
O

C
IA

T
E
S

 
W

W
W

.G
A
S
S
E
R
B
U

S
H

.C
O

M

Designer

TV/KB

Date

9/11/2020
rev. 2/25/2021

Scale

Not to Scale

Drawing No.

#20-53754-V4

2 of 5

Statistics

Description Symbol Avg Max Min Max/Min Avg/Min Avg/Max

1ST FLOOR 0.6 fc 5.9 fc 0.0 fc N/A N/A 0.1:1

1ST FLOOR UNIT ENTRANCE (TYP.) 5.1 fc 5.1 fc 5.1 fc 1.0:1 1.0:1 1.0:1

2ND FLOOR BALCONY 2.0 fc 3.3 fc 1.2 fc 2.8:1 1.7:1 0.6:1

3RD FLOOR BALCONY 2.0 fc 2.9 fc 1.2 fc 2.4:1 1.7:1 0.7:1

4TH FLOOR BALCONY (TYP.) 0.2 fc 0.3 fc 0.1 fc 3.0:1 2.0:1 0.7:1

5TH FLOOR BALCONY (TYP.) 0.2 fc 0.3 fc 0.1 fc 3.0:1 2.0:1 0.7:1

CARPORT 0.8 fc 2.0 fc 0.2 fc 10.0:1 4.0:1 0.4:1

DTE SCREEN WALL AREA 2.1 fc 5.9 fc 0.6 fc 9.8:1 3.5:1 0.4:1

ROOFTOP EGRESS PATH 4.7 fc 13.8 fc 0.6 fc 23.0:1 7.8:1 0.3:1

ROOFTOP TERRACE 1.9 fc 28.7 fc 0.0 fc N/A N/A 0.1:1

General Note

1.  SEE SCHEDULE FOR LUMINAIRE MOUNTING HEIGHT.
2.  CALCULATIONS ARE SHOWN IN FOOTCANDLES AT: 0' - 0" ABOVE GRADE/FINISHED FLOOR

THE ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT MUST DETERMINE APPLICABILITY OF THE LAYOUT TO EXISTING / FUTURE
FIELD CONDITIONS.  THIS LIGHTING LAYOUT REPRESENTS ILLUMINATION LEVELS CALCULATED FROM
LABORATORY DATA TAKEN UNDER CONTROLLED CONDITIONS IN ACCORDANCE WITH ILLUMINATING
ENGINEERING SOCIETY APPROVED METHODS.  ACTUAL PERFORMANCE OF ANY MANUFACTURER'S LUMINAIRE
MAY VARY DUE TO VARIATION IN ELECTRICAL VOLTAGE, TOLERANCE IN LAMPS, AND OTHER VARIABLE FIELD
CONDITIONS.  MOUNTING HEIGHTS INDICATED ARE FROM GRADE AND/OR FLOOR UP.

THESE LIGHTING CALCULATIONS ARE NOT A SUBSTITUTE FOR INDEPENDENT ENGINEERING ANALYSIS OF
LIGHTING SYSTEM SUITABILITY AND SAFETY.  THE ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT IS RESPONSIBLE TO REVIEW
FOR MICHIGAN ENERGY CODE AND LIGHTING QUALITY COMPLIANCE.

UNLESS EXEMPT, PROJECT MUST COMPLY WITH LIGHTING CONTROLS REQUIRMENTS DEFINED IN ASHRAE 90.1
2013. FOR SPECIFIC INFORMATION CONTACT GBA CONTROLS GROUP AT ASG@GASSERBUSH.COM OR 734-266-
6705.

1.7

1.91.2

3.3

A

Plan View - SECOND
Scale - 1/8" = 1ft

Ordering Note

FOR INQUIRIES CONTACT GASSER BUSH AT
QUOTES@GASSERBUSH.COM OR 734-266-
6705.

Schedule

Symbol Label QTY Manufacturer Catalog Number Description Lamp
Number
Lamps

Lumens
per Lamp

LLF Wattage Mounting Height

A
5 BEGA 55821+K3 LED RECESSED DOWNLIGHT LED 1 326 0.9 6 11'-2" & 13'-4"

B1
5 TECH LIGHTING 700OWSPITSC-LED830 PITCH LED WALL MOUNT LUMINAIRE LED 1 803 0.9 26.2 9'-0"

B2
3 TECH LIGHTING 700OWSPITSC-LED830 PITCH LED WALL MOUNT LUMINAIRE LED 1 803 0.9 26.2 4'-6"

C
11 BROWNLEE LIGHTING 7176-18-H8LED-30K BEAM LED WALL SCONCE LED 1 698 0.9 7.88131 6'-6"

D
6 VISA LIGHTING OW1721-L30K-L WALL MOUNT OUTDOOR SQUARE LED 1 1415 0.9 30.3 6'-6"

E
21 TECH LIGHTING 700OSWEND92730x120 WEND STEP LIGHT LED 1 344 0.9 12.1 1'-6"

F
5 Brownlee Lighting Inc 7162-B06-35K HI-IMPACT CEILING MOUNT LUMINAIRE LED 1 6 7'-0"694 0.9



Drawing Note

THIS DRAWING WAS GENERATED FROM AN ELECTRONIC
IMAGE FOR ESTIMATION PURPOSE ONLY. LAYOUT TO BE
VERIFIED IN FIELD BY OTHERS.

A
L
L
 S

E
A
S
O

N
S
 O

F
 B

IR
M

IN
G

H
A
M

 -
 P

H
A
S
E
 2

P
H

O
T
O

M
E
T
R
IC

 E
X
T
E
R
IO

R
 P

L
A
N

P
R
E
P
A
R
E
D

 F
O

R
: 

X
A
N

D
E
R
 V

. 
B
O

G
A
E
R
T
S
 +

 A
S
S
O

C
IA

T
E
S

G
A
S
S
E
R
 B

U
S
H

 A
S
S
O

C
IA

T
E
S

 
W

W
W

.G
A
S
S
E
R
B
U

S
H

.C
O

M

Designer

TV/KB

Date

9/11/2020
rev. 2/25/2021

Scale

Not to Scale

Drawing No.

#20-53754-V4

3 of 5

Statistics

Description Symbol Avg Max Min Max/Min Avg/Min Avg/Max

1ST FLOOR 0.6 fc 5.9 fc 0.0 fc N/A N/A 0.1:1

1ST FLOOR UNIT ENTRANCE (TYP.) 5.1 fc 5.1 fc 5.1 fc 1.0:1 1.0:1 1.0:1

2ND FLOOR BALCONY 2.0 fc 3.3 fc 1.2 fc 2.8:1 1.7:1 0.6:1

3RD FLOOR BALCONY 2.0 fc 2.9 fc 1.2 fc 2.4:1 1.7:1 0.7:1

4TH FLOOR BALCONY (TYP.) 0.2 fc 0.3 fc 0.1 fc 3.0:1 2.0:1 0.7:1

5TH FLOOR BALCONY (TYP.) 0.2 fc 0.3 fc 0.1 fc 3.0:1 2.0:1 0.7:1

CARPORT 0.8 fc 2.0 fc 0.2 fc 10.0:1 4.0:1 0.4:1

DTE SCREEN WALL AREA 2.1 fc 5.9 fc 0.6 fc 9.8:1 3.5:1 0.4:1

ROOFTOP EGRESS PATH 4.7 fc 13.8 fc 0.6 fc 23.0:1 7.8:1 0.3:1

ROOFTOP TERRACE 1.9 fc 28.7 fc 0.0 fc N/A N/A 0.1:1

General Note

1.  SEE SCHEDULE FOR LUMINAIRE MOUNTING HEIGHT.
2.  CALCULATIONS ARE SHOWN IN FOOTCANDLES AT: 0' - 0" ABOVE GRADE/FINISHED FLOOR

THE ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT MUST DETERMINE APPLICABILITY OF THE LAYOUT TO EXISTING / FUTURE
FIELD CONDITIONS.  THIS LIGHTING LAYOUT REPRESENTS ILLUMINATION LEVELS CALCULATED FROM
LABORATORY DATA TAKEN UNDER CONTROLLED CONDITIONS IN ACCORDANCE WITH ILLUMINATING
ENGINEERING SOCIETY APPROVED METHODS.  ACTUAL PERFORMANCE OF ANY MANUFACTURER'S LUMINAIRE
MAY VARY DUE TO VARIATION IN ELECTRICAL VOLTAGE, TOLERANCE IN LAMPS, AND OTHER VARIABLE FIELD
CONDITIONS.  MOUNTING HEIGHTS INDICATED ARE FROM GRADE AND/OR FLOOR UP.

THESE LIGHTING CALCULATIONS ARE NOT A SUBSTITUTE FOR INDEPENDENT ENGINEERING ANALYSIS OF
LIGHTING SYSTEM SUITABILITY AND SAFETY.  THE ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT IS RESPONSIBLE TO REVIEW
FOR MICHIGAN ENERGY CODE AND LIGHTING QUALITY COMPLIANCE.

UNLESS EXEMPT, PROJECT MUST COMPLY WITH LIGHTING CONTROLS REQUIRMENTS DEFINED IN ASHRAE 90.1
2013. FOR SPECIFIC INFORMATION CONTACT GBA CONTROLS GROUP AT ASG@GASSERBUSH.COM OR 734-266-
6705.

1.3

2.61.2

2.9

B1

Plan View - THIRD
Scale - 1/8" = 1ft

Ordering Note

FOR INQUIRIES CONTACT GASSER BUSH AT
QUOTES@GASSERBUSH.COM OR 734-266-
6705.

Schedule

Symbol Label QTY Manufacturer Catalog Number Description Lamp
Number
Lamps

Lumens
per Lamp

LLF Wattage Mounting Height

A
5 BEGA 55821+K3 LED RECESSED DOWNLIGHT LED 1 326 0.9 6 11'-2" & 13'-4"

B1
5 TECH LIGHTING 700OWSPITSC-LED830 PITCH LED WALL MOUNT LUMINAIRE LED 1 803 0.9 26.2 9'-0"

B2
3 TECH LIGHTING 700OWSPITSC-LED830 PITCH LED WALL MOUNT LUMINAIRE LED 1 803 0.9 26.2 4'-6"

C
11 BROWNLEE LIGHTING 7176-18-H8LED-30K BEAM LED WALL SCONCE LED 1 698 0.9 7.88131 6'-6"

D
6 VISA LIGHTING OW1721-L30K-L WALL MOUNT OUTDOOR SQUARE LED 1 1415 0.9 30.3 6'-6"

E
21 TECH LIGHTING 700OSWEND92730x120 WEND STEP LIGHT LED 1 344 0.9 12.1 1'-6"

F
5 Brownlee Lighting Inc 7162-B06-35K HI-IMPACT CEILING MOUNT LUMINAIRE LED 1 6 7'-0"0.9694



Drawing Note

THIS DRAWING WAS GENERATED FROM AN ELECTRONIC
IMAGE FOR ESTIMATION PURPOSE ONLY. LAYOUT TO BE
VERIFIED IN FIELD BY OTHERS.

A
L
L
 S

E
A
S
O

N
S
 O

F
 B

IR
M

IN
G

H
A
M

 -
 P

H
A
S
E
 2

P
H

O
T
O

M
E
T
R
IC

 E
X
T
E
R
IO

R
 P

L
A
N

P
R
E
P
A
R
E
D

 F
O

R
: 

X
A
N

D
E
R
 V

. 
B
O

G
A
E
R
T
S
 +

 A
S
S
O

C
IA

T
E
S

G
A
S
S
E
R
 B

U
S
H

 A
S
S
O

C
IA

T
E
S

 
W

W
W

.G
A
S
S
E
R
B
U

S
H

.C
O

M

Designer

TV/KB

Date

9/11/2020
rev. 2/25/2021

Scale

Not to Scale

Drawing No.

#20-53754-V4

4 of 5

Statistics

Description Symbol Avg Max Min Max/Min Avg/Min Avg/Max

1ST FLOOR 0.6 fc 5.9 fc 0.0 fc N/A N/A 0.1:1

1ST FLOOR UNIT ENTRANCE (TYP.) 5.1 fc 5.1 fc 5.1 fc 1.0:1 1.0:1 1.0:1

2ND FLOOR BALCONY 2.0 fc 3.3 fc 1.2 fc 2.8:1 1.7:1 0.6:1

3RD FLOOR BALCONY 2.0 fc 2.9 fc 1.2 fc 2.4:1 1.7:1 0.7:1

4TH FLOOR BALCONY (TYP.) 0.2 fc 0.3 fc 0.1 fc 3.0:1 2.0:1 0.7:1

5TH FLOOR BALCONY (TYP.) 0.2 fc 0.3 fc 0.1 fc 3.0:1 2.0:1 0.7:1

CARPORT 0.8 fc 2.0 fc 0.2 fc 10.0:1 4.0:1 0.4:1

DTE SCREEN WALL AREA 2.1 fc 5.9 fc 0.6 fc 9.8:1 3.5:1 0.4:1

ROOFTOP EGRESS PATH 4.7 fc 13.8 fc 0.6 fc 23.0:1 7.8:1 0.3:1

ROOFTOP TERRACE 1.9 fc 28.7 fc 0.0 fc N/A N/A 0.1:1

General Note

1.  SEE SCHEDULE FOR LUMINAIRE MOUNTING HEIGHT.
2.  CALCULATIONS ARE SHOWN IN FOOTCANDLES AT: 0' - 0" ABOVE GRADE/FINISHED FLOOR

THE ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT MUST DETERMINE APPLICABILITY OF THE LAYOUT TO EXISTING / FUTURE
FIELD CONDITIONS.  THIS LIGHTING LAYOUT REPRESENTS ILLUMINATION LEVELS CALCULATED FROM
LABORATORY DATA TAKEN UNDER CONTROLLED CONDITIONS IN ACCORDANCE WITH ILLUMINATING
ENGINEERING SOCIETY APPROVED METHODS.  ACTUAL PERFORMANCE OF ANY MANUFACTURER'S LUMINAIRE
MAY VARY DUE TO VARIATION IN ELECTRICAL VOLTAGE, TOLERANCE IN LAMPS, AND OTHER VARIABLE FIELD
CONDITIONS.  MOUNTING HEIGHTS INDICATED ARE FROM GRADE AND/OR FLOOR UP.

THESE LIGHTING CALCULATIONS ARE NOT A SUBSTITUTE FOR INDEPENDENT ENGINEERING ANALYSIS OF
LIGHTING SYSTEM SUITABILITY AND SAFETY.  THE ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT IS RESPONSIBLE TO REVIEW
FOR MICHIGAN ENERGY CODE AND LIGHTING QUALITY COMPLIANCE.

UNLESS EXEMPT, PROJECT MUST COMPLY WITH LIGHTING CONTROLS REQUIRMENTS DEFINED IN ASHRAE 90.1
2013. FOR SPECIFIC INFORMATION CONTACT GBA CONTROLS GROUP AT ASG@GASSERBUSH.COM OR 734-266-
6705.

0.2 0.2

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.10.3 0.3CC

Plan View - FOURTH
Scale - 1/8" = 1ft

Ordering Note

FOR INQUIRIES CONTACT GASSER BUSH AT
QUOTES@GASSERBUSH.COM OR 734-266-
6705.

Schedule

Symbol Label QTY Manufacturer Catalog Number Description Lamp
Number
Lamps

Lumens
per Lamp

LLF Wattage Mounting Height

A
5 BEGA 55821+K3 LED RECESSED DOWNLIGHT LED 1 326 0.9 6 11'-2" & 13'-4"

B1
5 TECH LIGHTING 700OWSPITSC-LED830 PITCH LED WALL MOUNT LUMINAIRE LED 1 803 0.9 26.2 9'-0"

B2
3 TECH LIGHTING 700OWSPITSC-LED830 PITCH LED WALL MOUNT LUMINAIRE LED 1 803 0.9 26.2 4'-6"

C
11 BROWNLEE LIGHTING 7176-18-H8LED-30K BEAM LED WALL SCONCE LED 1 698 0.9 7.88131 6'-6"

D
6 VISA LIGHTING OW1721-L30K-L WALL MOUNT OUTDOOR SQUARE LED 1 1415 0.9 30.3 6'-6"

E
21 TECH LIGHTING 700OSWEND92730x120 WEND STEP LIGHT LED 1 344 0.9 12.1 1'-6"

F
5 Brownlee Lighting Inc 7162-B06-35K HI-IMPACT CEILING MOUNT LUMINAIRE LED 1 6 7'-0"0.9694



Drawing Note

THIS DRAWING WAS GENERATED FROM AN ELECTRONIC
IMAGE FOR ESTIMATION PURPOSE ONLY. LAYOUT TO BE
VERIFIED IN FIELD BY OTHERS.

A
L
L
 S

E
A
S
O

N
S
 O

F
 B

IR
M

IN
G

H
A
M

 -
 P

H
A
S
E
 2

P
H

O
T
O

M
E
T
R
IC

 E
X
T
E
R
IO

R
 P

L
A
N

P
R
E
P
A
R
E
D

 F
O

R
: 

X
A
N

D
E
R
 V

. 
B
O

G
A
E
R
T
S
 +

 A
S
S
O

C
IA

T
E
S

G
A
S
S
E
R
 B

U
S
H

 A
S
S
O

C
IA

T
E
S

 
W

W
W

.G
A
S
S
E
R
B
U

S
H

.C
O

M

Designer

TV/KB

Date

9/11/2020
rev. 2/25/2021

Scale

Not to Scale

Drawing No.

#20-53754-V4

5 of 5

Statistics

Description Symbol Avg Max Min Max/Min Avg/Min Avg/Max

1ST FLOOR 0.6 fc 5.9 fc 0.0 fc N/A N/A 0.1:1

1ST FLOOR UNIT ENTRANCE (TYP.) 5.1 fc 5.1 fc 5.1 fc 1.0:1 1.0:1 1.0:1

2ND FLOOR BALCONY 2.0 fc 3.3 fc 1.2 fc 2.8:1 1.7:1 0.6:1

3RD FLOOR BALCONY 2.0 fc 2.9 fc 1.2 fc 2.4:1 1.7:1 0.7:1

4TH FLOOR BALCONY (TYP.) 0.2 fc 0.3 fc 0.1 fc 3.0:1 2.0:1 0.7:1

5TH FLOOR BALCONY (TYP.) 0.2 fc 0.3 fc 0.1 fc 3.0:1 2.0:1 0.7:1

CARPORT 0.8 fc 2.0 fc 0.2 fc 10.0:1 4.0:1 0.4:1

DTE SCREEN WALL AREA 2.1 fc 5.9 fc 0.6 fc 9.8:1 3.5:1 0.4:1

ROOFTOP EGRESS PATH 4.7 fc 13.8 fc 0.6 fc 23.0:1 7.8:1 0.3:1

ROOFTOP TERRACE 1.9 fc 28.7 fc 0.0 fc N/A N/A 0.1:1

General Note

1.  SEE SCHEDULE FOR LUMINAIRE MOUNTING HEIGHT.
2.  CALCULATIONS ARE SHOWN IN FOOTCANDLES AT: 0' - 0" ABOVE GRADE/FINISHED FLOOR

THE ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT MUST DETERMINE APPLICABILITY OF THE LAYOUT TO EXISTING / FUTURE
FIELD CONDITIONS.  THIS LIGHTING LAYOUT REPRESENTS ILLUMINATION LEVELS CALCULATED FROM
LABORATORY DATA TAKEN UNDER CONTROLLED CONDITIONS IN ACCORDANCE WITH ILLUMINATING
ENGINEERING SOCIETY APPROVED METHODS.  ACTUAL PERFORMANCE OF ANY MANUFACTURER'S LUMINAIRE
MAY VARY DUE TO VARIATION IN ELECTRICAL VOLTAGE, TOLERANCE IN LAMPS, AND OTHER VARIABLE FIELD
CONDITIONS.  MOUNTING HEIGHTS INDICATED ARE FROM GRADE AND/OR FLOOR UP.

THESE LIGHTING CALCULATIONS ARE NOT A SUBSTITUTE FOR INDEPENDENT ENGINEERING ANALYSIS OF
LIGHTING SYSTEM SUITABILITY AND SAFETY.  THE ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT IS RESPONSIBLE TO REVIEW
FOR MICHIGAN ENERGY CODE AND LIGHTING QUALITY COMPLIANCE.

UNLESS EXEMPT, PROJECT MUST COMPLY WITH LIGHTING CONTROLS REQUIRMENTS DEFINED IN ASHRAE 90.1
2013. FOR SPECIFIC INFORMATION CONTACT GBA CONTROLS GROUP AT ASG@GASSERBUSH.COM OR 734-266-
6705.

0.2 0.2 0.2

0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1

0.10.3 CC

Plan View - FIFTH
Scale - 1/8" = 1ft

Ordering Note

FOR INQUIRIES CONTACT GASSER BUSH AT
QUOTES@GASSERBUSH.COM OR 734-266-
6705.

Schedule

Symbol Label QTY Manufacturer Catalog Number Description Lamp
Number
Lamps

Lumens
per Lamp

LLF Wattage Mounting Height

A
5 BEGA 55821+K3 LED RECESSED DOWNLIGHT LED 1 326 0.9 6 11'-2" & 13'-4"

B1
5 TECH LIGHTING 700OWSPITSC-LED830 PITCH LED WALL MOUNT LUMINAIRE LED 1 803 0.9 26.2 9'-0"

B2
3 TECH LIGHTING 700OWSPITSC-LED830 PITCH LED WALL MOUNT LUMINAIRE LED 1 803 0.9 26.2 4'-6"

C
11 BROWNLEE LIGHTING 7176-18-H8LED-30K BEAM LED WALL SCONCE LED 1 698 0.9 7.88131 6'-6"

D
6 VISA LIGHTING OW1721-L30K-L WALL MOUNT OUTDOOR SQUARE LED 1 1415 0.9 30.3 6'-6"

E
21 TECH LIGHTING 700OSWEND92730x120 WEND STEP LIGHT LED 1 344 0.9 12.1 1'-6"

F
5 Brownlee Lighting Inc 7162-B06-35K HI-IMPACT CEILING MOUNT LUMINAIRE LED 1 6 7'-0"

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.6

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.3

0.6

6.1

0.4

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.9

9.8

14.2

0.5

0.1

0.1

0.2

1.4

0.1

0.1

1.7

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.5

2.0

0.2

0.9

0.4

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.6

0.9

12.5

0.7

0.1

0.1

0.2

1.9

15.3

16.3

0.7

0.1

0.2

1.2

0.3

0.1

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.6

0.2

8.2

0.6

0.1

0.1

21.9

0.8

0.1

0.2

2.4

28.6

1.9

0.4

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.8

1.9

0.2

0.9

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.4

1.1

0.2

8.8

0.4

0.1

0.1

1.1

15.6

0.1

11.1

0.5

0.1

0.1

0.1

1.2

20.3

1.1

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

1.3

0.1

0.6

0.7

0.5

0.8

0.5

0.1

12.6

12.4

3.4

21.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.0

0.0

0.0

28.7

6.8 13.0 2.2 1.7 11.8 3.3 4.8 9.1 0.8 1.5 13.3 2.4 6.3 7.4 0.7 2.0 1.8 0.7 8.0 5.7 1.5 11.6 3.2 4.7 9.1 0.8 1.5 13.5 2.8

1.2

1.2

1.4

2.2

2.1

7.5

3.3

3.0

9.00.6 0.6 0.613.8

B1

B1
E E E E E E E E E E E

E

E E

E

E

E E

E

E

E

Plan View - ROOF
Scale - 1/8" = 1ft

0.9694



MEMORANDUM 
 

Planning Division 
 
DATE:   January 27th, 2021 
 
TO:   Jana Ecker, Planning Director 
 
FROM:  Nicholas Dupuis, City Planner 
 
SUBJECT: 219 Elm St. – All Seasons 2 – Special Land Use Permit, Final Site 

Plan & Design Review (Updates in Blue) 
 
 
Introduction 
The subject site, 219 Elm Street, is located at the north end of the Triangle District in the MU3 
(Triangle Overlay) and 02 (Office/Commercial) Zoning Districts. Presently, the 0.35 acre parcel 
contains a modest two-story office building, a parking lot with roughly 25 off-street parking 
spaces, six mature trees, and various landscaping elements. The site is directly adjacent to the 
existing All Seasons of Birmingham senior living establishment that was completed around 2015. 
 
On May 13th, 2020 the Planning Board accepted the Community Impact Study for the 
development. The following month on June 10th, the Planning Board approved the Preliminary 
Site Plan with the following conditions:  
 

1. The applicant must submit plans showing the side setback at the NORTH at a minimum 
of 10 ft. or obtain a variance from the Board of Zoning Appeals; 

2. The applicant must complete the requirements of 3.08 (E) to receive additional building 
height; 

3. The applicant must submit a rooftop plan showing a detailed rooftop use including any 
proposed structures; 

4. The applicant must provide construction details on the proposed parking lot screen wall; 
5. The applicant must submit details on all proposed RTUs and details on the proposed 

screen wall to ensure the RTUs are fully screened from public view; 
6. The applicant must submit material specifications, samples, and glazing calculations for 

the proposed building at Final Site Plan review; 
7. The applicant must submit details on the types and placement of all proposed light 

fixtures, as well as a photometric plan showing illumination levels at all property lines; 
and, 

8. The applicant comply with the requests of all City Departments. 
 
At this point, the applicant has submitted most of the documents required by the Planning Board 
in the conditional approval. All of the new information, such as the rooftop use, screening, 
photometrics and glazing will be discussed in the relevant sections below.  
 
On December 9th, 2020, the Planning Board recommended approval to the City 
Commission the Final Site Plan for 219 Elm St. subject to the following conditions:  



1. The Planning Board approves the projections into the right-of-way on the west 
side of the building fronting Elm Street and on the south side facing the public 
alley; 

2. The applicant must either remove the awnings, or provide an easement 
acceptable to the City Attorney with the neighboring property owner for the 
use of the air rights to the north of the building;  

3. The applicant must provide specification sheets for all rooftop and ground 
mounted mechanical units, and the applicant must provide screening for the 
ground-mounted mechanical units or obtain a variance from the Board of 
Zoning Appeals;  

4. The applicant must submit corrected landscaping plans showing the proposed 
locations of all planting material;  

5. The applicant must provide lighting for the parking facility that meets the 
requirements of Article 4, Section 4.21 (F) or obtain a variance from the Board 
of Zoning Appeals;  

6. The applicant must submit material specification sheets for all of the required 
materials; and 

7. The applicant must comply with the requests of all City departments. 
 
The applicant has not yet submitted revised plans and/or documents to satisfy the 
conditions required by the Planning Board. However, the applicant has decided to 
address some of the comments made by the Planning Board with respect to the façade 
materials. Please see the updated Design Review section below. The applicant has 
also noted a fire command center on the first floor, which does not result in any 
changes in units or unit size. 
 
At this time, the applicant is seeking a recommendation from the Planning Board for 
a Special Land Use Permit to permit independent senior living in the O2 Zoning 
District. As advised by the applicant, the All Seasons 2 development is proposed for 
seniors in a younger age bracket (55-75) that desire more independence than what 
the All Seasons 1 development was intended to offer. Although separate buildings, 
residents of the All Seasons 2 will have access to the amenities available in the All 
Seasons 1 building, and a site connection plan has been provided for such an occasion. 
Although this purely residential model differs from the mixed-use developments that 
have been erected in the area, the massing of the building and the proposed 
streetscape elements offer a similar experience from the pedestrian point-of-view. 
 
1.0 Land Use and Zoning 

 
1. Existing Land Use – The existing land use is commercial, and currently contains 

a 2-story office building. 
 

2. Zoning – The subject site exists within the O2 (Office/Commercial) and MU3 
Overlay (Mixed-Use 3) Zoning Districts. 

 
3. Summary of Adjacent Land Use and Zoning –  

 
 



 North South East West 

Existing 
Land Use 

Multiple-
Family 

Residential 
Office/Commercial Multi-Family 

Residential Commercial 

Existing 
Zoning 
District 

O2 (Office/ 
Commercial) O1 (Office) O2 (Office/ 

Commercial) 
O2 (Office/ 

Commercial) 

Overlay 
Zoning 
District 

MU5 (Mixed-
Use 5) 

ASF3 (Attached 
Single-Family) 

MU3 (Mixed-
Use 3) 

MU5 (Mixed-
Use 5) 

 
2.0 Setback and Height Requirements 

 
The attached zoning compliance summary analysis provides the required and proposed 
bulk, area, and placement regulations for the proposed project. The following bulk, area 
and placement issues are present: 
 

1. The applicant has submitted site plans showing the walls at the NORTH and 
SOUTH side setbacks containing windows. Article 3, Section 3.08 (B) of the 
Zoning Ordinance requires walls at the side setback line that contain windows 
to be setback 10 ft. from the side lot line. The SOUTH setback line is adjacent 
to an alley, which permits the applicant a 0 ft. setback requirement per Article 
3, Section 3.16 (C). However, the applicant must submit plans showing 
the side setback at the NORTH at a minimum of 10 ft. or obtain a 
variance from the Board of Zoning Appeals. 
 

2. The maximum building height permitted in the MU3 Zoning district is 42 ft. and 
3 stories. Upon the development of the site, an additional 24 ft. and 2 stories 
may be granted (stepped back at a 45-degree angle from the top story allowed 
by right without the height bonus) with the completion of two or more 
requirements [summarized]: (1) Payment towards public parking facility, (2) 
dedication of an improved public plaza, (3) a mixed use, (4) sustainable LEED 
building design, and (5) transfer of development rights for a site containing a 
historic building. At this time, the applicant has advised that they will be 
providing payment towards the public parking facility and is providing a LEED 
certifiable building design. The applicant must complete the 
requirements of 3.08 (E) to receive additional building height. 

 
 

3. The site plans submitted show a minor building overhang at the front setback 
line above 8 ft. starting at the second floor. Article 4, Section 4.74 (D)(4)(c)(ii) 
states that permanent architectural features such as windows, balconies, 
overhangs and other architectural features that encroach into the right of way 
above 8’ may be approved by the Planning Board, provided that they do not 
extend 2’ or more into the right of way or create an obstruction and that the 
encroachment complies with the design review standards set forth in Article 7 
of the Zoning Ordinance. The proposed projections encroach roughly 1.25 ft. 



into the right of way. Thus, the Planning Board may consider the 
approval of the projections into the right-of-way. 
 
In addition, the applicant is proposing 4 awnings on the north façade over 
select windows that project into the neighboring property. The awnings 
measure approximately 4.5 ft. in projection. Based on the roughly 1 ft. setback, 
the awnings project about 3 ft. into the neighboring property. The applicant 
must either remove the awnings, or provide an easement or license 
agreement with the neighboring property owner for the use of the 
air rights in that area. 
 

4. The applicant is proposing a rooftop use, which is permitted under Article 5, 
Section 5.07 (H) of the Zoning Ordinance. The 1,218 sq. ft. rooftop terrace 
proposed is set back 5 ft. from the eave line as required, and contains a trellis, 
planters, fireplace, grill, and small vestibule. The vestibule (59.5 sq. ft.) is 
roughly the size of the elevator (65.7 sq. ft.), and the rooftop trellis measures 
10 ft. in height. The proposed rooftop use meets all of the requirements of the 
Zoning Ordinance. 

 
3.0 Screening and Landscaping 

 
1. Dumpster Screening – The applicant is proposing to store waste receptacles 

inside the building in a “Trash Room” located on the south side of the building 
adjacent to the public alley. The waste receptacles are fully screened by the 
building envelope. 

 
2. Parking Lot Screening – The site plans submitted show a 3 ft. capped masonry 

screen wall along the parking lot entrance at the south side of the property 
along the alley. The proposed masonry screen wall meets the requirements of 
Article 4, Section 4.54 of the Zoning Ordinance. 
 

3. Mechanical Equipment Screening – The Final Site Plans submitted show a 
rooftop plan and elevations with the location and screening materials proposed 
for the rooftop units on the building. Additionally, there are two new ground 
mounted mechanical units proposed on the site (transformer and switch) 
located at the southeast corner of the off-street parking facility.  

 
The applicant is proposing 24 AC units (in keeping with LEED standards for 
individual temperature controls for each unit) and one large generator. The AC 
units are proposed along the front (west) and rear (east) sides of the rooftop 
and will be screened by a 42 in. screen wall comprised of cement fiber siding. 
The generator is located within a larger, 9 ft. 3 in. screening area located in 
the center of the roof on the south side. The applicant has provided 
specification sheets on the generator (9 ft. 3 in. tall), but has not provided 
specification sheets for the AC units to ensure that all of the rooftop units are 
fully screened. 

 



The ground-mounted mechanical units in the off-street parking facility do not 
appear to contain any proposed screening. These units have a roughly 36 sq. 
ft. footprint each, and the applicant has not provided the specification sheets 
for the units to indicate the height of the units. 

 
The applicant must provide specification sheets for all rooftop and 
ground-mounted mechanical units, and the applicant must provide 
screening for the ground-mounted mechanical units or obtain a 
variance from the Board of Zoning Appeals. 
 

4. Landscaping – The applicant has submitted a landscaping plan for the 
proposed development that depicts two landscaping areas that are within the 
site, and one at the north end of the site that is not within the property limits 
of the subject site. The parking lot does not require separate landscaping, as 
it is roughly 5,400 sq. ft., which is under the 7,500 sq. ft. threshold for parking 
lot landscaping requirements. The first landscaping area exists within the 
peninsula that also houses the parking lot screen wall at the southeast corner 
of the property. The applicant is proposing Pachysandra groundcovers for this 
area. The second landscaping area is located at the northeast corner of the 
property and contains 12 Wintergem Boxwood shrubs and 10 Anabelle 
Hydrangea shrubs.  

 
The landscaping plan seems to have minor conflicts with the “site connectivity 
plan” proposed by the applicant in that 6 of the 12 Wintergem Boxwoods have 
been located in the walking path on the landscape plan. This appears to be a 
minor mistake, as the planting types, counts and relative locations have not 
changed from the Preliminary Site Plan. However, the Planning Division will 
require corrected plans showing the proposed locations of all 
planting material. 
 

5. Streetscape – applicant is proposing to fully furnish the streetscape with the 
required street trees, streetlights, benches, waste receptacles, and bike racks 
to match the Triangle District streetscape design standards.  

 
The proposed development contains 138 ft. of frontage, which requires 3.5 
street trees and streetlights. The applicant is proposing 5 street trees and 3 
streetlights spaced 40 ft. apart. The applicant has indicated that bike racks, 
benches and waste receptacles will be placed where they will most benefit the 
public. The site plan shows 2 benches and 2 waste receptacles, one set closer 
to the southern end of the property, and one set more centrally located within 
the frontage. The 3 proposed bike racks are located at the southwest corner 
of the property. 

 
4.0 Parking, Loading and Circulation 

 
1. Parking – Article 4, Section 4.45 of the Zoning Ordinance requires independent 

senior living complexes to provide 0.5 off-street parking spaces per unit 
proposed. The applicant is proposing 24 units; thus 12 off-street parking 



spaces are required for the development. The site plans submitted show 10 
parking spaces in private garages, and 11 parking spaces in an off-street 
parking facility at the rear (east) of the building for a total of 21 off-street 
parking spaces. The subject site had previously proposed 22 off-street spaces 
at Preliminary Site Plan, but one space was removed to make room for the two 
ground-mounted mechanical units described above. The site is proposing 2 
barrier-free spaces, one in a private garage at the north end of the building, 
and one in the off-street parking facility at the north side of the lot.  

 
2. Loading – The proposed development does not require any off-street loading 

facilities; thus none are proposed. 
 

3. Vehicular Circulation and Access – The site plans submitted show vehicle 
access to the site and off-street parking facility is available via the public alley 
to the south of the building. The private garages are then accessed via the 
parking facility. There are no driveways or garage entrances on Elm St. 

 
4. Pedestrian Circulation and Access – Pedestrian access to the site for the 

residents and general public will be through a main entrance and lobby located 
at the northwest corner of the building. Residents can then access their units 
via stairs or an elevator. The three first floor units also have access directly 
from the Elm St. frontage.  Aside from the 10 private garages to be assigned 
to residents, there is also access at the rear of the building through two doors 
that may be accessed by residents through a keycard or keypad as suggested 
in the CIS.  

 
Additionally, the applicant has submitted a “site connectivity plan” in response 
to the Planning Boards concerns about how the All Seasons 2 will connect with 
the existing All Seasons development (“All Seasons 1”) to the north and east. 
During the Community Impact Study and Preliminary Site Plan reviews, it was 
suggested that residents in the new development will have access to the 
facilities and activities housed in All Seasons 1, and that employees may also 
be accessing both buildings for various reasons. The applicant has shown two 
walking paths to connect users to the front lobby of the All Seasons 1: one 
path from the main entrance on Elm St. which directs the user north and then 
east along a sidewalk, and two, a path from the rear of the building through a 
designated path along the newly proposed parking facility, then east across 
the All Seasons 1 parking facility. The applicant has noted that measures will 
be taken to ensure that route 1 meets ADA standards and that route 2 will 
receive treatments to help delineate the pedestrian walking path such as 
signage and brick pavers (all improvements on the All Seasons 1 property are 
subject to review and approval by the Planning Division and/or Planning 
Board).  

 
5.0 Lighting 

 
The applicant has submitted specifications and a photometric plan for the proposed 
lighting for the development. The lighting plan consists of the following luminaires: 



 
Luminaire Type Location Qty. Manufacturer
LED Recessed Downlight  Main Entrance 

 Ground Floor Unit Recessed 
Patios 

 2nd floor Balcony 

5 BEGA 

Pitched LED Wall Mount  Main & Rear Entrances 
 3rd Floor Balcony 
 Rooftop 

5 Tech Lighting 

Beam LED Wall Sconce  Front (Elm) Façade 
 Rear Entrance 
 4th & 5th Floor Balcony 

11 Brownlee 
Lighting 

Wall Mount Outdoor Square  Rear Façade/Parking Lot 6 Visa Lighting 
Wend Step Light  Rooftop 21 Tech Lighting 

  
Article 4, Section 4.21 (D) requires all proposed luminaires to be fully cut-off and 
positioned in a manner that does not unreasonably invade abutting or adjacent properties. 
Each luminaire proposed appears to be fully cut-off as defined by Article 9, Section 9.02 
of the Zoning Ordinance.  
 
Furthermore, Section 4.21 (E) states that the intensity of light on a site shall not exceed 
six-tenths (0.6) maintained foot-candles at any property line that abuts a single-family 
residential zoned property or one and one half (1.5) maintained foot-candles at any 
property line for any other zoned property. The light intensity shall be measured at 6 ft. 
above ground level on a vertical plane. Additionally, the intensity of light on a site which 
provides a front setback of less than 5’ shall be measured from 5’ beyond the front 
property line. The photometric plan submitted shows illuminance levels that do not exceed 
the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance. In addition to light intensity at the property 
lines, the applicant is required to provide a minimum light intensity for the parking facility 
of a minimum of 0.2 foot-candles. The photometric plan provided shows the majority of 
the parking facility at 0 foot-candles. Thus, the applicant must provide lighting for 
the parking facility that meets the requirements of Article 4, Section 4.21 (F) 
or obtain a variance from the Board of Zoning Appeals. 
 
In addition to a ground-floor photometric, the applicant has also submitted photometric 
information for each floor (balconies), as well as the rooftop use so that the Planning 
Board may better understand what kind of effect the rooftop use may have in terms of 
light pollution. Although the luminaires are all fully cut-off, there are some high 
illumination levels (as high as 28.7 foot-candles) within the rooftop use. It is important to 
note, however, that although there are some high figures present in the rooftop 
photometric, the rooftop use is set back roughly 25 ft. from the front (west) property line, 
and over 60 ft. from the rear (east) property line. 

 
6.0 Departmental Reports 

 
1. Engineering Division – The Engineering Division has not provided any 

comments at this time. All comments received will be provided to the Planning 
Board at Final Site Plan Review 



  
2. Department of Public Services – The Department of Public Services has not 

provided any comments at this time. All comments received will be provided 
to the Planning Board at Final Site Plan Review 
 

3. Fire Department – The Fire Department has provided the following comments: 
 

 The proposed location of the FDC is not acceptable. The FDC shall be 
located on the street (Elm) side of the building, in an unobstructed 
location approved by the Fire Marshal. 

 A new hydrant shall be installed in the area in front of this new 
building on Elm. Hydrant must be within 100 feet of the FDC location. 

 This building will need a fire command room. 
 This building will need to comply with the high rise requirements of the 

Michigan Building Code, and the International Fire Code 2015 Editions.  
 Building will require a fire pump with an alternative power source 

(generator). 
 Fire alarm occupant notification shall be provided on all exterior 

balconies. 
 Any exterior balcony with an overhead projection of 2 feet or more, 

that has any BBQ, fire feature, or any other sources of ignition, shall 
have fire suppression coverage. 

 Submitted floor plans shall show egress travel distances. 
 Width of rear driveway entry shall be shown on submitted floor plan. 

 
Roof: 
 
 Doors from rooftop terrace shall be egress compliant. 
 Exit signs shall be installed at rooftop exit doors. 
 Rooftop terrace shall require emergency lighting to illuminate the path 

of egress during power outages. 
 Fire alarm occupant notification shall be provided on rooftop terrace. 
 Manual fire alarm boxes shall be installed at rooftop egress doors. 
 Fire extinguishers shall be installed near rooftop egress doors. 

 
2. Police Department – The Police Department has cited some general 

concerns about how this development may affect the parking in the area, 
especially in the nearby residential neighborhoods. 

 
3. Building Division – The Building Division has not provided any comments 

at this time. All comments received will be provided to the Planning Board 
at Final Site Plan Review 
 

7.0 Design Review 
 
The applicant has submitted elevation drawings with material details for all elevations. 
Article 3, Section 3.09 states that only mixed-use buildings that contain non-residential 
uses on the ground floor and residential in upper floors and all non-residential buildings 



must follow certain architectural requirements in the Triangle Overlay District. 
Alternatively, Section 3.10 states that attached single-family residential dwellings and 
live/work units must meet a separate set of architectural standards. The proposed senior 
independent living facility does not fit under either classification. Thus, no Triangle District 
Overlay architectural standards are required for the new building. 
 
It is worth reviewing, however, the architectural requirements in Article 3, Sections 3.09 
and 3.10, which include front façade, window and door, and building material 
requirements that are all applicable to the proposed development.  
 
For the front façade, mixed use and commercial buildings are required to have a main 
entrance that is located on at least one street front. Main entrances shall have design 
details that enhance the appearance and prominence of the entrance so that it is 
recognizable from the street and parking areas. The main entrance proposed on Elm St., 
which the applicant has attempted to enhance through the use of balconies and decorative 
railings, appears to meet this standard. In addition to the main entrance, buildings that 
are longer than 100 ft. are required to have a minimum of one usable entrance every full 
50 feet of frontage along the front public sidewalk and shall provide architectural variation 
to visually break the building up. For this 136 ft. building, the applicant has provided 
entrances to the three ground-floor units about every 40 ft. with a patio and decorative 
railings to offer visual interest and attention toward the entrances. 
 
For attached single-family and live work units, all residential units are required to provide 
a pedestrian door facing the front lot line and a front porch with steps. As described above, 
the 3 units on the first floor all contain pedestrian entrances and porches, but the porches 
are at ground-level (no steps). 
 
As for windows and doors, mixed use and commercial buildings are required to meet the 
glazing and clarity requirements in the Triangle Overlay District, which are generally the 
same as the requirements in the underling O2 zoning district. The ground floor façade is 
required to contain a minimum of 70% glazing using clear glass (80% Visual Light 
Transmittance), whereas glazing on the upper floors is capped at a maximum of 50% and 
is permitted to be clear OR lightly tinted (70% Visual Light Transmittance) glass. The 
applicant has not provided (nor is required to provide) glazing calculations or specification 
sheets on glass, but the glazing appears to be significant and consistent. 
 
Finally, both mixed use/commercial and attached single-family/live work buildings in the 
Triangle Overlay District are required to provide a building comprised of high quality 
materials. Mixed-use/commercial buildings are required to provide a minimum of 60% 
brick, stone or glass. Such buildings are also required to create a distinction between the 
first and upper floors through the use of accents such as a string course, change in 
material or textures, or an awning or canopy between the first and second stories. The 
proposed building facades on floors 1-3 are comprised of almost exclusively brick, stone 
and glass. Floors 4 and 5 are clad in cement fiberboard siding. There are some accent 
pieces on all facades of cement fiberboard (moulding, trim) and stucco (cornices), and 
the balconies on floors 2-5 contain a 42 in. high aluminum railing. On the rooftop, the 
applicant is proposing to utilize cement fiberboard in all of the screenwall material, and 



has continued the stone on the chimneys up to a clay chimney pot. Finally, the applicant 
is proposing 15 fabric awnings on the north, east and south facades. 
 
The color scheme for the building facades is as follows: 
 
Material Color  
Brick Grey (Match Existing All Seasons 1) 
Stone Natural (Match Existing All Seasons 1) 
Window Frames & Trim Relaxed Khaki 
Cornice Smokehouse 
Cement Fiberboard Siding Clay Beige 
Awning Fabric Orange  

 
At this time, the applicant has not submitted specification sheets for the aluminum railings 
or the fabric awning proposed. The applicant must submit material specification 
sheets for all of the required materials. 
 
In response to the comments made by the Planning Board regarding façade 
materials that (in summation) make the building a little more interesting and 
differentiate it from the All Seasons 1 development, the applicant is proposing 
several minor changes. These changes include a small area of brick at the 
southeast corner of the building and some alternative materials for the fiber 
cement board proposed on each elevation. The alternative materials are metal 
siding or a 3-coat cement based finish. There are no indications that the 
proposed color of these materials will change. 

 
8.0 Required Attachments 

 Submitted Not Submitted Not Required 
Existing Conditions Plan ☒ ☐ ☐ 
Detailed and Scaled Site Plan ☒ ☐ ☐ 
Certified Land Survey ☒ ☐ ☐ 
Interior Floor Plans ☒ ☐ ☐ 
Landscape Plan ☒ ☐ ☐ 
Photometric Plan ☒ ☐ ☐ 
Colored Elevations ☒ ☐ ☐ 
Material Specification Sheets ☐ ☒ ☐ 
Material Samples ☐ ☐ ☒ 
Site & Aerial Photographs ☒ ☐ ☐ 

 
9.0 Approval Criteria 

In accordance with Article 7, section 7.27 of the Zoning Ordinance, the proposed plans 
for development must meet the following conditions: 

 
(1) The location, size and height of the building, walls and fences shall be such 

that there is adequate landscaped open space so as to provide light, air and 
access to the persons occupying the structure. 

 



(2) The location, size and height of the building, walls and fences shall be such 
that there will be no interference with adequate light, air and access to 
adjacent lands and buildings. 

 
(3) The location, size and height of the building, walls and fences shall be such 

that they will not hinder the reasonable development of adjoining property nor 
diminish the value thereof. 

 
(4) The site plan, and its relation to streets, driveways and sidewalks, shall be such 

as to not interfere with or be hazardous to vehicular and pedestrian traffic. 
 

(5) The proposed development will be compatible with other uses and buildings in 
the neighborhood and will not be contrary to the spirit and purpose of this 
chapter. 

 
(6) The location, shape and size of required landscaped open space is such as to 

provide adequate open space for the benefit of the inhabitants of the building 
and the surrounding neighborhood. 

 
In addition, Article 7, Section 7.26 requires applications for a Special Land Use Permit to 
meet the following criteria: 
 

(1) The use is consistent with and will promote the intent and purpose of this 
Zoning Ordinance. 
 

(2) The use will be compatible with adjacent uses of land, the natural environment, 
and the capabilities of public services and facilities affected by the land use. 

 
(3) The use is consistent with the public health, safety and welfare of the city. 

 
(4) The use is in compliance with all other requirements of this Zoning Ordinance. 

 
(5) The use will not be injurious to the surrounding neighborhood. 

 
(6) The use is in compliance with state and federal statutes. 

 
10.0 Recommendation 

 
Based on a review of the site plan submitted, the Planning Division finds that the proposed 
Final Site Plan meets the requirements of Article 7, section 7.27 of the Zoning Ordinance 
and recommends that the Planning Board recommend APPROVAL of the Final Site Plan 
and Design Review for 219 Elm St. – All Seasons 2 – to the City Commission with the 
following conditions: 
 

1. The applicant must submit plans showing the side setback at the NORTH at a 
minimum of 10 ft. or obtain a variance from the Board of Zoning Appeals; 

2. The Planning Board should approves the projections into the right-of-way; 



3. The applicant must either remove the awnings, or provide some sort of 
easement or license agreement with the neighboring property owner for the 
use of the air rights in that area; 

4. The applicant must provide specification sheets for all rooftop and ground-
mounted mechanical units, and the applicant must provide screening for the 
ground-mounted mechanical units or obtain a variance from the Board of 
Zoning Appeals; 

5. The applicant must submit corrected landscaping plans showing the proposed 
locations of all planting material; 

6. The applicant must provide lighting for the parking facility that meets the 
requirements of Article 4, Section 4.21 (F) or obtain a variance from the Board 
of Zoning Appeals; 

7. The applicant must submit material specification sheets for all of the required 
materials; and 

8. The applicant must comply with the requests of all City departments. 
 

AND 
 
The Planning Division finds that the proposed Final Site Plan and the senior independent 
living community use meets the requirements of Article 7, Section 2.26 of the Zoning 
Ordinance and recommends that the Planning Board recommend APPROVAL of the 
Special Land Use Permit for 219 Elm St. – All Seasons 2 – to the City Commission subject 
to the conditions of Final Site Plan approval. 

 
11.0 Sample Motion Language (Final Site Plan & Design Review) 
 

Motion to recommend APPROVAL to the City Commission the Final Site Plan and Design 
Review for 219 Elm St. – All Seasons 2 – subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. The applicant must submit plans showing the side setback at the NORTH at a 
minimum of 10 ft. or obtain a variance from the Board of Zoning Appeals; 

2. The Planning Board should approves the projections into the right-of-way; 
3. The applicant must either remove the awnings, or provide some sort of 

easement or license agreement with the neighboring property owner for the 
use of the air rights in that area; 

4. The applicant must provide specification sheets for all rooftop and ground-
mounted mechanical units, and the applicant must provide screening for the 
ground-mounted mechanical units or obtain a variance from the Board of 
Zoning Appeals; 

5. The applicant must submit corrected landscaping plans showing the proposed 
locations of all planting material; 

6. The applicant must provide lighting for the parking facility that meets the 
requirements of Article 4, Section 4.21 (F) or obtain a variance from the Board 
of Zoning Appeals;  

7. The applicant must submit material specification sheets for all of the required 
materials; and 

8. The applicant must comply with the requests of all City departments. 
 



 
OR 

 
Motion to POSTPONE the Final Site Plan and Design Review for 219 Elm St. – All Seasons 
2 – pending receipt of the following: 
 

1. ______________________________________________________________ 
2. ______________________________________________________________ 
3. ______________________________________________________________ 
 

OR 
 
Motion to recommend DENIAL to the City Commission the Final Site Plan and Design 
Review for 219 Elm St. – All Seasons 2 – for the following reasons: 
 

1. ______________________________________________________________ 
2. ______________________________________________________________ 
3. ______________________________________________________________ 

 
12.0 Sample Motion Language (Special Land Use Permit) 

 
Motion to recommend APPROVAL to the City Commission the Special Land Use Permit 
for 219 Elm St. – All Seasons 2 – subject to the conditions of Final Site Plan approval. 
 

OR 
 
Motion to POSTPONE the Special Land Use Permit for 219 Elm St. – All Seasons 2 – 
pending receipt of the following: 
 

1. ______________________________________________________________ 
2. ______________________________________________________________ 
3. ______________________________________________________________ 

 
Motion to recommend DENIAL to the City Commission the Special Land Use Permit for 
219 Elm St. – All Seasons 2 – for the following reasons: 
 

1. ______________________________________________________________ 
2. ______________________________________________________________ 
3. ______________________________________________________________ 

 
 

 
 



Page 1 of 3 
 

Zoning Compliance Summary | 219 Elm St. | December 9, 2020 
 

Zoning Compliance Summary Sheet 
 Final Site Plan Review 

219 Elm St. – All Seasons 2 
 

 
Existing Site: 2-Story Office Building & Parking Facility 

Zoning: O2 (Office/Commercial) & MU3 (Mixed Use) 
Land Use: Mixed Use 

 
Existing Land Use and Zoning of Adjacent Properties: 
 

 North South East West 

Existing 
Land Use 

Multiple-
Family 

Residential 
Office/Commercial Multi-Family 

Residential Commercial 

Existing 
Zoning 
District 

O2 (Office/ 
Commercial) O1 (Office) O2 (Office/ 

Commercial) 
O2 (Office/ 

Commercial) 

Overlay 
Zoning 
District 

MU5 (Mixed-
Use 5) 

ASF3 (Attached 
Single-Family) 

MU3 (Mixed-
Use 3) 

MU5 (Mixed-
Use 5) 

 
 

Land Area:   Existing:  0.35 ac. 
Proposed: 0.35 ac. (no changes) 

Dwelling Units: Existing: 0 units 
Proposed: 24 units 

 
Minimum Lot Area/Unit: Required: N/A 

Proposed: N/A 

Min. Floor Area /Unit: Required: N/A 
Proposed: N/A 

 
Max. Total Floor Area: Required: N/A 

Proposed: N/A 

Min. Open Space: Required: N/A 
Proposed: N/A 

Max. Lot Coverage: Required: N/A 
Proposed: N/A 



Page 2 of 3 
 

Zoning Compliance Summary | 219 Elm St. | December 9, 2020 
 

Front Setback: Required: 5 ft. maximum 
Proposed: 0 ft. 

Side Setbacks Required: 10 ft.  for walls that contain windows 
Proposed: ≈ 1 ft. (north) 

10 ft. (south) 
 
The applicant must submit revised plans showing 
a side setback at the north at 10 ft. or obtain a 
variance from the Board of Zoning Appeals. 
 

Min. Rear Setback: Required: 10 ft. 
Proposed: 42 ft.  

Min. Front+Rear Setback Required: N/A 
Proposed: N/A 

 
Max. Bldg. Height: Permitted: 66 ft., 5 stories 

Proposed: 61 ft., 5 stories 

Min. Eave Height: Required: N/A 
Proposed: N/A 

1st Story Height: Required: 14 ft. 
Proposed: 14 ft. 

Front Entry: Required: N/A 
Proposed: N/A 

Absence of Bldg. Façade: Required: N/A 
Proposed: N/A 

Opening Width: Required: N/A 
Proposed: N/A 

Parking: Required: 12 spaces 
Proposed: 21 spaces 

Min. Parking Space Size: Required: 180 sq. ft. 
Proposed: 180 sq. ft. 

Parking in Frontage: Required: N/A 
Proposed: N/A 

Loading Area: Required: N/A 



Page 3 of 3 
 

Zoning Compliance Summary | 219 Elm St. | December 9, 2020 
 

Proposed: N/A 

Screening:   
  

Parking: Required: 32 in. capped masonry 
Proposed: 33 in. capped masonry 

Loading: Required: N/A 
Proposed: N/A 

Rooftop Mechanical: Required: 10 ft. maximum 
Proposed: 42 in. (AC units) 

9 ft. (generator) 
 
The applicant must submit specification sheets for 
all rooftop units to ensure screening from public 
view. 
 

Elect. Transformer: Required: Masonry with wood gates 
Proposed: None 

 
The applicant must provide adequate screening for 
the two ground-mounted electrical units or obtain 
a variance from the Board of Zoning Appeals. 
 

Dumpster: Required: 6 ft. masonry with wood gates 
Proposed: Within building envelope 

 













LEED BD+C: Homes and Multifamily Lowrise v4 - LEED v4

All Seasons of Birmingham II Scorecard (ID: )
Project Address 219 Elm St Birmingham, MI, US

Note: The information on this tab is READ-ONLY.  To edit this information, see the Credit Category tabs.

Integrative Process Preliminary    Y 0 of 2 M 1 Verified 2

IPc Integrative Process 0 of 2 1 2

Location and Transportation Preliminary    Y 0 of 15 M 1 Verified 13

LTp Floodplain Avoidance Required Verified

Performance Path

LTc LEED for Neighborhood Development 0 of 15 0

Prescriptive Path

LTc Site Selection 0 of 8 0 8

LTc Compact Development 0 of 3 0 3

LTc Community Resources 0 of 2 0 2

LTc Access to Transit 0 of 2 1

Sustainable Sites Preliminary    Y 0 of 7 M 2 Verified 0

SSp Construction Activity Pollution Prevention Required Verified

SSp No Invasive Plants Required Verified

SSc Heat Island Reduction 0 of 2 0

SSc Rainwater Management 0 of 3 0

SSc Nontoxic Pest Control 0 of 2 2

Water Efficiency Preliminary    Y 0 of 12 M 0 Verified 8

WEp Water Metering Required Verified

Performance Path

WEc Total Water Use 0 of 12 0

Prescriptive Path

WEc Indoor Water Use 0 of 6 0 5

WEc Outdoor Water Use 0 of 4 0 3

Energy and Atmosphere Preliminary    Y 0 of 38 M 1 Verified 13

EAp Minimum Energy Performance Required Verified

EAp Energy Metering Required Verified

EAp Education of the Homeowner, Tenant or Building Manager Required Verified

Performance Path

EAc Annual Energy Use 0 of 29 0 11

Performance and Prescriptive Paths

EAc Efficient Hot Water Distribution System 0 of 5 0

EAc Advanced Utility Tracking 0 of 2 0 2

EAc Active Solar-Ready Design 0 of 1 0

EAc HVAC Start-Up Credentialing 0 of 1 1

Prescriptive Path

EAp Home Size Required Not Verified

EAc Building Orientation for Passive Solar 0 of 3 0

EAc Air Infiltration 0 of 2 0

EAc Envelope Insulation 0 of 2 0

EAc Windows 0 of 3 0

EAc Space Heating & Cooling Equipment 0 of 4 0

EAc Heating & Cooling Distribution Systems 0 of 3 0

EAc Efficient Domestic Hot Water Equipment 0 of 3 0

EAc Lighting 0 of 2 0

EAc High-Efficiency Appliances 0 of 2 0

EAc Renewable Energy 0 of 4 0

Page 1



Materials and Resources Preliminary    Y 0 of 10 M 3 Verified 2

MRp Certified Tropical Wood Required Verified

MRp Durability Management Required Verified

MRc Durability Management Verification 0 of 1 0 1

MRc Environmentally Preferable Products 0 of 4 0.5 0.5

MRc Construction Waste Management 0 of 3 1.5

MRc Material-Efficient Framing 0 of 2 1 0.5

Indoor Environmental Quality Preliminary    Y 0 of 16 M 2 Verified 5.5

EQp Ventilation Required Verified

EQp Combustion Venting Required Verified

EQp Garage Pollutant Protection Required Verified

EQp Radon-Resistant Construction Required Verified

EQp Air Filtering Required Verified

EQp Environmental Tobacco Smoke Required Verified

EQp Compartmentalization Required Verified

EQc Enhanced Ventilation 0 of 3 0

EQc Contaminant Control 0 of 2 0 0.5

EQc Balancing of Heating and Cooling Distribution Systems 0 of 3 1 1

EQc Enhanced Compartmentalization 0 of 1 0

EQc Combustion Venting 0 of 2 0 2

EQc Enhanced Garage Pollutant Protection 0 of 2 1

EQc Low-Emitting Products 0 of 3 0 2

Innovation Preliminary    Y 0 of 6 M 0 Verified 1

INp Preliminary Rating Required Verified

INc Innovation  0 of 5 0 1

INc LEED Accredited Professional 0 of 1 0

Regional Priority Preliminary    Y 0 of 4 M 0 Verified 0

RPc Regional Priority 0 of 4 0

Point Floors

The project earned at least 8 points total in Location and Transportation and Energy and Atmosphere Yes

The project earned at least 3 points in Water Efficiency Yes

The project earned at least 3 points in Indoor Environmental Quality Yes

Total Preliminary    Y 0 of 110 M 10 Verified 44.5

Certification Thresholds      Certified: 40-49, Silver: 50-59, Gold: 60-79, Platinum: 80-110

Page 2



 

 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 
VIRTUAL REGULAR MEETING OF THE PLANNING BOARD 

WEDNESDAY, MAY 13, 2020 
Held Remotely Via Zoom And Telephone Access 

 
Minutes of the virtual regular meeting of the City of Birmingham Planning Board held on May 13, 
2020. Chairman Scott Clein convened the meeting at 7:30 p.m. 
 
A. Roll Call 
 
Present: Chairman Scott Clein; Board Members Robin Boyle, Stuart Jeffares, Bert Koseck,  

Daniel Share, Janelle Whipple-Boyce, Bryan Williams; Alternate Board Members 
Jason Emerine, Nasseem Ramin 
     

Absent: Student Representatives Rachel Hester, June Lee 
  
Administration: Jana Ecker, Planning Director 
   Eric Brunk, IT Manager 
   Nicholas Dupuis, City Planner 

 Laura Eichenhorn, Transcriptionist 
 

Master Planning Team: Annmarie Erickson, Van Dyke Horn 
    Matt Lambert, DPZ 
    Sarah Traxler, McKenna 
     

05-45-20 
 

B. Approval Of The Minutes Of The Virtual Regular Planning Board Meeting of April  
22, 2020 
 
Mr. Williams stated that while the Chairman acknowledged his presence at 7:59 p.m., he joined 
the meeting at 7:49 p.m. 
 
Motion by Mr. Williams 
Seconded by Mr. Koseck to approve the minutes of the Virtual Regular Planning Board 
Meeting of April 22, 2020 as amended. 
 
Motion carried, 7-0. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE 
Yeas: Williams, Koseck, Boyle, Jeffares, Share, Clein, Whipple-Boyce 
Nays: None  
 
  



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
May 13, 2020 

 

1 
 

05-46-20 
 

C. Chairperson’s Comments  
 
Chairman Clein noted that people were likely dealing with challenges in every aspect of their lives 
as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic and concomitant Stay Home, Stay Safe guidelines. He stated 
that everyone experiencing these disruptions is doing so to promote the health and safety of their 
community. He took a moment to thank all medical personnel and first responders for their heroic 
efforts. He continued that all people still working in public-facing jobs in delivery, grocery, retail 
and along the supply chain also had his thanks for helping the community cope with current 
circumstances.  
 
Turning his attention to the evening’s meeting, Chairman Clein observed that the present Planning 
Board meeting was the second one occurring in a virtual space. He stated that the meeting was 
taking place under the guidance of the City administration and City Attorney to ensure compliance 
with Governor Whitmer’s executive orders regarding virtual municipal meetings. He said it was 
his full intention to run the meeting in adherence with those orders, and to use the full capacities 
of technology to do so. Even so, he granted that there would likely still be some technical 
difficulties along the way. The Chair asked for the patience of all in attendance in light of the 
unusual circumstances, and laid out procedures for the evening’s meeting. 
 
Before Chairman Clein drew his statements to a close, he said there was one further matter he 
wanted to clarify for the public. Noting that there seemed to be some confusion regarding the 
charge of the Board, the Chair explained that: 

● The Board solely exists to review proposed development projects within Birmingham, and 
does not solicit development projects for the City. 

● Members of the public will see some projects come before the Board that they prefer, and 
some they do not prefer. Members of the public are always permitted to express their 
opinions to the Board regarding matters that come before the Board for review.  

● Projects lawfully submitted and in compliance with City ordinance shall be approved by 
the Board, regardless of the potential personal preferences of any Board members. Doing 
otherwise would open the City to significant liability. The Board has no rights to prohibit 
a project that is lawful and complies with City ordinance. 

 
With that clarification, the Chair concluded his statements. He asked Planning Director Ecker to 
review the evening’s agenda.  
 

05-47-20 
 
D. Review Of The Agenda  
 
There were no changes to the evening’s agenda. Granted leave by the Chair, Planning Director 
Ecker took a moment to explain to the public how the ‘raise hand’ function works within the Zoom 
platform.  
 
 
 



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
May 13, 2020 

 

2 
 

05-48-20 
 
E. Unfinished Business  
 

1. 35001 Woodward (Parking lots & Hunter House) – Revised Preliminary Site  
Plan & Community Impact Study Review to allow construction of a new 5  
story mixed use building containing retail, office and residential uses.  
 

Planning Director Ecker reviewed the item. 
 
Mr. Williams said that “subject to deletion of the terms Hunter House and HH from the plan” 
should be added to the end of the proposed ninth condition.  
 
Mr. Koseck said that the words Hunter House and HH should be replaced with a more generic 
description of what will be located in those areas of the building. 
 
Mr. Williams agreed. 
 
Motion by Mr. Williams 
Seconded by Mr. Boyle to amend the motion made on April 22, 2020, to approve the 
Preliminary Site Plan for 35001 and 35075 Woodward by affirming conditions 1 
through 8 and adding condition 9 to the approved motion as follows: 
 
9) Approved plans include the first floor plan on sheet A101, with the revision date 4-
3-20, subject to replacement of the terms “Hunter House” and “HH” throughout the 
report and the plans with a more generic designation of the planned use of the space.  
 
Motion carried, 7-0. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE 
Yeas: Williams, Boyle, Koseck, Clein, Jeffares, Share, Whipple-Boyce 
Nays: None  
 

2. 219 Elm Street (vacant office building) - Request for Community Impact  
Study Review to allow construction of a new 5 story multiple family building.  
 

City Planner Dupuis presented the item. 
 
Mr. Williams shared concern about the lack of a dust, noise and Ddebris plan given the planned 
five-story residential building across the street from 219 Elm which could be significantly impacted 
by this construction. Mr. Williams also noted that this development would increase stormwater 
runoff costs to every Birmingham resident if no stormwater mitigation initiatives are added. He 
stated that the City Commission would certainly want to see stormwater mitigation initiatives as 
part of this project. 
 
City Planner Dupuis concurred with Mr. Williams. He explained that the development could 
potentially opt for a green roof as part of its LEED certification which would help with stormwater 

NDupuis
Highlight



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
May 13, 2020 

 

3 
 

mitigation. He said the developer could also pursue a number of other green infrastructure options 
for storm water mitigation including permeable pavement or making the proposed landscape 
feature in the rear of the building more functional. City Planner Dupuis said he included some of 
those options in his report on the Community Impact Study (CIS) in order to highlight some of 
the various options available to the developers for stormwater mitigation.   
 
In reply to Chairman Clein, City Planner Dupuis confirmed that: 

● Green infrastructure initiatives to mitigate stormwater runoff are not required by City 
ordinance or City engineering standards at this time.  

● In light of the developer’s request for two additional floors, some additional sustainability 
standards must be met beyond the usual requirements for a Birmingham development. 

● By outlining the options for green infrastructure initiatives for stormwater mitigation, City 
Planner Dupuis is notifying the developer of one area through which they could satisfy 
some of the  additional sustainability requirements for their development.  

 
In reply to Mr. Koseck, City Planner Dupuis stated: 

● In the Triangle District Overlay Standards, Article 3, independent senior living facilities are 
not a listed use. In reverting to the underlying zoning district of O2, independent senior 
living facilities are a permitted use with a special land use permit (SLUP).  

● While not every building within the Triangle District Urban Design Plan (Triangle Plan) 
must be mixed use, building an exclusively residential building within the Triangle Plan 
area does not necessarily match the intent of the Triangle Plan.  

● There are a number of standards the developer could meet in order to receive 
authorization to build an additional two floors. The CIS documents seemed to indicate 
that LEED Certification would be one of the standards the developer would like to meet.  

 
In reply to Mr. Boyle, Planning Director Ecker stated: 

● The City does require an updated CIS for the project. The applicant has been notified of 
various items such as a dust and debris plan, soil borings and a noise study that need to 
be updated within the submitted materials. 

● The proposed building is a standalone building, entirely physically distinct from the 
neighboring All Seasons building. Residents of the proposed building would be able to 
utilize the amenities of the neighboring All Seasons building, and both buildings share an 
owner.  

 
Mark Hyland, member of the applicant team, explained: 

● The project will pursue LEED certification as one of the two ways they will qualify to add 
two extra floors to the building. Being so early in the development process the team has 
not yet determined how specifically they will meet the LEED certification requirements 
since there is such a broad range of ways to do so. They will be hiring an independent 
third-party company to review and approve their plans for achieving LEED certification 
later in the development process. 

● The project team will submit all outstanding items pertaining to the CIS as soon as their 
contractors are able to complete the requisite studies. The team is waiting to submit the 
dust, noise, and debris mitigation plan until they know whether they will be granted the 
additional two floors, since the mitigation plan will shift based on the permitted height of 
the project.  



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
May 13, 2020 

 

4 
 

● The building’s units will be rentals. 
 
Mr. Koseck cautioned that LEED certification is not granted by the U.S. Green Building Council 
(USGBC) until a project is completed. He said this fact causes some difficulty since the right to 
build extra floors would be partially predicated on the assumption that LEED certification will be 
granted, when it is actually impossible to know whether the certification will be granted until the 
project concludes. Mr. Koseck said that basing the granting of extra floors partially on the 
assumption of achieving LEED certification is an issue with the City’s ordinance. He noted that 
the right to build two extra floors is a significant benefit, and cautioned the project’s team to go 
above and beyond the bare minimum LEED certification standards in order to ensure that their 
project is certified once concluded.  
 
Planning Director Ecker acknowledged that while LEED certification is not granted until a project’s 
conclusion, developers have access to LEED certification worksheets that indicate the likely points 
they will gain towards LEED certification for various types of environmentally responsible 
architecture practices and resource management strategies.    
 
Motion by Mr. Boyle 
Seconded by Mr. Williams to accept the Community Impact Study as provided by the 
applicant for the proposed development at 219 Elm St. – All Seasons – with the 
following conditions:  
 

1. The applicant must submit an updated environmental/soil assessment prior to 
Final Site Plan; 

2. The applicant must submit details as to how they plan to mitigate dust, noise, 
and debris during construction prior to Final Site Plan;  

3. The applicant must submit a noise impact study to complete the community 
impact study prior to Final Site Plan;  

4. The applicant must contact the Department of the Interior or SHPO to make a 
determination on the historic eligibility of the property prior to Final Site Plan; 
and,  

5. The applicant must provide all details on the fire suppression system to the Fire 
Department for review prior to Final Site Plan.  

 
Motion carried, 7-0. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE 
Yeas: Boyle, Williams, Clein, Jeffares, Koseck, Share, Whipple-Boyce 
Nays: None  
 
Samuel Beznos, member of the project team, and Mr. Hyland told the Board that typically fire 
suppression drawings are submitted prior to permitting. Mr. Beznos asked the Board if it could be 
a requirement to submit the fire suppression drawings prior to receiving a building permit, instead 
of being required to submit them prior to Final Site Plan.  
 
Chairman Clein said that the fifth condition of the motion requires that the project team submit 
the necessary information directly to the Fire Department. He said that if the Fire Department 



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
May 13, 2020 

 

5 
 

allows the project team to submit the fire suppression information before permitting that the 
requirement of the motion would be satisfied. He told the project team to work through the Fire 
Department and other relevant City Staff regarding those details. 
 

3. 219 Elm Street (vacant office building) - Request for Preliminary Site Plan  
Review to allow construction of a new 5 story multiple family building.  
 

City Planner Dupuis presented the item.  
 
Planning Director Ecker said the Zoning Ordinance describes how the City calculates the amount 
a building project must contribute to Birmingham’s parking facilities funds in order to qualify for 
extra building floors.  
 
Mr. Share said he agreed with Mr. Koseck’s earlier points about the significance of being granted 
two extra floors based on the assumption of future LEED certification. He said at this point in the 
process he expects to see a clear demonstration of how the building would qualify for the two 
extra floors. Mr. Share stated he would be very disturbed if every non-smoking building within a 
quarter-mile of a bus stop and within a mile of a train station met one of the requirements to 
qualify for an extra two floors. He said he was uncomfortable with the prospect of approving this 
preliminary site plan with little sense of how the project team would meet the requirements of 
the ordinance.  
 
Mr. Williams asked Planning Director Ecker what recourse the City has if a building, granted two 
extra stories predicated on the assumption of LEED certification, does not ultimately receive LEED 
certification at the conclusion of the project. 
 
Planning Director Ecker said that the City requires a letter from the project team stating that they 
will achieve some level of LEED certification, and requires the submission of a checklist to 
demonstrate the likely points gained towards LEED certification based on different aspects of 
construction. She said the City has not encountered a case where a building, granted two extra 
stories predicated on the assumption of LEED certification, has not received LEED certification 
once the project was completed. 
 
Mr. Williams said that he agreed with Mr. Koseck’s previous point that this is an issue with the 
City’s ordinance, and that this ordinance should be reviewed by the City. He said that the 
developer and the Board should know the consequences if two of the five requirements are not 
met for gaining an extra two stories once the building has been constructed. 
 
Planning Director Ecker said the City would hold a bond and the project team would have to go 
back and make changes to the building in order to receive LEED certification. She said there are 
many different changes that could be made to a completed building in order to receive LEED 
certification.  
 
Chairman Clein noted that this building will be subject to a SLUP that the City Commission has 
the right to condition as it sees fit.  
 

NDupuis
Highlight



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
May 13, 2020 

 

6 
 

Mr. Williams said he anticipates that the City Commission would have the same questions he, Mr. 
Share, and Mr. Koseck have raised. 
 
Chairman Clein agreed. 
 
Ms. Whipple-Boyce noted that contrary to the report, the proposed building would be another full 
story taller than the neighboring All Seasons building.  
 
In reply to Ms. Whipple-Boyce, Planning Director Ecker stated that the two extra floors being 
proposed do not need to be stepped back from the alley like they would if they were adjacent to 
a street.  
 
Ms. Whipple-Boyce said the alley in this case functions more like a street, and noted that the 
elevation being proposed is quite large. She said it was unfortunate that the two upper floors 
would not have to be stepped back in this case.  
 
Mr. Jeffares concurred with Ms. Whipple-Boyce, saying that even the three stories of the 
neighboring building feel imposing from different locations along street level. He noted that Article 
7, section 7.27 (2) of the Zoning Ordinance states “The location, size and height of the building, 
walls and fences shall be such that there will be no interference with adequate light, air and 
access to adjacent lands and buildings.” Mr. Jeffares noted that the Board in the past has 
approved tall buildings near residential areas, but specified that this building is must much closer 
to residential areas than many of the Board’s past approvals. He continued that while the building 
itself is not required to have mixed uses according to the Triangle Plan, permitting this building 
to be entirely residential means that a large portion of Maple, into Elm, would be occupied by 
solely residential buildings. He shared skepticism that such circumstances meet the intent of the 
Triangle Plan.  
 
Chairman Clein said he was glad to see residential options being provided for seniors who want 
to downsize, remain in Birmingham, and live independently. The fact that if a resident parks in 
the rear of the building they would have to walk all the way around to the front to enter did give 
him pause given the likely average age of the residents. In concluding, Chairman Clein remarked 
that the project team seemed to possibly be trying to fit too much on too small of a lot, and that 
he was concerned it would not work.  
 
Mr. Hyland responded to Board comments, noting: 

● There would be a door accessible to the rear parking lot via the northern stairwell which 
would bring residents into the lobby by elevator.  

● The planned building would be smaller than All Seasons in terms of square footage, even 
though it would be taller. 

● The single-story office buildings adjacent to the planned building are in an area zoned for 
three-story attached single family. He said he anticipates that three-story townhouses will 
be built there in the near future. Given that, he said that stretch is likely to become at 
least three stories along that entire frontage. 

● The project team is currently working on a building in West Bloomfield that is pursuing 
LEED certification. He said that project is giving them experience in the requirements for 
LEED certification. 



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
May 13, 2020 

 

7 
 

● It is in his team’s best interest to achieve LEED certification since it will be to their 
detriment they do not.  

 
Mr. Koseck said it is a problem with City ordinance that residential units on the first floor of 
buildings can be built at the zero lot line. He said he could not imagine any residents who would 
be comfortable with the lack of privacy, and that he mostly sees the blinds closed on other first 
floor residential units at the existing All Seasons building. Mr. Koseck ventured it would have 
benefitted the project team more if they had put some of their public amenities around the 
periphery of the first floor, both in terms of resident preferences and in terms of activating the 
street. Listing Boston and New York as contrasting examples to Birmingham, Mr. Koseck noted 
that in those cities first floor residential is either set back, has porches, or has other ways of 
separating the residence from the immediate street.  
 
Given that the plan proposes to have the residents of 219 Elm use the amenities of the 
neighboring All Seasons, Mr. Koseck said he did not see sufficient effort to provide ready access 
between the two buildings. Stating that he sees a lack of careful attention to details within the 
plan, Mr. Koseck noted for instance that there is a door on the north side of the building that is 
not required for egress, and that the trash room and fire pump rooms are along the south side 
of the first floor, which he stated is a fairly prominent elevation. He noted that Ms. Whipple-Boyce 
raised similar concerns about the view of the building that would be afforded the traffic that heads 
northbound on Elm Street.  
 
Mr. Koseck concluded by saying he shared his other Board members’ concerns about the proposed 
height, noting that even if the square footage of the proposed building is technically less than the 
All Seasons building, it will still likely appear substantially larger. 
 
Mr. Hyland responded to Mr. Koseck, stating that the project team has had no problem leasing 
other first floor residential units since it is a desirable area and the units are high quality. He 
continued that the trash and fire pump rooms are along the alley so as to minimize pedestrian 
and car exposure to the area, and noted that the trash room was put inside so that there would 
not be a dumpster in the alley.  
 
Mr. Beznos said that the aim of the proposed building is to provide a much more independent 
living environment than All Seasons, and that connecting the two buildings would minimize the 
difference the project team hopes to convey. He explained that those living in the proposed 
building would be offered access to exclusive events held at All Seasons once or twice a month, 
and that while they would have access to other All Season amenities the goal is not to 
overemphasize the connection between the two developments. 
 
In addressing Mr. Koseck’s concern about the first floor residential, Mr. Beznos said that they will 
be designed to look like individual townhomes and will be more private than the current first floor 
residential in the neighboring All Seasons building. Access to the first floor residential can be 
either from the street or from the interior corridor. He said the project team anticipates those 
units will be very attractive as a rental option. 
 
Mr. Williams stated that when the neighboring All Seasons building was built, the Planning Board 
at the time required that the height at the south end taper down to three stories so as not to be 



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
May 13, 2020 

 

8 
 

too imposing next to the residential area. He said he was similarly uncomfortable with the 
proposed height of five stories for this building, especially since the five stories would also be 
adjacent to the residential area.  
 
Mr. Jeffares agreed with Mr. Williams, stating that the existing three stories of the neighboring 
All Seasons already have a significant impact on the neighboring residential. He said that if a five 
story building is built at 219 Elm that the sun might disappear beyond the top of the building in 
the mid-afternoon for the neighboring residential homes.  
 
Mr. Hyland stated the project team would be able to provide most of the LEED certification plans 
to the Board by Final Site Plan. In reply to a question from Mr. Jeffares, Mr. Hyland said the 
project team has not met with any of the residential neighbors to solicit feedback on the design. 
 
Chairman Clein stated that the proposed building does not abut any single family residential, and 
that the homes Mr. Williams and Mr. Jeffares have expressed concern for are further to the east 
of the development.  
 
Mr. Boyle said he suspected that the single family residential units to the east of the proposed 
building would not lose evening sunlight given their distance from 219 Elm. He observed that the 
proposed building would be surrounded immediately by other tall buildings and commercial 
buildings.  
 
Ms. Whipple-Boyce stated that the Triangle Plan proposes to have taller buildings along 
Woodward with buildings diminishing in height more towards the center of the Triangle District 
and on the smaller streets. She said that putting this five story building adjacent to the 
neighboring three story building seems to disrupt the Triangle Plan’s intent. She said that while 
she understood that if the building met the requirements to qualify for the two additional floors 
that the project team would be within their rights to build them, she said she was not sure that 
would necessarily be a positive outcome for the area.  
 
Mr. Koseck said he would like to see the entrance receive greater emphasis in the plans. He said 
he was not suggesting in his earlier comments that 219 Elm and the neighboring All Seasons 
building should be linked, but just that there should be a more efficient and aesthetically pleasing 
way to move from one building to the other. Mr. Koseck said that the blank wall of the north 
elevation showed no care or design sensitivity, and said he would like to see that wall pushed 
back with windows added. He said he was not concerned that the proposed building would impact 
the nearby single family residential because he thought they were far enough away. 
 
Xander Bogaerts, architect for the project, said he wanted to address Mr. Koseck’s concern with 
the north elevation. He explained that the building is prohibited by ordinance to have any doors 
or openings on the north wall. He said the project team would look at the north elevation again 
because the comments are valid that more adornments are needed. Mr. Bogaerts said he would 
review the south elevation as well. He continued that his mother lives in a first floor residential 
unit on Maple and enjoys being able to watch the street from her window. He said that the first 
floor residential units being offered would attract that type of person.  
 



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
May 13, 2020 

 

9 
 

Mr. Boyle and Mr. Jeffares suggested that the developer should take time to work with City staff 
and resolve some of the concerns they heard from the Board during the evening’s conversation.  
 
Motion by Mr. Boyle 
Seconded by Mr. Jeffares to postpone discussion of the preliminary site plan review 
for 219 Elm until June 10, 2020. 
 
Motion carried, 7-0. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE 
Yeas: Boyle, Jeffares, Koseck, Share, Whipple-Boyce, Williams, Clein 
Nays: None  
 
Motion by Mr. Williams 
Seconded by Mr. Share to suspend the rules for June 10, 2020 to allow review of the 
preliminary site plan for 219 Elm. 
 
Motion carried, 7-0. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE 
Yeas: Williams, Share, Whipple-Boyce, Boyle, Clein, Jeffares, Koseck  
Nays: None  
 
Chairman Clein addressed the project team, stating that even though there was a lot of feedback 
the Board and Birmingham are very pleased to have the team’s developments in the City. He 
asked them to take the Board’s comments to heart and said the Board looked forward to meeting 
with the project team again soon. 
 

05-49-20 
 

F. Study Session Items 
 

1. Debrief & Discussion on Draft Master Plan Review Process  
 

Chairman Clein asked his fellow Board members to reflect on what they viewed as the successes 
or drawbacks of the first two meetings. He said he also wanted to clarify what the purpose is of 
this new round of public engagement, saying it could be to hear from the public in general, to 
seek certain feedback from the public, or to have the Board express its opinions on the draft 
master plan to the public.  
 
Mr. Williams said that while the first meeting was relatively successful, the second meeting was 
less useful. He said the process is still lacking in that: 

● It proposes to revise Birmingham neighborhood structures without having gained the 
feedback of those who currently participate in the neighborhood associations.  

● The Planning Board has not had a meeting with the new City Commission to receive 
direction as to this draft master plan review. The Board and the Commission should have 
a substantive discussion regarding what the Board’s focus should be before the public is 



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
May 13, 2020 

 

10 
 

re-engaged. The master plan review process should be the only topic discussed at the 
Board and Commission’s joint meeting in June 2020. 

● No one can predict what the long-term impact of the Covid-19 pandemic will be on the 
City. Without a pause and an acknowledgement of the fact that the pandemic could yield 
significant changes, the plan could put forth recommendations that no longer have use or 
relevance in the new climate. For this reason, taking some time to try and figure out what 
the potential effects are and how those might impact the plan would be prudent.  

 
Mr. Koseck noted his experience facilitating master plan projects for other groups, and said he 
felt sympathy for Birmingham’s master planning team given the various pauses and the change 
at the Commission level they experienced. He said projects like these should have momentum 
and that trying to do it without it is undoubtedly challenging. Mr. Koseck continued that he was 
not sure that the guiding principles set forth in the draft master plan adequately represented the 
interests and goals of Birmingham residents. He said it would be beneficial if the Board and the 
Commission had a discussion to vet the guiding principles. He said that then conversations about 
the master plan proposals should be held in light of the guiding principles, and judged based on 
whether they adequately put those guiding principles into practice.  
 
Ms. Whipple-Boyce said the largest difficulty she identified with the second meeting was the 
conflict between the Board’s goal of keeping the discussion focused on the macro level and the 
public’s desire to discuss the details of the draft. She said she anticipates that as the Board enters 
into more conversation about the neighborhoods, given people’s passions regarding the topic, it 
will be even more difficult to keep the conversation at the macro level. She said it would be 
worthwhile to find strategies to navigate that challenge.  
 
Planning Director Ecker stated that she has requested that the master plan be the only topic at 
the June 2020 joint Board-Commission meeting. She said one additional topic is being considered 
at this time. Planning Director Ecker said that one way of keeping the discussions running is to 
remind everyone that the master planning team is recording all of the comments in great detail, 
and that when a topic is reiterated by a member of the public the Board can assure them that 
the specific topic or issue has been heard, noted, and will be taken into account. In that way the 
Board can avoid getting mired in repeating their response to a subject that has already been 
addressed, or will be addressed in the second draft of the master plan.  
 
Chairman Clein said that one of the most significant issues he perceived during the second 
meeting was that the Board did not seem to have a shared understanding of the intent of these 
meetings. He said his personal understanding of the goal of the draft master plan review meetings 
is solely to hear from the public, with no need for Board comment during the process. He asked 
his fellow Board members to opine on the purpose of these review meetings. He stated his belief 
that it is more correct to receive public feedback and to decide later how to integrate it, rather 
than having the Board tell the public the Board’s opinions of the draft master plan.   
 
Mr. Boyle said that the summary of the draft master plan presented to the public should be much 
broader than it has been. Mr. Boyle offered that the summary could lay out where Birmingham is 
today, where the City would like to see itself in the future, and what issues arise between those 
two conceptions. The Board should then solicit feedback from the public on how best to address 
those issues. Providing more examples, Mr. Boyle said the broad issues could be whether the City 



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
May 13, 2020 

 

11 
 

has enough housing, what the public thinks about downtown, what the public thinks about mixed 
use, and whether the Triangle and Rail districts should be developed in the way the City is 
currently doing.  
 
In reply to Chairman Clein, Mr. Boyle said the Board should listen to the public’s input on these 
topics, and that the Board need not express its own opinion during these meetings.  
 
In reply to Mr. Williams, Mr. Boyle said the list of issues to be discussed with the public should be 
set by the Board, City staff, and the Commission.  
 
City Planner Dupuis asked if identifying the issues to be discussed would not be, in some ways, 
reverting to what the charrette discussions had already accomplished. He said he was asking the 
question for his edification as a new City Planner.  
 
In reply to City Planner Dupuis, Mr. Boyle said the point was fair, but might still be one of the 
better ways of getting the public engaged. 
 
Chairman Clein said the solution could be that the public is presented with the draft’s 
recommendations in a broad way, and is asked to comment on those rather than on specific 
sections from the draft.  
 
Mr. Jeffares voiced his agreement with Chairman Clein’s proposed solution. 
 
Mr. Koseck said it could be beneficial to the process to solicit feedback from the public during 
some of the Zoom meetings since people have more time and might be more willing to speak 
during a virtual meeting than in public. He said he also wondered whether the master planning 
team felt they were getting quality feedback from a broad enough swath of people, rather than 
the same people repeatedly.  
 
Ms. Traxler said the master planning team is eager to begin revising the draft in order to address 
some of the common concerns they have been hearing. She said the presentations to the public 
can be shortened into executive summaries of the plan. 
 
Mr. Lambert said he has been unsure whether the City would prefer that revisions happen 
immediately based on the feedback that has been provided so far, or whether the master planning 
team should gather all the feedback and begin its revisions once the feedback process is complete. 
Mr. Lambert noted that the master planning team has had opportunity over the course of the 
past year to get a broad range of feedback from the public, and that many of the 
recommendations in the draft reflect those conversations. Given that, he said the master planning 
team wants detailed feedback from the Board itself, since they are dealing with these kinds of 
planning issues within the City most regularly.  
 
Chairman Clein stated that certain members of the City Commission do not believe that the Board 
has received nearly enough public feedback regarding the draft document. He stated he fully 
agrees with Mr. Williams’ previous statement that the Board and the Commission need to meet 
in order to remedy the fact that the Board up to this point has received no direction from the 
current Commission in terms of how these reviews should be conducted. He said he would like 



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
May 13, 2020 

 

12 
 

to hear the Commission’s input and their opinions on the purpose of this first round of draft 
reviews. Chairman Clein suggested that the near future might be an appropriate time for the 
Board to meet with the master planning team in order for the Board to provide input on the parts 
of the draft that have been covered so far. He expressed hope that would allow the team to make 
those revisions throughout the draft so that when the public review returns the document will 
have incorporated and addressed some of the Board’s concerns and comments.  
 
Mr. Share said it was important to note that public engagement will always be complex, as there 
is no perfect way to streamline the process. He said he also thought it would be a loss if the 
Board did not have some time during these public review meetings to express their opinions about 
the draft. He suggested that the public could speak first for an hour or ninety minutes, and that 
then the Board could speak for an hour in reply. He said if these conversations can be kept as 
broad as possible, with some limitations on the length and frequency of comments allowed to 
each member of the public, then this process can occur relatively efficiently.  
 
Mr. Williams concurred with Mr. Share. He said allowing the Board to express its comments during 
the meeting might necessitate that a few more meetings scheduled, but that would be better 
than no one having a clear sense of the Board’s opinions at the end of the draft review. He 
recommended that Board members determine during their June 2020 meeting a potential 
template for the rest of the draft review meetings. He said he liked Mr. Share’s proposal of 
allowing the public to speak first for a period of time and then allowing the Board to express its 
views and respond. He said once the Board decides on a potential template it should be proposed 
to the Commission at the joint Board-Commission meeting in June 2020 for hopeful approval. 
 
Chairman Clein said that would require the Board and the master planning team to be very concise 
in terms of what the public is being invited to comment on during the review sessions. He also 
repeated Mr. Williams’ comment that the Board would have to solicit final approval from the 
Commission for any review session template the Board might propose.  
 
Mr. Jeffares noted the potential for the Zoom technology to allow many more ways of capturing 
public comment, and said he hopes the Board will find a way to take advantage of that benefit 
during this time.  
 
In reply to Chairman Clein, Ms. Erickson said she believes the Board is headed in the right direction 
and commended them for their attention and care towards getting public comment. She agreed 
with Board members’ previous comments that these presentations and subsequent feedback 
sessions need to be made both concise and more macro-oriented. She also noted that the Board 
should remember and remind the public that there will be a whole additional draft to review in 
the future as well. Agreeing that there are a number of issues that recur repeatedly during these 
discussions, Ms. Erickson said a list of those issues should be compiled so that Chairman Clein 
can assure the public that the issue has been previously raised and noted, and will be considered 
in the process of revising the draft. She said that would be one way the meetings can be kept 
efficiently moving. 
 

2. Discussion on Use of Virtual Meetings 
 



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
May 13, 2020 

 

13 
 

Chairman Clein said virtual meetings were proving far less efficient than meeting in person, and 
stated that the number of agenda items should be limited to approximately three items during 
this time.  
 
In reply to Mr. Williams, Planning Director Ecker listed the four agenda items planned for the May 
27, 2020 Board meeting.  
 
Mr. Williams suggested that since the June 10, 2020 Board meeting has been made a hybrid 
meeting, one of the May 27, 2020 agenda items should be moved to the June 10, 2020 agenda. 
He said the first May 27, 2020 agenda item alone will consume a substantial amount of time that 
evening. He said he completely agreed with Chairman Clein that the meetings should be limited 
to three items. He continued that he was not sure how much the Board would accomplish during 
its June 10, 2020 master plan draft review session since that will still be prior to receiving direction 
from the Commission during the joint Board-Commission meeting on June 15, 2020. 
 
Mr. Share agreed that fewer agenda items are better while the meetings are being held virtually. 
He expressed doubt that the Board would get through the rezoning application, CIS and 
preliminary site plan review for 469-479 S. Old Woodward during one meeting, and said that 
made it even less likely that the Board would be able to get to the fourth item scheduled for that 
evening as well.  
 
Mr. Boyle said he agreed that the number of agenda items should be limited so that each item 
can receive the attention it merits.  
 
Mr. Koseck said limiting the number of agenda items should depend on the complexity of the 
topics.  
 
Planning Director Ecker told the Board that the notices for 770 S. Adams had gone out. She said 
if the Board consensus was to delay the final site plan review until June 10, 2020, she could notify 
the applicant and annotate the item on the agenda as being rescheduled to June 10, 2020. Then, 
during the May 27, 2020 meeting, the Board will vote to move the item to their June 10, 2020 
meeting.  
 
Motion by Mr. Williams 
Seconded by Mr. Boyle to limit Planning Board virtual meeting agendas to no more 
than three substantive items for any particular meeting as long as the Board is 
exclusively meeting via Zoom and telephone technology.  
 
Motion carried, 7-0. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE 
Yeas: Williams, Boyle, Clein, Jeffares, Koseck, Share, Whipple-Boyce  
Nays: None  
 

05-50-20 
 
G. Miscellaneous Business and Communications:  



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
May 13, 2020 

 

14 
 

 
a. Communications  
 
b. Administrative Approval Correspondence  
 
c. Draft Agenda for the next Regular Planning Board Meeting (May 27,  
2020)  

● Rezoning application for 469-479 S. Old Woodward 
● CIS Review for a five story building at 469-479 S. Old Woodward 
● Preliminary Site Plan review for a five story building at 469-479 S. Old Woodward 

 
d. Other Business  
 

Mr. Share said it would be prudent for the City to consider using Zoom for Planning Board 
meetings beyond the expiration of the Governor’s Order to do so. He said this would help maintain 
the health and safety of both Board members and members of the public who fall into the high-
risk category for Covid-19. 
 
Chairman Clein said Mr. Share’s point was well-stated. 
 
Planning Director Ecker acknowledged the validity of Mr. Share’s comments, and said the City 
was considering some changes to future City meeting protocol.  

 
05-51-20 

 
H. Planning Division Action Items  

 
a. Staff Report on Previous Requests 
b. Additional Items from tonight's meeting 

 
05-52-20 

 
I. Adjournment 
 
No further business being evident, the Chairman adjourned the meeting at 10:56 p.m. 
             
             
             
 Jana L. Ecker 
             
             
             
 Planning Director 
 
 



 

 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE PLANNING BOARD 

WEDNESDAY, JUNE 10, 2020 
Held Remotely Via Zoom And Telephone Access 

 
Minutes of the regular meeting of the City of Birmingham Planning Board held on June 10, 2020. 
Chairman Scott Clein convened the meeting at 7:32 p.m. 
 
A. Roll Call 
 
Present: Chairman Scott Clein; Board Members Robin Boyle, Stuart Jeffares, Bert Koseck,  

Daniel Share, Janelle Whipple-Boyce, Bryan Williams; Alternate Board Members 
Jason Emerine, Nasseem Ramin; Student Representative Rachel Hester (joined at 
7:36 p.m.) 
     

Absent: Student Representative June Lee 
  
Administration: Jana Ecker, Planning Director 
   Eric Brunk, IT Manager 
   Nicholas Dupuis, City Planner 

 Laura Eichenhorn, Transcriptionist 
 

Master Planning Team: Robert Gibbs, Gibbs Planning Group 
    Sarah Traxler, McKenna 
 

06-60-20 
 

B. Approval Of The Minutes Of The Regular Planning Board Meeting of May 27, 2020 
 
Mr. Share recommended two changes: 

● On page two, last paragraph, third line, the superfluous ‘f’ in front of ‘and’ should be 
removed.  

● On page five, in the last paragraph, ‘rezoning request’ should be changed to ‘findings of 
fact’.  

 
Mr. Williams requested that the word ‘for’ on page six, third paragraph, fifth line be changed to 
‘on’. 
 
Motion by Mr. Boyle 
Seconded by Mr. Share to approve the minutes of the Regular Planning Board Meeting 
of May 27, 2020 as amended. 
 
Motion carried, 7-0. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE 
Yeas: Boyle, Share, Whipple-Boyce, Williams, Clein, Jeffares, Koseck 
Nays: None  
 



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
June 10, 2020 

 

1 
 

06-61-20 
 

C. Chairperson’s Comments  
 
Chairman Clein welcomed everyone to the meeting and reminded everyone that the meeting was 
being held under the guidance of the City Attorney and City administration to ensure compliance 
with Governor Whitmer’s executive orders. Chairman Clein then reviewed procedures for the 
meeting.  
 
Planning Director Ecker reviewed for the public the ‘raise hand’ function within Zoom. 
 

06-62-20 
 
D. Review Of The Agenda  
 
There were no changes to the agenda. 
 

06-63-20 
 
E. Unfinished Business  

 
1. 219 Elm Street (vacant office building) - Request for Preliminary Site Plan 

Review to allow construction of a new 5 story multiple family building 
(Postponed from May 13, 2020). 

 
City Planner Dupuis reviewed the item.  
 
Mark Highlen, member of the applicant team, Samuel Beznos, member of the applicant team, 
Xander Bogaerts, architect, and Mark Abanatha, architect, spoke on behalf of the project.  
 
Chairman Clein said the design of the planned pedestrian path leading from the parking lot of 
219 Elm into the first All Seasons’ parking lot would need to be clear, efficient and barrier-
free if the project moves onto final site plan review. He said the path should also be altered 
so that it ends at a more logical point on the All Seasons I site, rather than ending in the All 
Seasons I’s parking lot.  

  
In reply to a different question from Chairman Clein, Mr. Highlen confirmed that will be an 
accessible, barrier-free path from the accessible space by the north stairwell into the building’s 
lobby. 
 
Chairman Clein asked Mr. Highlen why the team planned to seek a variance for a zero foot setback 
on the north property line. 
 
Mr. Highlen stated they would be seeking the variance in order to provide a certain size unit and 
to maximize the space they were using as part of this infill project. He said the team was hoping 
that since they would be using fire-rated windows that they would be granted a zero foot setback. 

NDupuis
Highlight



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
June 10, 2020 

 

2 
 

Mr. Highlen stated that if the BZA does not grant the variance that the applicant team would be 
able to alter their plans to adhere to the ordinance’s setback requirements. 
 
In reply to Mr. Boyle, Planning Director Ecker explained that Consumers Energy has been adding 
required utility fixtures to construction projects very late in the review process, and that the 
developers often have no choice as to where those fixtures will be installed on the building. She 
said that moving forward the City is requiring property owners to add screening to those fixtures. 
 
Motion by Mr. Williams  
Seconded by Mr. Share to approve the Preliminary Site Plan for 219 Elm St. – All 
Seasons 2 – with the following conditions:  
 
1. The applicant must submit plans showing the side setback at the NORTH at a 
minimum of 10 ft. or obtain a variance from the Board of Zoning Appeals;  
2. The applicant must complete the requirements of 3.08 (E) to receive additional 
building height;  
3. The applicant must submit a rooftop plan showing a detailed rooftop use including 
any proposed structures;  
4. The applicant must provide construction details on the proposed parking lot 
screenwall;  
5. The applicant must submit details on all proposed RTUs and details on the proposed 
screen wall to ensure the RTUs are fully screened from public view;  
6. The applicant must submit material specifications, samples, and glazing 
calculations for the proposed building at Final Site Plan review;  
7. The applicant must submit details on the types and placement of all proposed light 
fixtures, as well as a photometric plan showing illumination levels at all property 
lines; and,  
8. The applicant comply with the requests of all City Departments. 
 
Chairman Clein stated he was supportive of the project’s aim of adding diversity to Birmingham’s 
housing stock and welcomed the development team back to the Birmingham community for 
another project. He continued by noting that the Planning Board provides its opinion to the BZA 
regarding requested variances with the understanding that those opinions are not legally binding. 
Chairman Clein said that in the case of this project’s planned variance request for the north 
property line it seemed like the request was economic in origin and had little other justification. 
He said the development team must work with City staff and the BZA to find the best way forward 
regarding that issue. Chairman Clein concluded by stating that he would be voting in support of 
the motion on the table. 
 
Mr. Koseck said he lacked enthusiasm for the project. He said that while building height was a 
non-issue for him, he was disappointed by what he saw as the lack of contextual sensitivity in 
design given that the adjacent lot has the same owners. Mr. Koseck said that while that issue 
would not cause him to vote down the motion, he did see it as a matter worth mentioning. Mr. 
Koseck said he was also dismayed that material choices for the building’s exterior seemed to 
greatly emphasize cost-saving over aesthetic considerations, citing the planned cement-board 
siding and scabbed-on brick. Mr. Koseck continued that while he largely likes the existing All 
Seasons I building, he has found its design somewhat monotonous. In light of that design 



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
June 10, 2020 

 

3 
 

monotony, he said he was having difficult time becoming enthused about the extension of those 
design choices onto an entirely different lot. He cited The Village at Midtown Square in Troy, 
Michigan as an example of the repetitive aesthetic he would like this project to avoid. In light of 
this, Mr. Koseck recommended that in advance of the final site plan review the applicant team 
find ways to design a related but differentiated project from the All Seasons I building.  
 
Seeing no further Board comment, Chairman Clein welcomed public comment. 
 
Douglas Fehan, representative of the Hazel Chestnut Forest Homeowners Association, said he 
shared many of Mr. Koseck’s concerns. His perspective was that the project’s design choices are 
low-cost and designed to maximize profit above all else. Mr. Fehan said that while members of 
his homeowners association are pro-development, the proposed design of this particular project 
is so budget-oriented that it seemed frankly disrespectful to the project’s residential neighbors. 
Mr. Fehan contrasted the proposed plans with the All Seasons I building, saying that the latter is 
a much better example of the kind of design consideration the Triangle District deserves. Mr. 
Fehan said he would be supportive of the Board allowing this project to move forward with the 
understanding that the development team should endeavor to remedy some of its design issues. 
He said his homeowners’ association would be active participants in discussions of this project 
moving forward.  
 
Motion carried, 7-0. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE 
Yeas: Williams, Share, Whipple-Boyce, Boyle, Clein, Jeffares, Koseck 
Nays: None  
 
Chairman Clein stressed to the applicants that projects in Birmingham are most successful when 
they integrate and reflect feedback received from the public and the Planning Board. He strongly 
encouraged the applicant team to do that in this case. He said the project would also benefit from 
meeting with the project’s neighbors to solicit more input, and said he was looking forward to 
seeing the project’s evolution based off of these discussions.  
 

06-64-20 
 

F. Final Site Plan & Design Review 
 

1. 770 S. Adams (Vacant Medical Building) – Request for Final Site Plan and 
Design Review for new 5 story mixed use building (Postponed from May 
27, 2020). 

 
Mr. Williams recused himself at 8:36 p.m. citing a conflict related to this project.  
 
Ms. Ramin served in Mr. Williams’ place for consideration of this item. 
 
Planning Director Ecker reviewed the item.  
 



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
June 10, 2020 

 

4 
 

Ms. Whipple-Boyce commented that she has professional experience using the Aspen Wall 
Sconces by TechLighting in projects and that the fixtures emit a warm, ambient glow. She 
said she thought these fixtures would absolutely be appropriate for 770 S. Adams and should 
not cause any issue in terms of excess brightness.  
 
Michael Poris, architect, Ross Hoekstra, architect, and John Shekerjian, developer, were 
present on behalf of the project. 
 
In reply to Mr. Poris, Planning Director Ecker said she suspected that the photometric plans 
included the pedestrian street lighting in the light measurements of the Aspen Wall Sconces, 
which resulted in the higher light levels.  
 
Mr. Poris agreed with Planning Director Ecker, stating that the Aspen Wall Sconces are LED 
and low-wattage and should not be emitting nearly as much light as the photometric plans 
state. He agreed with Ms. Whipple-Boyce’s description of their ambient effect. Mr. Poris 
explained that the parking on the ground floor and below grade would be exclusively for the 
condominium owners. The alley would have an accessible door and seven or eight parking 
spaces for the retail businesses in the building. Mr. Poris also said the applicant team would 
find a way to align their canopy size with City requirements, either through seeking an 
exception to the ordinance from the Commission or through reducing the canopy size.  
 
In reply to Mr. Share, Mr. Shekerjian stated that there would be signage outside the residents’ 
parking entrance off Adams stating that it was for residents only. Mr. Poris added that there 
would be ample room for a vehicle to safely back out of that entrance should a non-resident 
vehicle mistakenly attempt to enter the resident parking off Adams. 
 
In reply to Ms. Whipple-Boyce, Mr. Poris stated that there would be sufficient parking for the 
residents’ guests in the residents’ parking area. He noted that the required parking for the 
building is 81 parking spaces and that the plans provide over 100 parking spaces. 
 
Mr. Koseck said he would be moving to approve the final site plan and design review for this 
project because he was pleased with how the plans have evolved as the project went through 
the City’s review process. He said the site is difficult and that the plans for the planned building 
are of high quality. Mr. Koseck said that even though it is a large building architectural 
techniques were proposed that would create visual scale and rhythm along the building’s 
exterior. He said he would like the see the All Seasons II project use similar architectural 
techniques to the ones being proposed for 770 S. Adams. Mr. Koseck stated he was supportive 
of the project team pursuing a size exception from the Commission for their front canopy 
because he said it would break the facade plane and create some pedestrian scale.  
 
Motion by Mr. Koseck 
Seconded by Mr. Share to approve the Final Site Plan and Design Review for 770 S. 
Adams with the following conditions:  
1. The Planning Board approves the encroachment of the balconies on the southern 
elevation of 2’ into the public via, but the applicant will be required to obtain approval 
of the City Commission for the 4’ projection of the canopy into the public right of way 
along S. Adams;  



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
June 10, 2020 

 

5 
 

2. The applicant provide a roof plan for the sixth floor roof at the SW corner of the 
building and specification sheets for all rooftop mechanical equipment to verify that 
all screening requirements have been met;  
3. The applicant obtain approval from both the City Arborist and the Engineering 
Division for the placement of the street trees and pedestrian lighting along S. Adams 
or reconfigure to provide the appropriate spacing;  
4. The applicant revise the photometric plan to include all cut off and not cut off 
fixtures and to provide 1.5 fc or less of light 5’ from the property lines on all elevations 
or obtain a variance from the Board of Zoning Appeals;  
5. The applicant provide details on the joint pattern and variation of finish for the via 
surface, along with specification sheets on the proposed bollards; and, 
6. Compliance with the requirements of all departments.  
 
Mr. Boyle said the Board’s relatively minimal discussion regarding this item stemmed from the 
fact that this was one of the best plan submittals the Board has reviewed within the past decade.  
 
Chairman Clein heartily concurred. 
 
Mr. Boyle continued that the applicant’s submission provided a lot of the information that the 
Board usually has to extract from applicants, such as plans of the building in the context of the 
neighborhood, aerial images, and photographs. He reiterated that there was not more Board 
discussion of the item because the applicant team provided a very thorough and detailed 
submittal. He agreed with Mr. Koseck’s statement that this is a very difficult site to develop, and 
stated that he thinks the City will be proud of this development in the Triangle District going 
forward.  
 
Chairman Clein said that not only was it an excellent submittal, but that the building was also 
beautifully designed.  
 
Seeing no further Board comment, Chairman Clein invited public comment. 
 
Mr. Fehan stated that, as a representative of the Hazel Chestnut Forest Homeowners Association, 
he thoroughly approved of the proposed project in all aspects. He said the plans represent the 
type of building, use of building, design, and quality of materials that will have an immensely 
positive impact the Triangle District. He said this project exemplifies the type of project the City 
should encourage and that he enthusiastically looked forward to the project’s groundbreaking. 
Mr. Fehan concluded by encouraging the developers of All Seasons II to reflect on the plans for 
770 S. Adams and to work to make the quality of their design and materials more similar to the 
latter.  
 
Seeing no further public comment, Chairman Clein returned the matter to the Board for a roll call 
vote.  
 
Motion carried, 7-0. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE 
Yeas: Koseck, Whipple-Boyce, Boyle, Clein, Jeffares, Ramin, Share  



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
June 10, 2020 

 

6 
 

Nays: None 
 

06-65-20 
 

G. Study Session Items 
 

1. Draft Master Plan Review Process 
 
Mr. Williams replaced Ms. Ramin on the Board at 9:23 p.m. 
 
Planning Director Ecker and Ms. Traxler provided an overview of the item. 
 
Mr. Williams said the City must make specific efforts to reach out to residents not represented 
by neighborhood associations to get their opinions on the master planning process. He 
explained that there are a number of households in the City who are not affiliated with any 
neighborhood association, and that relying on the associations to dialogue with residents risks 
leaving those households out of the process.  
 
Mr. Jeffares concurred with Mr. Williams. He added that not only are many households 
unaffiliated with neighborhood associations, but many more households are affiliated with 
neighborhood associations in name only. He explained that while there are some active 
neighborhood associations in Birmingham, many exist merely as a holdover from a time when 
the association was active. These largely inactive associations exist without formalized 
representation or meetings and could not be said to have any buy-in or participation from the 
ostensibly represented residents. He warned that the City should not conduct its master plan 
review process through interactions with the current neighborhood associations since their 
connections to the residents of the neighborhoods vary so widely.  
 
Chairman Clein agreed with Mr. Williams’ and Mr. Jeffares’ statements that the neighborhood 
associations could not be used as reliable sources of information, but explained they could be 
used as one more route of many to share information about the master planning process with 
residents. He noted that the information would also be accessible online and shared through 
various City-affiliated social media channels.  
 
Ms. Whipple-Boyce agreed with Mr. Williams and Mr. Jeffares. She said reaching out to a 
random sampling of each neighborhood’s residents for feedback would be vastly more 
effective than reaching out to neighborhoods via neighborhood associations.  
 
Ms. Traxler said she wanted to clarify that, as Chairman Clein said, the neighborhood 
associations would just be one method of many for communicating with residents about the 
master planning process. She noted the City has many ways of communicating with residents 
including social media, school newsletters, local access cable, mailings and emails, and that 
the master planning team would be relying most heavily on those.  
 
Mr. Boyle said he first wanted to commend Ms. Traxler for the focus and specificity of the 
plans she presented, saying that it would be helpful for moving the process forward. He 
continued by noting that it was most likely that the City would struggle to find active 



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
June 10, 2020 

 

7 
 

participants in this process for the next while in light of the Covid-19 pandemic. He said that 
while public participation in the immediate future would likely take a dip, the City should keep 
in mind that they have already received a large amount useful feedback from residents. He 
said he was less concerned about when the public would return to the conversation, and more 
concerned about whether the Board has the support of the City Commission to proceed with 
the master planning process in the way it is being proposed. 
 
Mr. Williams concurred with Mr. Boyle’s point about the need for buy-in from the City 
Commission regarding the rest of the master planning process.  
 
Chairman Clein agreed, saying that he hoped that after the June 15, 2020 joint Planning 
Board-City Commission meeting that the Commission would give its vocal political support to 
the Board’s proposal for continuing with the master planning process. He said one of the items 
to be determined would be when the public-facing master plan review process would 
recommence. He noted he has seen more residents attend Board meetings via Zoom than 
have in-person, and said it was his opinion that recommencing the review process virtually 
could be beneficial for that reason.  
 
Chairman Clein said that while he did not want a detailed review of the eleven themes set 
forward in the master planning process documents for the upcoming joint meeting, he did 
want feedback from the Commission regarding whether they agree that those eleven themes 
are appropriate focuses for the process moving forward. He also said it could be worth the 
Commission taking up a discussion of those themes at a future Commission meeting. He 
recommended to City staff and the master planning team that the Commission be provided 
with a brief written report after every one of the Board’s master plan review discussions so 
the Commission can voice any concerns that arise as they occur and so that the Commission 
can remain apprised, in general, of the process.  
 
Mr. Koseck said he was currently working on a master plan for another local community and 
said his team has had great success soliciting public feedback virtually. He said the discussions 
have been done somewhat by invitation, with that master planning team being careful to seek 
information from various specific cross-sections of the community. He said that while there is 
some loss to not being able to conduct the process in person, there also could be much gained 
from continuing the process virtually.  
 
Ms. Traxler concurred with Mr. Koseck, and added that having some of these meetings 
virtually allows residents to attend who may not have otherwise been able to make it out to 
an in-person meeting. She said she has seen such success with the virtual option that it may 
be maintained as one more way to solicit public discussion and feedback moving forward even 
when in-person meetings are able to resume. 
 
Mr. Williams said that during the joint meeting he hoped for Commission feedback on: 

● The master plan process proposal as a whole as set forth by Ms. Traxler and the 
master planning team; and, 

● The Commission’s goals for its particular involvement in the rest of the master planning 
process.  

 



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
June 10, 2020 

 

8 
 

Chairman Clein concurred. 
 
Mr. Jeffares said it would also be important to specifically hear from the three newly elected 
Commissioners regarding their feedback on the master planning process and to make sure 
they are in favor of the direction the process is taking. 
 

06-66-20 
 
H. Miscellaneous Business and Communications:  

 
a. Communications  
 
b. Administrative Approval Correspondence  
 
c. Draft Agenda for the joint City Commission-Planning Board Meeting (June  
15, 2020)  

● Master Plan Process Review 
● Lot Combination Process Review 
● Consideration of potential economic assistance measures in light of 

Covid-19 
 

d. Draft Agenda for the next Regular Planning Board Meeting (June 24,  
2020)  

● 469-479 S. Old Woodward Preliminary Site Plan Review and CIS 
Review 

● Jax Kar Wash Site Plan Revisions 
 

e. Other Business  
 

Mr. Jeffares said someone posted on the social media website Nextdoor during the evening’s 
meeting that they were unable to access the Zoom meeting even after following all the City’s 
instructions.  
 
Mr. Jeffares recommended that the City consider having a help line running for the first half-hour 
of virtual meetings so as to ensure that any members of the public who wish to participate are 
able to join. He said he would not want to continue with the master planning process virtually 
only to discover later that some residents were not able to participate due to technological issues.  
 
Planning Director Ecker commented that any members of the public who are able to enter the 
waiting room during a virtual meeting are admitted by herself or by IT Manager Brunk and none 
appeared tonight that were not immediately admitted.  
 

06-67-20 
 
I. Planning Division Action Items  

 
a. Staff Report on Previous Requests 



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
June 10, 2020 

 

9 
 

b. Additional Items from tonight's meeting 
 

06-68-20 
 

J. Adjournment 
 
No further business being evident, the Chairman adjourned the meeting at 10:06 p.m. 
             
             
             
 Jana L. Ecker 
             
             
             
 Planning Director 
 
 



 

 

City Of Birmingham 
Regular Meeting Of The Planning Board 

Wednesday, December 9, 2020 
Held Remotely Via Zoom And Telephone Access 

 
Minutes of the regular meeting of the City of Birmingham Planning Board held on December 9, 
2020. Chairman Scott Clein convened the meeting at 7:33 p.m. 
 
A. Roll Call 
 
Present: Chairman Scott Clein; Board Members Robin Boyle, Stuart Jeffares, Bert Koseck,  

Daniel Share, Janelle Whipple-Boyce, Bryan Williams; Alternate Board Members 
Jason Emerine, Nasseem Ramin; Student Representative Rachel Hesler (all located 
in Birmingham, MI, except for Bryan Williams who was located in Commerce 
Charter Twp.) 
     

Absent: Student Representative June Lee 
  
Administration: Jana Ecker, Planning Director (“PD”) 
   Jamil Alawadi, IT Staff 
   Brooks Cowan, City Planner (“CP”) 
   Nick Dupuis, City Planner (“CP”) 

 Laura Eichenhorn, City Transcriptionist 
 

12-141-20 
 

B. Approval Of The Minutes Of The Regular Planning Board Meeting of November 11, 
2020 
 
Mr. Share said that on page three of the minutes, the fourth full paragraph, second line, “On Old 
Woodward” should be changed to “On Woodward in the south gateway”. 
 
Mr. Jeffares said that on page four, third full paragraph from the bottom, “conveniently” should 
be added between “to” and “get”. 
 
Motion by Mr. Boyle 
Seconded by Mr. Share to approve the minutes of the Regular Planning Board Meeting 
of November 11, 2020 as amended. 
 
Motion carried, 7-0. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE 
Yeas: Boyle, Share, Williams, Whipple-Boyce, Clein, Jeffares, Koseck  
Nays: None  
 

12-142-20 
 

C. Chairperson’s Comments  



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
December 9, 2020 

 

1 
 

 
Chairman Clein welcomed everyone to the virtual meeting. He stated the meeting was being held 
under the auspices of state legislation. Chairman Clein reviewed procedures for the meeting.  
 

12-143-20 
 
D. Review Of The Agenda  
 
PD Ecker explained that while the Final Site Plan and Design Review for All Seasons Phase 2 at 
219 Elm Street was properly noticed, the Special Land Use Permit for the same business was 
not. She suggested that the Planning Board hear the Final Site Plan and Design Review during 
the present meeting and that they postpone the SLUP review to a date certain.  
 
The Board accepted PD Ecker’s suggestion. 
 

12-144-20 
 
E. Special Land Use Permit and Final Site Plan Reviews 
 

1. 856 N. Old Woodward – Fruition (New Building – The Pearl), Final Site Plan 
and Design Review for changes to the building for the operation of a new food and drink 
establishment (no alcohol) in an O2 zone district. 
 

CP Cowan stated the applicant requested a postponement of the evening’s hearing. 
 
Motion by Mr. Williams 
Seconded by Ms. Whipple-Boyce to postpone the SLUP request and Final Site Plan 
Review for Fruition at 856 N. Old Woodward to January 27, 2021.  
 
Motion carried, 7-0. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE 
Yeas: Williams, Whipple-Boyce, Boyle, Share, Clein, Jeffares, Koseck  
Nays: None  
 

2. 251 E. Merrill, Suite 236 – Tapper’s Gold Exchange (Merrillwood Building), 
Final Site Plan and Design Review to permit a jewelry store including the buying and selling 
of precious metals in a second floor suite.  
 

Chairman Clein recused himself from the item citing a potential conflict-of-interest. 
 
Vice-Chairman Williams facilitated the item’s discussion. 
 
PD Ecker presented for the City and John Henke spoke as attorney for the applicant. 
 
Mark Tapper, owner and applicant, was also available. 
 



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
December 9, 2020 

 

2 
 

In reply to Board inquiries, PD Ecker stated: 
● No other applicants have expressed interest in opening a business that would be a 

regulated use within 1,000 feet of 251 E. Merrill. 
● This location would be selling new jewelry in addition to buying and selling precious metals 

and jewelry. 
● If this approval were granted, the approval would stay with the applicant and not with the 

location. 
 
In reply to an inquiry from Mr. Share, Mr. Tapper stated that some small percentage of the 
business would be collateralized loans. 
 
Mr. Henke explained lending is authorized by a pawn license, which Tapper’s will seek from the 
Birmingham Police Department in the event of a SLUP approval.  
 
Motion by Mr. Share 
Seconded by Mr. Jeffares to recommend approval of the Special Land Use Permit to 
the City Commission to permit the operation of Tapper’s Gold Exchange in compliance 
with Article 7, Section 7.36 and Article 7, Section 7.21 of Birmingham Code as a 
regulated use at 251 E. Merrill, Suite 236. 
 
Motion carried, 7-0. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE 
Yeas: Share, Jeffares, Williams, Koseck, Whipple-Boyce, Ramin, Boyle 
Nays: None 
 
Motion by Mr. Share 
Seconded by Ms. Whipple-Boyce to recommend approval of the Final Site Plan to the 
City Commission to permit the operation of Tapper’s Gold Exchange at 251 E. Merrill, 
Suite 236.  
 
Motion carried, 7-0. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE 
Yeas: Share, Whipple-Boyce, Jeffares, Williams, Koseck, Ramin, Boyle 
Nays: None 
 
Mr. Tapper thanked the Board for their work on behalf of the City. 
 
F. Final Site Plan Review 
 

1. 219 Elm Street – All Seasons Phase 2 (vacant office building), Final Site Plan 
and Design Review for new construction of a multi-family independent senior living 
building. 
 

Chairman Clein resumed facilitation of the evening’s meeting. 
 

NDupuis
Highlight



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
December 9, 2020 

 

3 
 

CP Dupuis presented the item. 
 
Mark Hyland of All Seasons, Sam Beznos of Beztak Companies, project engineer John Thompson, 
and project architect Xander Bogaerts were present on behalf of the applicant. 
 
Mr. Hyland stated that: 

● There are no doors on the north facade, only windows. All the windows on the north 
facade will be fire and blast resistant. 

● As soon as the building’s energy needs are finalized with DTE and the necessary electrical 
equipment determined his team will submit proposals for screening the electrical 
equipment that will be ordinance-compliant. 

● The comments provided by the Fire and Engineering Departments will be accommodated. 
All Seasons Phase 2 is working on configuring a fire command room as required. 

● No front step was added to the building because the grade is flat and they did not want 
to change it unnecessarily. 

 
It was discussed by the Board that if All Seasons Phase 2 were sold in the future to an owner 
who wanted to convert the building from senior housing to regular residential that the parking 
requirements for the building would increase significantly. 
 
Mr. Boyle noted that while an MX use was not required for this parcel, mixed uses in general are 
encouraged in the Triangle Plan. He said he just wanted to bring that fact to the Board’s attention. 
 
Chairman Clein asked the applicants to fix discrepancies between the various submitted plans 
and to fix the one area of the connectivity plan that has no pavement or sidewalks. He offered 
his support for the project as long as all City conditions are met. 
 
Mr. Share noted that the last Board discussion of the master plan draft explored the idea of 
increasing residential density in the Triangle District. While noting that such a proposal is not 
binding until the City adopts it, he said there did seem to be some indication that increasing 
residential density in this area would desirable and that this project moves towards that. He also 
asked how the City will approach the matter of the ‘bonus’ stories for this building, to be earned 
through presumptive LEED certification, if the LEED certification is either 1. not ultimately granted 
or 2. granted, but falls short of the City’s expectations.  
 
Mr. Jeffares expressed dismay at the amount of hardie board proposed for the building. He said 
it struck him that the Board had no authorization to impose architectural standards in this case, 
and said they may want to look into changing that for the future. 
 
Mr. Koseck expressed aesthetic and functional concerns with the project. He said: 

● He liked the density and infill.  
● While he had no problem with the height of the building, he found the massing odd in its 

context. If it were situated midblock between other similar buildings he said the massing 
would not be as noticeable, but that here it stands out as excessively imposing.  

● In bigger cities first floor bedrooms and living rooms are either usually up half a level from 
the street or other architectural elements like courtyards and stoops provide a buffer. In 
contrast this proposal puts bedrooms and living rooms directly next to sidewalks, which 



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
December 9, 2020 

 

4 
 

he said creates an awkward and uncomfortable pedestrian-resident interface. The options 
for residents are either to leave the blinds drawn, which serves to deactivate the 
streetscape, or to leave them open, which leaves pedestrians unsure of whether they are 
actually being invited to gaze in or whether they are intruding on someone’s privacy. 

● He had asked the applicant at the last review to have All Seasons Phase 2 echo only some 
of the materials and design of All Seasons, while making it its own unique design. He was 
disappointed that suggestion was not more realized in the most recent plans.  

● The applicant should consider pursuing a variance for the fire-rated glass on the north 
facade since the adjacent building has the same owner. He said it would be a better 
experience for residents looking out of those windows and would match the other windows 
on the building. 

● His misgivings made him unenthused about the project as a whole. The project, however, 
seemed ordinance-compliant. 

 
Mr. Williams agreed it was worth pursuing a variance for the fire-rated glass on the north side, 
noting that the worse-case scenario is that the applicant is turned down and has to implement its 
current plan. 
 
Mr. Beznos told the Board that the applicant team met with the president of the nearest home-
owners association in June 2020 and that the president expressed his approval of the plans, 
materials and designs for All Seasons Phase 2. 
 
Motion by Mr. Boyle 
Seconded by Mr. Williams to recommend approval to the City Commission the Final 
Site Plan and Design Review for 219 Elm St. – All Seasons 2 – subject to the following 
conditions:  

1. The Planning Board approves the projections into the right-of-way on the  
west side of the building fronting Elm Street and on the south side facing the  
public alley;  
2. The applicant must either remove the awnings, or provide an easement  
acceptable to the City Attorney with the neighboring property owner for the  
use of the air rights to the north of the building;  
3. The applicant must provide specification sheets for all rooftop and ground  
mounted mechanical units, and the applicant must provide screening for the  
ground-mounted mechanical units or obtain a variance from the Board of  
Zoning Appeals;  
4. The applicant must submit corrected landscaping plans showing the  
proposed locations of all planting material;  
5. The applicant must provide lighting for the parking facility that meets the  
requirements of Article 4, Section 4.21 (F) or obtain a variance from the  
Board of Zoning Appeals;  
6. The applicant must submit material specification sheets for all of the  
required materials; and, 
7. The applicant must comply with the requests of all City departments.  

 
Motion carried, 7-0. 
 



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
December 9, 2020 

 

5 
 

ROLL CALL VOTE 
Yeas: Boyle, Williams, Share, Whipple-Boyce, Jeffares, Clein, Koseck 
Nays: None 
 
Motion by Mr. Williams 
Seconded by Mr. Share to schedule the SLUP request review for All Seasons Phase 2 
at 219 Elm Street on January 27, 2021.  
 
Motion carried, 7-0. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE 
Yeas: Williams, Share, Whipple-Boyce, Boyle, Clein, Jeffares, Koseck  
Nays: None  
 

12-145-20 
 

F. Miscellaneous Business and Communications:  
a. Communications  
 

The Board had a pre-application discussion with Jeffrey Atto, who expressed interest in potentially 
seeking a rezoning of his home from RZ1 to TZ3. He explained that since his business is mostly 
conducted through telecommuting, he would like the option to host one or two employees at his 
house at a time with the rest of his staff working remotely. He explained: 

● His stretch of Lincoln is largely commercial, with an immense amount of on-street parking 
available.  

● He took the proposal to his three closest neighbors, all of whom expressed approval of 
the idea. 

● Converting his home to a home-office use would be mixed use, which is appropriate for 
TZ3, and the location fronts on a major road, which is another TZ3 requirement. 

● He had this idea because of the Covid-19 pandemic, when he was re-evaluating the most 
optimal way to run his business. 

 
Mr. Emerine and Mr. Jeffares confirmed there is a surplus of available parking near Mr. Atto’s 
home.  
 
Mr. Koseck, Ms. Whipple-Boyce and Chairman Clein noted that rezoning is a difficult bar to clear. 
Both Mr. Koseck and Ms. Whipple-Boyce noted that most of Lincoln is residential, and that a TZ3 
rezoning would be out of place in that area. 
 
Mr. Koseck added that, even if Mr. Atto’s proposed use is low-intensity, once the parcel is rezoned 
it remains that way. This could allow a more intrusive business to occupy that parcel in the future 
and the City would have little recourse to prevent that. 
 
Mr. Jeffares noted that while the City is trying to promote mixed uses in a number of areas, the 
City should pay attention to where mixed-use proposals arise organically. He cited the master 
plan draft’s proposal for small commercial areas within neighborhoods, and said a business with 
one to three employees at a time could help promote that kind of activity. He also noted that, in 



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
December 9, 2020 

 

6 
 

light of the pandemic, Mr. Atto is likely not the only resident reflecting on possible live-work 
options and said the City should be aware the matter is likely to come up again.  
 
In response to a suggestion that he could have one or two employees over more informally 
without a zoning change, Mr. Atto noted that RZ1 specifically prohibits that option and that he is 
trying to operate lawfully. 
 
Chairman Clein added that when residents express concerns about ‘businesses intruding into 
neighborhoods’ this kind of proposed configuration, rightly or wrongly, is what they are likely 
referring to.  
 
Chairman Clein and Mr. Williams both expressed skepticism that rezoning would be likely in this 
case. 
 
Chairman Clein thanked Mr. Atto for his thoughtful presentation and for bringing his ideas to the 
Board. 
 

b. Administrative Approval Correspondence  
c. Draft Agenda for the next Regular Planning Board Meeting (January 13,  
2021)  

● Master Plan Draft Discussion 
d. Other Business  
 

In reply to Mr. Jeffares, PD Ecker confirmed the City has been notifying the public about each 
master plan draft discussion meeting via City social media channels, packets sent out to 
neighborhoods, and City e-newsletters. She noted the pandemic is likely affecting attendance. 
 
Mr. Jeffares suggested the City consider posting ground signs with the information about the 
master plan draft discussions around the City. 
 
Mr. Williams added that discussion of these topics on the social media website Nextdoor indicates 
residents are at least thinking about the master planning topics. He said the City should continue 
to promote the master plan draft discussions on Nextdoor. He added that the City Commission 
should also continue to promote the master plan draft discussions at their meetings. 
 

12-146-20 
 
G. Planning Division Action Items  

 
a. Staff Report on Previous Requests 
b. Additional Items from tonight's meeting 

 
  



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
December 9, 2020 

 

7 
 

12-147-20 
 

H. Adjournment 
 
No further business being evident, the Chairman adjourned the meeting at 9:35 p.m. 
             
             
            
 
Jana L. Ecker 
            
Planning Director 
 
 



MEMORANDUM 
Planning Division 

DATE: March 3, 2021  

TO: Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Jana L. Ecker, Planning Director 

SUBJECT: Resolution Outlining the 2040 Master Plan Review Process 

Public communications for the 2040 Master Plan project have been ongoing for almost two 
years.  Public meetings have been held at the Planning Board, the City Commission and at 
joint meetings of both groups.  An extensive public engagement schedule has included 
roundtable discussions with residents, stakeholders and property owners, a week long design 
charrette in the spring of 2019 and a multi-day drop in clinic in the summer of 2019.  In 
addition, three surveys were created and launched to allow all members of the community 
to provide their input even if they were unavailable to attend any of the public meetings. 
Media coverage has been ongoing, and the City has also provided a project website at 
BirminghamPlan.com to host all material created and discussed throughout the Master Plan 
project, and to solicit input and provide a forum for public engagement.  The Planning Board 
has conducted multiple public meetings to present and obtain public input on the first draft 
of the 2040 Plan.  The City has also provided ongoing communication through the 
Birmingham Plan App, social media such as Twitter, Facebook and Instagram, Inside City 
Hall and other television segments, as well as newsletters and articles. 

Due to the global pandemic that started in 2020, the City-wide master plan process was 
interrupted and temporarily stalled during the first half of 2020.  As a result of this and the 
suspension of in-person meetings, the City and the DPZ CoDesign consulting team 
established a plan recommence the public review of the first draft of the 2040 Plan.  The 
City and the DPZ team also established a revised process and timeline for the preparation 
and review of the second draft of the 2040 Plan, and the third and final draft to be considered 
for adoption by the City Commission.  

As a result of the temporary pause in the master plan process, and the resultant changes to 
the schedule and process outline, numerous residents have contacted City Hall for 
clarification of the remaining steps in the process of adopting a new master plan, clarification 
as to when the public input received on the first draft of the 2040 Plan may be reflected in 
a second draft, and the overall timeline for adoption of the final draft of the Birmingham 
2040 Plan.  Accordingly, please find attached a resolution prepared for your review and 
consideration that clearly outlines and documents the remaining steps in the process to 
update the City-wide master plan.   

Suggested Action: 

To adopt Resolution # __________ to affirm and approve the master plan review and 
adoption process from the first draft of the 2040 Plan to the final public hearing to consider 
adoption of the final draft of the Birmingham 2040 Plan. 

7B



RESOLUTION # _______ 

2040 MASTER PLAN REVIEW PROCESS 
 

WHEREAS Birmingham has a long standing commitment to strong local planning 
throughout the City to support its vibrant neighborhoods and mixed use districts and 
continue to build on Birmingham’s success; 

 
WHEREAS Birmingham is one of few communities in the region having preserved 

its historic downtown, enhanced other commercial districts and maintained its walkable 
neighborhoods to foster an environment that is offered in very few places in Metro Detroit; 
 

WHEREAS with this success and the lack of similar urban environments in the 
region, demand for both residential and commercial space has continuously increased, 
raising housing prices, lease rates and parking concerns;  

 
WHEREAS as part of a larger region, Birmingham is desirous of continuing to lead 

the region by example and incorporating best planning practices to support its downtown, 
neighborhoods and mixed use districts while also encouraging innovation and sustainable 
practices;  

 
WHEREAS Birmingham entered into an agreement with DPZ CoDesign in 2018 to 

conduct a comprehensive update of the last City-wide master plan that was completed 
in 1980; 

 
WHEREAS the DPZ CoDesign team conducted extensive research on existing 

conditions in Birmingham, best practices in urban planning for similar communities, and 
conducted extensive public engagement utilizing neighborhood round table discussions, three 
City-wide surveys, a one week public design charrette, a three day drop in clinic, conducted 
many public meetings and presentations, and established a project website to garner public 
input from residents with regards to the future direction of the City; 
 

WHEREAS the DPZ team completed the first draft of the 2040 Master Plan in October 
2019 for review and consideration by the City Commission, Planning Board and the public 
and commenced a detailed review of each section of the first draft at public meetings until 
the global pandemic started early in 2020 and temporarily halted the master plan project; 
 

WHEREAS the DPZ team worked with the City of Birmingham to amend the master 
plan process in light of the delays caused by the pandemic and the restrictions on public 
gatherings; 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Commission hereby affirms 
approval of the amended review process previously agreed upon for the drafting and 
consideration of the final draft of the Birmingham 2040 Master Plan as follows: 

 
1. The City Commission affirms support for the key themes and objectives of the 

2040 Plan as listed below and discussed at previous meetings of the Planning 
Board, City Commission and a joint meeting of both groups: 

a. Connect the City; 
b. Embrace Managed Growth; 
c. Retain Neighborhood Quality; 

  



d. Invest in Civic Spaces and Programs; 
e. Support Mixed-Use Areas;  and 
f. Advance Sustainability Practices; 

2. The Planning Board continue review of the first draft of the 2040 Plan through 
virtual public meetings to review each section of the plan and to solicit public 
input; 

3. The Planning Board provide to the City Commission and the DPZ team a 
summary of public input on the first draft of the 2040 Plan, and outline their 
direction for proposed revisions to the first draft; 

4. The City Commission review the summary from the Planning Board regarding 
recommended revisions to the first draft and the recommended direction to the 
DPZ team for preparation of the second draft of the 2040 Plan; 

5. The DPZ team prepare the second draft of the 2040 Plan with revisions as 
directed incorporating all requested amendments to the City in May 2021 and 
publish same on the project website; 

6. The Planning Board hold up to four public meetings to review the second draft 
of the 2040 Plan and focus on discussing all outstanding strategic issues; 

7. The Planning Board and City Commission conduct a joint meeting to discuss 
public input and direction on revisions to the second draft of the 2040 Plan; 

8. The DPZ team complete the final draft of the 2040 Plan and distribute to all 
adjoining jurisdictions and other entities as required by the Michigan Planning 
Enabling Act, and publish on the project website; 

9. The City and DPZ team continue to accept and record public input on the final 
draft of the 2040 Plan;  and 

10. The Planning Board and the City Commission each conduct public hearings on 
the final draft of the 2040 Plan, with the City Commission making the final 
decision on the adoption of the 2040 Birmingham Plan. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the terms and conditions of the original contract between 
DPZ CoDesign and the City of Birmingham, as amended, shall continue in force, and all 
other applicable State laws in effect at the time of the issuance of this resolution, and as 
they may be subsequently amended, shall also remain in force. 
 
I, Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk Designee, of the City of Birmingham, Michigan, do hereby 
certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the resolution adopted by the 
Birmingham City Commission at its regular meeting held on March 8, 2021. 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk Designee 
 
 
 
 



7C

MEMORANDUM 
~ (Treasury) 

DATE: 3/3/2021 

TO: Tom Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Jack Todd, Deputy Treasurer 

SUBJECT: Resolution Regarding New Public Act 253 (Poverty Exemption 
Changes) 

INTRODUCTION: 

The City of Birmingham provides a Hardship Application for residents to complete for the Board 
of Review. Recent changes in State Law require the City to update their policy and procedures in 
regards to poverty exemptions. The Board of Review will determine if an applicant is eligible for 
taxable value reduction based on policies and procedures approved by the City Commission. 

BACKGROUND: 

The Poverty Exemption Statute (MCL 211.7u) establishes how local assessing units and boards of 
review handle poverty exemption cases. The State of Michigan Legislation adopted new provision 
in December of 2020 that requires the City to adopt a new resolution with the appropriate changes 
to be in compliance with PA 253 of 2020. 

Attached is a document of the summary of changes to MCL 211. 7u Poverty Exemption in Public 
Act 253 of 2020. The changes have been incorporated into the attached resolution, including 
policy and procedure guidelines. 

The new legislation allows the Board of Review to determine if and when an exemption is granted, 
and how much reduction is permitted. It can either be 25%, 50%, or 100% reduction in taxable 
value. 

LEGAL REVIEW: 

The City Attorney has reviewed the updated Hardship Application for compliance with PA 253 of 
2020. 

ASCAL IMPACT: 

There is no fiscal impact based on this change in poverty exemption. The city averages less than 
10 applicants per year and most of the applications are recurring. 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 

1 



The updated Hardship Application will be available on the city website. 

SUMMARY: 

To comply with the changes to MCL 211.7u Poverty Exemption in Public Act 253 of 2020, the city 
must adopt a policy relative to poverty exemptions in the city and the Hardship Application. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Please find attached the following documents for your review: 

• Resolution of the City Commission Adopting a Policy Relative to the Review and Granting 
of Poverty Exemptions By the City 

• Updated 2021 Hardship Application 
• Summary of Changes to MCL 211.7u Poverty Exemption in Public Act 253 of 2020 

SUGGESTED RESOLUTION: 

To approve the resolution adopting a policy relative to the review and granting of poverty 
exemption by the city and the updated Hardship Application. 

2 



CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION ADOPTING A POUCY 

RELATIVE TO THE REVIEW AND GRANTING OF POVERTY 
EXEMPTIONS BY THE CITY 

At a meeting of the City Commission of the City of Birmingham, Oakland County, 
Michigan, held on the 8th day of March, 2021, at City Hall, 151 Martin Street, 
Birmingham, MI, 48009. 

Moved by: __________ _ Seconded by: _________ _ 

WHEREAS, P.A. 390 of 1994, which amended Section 7u of Act No. 206 of the Public 
Acts of 1893, as amended by Act No. 313 of the Public Acts of 1993, being sections 211.7u of the 
Michigan Compiled Laws, as amended most recently by P.A. 253 of 2020 which further amended 
211.7u of the Michigan Compiled Laws which requires the governing body of the local assessing 
unit to determine and make available to the public the policy and guidelines used by the Board 
of Review in granting reductions in property assessments due to limited income and assets, 
referred to as "poverty exemptions." 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that to be eligible for a poverty exemption of the City 
of Birmingham, a person shall do all of the following on an annual basis In accordance with Act 
206 of 1893 as amended by P.A. 253 of 2020 and the requirements of the Birmingham Policy and 
Guidelines for the Granting of Poverty Exemptions: 

1. An applicant must have an ownership interest in the property for which the exemption 
is requested and must have physically owned and occupied the property as the 
applicant's principal residence. The person shall affirm this ownership and occupancy 
status in writing by filing a form prescribed by the State Tax Commission. 

2. The subject property must be classified as an "improved single family residence" or 
"residential condominium" property with a valid Homeowner's Principal Residence 
Exemption (PRE) currently in effect. 

3. The applicant or applicants must complete and timely file an application requesting a 
poverty exemption on a form prescribed by the City accompanied by Federal and State 
Income Tax Returns. Fully completed Hardship Exemption Applications with required 
supporting information will be accepted after January 1, through the day prior to the 
last meeting of the March Board of Review. The filing of a completed Hardship 
Exemption application with required supporting information shall constitute an 
appearance before the Board of Review for the purpose of preserving the applicant's 
right to appeal the decision of the Board of Review to the Michigan Tax Tribunal •• 

4. The applicant must include with the application a copy of all of the previous year's 
income tax returns that the applicant was required to file (Federal Income Tax Return, 
Michigan Income Tax Return and the Michigan Property Tax Credit Form, Social 



Security Statement, etc.) and copies of year-end financial/investment statements if 
any interest income is reported on the application or on the applicant's income tax 
filings. Copies of the previous year's income tax returns must be supplied for all 
persons living in the subject residence. All new applicants and other applicants, when 
requested by the Board, must provide copies of all income tax filings for the three 
previous years. 

5. The applicant must supply a copy of a current driver's license or other form of 
identification. 

6. Produce a deed, land contract, or other evidence of ownership of the property for 
which an exemption is requested if required by the Board of Review. 

7. At the minimum, meet the federal poverty guidelines published in the prior calendar 
year in the Federal Register by the United States Department of Health and Human 
Services under its authority to revise the poverty line under 42 USC 9902, or alternative 
guidelines adopted by the governing body of the local assessing unit provided the 
alternative guidelines do not provide income eligibility requirements less than the 
federal guidelines. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the applicant's total household income, after being 
adjusted for out-of-pocket medical expenses which are demonstrated to exceed 10% of the total 
household income, cannot exceed two and one-half (2 V2) times the prior year poverty income 
figure, as reported by household size, in the "Federal Poverty Guidelines" updated annually in the 
Federal Register by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services. (Income requirement) 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that subject to the Policy and Guidelines, the total value 
of the assets of the applicant and each member of the applicant's household shall not exceed 
$150,000. The assets of each member of the applicant's household shall be examined to 
determine whether there are assets which can reasonably be invested, sold or used to pay the 
property taxes. If the assets are of a nature and value which reasonably indicates that a condition 
of poverty does not exist, then a poverty exemption shall be denied.(Asset requirement) 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any reduction in the State Equalized Value of a 
property is granted for one year only and must be applied for and reviewed annually based on 
the applicant's current situation. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the applicant(s) and all those living in the applicant's 
household who are submitting tax returns and related financial documents must sign a Waiver of 
Confidentiality prior to the Board discussing the request for a hardship reduction in which the 
applicant(s) and others consent to the examination and discussion of the applicant's application 
and all supporting documentation by the Board of Review members in a public meeting format. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that upon meeting the Policy and Guidelines of the local 
assessing unit in granting or denying an exemption the applicant shall receive a full exemption 



equal to 100% reduction in taxable value or a partial exemption equal to 25% or 50% reduction 
in taxable value as determined by the Board of Review. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that in order to ease the burden on taxpayers, the assessor 
and the Board of Review and to ensure that all taxpayers have an equal opportunity to be heard 
by the Board of Review, the City of Birmingham hereby resolves, according to provisions of MCL 
211.30(8) of the General Property Tax Act, that the Board of Review shall receive letters of protest 
regarding assessments from resident taxpayers from the first Tuesday in March until it adjourns 
from the public hearings for which it meets to hear such protests. All notices of assessment 
change and all advertisements of Board of Review meetings are to Include a statement that the 
resident taxpayers may protest by letter to the Board. 

Passed, adopted and approved this ___ day of ____ __, 2021. 

AYES: 

NAYS: 

PRESENT: 

ABSENT: 

CERTIFICATION 

I, Alexandria D. Bingham, being the duly appointed and qualified Clerk of the City of 
Birmingham, Oakland County, Michigan, do hereby certify and declare that the foregoing is a true 
and correct copy of Resolution, the original of which is on file in my office, adopted by the City 
of Birmingham Commission at a regular meeting held on March 8, 2021. 

Alexandria D. Bingham, City Clerk 

-3-



POLICY AND GUIDELINES FOR THE 
GRANTING OF POVERTY EXEMPTIONS 

MCL 211. 7u, as amended by Public Act 253 of 2020, provides that: 

(1) The principal residence of person who, in the judgement of the board of review, by 
reason of poverty, is unable to contribute toward the public charges is eligible for 
exemption in whole or in part from taxation under this (General Property Tax) act. 

The following policy and guidelines have been adopted by the Birmingham City Commission to 
govern the granting of hardship exemptions: 

APPLICATION PROCEDURE 

1. Eligibility and Application. To be eligible for a hardship exemption the applicant must be 
both the taxpayer and a natural person (i.e., not a corporation, trust or other business 
association or entity) and must do all of the following on an annual basis: 

A. Be an owner of and occupy as a homestead the property for which an exemption is 
requested. "Principal residence" means principal residence or qualified agricultural 
property as those terms are defined in MCL 21 l.7dd. 

B. File with the City Assessor a completed Hardship Exemption Application on a form 
provided by the City Assessor's office. The applicant must include with the 
application a copy of all of the previous year's income tax returns that the applicant 
was required to file (Federal Income Tax Return, Michigan Income Tax Return and 
the Michigan Property Tax Credit Form, Social Security Statement, etc.) and copies 
of year-end financial/investment statements if any interest income is reported on the 
application or on the applicant's income tax filings. Copies of the previous year's 
income tax returns must be supplied for all persons living in the subject residence. 
All new applicants and other applicants, when requested by the Board, must provide 
copies of all income tax filings for the three previous years., 

C. Produce a valid driver's license or other acceptable form of identification ifrequested 
by the Assessor or Board of Review. 

D. Produce a deed, land contract or other evidence of ownership of the property for 
which an exemption is requested if required by the Assessor or Board of Review.\ 

2. Filing Period; Appearance. Fully completed Hardship Exemption Applications with required 
supporting information will be accepted after January 1, through the day prior to the last 
meeting of the March Board of Review. The filing of a completed Hardship Exemption 
application with required supporting information shall constitute an appearance before the 
Board of Review for the purpose of preserving the applicant's right to appeal the decision of 
the Board of Review to the Michigan Tax Tribunal. 



EVALUATION PROCEDURE 

1. Meetings. Meetings of the Board of Review and Assessor relative to hardship exemption 
applications shall be held in compliance with the Michigan Open Meetings Act. 

2. Applicant's Presence. The Board of Review may request an applicant to personally appear 
before the Board to respond to any questions the Board or Assessor may have. 

3. Investigation. Applicants for hardship exemption may be investigated by the City in order to 
verify information submitted or statements made to the Assessor or Board of Review. 

4. Oath. Applicants appearing before the Board shall be administered an oath, as follows: 

Do you swear or affirm that information and testimony you will give before the 
Board of Review is the truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth. 

5. Criteria for Determining Exemption. The Board shall consider the following three (3) criteria 
to determine whether a full or partial hardship exemption should be granted: 

A. Income. The total income of the applicant and each member of the applicant's 
household shall not exceed the prior year's Federal Poverty Income Standards, as 
defined and determined annually by the U.S. Department of Health and Human 
Services under authority of Section 673 of subtitle V of title VI of the Omnibus 
Budget Reconciliation Act of 1981, Public law 97-35, 42 U.S.C. 9902, multiplied by 
2.5. 

I . Income shall include, but not be limited to, the following: 
a. Money wages and salaries before any deductions; 
b. Net receipts from self-employment; 
c. Distributions or income from partnerships, limited liabilities companies, or 

corporations, whether or not taxable; 
d. Tax exempt income received including, but not limited to, interest income, 

disability income, social security or SSL; 
e. Regular payments from Social Security, Railroad Retirement, unemployment 

compensation, strike benefits from union funds, workers compensation, 
veterans payments or any type of public assistance; 

f. Alimony, child support, and military family allotments or other regular 
support from an absent family member for someone not living in the 
household. For example, periodic gifts to assist the applicant or the 
applicant's household shall be included in income; 

g. Private pensions, government employee pensions (including military 
retirement pay), regular insurance or annuity payments; 

h. College or university scholarships, grants or fellowships; 
1. Dividends, interest, net rental income, net royalties, periodic receipts from 

estates or trusts, net lottery winnings and net gambling winnings; and 
J. Payments made to a third party to or for the benefit of the applicant or a 

member of the applicant's household. 

2 



2. Income shall not include any of the following: 
a. Money received from the sale of property, such as stocks, bonds, house, car, 

unless the applicant or a member of the applicant's household is in the 
business of selling such property; 

b. Withdrawals of bank deposits; 
c. Borrowed monies; 
d. Income tax refunds; 
e. One time payouts from insurance companies; 
f. Losses including, but not limited to, capital losses or business losses. 
g. Gifts and/or inheritances, unless the purpose of such gift and/or inheritance, as 

determined by the Board of Review, is to assist in the support of the 
applicant or the applicant's household. 

3. The Board of Review may waive the income test for household with income 
greater than allowed under Paragraph A., but who have expenses beyond the 
ordinary scope of expected costs which are severe and unavoidable, such as 
unusually high health care costs in excess of I 0% of the total household 
income not covered by insurance. 

B. Assets. The total value of the assets of the applicant and each member of the 
applicant's household shall not exceed $150,000. The assets of each member of the 
applicant's household shall be examined to determine whether there are assets which 
can reasonably be invested, sold or used to pay the property taxes. If the assets are of 
a nature and value which reasonably indicates that a condition of hardship does not 
exist, then a hardship exemption shall be denied. 

1. The total value of the assets shall include the value of the equity in the principal 
residence to the extent the principal residence value exceeds the average Assessed 
Value for a home in the City as of December 31 of the year preceding the date of the 
application. 

2. Notwithstanding subparagraph 1, if the applicant has resided in the principal 
residence, as his/her principal residence, for a period of at least 20 years prior to the 
date of application, the value of the equity in the principal residence shall not be 
counted as an asset under paragraph B. 

3. Gifts, inheritances, one-time payouts from insurance companies, income tax refunds 
and money received from the sale of property, such as stocks, bonds, house, car, 
(unless the applicant or a member of the applicant's household is in the business of 
selling such property), shall be included as assets of the applicant and /or members of 
the applicant's household. 

4. If the applicant and/or members of the applicant's household shall transfer assets to 
another for less than full and adequate consideration in money or money's worth 
within sixty (60) months from date of the application for exemption, such exemption 
shall be denied. Such transfer shall include, but not be limited to, giving up all or 
partial ownership in an asset, selling an asset, giving an asset away, refusing or 
disclaiming a gift or inheritance, or giving up the right to receive income. Such 
transfers shall not include transfers in the amount of $100 or less. 

3 



C. Contribution From Other Sources. If the Board of Review determines the applicant 
does or reasonably should receive contribution toward truces from other sources, such 
as from a trust, inheritance, co-owner, relative, dependent, friend or other source, the 
Board may consider the amount of such contribution as an addition to the applicant's 
income and if the resulting sum exceeds the Income Standard in paragraph A., above, 
then a hardship exemption shall be denied. 

6. Granting of Exemption. If the Board of Review determines that an applicant: 

A. Does not have income in excess of the total income allowed under paragraph 5(A) or the 
Board waives the income test under paragraph 5(A)(3); and; 

B. Does not have assets which can reasonably be invested, sold or used to pay the property 
truces under paragraph 5(B); and 

C. Does not receive or reasonably expect to receive contribution toward truces from other 
sources under paragraph S(C), 

Then, the Board of Review shall grant a full exemption equal to a 100% reduction in the 
applicant's trucable value for subject property or a partial exemption for the subject 
property equal to a 25% or 50% reduction in trucable value as determined by the board of 
review such that the applicant's taxable value for subject property may be valued to equal 
a property true liability of approximately ( 1) 6% of the total income as determined in 
paragraph S(A). 

7. Deviation From Policy and Guidelines. The Board of Review shall follow the policy and 
guidelines set forth herein for granting or denying a hardship. 

4 



Oty_ of <Birmingham 
~ ~ A Walkable Co·m:mun.ity 

........ 
'Treasurer/Jlssessor©epartment 

©ecfaration of Hartfsnip antf 'R.#quest for~~ 'R.#Gef .ftppGcation 
jls of ©ecem6er 31, 2020 

Property ID Number:---------------

Property Address:-----------------

APPLICANT INFORMATION 

Name of Owner and Co-owners: 
----------------~ 

Street Address: 
---------------------~ 

City, State, Zip:----------

Phone Number: (Daytime) ______ _ 

Date of Birth: -------
Number 

Marital Status of Years 

1 Married 
Divorced 
Widowed 
Separated 
Single 

5 

(Night) _____ _ 



EMPLOYMENT STATUS 

Disabled - No. of Years ---
Do you qualify for disability benefits? Yes or No (Circle one) 
Employed Full-time 
Employed Part-time 
Retired - No. of Years --
Unemployed- No. of Years __ _ 
Laid-off - No. of Years ---
Other 

Occupation: _____________ _ 
(If employed) 

Employer:--------------

Address: -----------------
Telephone: (__) ____ _ 

EMPLOYMENT STATUS-SPOUSE 

Disabled - No. of Years 
Do you qualify for disability benefits? Yes or No (Circle one) 
Employed Full-time 
Employed Part-time 
Retired - No. of Years 
Unemployed - No. of Years 
Laid-off- No. of Years 
Other 

Occupation: _____________ _ 
(If employed) 

Employer:----------- ---

Address: ------ -----------
Telephone: (_) _____ _ 

6 



SUBSTANTIAL AND COMPELLING REASONS 

In the space below list any substantial and compelling reasons you feel the Board 
should consider during the evaluation of this petition. (example: documented disability 
or health problems) 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

What year did you purchase this property? ___ _ 

Are you and/or your spouse the sole owners of the subject property? D Yes D No 
If no, list all owners and their percentage of ownership: ___________ _ 

Purchase Price? $ ----- Monthly Payment$ __ _ 

Total unpaid balance of mortgage/land contract as of 12/31/20 $ ___ _ 

Number of years remaining on the mortgage/land contract __ _ 

Are your property taxes paid? D Yes D No 

Did you apply for poverty exemption last year? D Yes D No 

List all persons living in the household other than yourself and spouse. 

ttl tl1 
Name: 
Age: 
Re la ti ons hip: 
Occupation: 
Annual Income: 
Claimed as Yes Yes Yes 
Dependent? No No No 
Heir to Estate? Yes Yes Yes 

No No No 

7 

tQ 



Have any improvements, changes or additions been made to the property in the last (2) 

years? D Yes D No If yes, please explain: ______________ _ 

Do you anticipate selling the homestead property for which relief is sought in the next 

year? D Yes D No Explain: __________________ _ 

Does anyone contribute to your support? D Yes Amount$ ______ _ 

D No Explain: __________________________ _ 

Is anyone able to contribute to your support? Oves D No Explain: ___ _ 

INCOME ANP ASSETS 
Please list all sources of your personal income. Please indicate the amount from each source 
on an annual basis. 

1. Salaries, wages, tips and other employee compensation (include strike, sick and sub $ 
pay) 

2. All dividends and interest (including US state and municipal bond interest) 

3. Net rent, royalty, business, gambling or lottery income 

4. Annuity and pension benefits; Name of Payer 

5. Net farm income 

6. All Capital gains less capital losses 

7. Alimony and other taxable income; Describe 

8. Social Security, supplemental income (SSI) or railroad retirement benefits 

9. Child Support 

10. Unemployment compensation and trade readjustment allowance (TRA) benefits 

11 . Worker's compensation, veteran's disability compensation and pension benefits 

12. ADC, GA or emergency Assistance benefits 

13. All other public assistance payments (food stamps, fuel assistance, etc.) 
Describe 

14. Other non-taxable income 
Describe 

TOTAL INCOME: $ 

8 



What was the total income from all sources of everyone living in your household for the 
past two (2) years? 

Last Year: ------ Prior Year: _____ _ 

Do you anticipate any major changes in income for the coming year? 

D Yes D No If yes, please explain: ______________ _ 

Investments 

On spaces below, list all stocks, bonds, mortgages, land contracts, annuities, U.S. 
Savings Bonds or any other investment you, the co-owner or any member of your 
household has. 

Income Earned 
Description of Investment Present Value Last Year 

$ $ 

Real Estate 

Do you have an ownership interest in any other real estate in Michigan or any where 

else? D Yes D No. If yes, please list all property owned in full or part by 

you, the co-owner or any member of your household. Do not list property this 

application is being applied for: 

Income 
Address of Property Purchase date & price Market Value S.E.V. Received 

$ $ $ 

I ' 



Life lnsyrance Policies 

In the spaces below, list all the insurance policies held by you, the co-owner, or any 
member of the household. 

Amount Cash 
Amount Paid Value of Name of Relationship 

Insured of Policy Monthly Policy Beneficiary to Insured 
$ $ $ 

Motor Vehicles 

In the spaces below, list all automobiles, motorcycles, trucks, off-the-road vehicles, etc. 
owned by you, the co-owner or any member of the household. 

Make & Model Year Current Value Balanced Owed 
$ 

Asset Summary 
What are your current assets in addition to the real estate noted previously? 

Cash $ 

Savings Accounts/Certificates & Money Markets $ 

Checking Accounts $ 

Stocks/BondsfTreasury Bills $ 

Insurance $ 

Other $ 

Investments $ 

IRA, Keogh Annuities, Deferred Compensation $ 

Personal Property held as an investment (i.e., gems, jewelry, $ 
coin collection, antique cars, etc.) 



EXPENSES 

AVERAGE MONTHLY EXPENSES: 

Land Contract or Mortgage payment for homestead only (principal $ I 

and interest) 

Life Insurance $ 

Health Insurance $ 

Home Insurance $ 

Auto Insurance $ 

Taxes (homestead) $ 

Taxes on other property $ 

Car Payment $ 

Special Assessment $ 

Utilities: Gas/Oil $ 
I 

Electricity $ 

Telephone $ 

Water/Sewer $ 

Child Care $ 

Food/Clothing $ 

Other loans $ 
Medical (not covered by insurance) $ 

Lawn care/snow removal $ 

Cable $ 

Other (specify) $ 

VERIFICATION OF EXPENSES MAY BE REQUIRED 

Do you have any major or unusual expenses? D Yes D No 

If yes. please explain:---------------------

11 



Following are the federal poverty guidelines X 2.5 for use in setting poverty exemption 
guidelines for 2021 

Size of Family Unit Poverty 
Guidelines 

1 $31,900 

2 $43,100 

3 $54,300 

4 $65,500 

5 $76,700 

6 $87,900 

7 $99,100 

8 $110,300 

For each additional person, $11,200 
add 

12 



ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
With this application you will need to submit last year's copies of the following applicable 
documents for yourself, the co-owner, and every member of the household. 

1. Federal, State and City Income Tax Returns - 1040 or 1040A and any 
schedules 

2. Michigan Homestead Property Tax Credit Claim Ml-1040CR 
3. Valid driver's license or other acceptable form of identification if requested by 

the Assessor or Board or Review 
4. Produce a deed, land contract or other evidence of ownership of the property 

for which an exemption is requested if required by the Assessor or Board of 
Review. 

PLEASE READ CAREFULLY 

I (We) am/are unable to pay the full property taxes on the above described 
property and hereby make application for property tax relief due to poverty in 
accordance with Section 211.7u Michigan Compiled Laws. 

I (We) have read this application and fully understand the contents thereof. 

I (We), , being duly sworn, depose and state 
under the penalties for perjury, that the information contained in this petition and 
my (our) financial condition as above stated is true and correct and to the best of 
my (our) knowledge and belief. 

I (We) further understand that if any information contained herein is found to be 
false or incomplete, any and all relief granted by this application will be forfeited 
and placed back on the assessment roll with penalties and interest occurring on 
the additional tax liability in accordance with Section 211.119 Michigan Compiled 
Laws. 

Applicant's Signature: __________________ _ 

Co-Applicant's Signature: ______________ _ 

Subscribed and sworn before me this ____ day of _______ , 20 . 

Notary Public 

_______ County, Michigan 

My Commission Expires: _______ _ 

13 



Summary of Changes to MCL 211. 7u Poverty Exemption in Public Act 253 of 2020 

Public Act 253 of 2020 was signed into law on December 23, 2020. The Act made several changes 
to the poverty exemption statute (MCL 211. 7u) that will impact how local units, assessors, and boards 
of review handle the exemption starting with the 2021 tax year: 

• Removes the word "supervisor" from statute, making it clear that only the Board of Review 
can grant/deny poverty exemption 

• Clarifies that the federal income levels used are those adopted in the prior tax year (2020 
federal levels are used for 2021 exemptions) 

• Requires the local unit to make the policy, guidelines and application fonn available on their 
website 

• Removes the ability for Boards of Review to deviate from the adopted policy/guidelines for 
"substantial and compelling reasons" 

• Local units can adopt a resolution that allows an exemption granted in 2019 or 2020 to cany 
forward to 2021, 2022 and 2023 for those persons who receive a fixed income solely from 
public assistance that is not subject to significant annual increases (Federal Supplemental 
Security Income, Social Security disability 01· retirement benefits). Local units can also adopt 
a resolution for any new exemptions in 2021, 2022 or 2023 to remain exempt for up to 3 years 
for persons who receive a fixed income (MCL 211.7u(6)) 

• Local units can carry a poverty exemption forward that was granted in 2019 or 2020 for the 
2021 tax year, without an application or protest to the Board of Review. Local units must 
adopt a resolution by February 15, 2021 to carry the exemption fonvard (MCL211.7u(8)) 

• If a person meets all eligibility requirements in statute, the Board of Review must grant n full 
exemption equal to a I 00% reduction in taxable value OR a partial exemption equal to a 25% 
or 50% reduction in taxable value OR any other percentage reduction in taxable value 
approved by the STC 

A person receiving the extended exemption in MCL 21 l.7u(6) for up to 3 years due to receiving a 
fixed income is required to file an affidavit rescinding the exemption within 45 days of no longer 
being eligible for the exemption. 

Local units that adopt a resolution to extend the poverty exemption for up to 3 years for those persons 
who receive a fixed income solely from public assistance or local units that carry the 2019/2020 
granted poverty exemptions forward to 2021 must implement an audit program and if found ineligible, 
the person is subject to repayment of the taxes plus interest. 

Local units may need to revise their guidelines, policies, etc to implement the changes in statute. This 
includes revised guidelines that remove any other calculation of the taxable value for approved 
poverty exemptions, i.e. formulas that take into consideration the homestead tax credit to calculate 
the property tax liability and revised TV based on that calculated tax liability. The guidelines may 
only provide for a full exemption equal to a 100% reduction in taxable value (TV of 0) or a partial 
exemption equal to a 25% reduction or 50% reduction in taxable value, or any other percentage 
reduction approved by the State Tax Commission. 

PA 253 requires the State Tax Commission to issue a bulletin on how to develop and implement the 
audit program for the extended poverty exemption provisions in MCL 211. 7u( 6) and (8). The State 
Tax Commission will also be working to create the statutorily required poverty application fonn and 
other necessary fonns and guidance. 

Provided by State Tax Commission January 8, 2021 



1 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: March 3, 2021 

TO: Tom Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Jim Hock, Interim Assistant City Manager/HR Manager 

SUBJECT: Elevator Repairs 

INTRODUCTION:  
The City of Birmingham has utilized the services of KONE Inc. for purposes of elevator 
maintenance in all of our buildings and parking structures since 2014.  This contract 
was for a 3 year initial term with an option to renew for an additional three (3), one (1) 
year periods. 

BACKGROUND: 

In May of 2019, the City went to bid for these services however, never awarded the 
contract to the then low bidder who was again, KONE Inc.  Since that time, the City has 
been operating on a month to month continuation of the existing contract.  

The City is a member of BidNet Direct which is a governmental bidding cooperative 
purchasing group, and as recent as January 5, another member of the cooperative 
awarded an elevator maintenance contract to KONE Inc.  If that bid is similar to our 
specifications, we can “piggyback” that agreement and receive the same financial 
consideration without another bid.  If it is not close to our requirements, the City will 
again go out to bid for these services.  Either way, staff will move the issue forward and 
prepare an agreement for your approval. 

In August of 2020, extra services were contracted with KONE Inc.  Billing for these 
services that we received in late October 2020 in the amount of $9360 were never 
approved by the Commission.  Then on February 17, 2021 we discovered that the 
motor for the east elevator in the Chester Street parking structure had failed.  The City 
Manager authorized an emergency repair with KONE Inc.in the amount of $11,611 on 
February 23, 2021.  Attached is the October 21, 2020 billing and the emergency repair 
contract prepared by the City Attorney for your consideration. 

LEGAL REVIEW:  

The City Attorney has reviewed the KONE Inc. agreement regarding the repair and added 
an agreement she created to assure property and liability concerns are addressed as 
well.  

7D



2 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

These repairs are being charged to the Automobile Parking System, Chester Structure, 
Elevator Maintenance account # 585-538.008-930.0200. 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 
None 

SUMMARY 

Both expenditures are in excess of $6000 require the approval of the City Commission. 

ATTACHMENTS:  
 October 21, 2020 bill from KONE Inc. in the amount of $9,360
 February 23, 2021 KONE Inc. Chester Street Parking Elevator Pump Motor
 City Attorney prepared agreement regarding Elevator Emergency Repair

SUGGESTED RESOLUTION: 
Motion to approve the October 21, 2020 invoice in the amount of $9,360 and approval of the City 
Manager authorized emergency repair of the Chester Street Parking structure elevator 
agreements in the amount of $11,611. 



























1 

MEMORANDUM 

(Department Name) 

DATE: March 3, 2021 

TO: Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Jim Hock, Assistant City Manager/HR Manager 

SUBJECT: Continuation of COVID business relief 

INTRODUCTION:  
COVID-19 has continued to create economic struggles among the business and
restaurant community in the City of Birmingham.  The City Commission adopted various 
resolutions providing financial relief while society endures the impact of this coronavirus. 

BACKGROUND: 
April 1, 2020, the Commission adopted resolutions that provided the following measures 
for financial relief to Birmingham businesses: 

 Waived fees for temporary signage / eliminate temporary signage
permits.

 Waived field/park/shelter rental fees.
 Free on‐street parking.
 Waived temporary structure permit fees and permit with

Administrative Approval.
 Delay invoicing and collection of Special Assessment Payments.
 Waived penalties on delinquent water/sewer bills and special

assessments/invoices rolled to taxes.
 Waived penalty on delinquent water/sewer bills.
 Waived annual fees for outdoor dining platforms.
 Waived fees for outdoor dining platform meter fees.
 Waived annual fees for valet licenses.
 Waived liquor license renewal fees.
 Waiving fees for pet licenses.
 Waived initial merchants License fee.

All of these provisions expired by January 1, 2021, except temporary signage expired 
earlier on September 8, 2020.   

The following are still in effect until March 31, 2021: 
 Waived fees in parking structures for public.

7E



2 

 Waived fees for monthly permit parking holders.
 Continue the Off-Season Outdoor Dining Standards

Additionally, the Commission approved waiving e‐check fees for online payments until 
June 30, 2021. 

At this time staff proposes that the four resolutions set to expire on March 31, 2021 
should be continued until June 30, 2021.  

The Parking Advisory Committee met March 4, 2021 and unanimously adopted a 
motion to recommend to the City Commission that parking fees charged for monthly 
permit parking holders and all other fees in the parking structures should continue until 
June 30, 2021.  These minutes will be provided when they become available. 

Attached are proposed resolutions for the Commission’s consideration that would 
accomplish this continued support of the businesses and restaurants in the City.  One 
provision that has been added at the recommendation of both the Building and Planning 
Departments is a provision that states anyone requesting to keep their outdoor dining or 
enclosures after March 31, 2021 shall reapply for a new permit so that we can update 
the expiration date formally and deal with any issues that have cropped up. 

LEGAL REVIEW: 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
The Parking Fund had a year-end FY 19/20 Fund Balance of $20,383,867. With an 
annual operating expenditure of approximately $6M the fund has a fund balance of 
315%.   As a result of the initial Commission action providing financial relief to the 
business community, the parking decks have not received much revenue since March 
2020. During our current fiscal year, street meter collections have resumed and are 
currently at about 50% compared to the prior fiscal year. At this time, Deputy Police 
Chief Scott Grewe estimates that the current use of the Parking garages are between 
20% - 40% of our historical levels.  Thus, even if we were charging customers, there 
would be a significant reduction in revenue.  Although this proposed relief would affect 
revenues, the fund can absorb this loss and still meet the capital improvement goals 
established this fiscal year.  

PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 
None 

SUMMARY: 
COVID-19 has resulted in severe economic loss to the Birmingham downtown restaurant 
and business community.  The severity of the pandemic has lasted longer than 
anticipated resulting in the expiration of resolutions designed to provide financial relief 
due to the resulting loss of business income.  The administration proposes a continuation 



3 

of this relief in the form of continued no fee charge for parking in the structures until June 
30, 2021 along with continued easing of restrictions on outdoor dining and signage.  It is 
expected that full fees will be reinstated effective July 1, 2021. 

ATTACHMENTS:  
 February 23, 2021 APC communication from Commander Grewe
 PAC unofficial minutes of 3-3-21
 2/28/21 Parking Fund Revenues
 Revised resolution on Temporary Signage regulations
 Revised resolution on Off-Season Outdoor Dining regulations

SUGGESTED RESOLUTION: 
Motion to approve the following resolutions: 

 Continue the Revised Temporary Signage Regulations due to COVID-19
 Continue the Revised Temporary COVID-19 Off-Season Outdoor Dining Standards

and to waive parking fees charged for monthly permit parking holders and all other fees 
in all parking structures until June 30, 2021.  All parking fees including but not limited to  
monthly permit parking fees and gate fees shall assume effective July 1, 2021 



1 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

Police Department 
 
DATE:   February 23, 2021 
 
TO:     Advisory Parking Committee 
 
FROM:    Scott Grewe, Operations Commander 
 
SUBJECT:   Payments for Structure Parking  

 
 
INTRODUCTION: 
By previous resolution on December 7, 2020, the City Commission, as recommended by the 
Advisory Parking Committee (APC), passed a recommendation that all parking in the City’s (5) 
parking structures would be free through March 31, 2021.  As this date approaches, the City 
must re-evaluate the status of the free parking initiative. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
In response to the Covid-19 pandemic, the City instituted free parking for all (5) parking decks 
as a relief effort to support local businesses and restaurants that was effective April 1, 2020 and 
currently in place through March 31, 2021. 
 
Staff is recommending the extension of the current free parking initiative through June 30, 
2021.  Additionally, that the City will resume charging for parking in the structures July 1, 2021. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

During the week of February 8th, the Police Department did a physical count of vehicles using 

the parking structures at three times throughout the day.  These counts were conducted at 
10am, 1pm and 6pm Monday through Friday.  Peak usage was seen at the 1pm count and 
the average number of parked cars for the week at each structure during this time are listed 
below: 

 

Pierce – 430     Chester – 158     N.O.W. – 248     Peabody – 215     Park – 290 

 

The total number of parking spaces in all five structures is 3,579.  Based on the above 
averages, the current usage is 37% of full capacity. 

 

To estimate the amount of loss revenue to extend free parking through April, May and June 
staff compared revenue in 2019 as free parking was already in place in 2020.  In 2019, for 
the same period, $687,591 was collected from permits and $802,731 from transient parkers.  
While parking was in high demand in 2019 and most structures were near capacity, there is 
no record to indicate at what percentage for comparison purposes. 

 



2 

 
 

Based on the usage count conducted by the police department, and assuming similar usage 
between permit and transient parkers, 37% of the amount collected from transient parkers 
for the three month period would be $297,010.  100% of permit fees will be collected as their 
fees are not based on usage.  This results in approximately $984,601 loss revenue for the 
three month extension. 

 

To estimate the expenses for SP+’s management of the structures during this three month 
extension, staff reviewed the previous three months costs (November, December and 
January).  The total of $130,827 was paid by the City to SP+ to cover expenses in excess of 
any revenue.   
 
SUMMARY: 
Due to the Covid-19 Pandemic, the City instituted free parking in all structures begging on April 
1, 2020.  In August, the City Commission passed a resolution to continue free parking through 
the end of 2020 and in December, passed another resolution to extend free parking through 
March 31, 2021.  Staff is recommending free parking be extended through June 30, 2021 and 
payments be reinstated starting July 1, 2021 
 
SUGGESTED RECOMMENDATION: 
To approve the continuation of free parking in all structures through June 30, 2021 and to resume 
charging for parking in the structures on July 1, 2021. 



 

 

City of Birmingham 
Advisory Parking Committee 

Regular Meeting 
 

 
Minutes 

 
These are unapproved partial minutes of the Advisory Parking Committee ("APC") regular meeting 
held on Wednesday, March 3, 2020. The meeting was called to order at 7:30 a.m. by Chair Al 
Vaitas. 
 
Free Parking Extension 
 
Ops. Cmdr. Grewe presented the item. 
 
Mr. Kalczynski asked if the City had considered temporarily closing some of the parking 
structures and leaving some open, or if the City had considered charging for Pierce since it is 
the most frequently used structure and leaving the other structures with complimentary parking 
for the time being. 
 
Ops. Cmdr. Grewe said that even though the structures were being used less frequently, they 
were all being used equally, making both of the aforementioned options potentially unfair in his 
estimation. 
 
Mr. Astrein estimated that daytime traffic around the City's downtown, including foot traffic, 
parking, and going to businesses or restaurants, is at about 65%. He noted that on-street 
parking is generally available right now, which also indicates the current lower demand on 
parking.  
 
Motion by Mr. Kalczynski  
Seconded by Mr. Black to approve the continuation of free parking in all structures June 30, 
2021 and to resume charging for parking in the structures on July 1, 2021. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: 
Yeas: Kalczynski, Black, Silverman, Vaitas, Petcoff, Yert, Astrein 
Nays: None 
 



REVENUE REPORT 1/1Page:03/04/2021 09:52 AM
User: MGerber
DB: Birmingham PERIOD ENDING 02/28/2021

YTD BALANCE
02/29/2020

YTD BALANCE
02/28/2021

2020-21
AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 585 - AUTOMOBILE PARKING SYSTEM
Revenues
CHARGES FOR SERVICES

753,116.10 48,619.00 1,000,000.00 DECK 1 - PIERCE585-000.000-612.0001
756,760.03 87,528.62 1,250,000.00 DECK 3 - PARK585-000.000-612.0002
465,074.66 50,132.02 800,000.00 DECK 4 - PEABODY585-000.000-612.0003
625,359.03 41,965.00 850,000.00 DECK 5 - NORTH WOODWARD585-000.000-612.0004
593,648.10 65,894.00 1,250,000.00 DECK 8 - CHESTER585-000.000-612.0007
633,402.85 311,511.67 925,000.00 METER COLLECTIONS COIN585-000.000-612.0009
175,786.17 (1,275.43)310,000.00 LOT 6 PERMIT FEES585-000.000-612.0010

(28.50)0.00 0.00 METER CARD COLLECTIONS585-000.000-612.0012
5,650.00 4,592.00 55,000.00 VALET PARKING FEES585-000.000-612.0013

26,034.00 13,543.00 41,000.00 METER BAG RENTAL FEES585-000.000-612.0015
458,289.55 287,178.80 717,440.00 PARKMOBILE MONTHLY REVENUE585-000.000-612.0016
10,336.38 9,153.36 10,500.00 PARKMOBILE ANNUAL REVENUE585-000.000-612.0017

315.00 0.00 500.00 PREPAID PARKING IN CARD585-000.000-612.0018
313,496.26 159,158.11 497,500.00 METER REVENUES - CREDIT CARD585-000.000-612.0019
44,460.00 0.00 40,000.00 OUTDOOR DINING PLATFORM F585-000.000-613.0000

4,861,699.63 1,078,000.15 7,746,940.00 CHARGES FOR SERVICES

INTEREST AND RENT
219,181.17 137,791.74 340,550.00 INVESTMENT INCOME585-000.000-664.0000

1,067.34 0.00 0.00 OTHER INTEREST INCOME585-000.000-666.0003

220,248.51 137,791.74 340,550.00 INTEREST AND RENT

OTHER REVENUE
0.00 30,282.00 0.00 320 MARTIN PARKING REIMBURSEMENT585-000.000-684.0001

0.00 30,282.00 0.00 OTHER REVENUE

5,081,948.14 1,246,073.89 8,087,490.00 TOTAL REVENUES

5,081,948.14 1,246,073.89 8,087,490.00 TOTAL REVENUES
Fund 585 - AUTOMOBILE PARKING SYSTEM:



 
RESOLUTION # ________ 

 
REVISED TEMPORARY SIGNAGE REGULATIONS DUE TO COVID-19  

 

WHEREAS the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) is a respiratory disease that is 
caused by a new strain of coronavirus not previously identified in humans and 
easily spread from person to person; 
 
WHEREAS the spread of COVID-19 has resulted in the State of Michigan 
declaring a State of Emergency under Section 1 of Article 5 of the Michigan 
Constitution of 1963, the Emergency Management Act, 1976 PA 390, as amended, 
and the Emergency Powers of the Governor Act, 1945 PA 302, as amended, as 
evidenced in Executive Order 2020-4; 
 
WHEREAS the City of Birmingham has activated their Emergency Operation 
Center to respond to the COVID-19 pandemic; 
 
WHEREAS the City of Birmingham is committed to encouraging economic activity 
and assisting local businesses impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic to ease back 
into operation while containing the spread of COVID-19; 
 
WHEREAS the City of Birmingham wishes to ensure that establishments permitted 
to open to the public have the ability to accommodate social distancing guidelines 
currently in force within the State of Michigan; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, all retail and commercial businesses in 
existence as of the date of this resolution that hold a valid Business License with 
the City of Birmingham will be permitted to post temporary signage relating to 
hours of operation, pick-up and delivery services and specials offered during the 
COVID-19 pandemic.  Temporary Sign Permits shall not be required for such 
signage through September 8, 2020, July 1, 2021 if the following requirements are 
met: 
 
1. Total Temporary signage may not exceed the lesser of 100 square feet in 
size or 25% of the storefront width; 
2. Signage required under Executive Orders issued by the Governor does not 
count toward the total temporary signage amount permitted; 
3. No signage may be placed so as to obstruct a minimum 6’ wide pedestrian 
path on public property to allow safe access to each business and safe travel in 
the public right-of-way;  
4. No signage may be placed so as to obstruct a minimum 3’ of width for clear 
and unobstructed ingress and egress to all required entrances/exits.  
 
 
 



 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City of Birmingham will waive all application 
fees, license and/or rental fees for the temporary use of public or private property 
outdoors permitted by this resolution.   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, Except as herein specifically provided, all 
ordinances of the City of Birmingham in effect at the time of the issuance of this 
resolution, and as they may be subsequently amended, shall remain in effect. 
Failure to comply with all the ordinances of the City may result in enforcement 
action and/or termination of an existing Special Land Use Permit.  
 
I, Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk Designee, of the City of Birmingham, Michigan, 
do hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the resolution 
adopted by the Birmingham City Commission at its regular meeting held on March 
8, 2021. 
 
 
 
_________________________________       
 
Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk Designee 



RESOLUTION # _______  
REVISED TEMPORARY COVID-19 OFF-SEASON   

OUTDOOR DINING STANDARDS  

WHEREAS the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) is a respiratory disease that is 
caused by a new strain of coronavirus not previously identified in humans and easily  
spread from person to person;  

WHEREAS the spread of COVID-19 has resulted in the State of Michigan  
declaring a State of Emergency under Section 1 of Article 5 of the Michigan  
Constitution of 1963, the Emergency Management Act, 1976 PA 390, as amended, 
and the Emergency Powers of the Governor Act, 1945 PA 302, as amended, as 
evidenced in Executive Order 2020-99;  

WHEREAS the City of Birmingham has activated their Emergency Operation 
Center to respond to the COVID-19 pandemic;  

WHEREAS the City of Birmingham is committed to encouraging economic  
activity and assisting local businesses impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic to ease  
back into operation while containing the spread of COVID-19;  

WHEREAS it is the intent of the City of Birmingham to assist establishments  
permitted to open to the public to expand into outdoor space to allow for the provision  of 
the number of seats previously approved for their operation while also  accommodating 
social distancing guidelines currently in force within the State of  Michigan;  

WHEREAS it is the intent of the City of Birmingham to continue to provide  
expanded outdoor dining options to assist food and drink establishments to navigate the  
challenges of the pandemic throughout the fall and winter months the Spring while also  
accommodating social distancing guidelines;  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, all food and drink establishments in  
existence as of October 1, 2020 March 31, 2021 will be permitted to operate off- 
season outdoor dining areas in accordance with the following Temporary COVID-19 
standards from  October 1, 2020 through March 31, 2021 March 31, 2021 through 
June 30, 2021:  

1. Establishments may add new outdoor dining areas or expand previously  
approved outdoor dining areas in order to add additional seating to  compensate 
for lost interior seating as a result of COVID-19 related  restrictions to 
accommodate social distancing and/or to allow for phased  reopening;  

2. The number of seats to be removed from the interior of the restaurant  due to 
health guidelines is the maximum number that each establishment  shall be 
permitted to add outdoors in the public right-of-way on the  sidewalk, in the on-
street parking zone, in a via and / or on private  property; 

3  

3. Outdoor dining areas must commence adjacent to the establishment in  
accordance with Michigan Liquor Control Commission standards, and  may 
extend out in front of neighboring establishments, or on abutting  private property 



(with consent of the owner), as space permits; 
4. Outdoor dining areas permitted temporarily in the off-season from October 1,

2020 through March 31, 2021 under this resolution may include the use of 
tents, coverings or other temporary structures with side enclosures to provide  
protection from the weather for the entire period that this resolution remains in  
effect;  

5. All structures proposed temporarily during the off-season to enclose outdoor
dining areas must meet all of the requirements listed in Exhibit A, and must be
constructed and inspected under a valid building permit;

6. If a food and drink establishment is unable to provide or expand outdoor dining
into the public right-of-way on the sidewalk, in the on-street parking zone, in a  via 
or on private property and / or is unable to meet requirements (1) through (4)  
above in these locations, the City may permit other options for outdoor dining on  
a case by case basis if unique or mitigating circumstances exist.   

7. All establishments seeking temporary changes in accordance with this
resolution must obtain a building permit for all enclosure structures  and submit 
an Administrative Approval application to the Planning Division, and include the 
following documents;  

i) A plan view of the proposed outdoor dining area showing all  fixtures
and furnishings with all distances clearly marked for  pedestrian 
paths and between seating;  

ii) Proof of insurance to include coverage of the existing outdoor dining
area and the area proposed for expansion; and 

iii) A temporary license agreement, if located on public property. iv)
Documentation of any indoor heating equipment. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that all existing and expanded outdoor dining areas with 
or without enclosure structures on both public and private property are required to alter 
the design and layout of tables, chairs, fixtures and enclosure systems to meet social 
distancing guidelines in effect and contain the spread of COVID19 as follows:  

1. Reconfigure the layout of the entire outdoor dining area, to the maximum extent
practical, to provide a minimum 6’ clear pedestrian walking path adjacent to the 
dining area;  

2. Reconfigure tables and chairs to allow seating for patrons only in accordance
with social distancing guidelines in effect; 

3. Remove all previously approved chairs and other seating that does not meet
social distancing guidelines; 

4. Install temporary signage to encourage compliance with social distancing
guidelines; 

5. Provide a temporary hand sanitizing station adjacent to the outdoor dining area;
and 

6. Provide a temporary service station outdoors that includes a trash receptacle and
disinfecting wipes or other supplies for the cleaning of tables and chairs between 
patrons and of high touch points in the outdoor dining area.  



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City of Birmingham will waive all application 
fees, permit fees, license and rental fees for the expanded portion of the outdoor  
dining area, any structures used to cover or enclose such outdoor dining areas 
permitted by this resolution, and any fees relating to the use of both on street and off 
street right-of-ways and City owned property.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, Except as herein specifically provided, all ordinances of 
the City of Birmingham in effect at the time of the issuance of this resolution, and as 
they may be subsequently amended, shall remain in force. Failure to comply with all 
Federal and State laws and regulations and the ordinances of the City may result in 
enforcement action and/or termination of an existing Special Land Use Permit.  

I, Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk Designee, of the City of Birmingham, Michigan, do 
hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the resolution adopted by 
the Birmingham City Commission at its regular meeting held on March 8, 2021.  

__________________________________  
Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk Designee 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Exhibit A  

Requirements for all Temporary Off-Season   

Outdoor Dining Tents and Structures  

⮚ Detailed plans and specifications shall be submitted for review and approval by the Fire  

and Community Development Departments.  

⮚ The tent/structure must be inspected and approved prior to use.  

⮚ All tents/structures must be flame resistant with certificate on site. ⮚ Tents/structures 



must be properly anchored for the weather conditions, no stakes allowed.  

⮚ Aisles inside of tents/structures shall have a minimum width of 36 inches for up to 10  

occupants and 44 inches for over 10 occupants.   

⮚ Clear Fire Department access must be maintained around all tents and temporary  

structures.  

⮚ Tents/structures may not obstruct fire hydrants or fire sprinkler connections on buildings. 

⮚ No smoking is permitted in any tent/structure. Signs are to be posted.  

⮚ No open flame or other devices emitting flame, or fire are permitted in any  tents/structures. 

Cooking devices shall not be permitted within 20 feet of the  tents/structures.  

⮚ All cords, hoses, etc. shall be matted to eliminate trip hazards.  

⮚ All exit openings shall be egress compliant.  

✔ Curtains shall be free sliding on a metal support not less than 80 inches  

above floor level. The curtain shall be arranged so when open, no part of  

the curtain obstructs the exit. Curtains shall be of color, or colors, that  

contrasts with the color of the tent/structure.  

✔ Doors shall swing in the direction of egress with an opening force not to  

exceed 15 pounds.  

⮚ Exits must be clearly marked within tents/structures.  

⮚ Two means of egress shall be provided for an occupant load of 10 to 199 people, with a  

minimum egress width of 72 inches for tents, 36 inches for membrane structures.  

⮚ Exits shall be spaced at approximately equal intervals around the perimeter of the  

structure.   

⮚ The means of egress shall be illuminated at all times. 

6  

⮚ Heating equipment must be listed and approved for indoor use, and comply with the  

International Fire Code, International Fuel Gas Code, the International Mechanical Code,  

and shall be approved by the Fire Marshal and Mechanical Inspector. Documentation must  

be submitted for review and approval.  

⮚ Heating equipment shall not be located within 10 feet of exits and must be installed per  

the manufacturer’s recommendations including clearance to combustibles.  

⮚ LP-Gas cannot be stored inside the tent/structure or adjacent buildings.  



⮚ Portable fire extinguishers with a minimum rating of 2A, 10BC shall be installed inside all 

tent/structures.  

⮚ Carbon Monoxide detectors shall be installed in all tents/structures. 

➢ All businesses that had permits until March 31,2021 must reapply for their permit for the 
period between March 31, 2021 and June 30, 2021. 

7  



1 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning Division 

DATE: March 3, 2021 

TO: Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Jana L. Ecker, Planning Director 

SUBJECT: Temporary COVID-19 Outdoor Dining Resolution 

Please find attached a letter received from a resident on February 25, 2021, opposing the 
expansion of outdoor dining areas in the public right-of-way that extend across adjacent business 
frontages without the approval of adjacent property owners.  Regulations regarding the expansion 
of outdoor dining areas during the current pandemic is summarized below. 

On May 11, 2020, the City Commission adopted several resolutions to provide temporary 
assistance to business owners navigating the COVID-19 Pandemic, business closures, capacity 
limitations and social distancing guidelines.  The City approved the waiver of many fees, made 
changes to existing policies to assist businesses, and adopted temporary resolutions to allow for 
expanded outdoor dining and temporary uses outdoors through September 8, 2020.  Under the 
Temporary COVID-19 Outdoor Dining Standards Resolution adopted on May 11, 2020, food and 
drink establishments were permitted to expand previously approved outdoor dining areas by 
doubling their size (at a maximum) in order to offer additional outdoor dining seats and to allow 
seating to be spaced out to meet social distancing guidelines in effect.  This resolution permitted 
the expansion of outdoor dining areas on public property in front of adjacent businesses without 
approval of the adjacent business or property owners, but limited the total area of any such 
expansions. 

On August 24, 2020, the City Commission rescinded the previous Temporary COVID-19 Outdoor 
Dining Standards Resolution adopted and approved an Updated Temporary COVID-19 Outdoor 
Dining Standards Resolution.  This updated resolution permitted food and drink establishments 
to potentially expand the size of outdoor dining areas further, by eliminating the maximum size 
restriction for outdoor dining area expansion, but instead regulating the number of outdoor dining 
seats in relation to the number of interior dining seats lost as a result of indoor capacity 
restrictions.  The updated resolution thus permitted food and drink establishments to expand 
their outdoor dining areas to accommodate the originally approved number of outdoor dining 
seats plus the number of seats lost inside the restaurant to interior capacity restrictions.    

The August 24, 2020 updated resolution was drafted in response to changing conditions and 
regulations related to the ongoing pandemic, both from Governor Whitmer’s office as well as the 
Michigan Liquor Licensing Commission, and to assist restaurants to navigate the challenging and 
constantly changing environment.  This updated resolution continued to permit food and drink 
establishments to extend outdoor dining areas on public property in front of adjacent businesses 
without the approval of any adjacent business or property owner(s).  The total area of such 

9A



2 

expansions of outdoor dining however, was no longer limited to double the size of the originally 
approved outdoor dining area, but was permitted to expand down an entire street if space 
permitted so long as only the number of interior seats lost due to capacity restrictions were added 
outdoors.  The approval of the City was required for the use of public property, but the approval 
of adjacent business and/or property owners was not, and still is not, required.  However, if an 
expanded outdoor dining area is proposed on private property, the approval of the private 
property owner would be required.   

Should the City Commission wish to require the approval of adjacent business and/or property 
owners with storefronts abutting public property temporarily proposed for use as an outdoor 
dining area, this provision could be added to an amended resolution.  However, this requirement 
would be applied only for new outdoor dining applications submitted in the future. 



3 

FULLER CENTRAL PARK PROPERTIES, L.L.C. 
112 PEABODY STREET 

BIRMINGHAM, MICHIGAN 48009-6329 
__________ 

(248) 642-0024 
FAX (248) 642-0136 

February 25, 2021 

Mr. Tom Marcus 
City Manager 
CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 
151 Martin Street 
Birmingham, MI 48009 

Dear Tom: 

I would like to express my concern regarding the encroachment and use of adjacent business 
frontage. 

By allowing dining tables to be set up in the street in front of the neighboring business, you 
may help one business at the expense of the other. I believe this encroachment should only be 
permitted if the adjacent property is in agreement. 

Sincerely, 

Edward A. Fuller 



3/3/2021 City of Birmingham MI Mail - Documents for agenda and public comment

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0?ik=122eed7f76&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f%3A1693231123623299733&simpl=msg-f%3A16932311236… 1/1

Alex Bingham <abingham@bhamgov.org>

Documents for agenda and public comment
King Khii <hollandcustody@gmail.com> Wed, Mar 3, 2021 at 12:03 PM
To: Alex Bingham <abingham@bhamgov.org>

Hi

I’m just going to send these documents so one can say I missed the deadline.

If I was Stuart Sherman, I would resign immediately, he was already had his law license suspended for fraud.

This time it’s much more serious, if I was your mayor and other elective officials, I would distant myself from him.

I have the evidence to prove these crimes, he is refusing to cooperate with either of these investigations.

Take care 

Cory “King” Holland Sr 

9B







9Ba







NOTICE OF INTENTION TO APPOINT TO 
ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW COMMITTEE 

At the meeting of Monday, April 26, 2021, the Birmingham City Commission intends to 
appoint one regular member to the Architectural Review Committee to serve a three-year 
term to expire April 11, 2024. Members of this Committee will be appointed by the 
Commission. The Committee shall consist of three Michigan licensed architects who reside 
in the City of Birmingham.   

The purpose of this committee is to review certain public improvement projects initiated by 
the City and referred to the committee by the City Manager or his/her designee.  The 
Committee is expected to offer opinions as to what physical alterations or enhancements 
could be made to these projects in order to improve the aesthetic quality of the project and 
the City’s overall physical environment. 

Interested citizens may submit an application available at the City Clerk’s Office or online at 
www.bhamgov.org/boardopportunities. Applications must be submitted to the City Clerk's 
office on or before noon on Wednesday, April 21, 2021.  These applications will appear in the 
public agenda for the regular meeting at which time the City Commission will discuss 
recommendations, and may make nominations and vote on the appointments. 

All members of boards and commission are subject to the provisions of City of Birmingham Code 
Chapter 2, Article IX, Ethics and the filing of the Affidavit and Disclosure Statement. 

Criteria/Qualifications of Open Position Date 
Applications Due 
(by noon) 

Date of 
Interview 

Michigan Licensed Architect & 
Resident of the City of Birmingham 

4/21/2021 4/26/2021 

10A1

http://www.bhamgov.org/boardopportunities


NOTICE OF INTENTION TO APPOINT TO THE 
HOUSING BOARD OF APPEALS 

At the meeting of Monday, April 26, 2021, the Birmingham City Commission intends to 
appoint two regular members to the Housing Board of Appeals to serve three-year terms to 
expire May 4, 2024. Members shall be educated or experienced in building, construction 
administration, social services, real estate or other responsible positions. 

The Housing Board of Appeals was established in order to provide an appeal process from 
regulation derived from the housing and maintenance requirements found in Chapter 22 of 
the city code. The purpose of the housing and maintenance regulations is to protect, 
preserve and promote the physical and social well being of the people, to regulate privately 
and publicly owned dwellings for the purpose of maintaining adequate sanitation and public 
health. 

Interested citizens may submit an application available at the City Clerk’s office or online at 
www.bhamgov.org/boardopportunities. Applications must be submitted to the City Clerk's 
office on or before noon on Wednesday, April 21, 2021.  These documents will appear in the 
public agenda for the regular meeting at which time the City Commission will discuss 
recommendations, and may make nominations and vote on appointments.  

All members of boards and commissions are subject to the provisions of City of Birmingham City Code Chapter 
2, Article IX, Ethics and the filing of the Affidavit and Disclosure Statement.   

Criteria/Qualifications of Open Position Date 
Applications Due 
(by noon) 

Date of 
Interview 

Members shall be educated or experienced in 
building, construction administration, social 
services, real estate or other responsible 
positions. 

4/21/2020 4/26/2020 

10A2

http://www.bhamgov.org/boardopportunities


NOTICE OF INTENTION TO APPOINT TO THE 
CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 

BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

At the regular meeting of Monday, April 26, 2021 the Birmingham City Commission intends 
to appoint one regular member to the City of Birmingham Brownfield Redevelopment 
Authority to serve three-year terms to expire May 23, 2024.   

The authority shall have the powers and duties to the full extent as provided by and in 
accordance with the provisions of the Brownfield Redevelopment Financing Act, being Act 
381 of the Public Acts of the state of Michigan of 1996, as amended.  Among other 
matters, in the exercise of its powers, the Board may prepare Brownfield plans pursuant to 
Section 13 of the Act and submit the plans to the Commission for consideration pursuant 
to Section 13 and 14 of the Act. 

Members shall be appointed by the Mayor, subject to approval by the City 
Commission.   

Interested citizens may submit an application available at the city clerk’s office or online at 
www.bhamgov.org/boardopportunities. Applications must be submitted to the city clerk's 
office on or before noon on Wednesday, April 21, 2021.  These documents will appear in the 
public agenda for the regular meeting at which time the City Commission will discuss 
recommendations, and may make nominations and vote on appointments.  

All members of boards and commissions are subject to the provisions of City of Birmingham City Code Chapter 
2, Article IX, Ethics and the filing of the Affidavit and Disclosure Statement.   

Criteria/Qualifications of Open Position Date 
Applications Due 
(by noon) 

Date of 
Interview 

Members shall, in so far as possible, be residents 
of the City of Birmingham.   

4/21/2021 4/26/2021 

10A3

http://www.bhamgov.org/boardopportunities


1 

MEMORANDUM 

Finance Department 

DATE: February 26, 2021 

TO: Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Mark Gerber, Director of Finance/Treasurer 

SUBJECT: Second Quarter Financial Reports 

Background 
Chapter 7, section 3(b) of the City charter requires the Director of Finance to report on the 
condition of the City quarterly.  Quarterly reports are prepared for the first 3 quarters of the year 
with the annual audit serving as the 4th quarter report.  Only the following funds are reported 
quarterly because by state law they require a budget:  General Fund, Greenwood Cemetery 
Perpetual Care Fund, Major and Local Street Funds, Solid Waste Fund, Community Development 
Block Grant Fund, Law and Drug Enforcement Fund, Baldwin Public Library Fund, Principal 
Shopping District Fund, Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Fund, Triangle District Corridor 
Improvement Authority Fund, and the Debt Service Fund.   

Overview 
Attached is the second quarter 2020-2021 fiscal year financial reports.  The reports compare 
budget to actual for the current fiscal year and the prior fiscal year for the same quarter.  This 
allows comparisons between fiscal years as well as percentage of budget received/spent for the 
year.  The budget categories used for each fund are the same ones approved by the Commission 
when they adopted the budget.  Budget discussions that follow will focus on each fund 
individually. 

At this point, 50% of the fiscal year has lapsed. 

General Fund 
Year-to-date revenues are approximately $1,000,000 higher than the previous year as a result of 
an increase tax revenue of approximately $836,000 and an increase in grant revenue of 
approximately $750,000.  This was the result of an increase in taxable value and COVID related 
grant revenue.  These revenue increases were partially offset by a decrease in charges for services 
of $200,000, fines and forfeitures of $200,000, and interest and rent of $100,000.  The decrease 
in charges for services is mostly related to lost revenue due to COVID restrictions on special 
events and ice arena operations.  The decrease in fines and forfeitures are due to a decrease in 
parking ticket and 48th District Court revenue.  The decrease in interest and rent is the result of 
a decrease in interest rates.  Based on current projections, General Fund revenue is anticipated 
to be approximately $700,000 below budget due to recreation, 48th District Court, parking ticket, 
and interest revenue shortages.  

Total current year-to-date expenditures for the General Fund are higher than the prior year by 
approximately $2,100,000 or 12%.  Engineering and Public Services and Public Safety are 
approximately $1,000,000 higher than the prior year each.  Engineering and Public Services are 

10E1



2 

 
 

higher due to due to sidewalk construction costs related to Maple Road.  Public Safety costs are 
higher than the prior year due to wages and related costs.   Transfers Out is at 54% due to 3 
quarterly payments to the 48th District Court at December 31st.  Based on current projections, 
there should be sufficient expenditure savings to offset the revenue shortages mentioned above. 
 
Greenwood Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund 
Cemetery revenues are similar to the prior year.  No expenditures have been made so far this 
fiscal year. 
   
Major Street Fund 
Total revenues are approximately $600,000 less than the prior year as a result of lower budgeted 
transfers from the General Fund.  
 
Overall expenditures are $1,150,000 higher than the previous year as a result of the Maple Road 
project.  Maintenance costs are lower due to street light painting in the prior year.  Administrative 
costs are greater than 50% due to audit costs which occur in the 2nd quarter.  Traffic Controls 
and Engineering is over 50% due to new traffic signals installed along Maple Road. 
 
Local Street Fund 
Total revenues for the year are approximately $262,000 higher than the prior year due to higher 
budgeted transfers from the General Fund. 
 
Total expenditures are approximately $870,000 less than the prior year mainly as a result of 
construction and maintenance expenditures in the prior year as a result of street work in the 
Quarton Lake area and cape seal maintenance.  Street Trees is over 50% due to contractor costs 
for tree trimming.  Administrative costs are greater than 50% due to audit costs which occur in 
the 2nd quarter. 
  
Solid Waste Fund 
Revenues are approximately $100,000 higher than the previous year as a result of higher property 
tax revenue.  
 
Expenditures are approximately the same as the prior fiscal year.   
 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority Fund 
Revenues are approximately the same as the prior year. 
 
Expenditures for the current fiscal year are less than the prior year due to a large developer 
reimbursement in the prior fiscal year.   
  
Principal Shopping District 
Both revenues and expenditures are slightly lower than the prior fiscal year due to fewer special 
events.   
 
Community Development Block Grant Fund 
No CDBG expenditures have been recorded in the current fiscal year because we have not 
received authorization from the County to spend these funds yet.     
 



3 

 
 

Triangle District Corridor Improvement Authority 
Development opportunities are ongoing with private land owners and developers in the Triangle 
District. 
 
Law and Drug Enforcement Fund 
Expenditures are higher in the prior fiscal year as a result of the purchase of the Watchguard 
video system for the patrol vehicles. 
  
Baldwin Library 
Revenue has increased approximately $300,000.  This is the result of an increase in the property 
tax revenue and the timing of a payment from a contract municipality. 
 
Expenditures are approximately the same as the prior fiscal year.  Expenditures are at 59% due 
to building improvements completed in the first half of the year.  
 
Debt Service Fund 
Revenues and expenditures are slightly lower as a result of scheduled debt service costs for the 
year compared to the previous year.  Expenditures are at 94% spent for the year as a result of 
making a principal payment in August.   



AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET

BUDGET ACTUAL USED BUDGET ACTUAL USED

REVENUES:

USE OF FUND BALANCE 3,260,276 0 0% 2,704,512 0 0%

TAXES 26,948,810 26,909,381 100% 26,114,630 26,073,051 100%

LICENSES AND PERMITS 2,774,960 1,192,829 43% 3,053,720 1,197,099 39%

INTERGOVERNMENTAL 2,165,630 1,260,610 58% 2,157,650 508,941 24%

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 3,322,020 1,331,969 40% 3,414,670 1,539,299 45%

FINES AND FORFEITURES 1,799,110 353,328 20% 1,776,140 559,995 32%

INTEREST AND RENT 647,690 172,705 27% 621,090 285,056 46%

OTHER REVENUE 571,730 33,315 6% 418,820 41,500 10%

TRANSFERS IN 100,000                50,000                 50% 200,000                100,000              50%

TOTAL REVENUES 41,590,226           31,304,137         75% 40,461,232           30,304,941         75%

EXPENDITURES:

GENERAL GOVERNMENT 6,505,118 2,982,343 46% 6,081,847 2,458,552 40%

PUBLIC SAFETY 15,248,352 7,693,344 50% 14,410,218 6,688,789 46%

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 3,265,849 1,250,278 38% 3,345,835 1,463,784 44%

ENGINEERING AND PUBLIC SERVICES 8,112,033 3,780,267 47% 8,573,743             2,774,369           32%

TRANSFERS OUT 8,458,840             4,526,603           54% 7,819,879             4,711,838           60%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 41,590,192           20,232,834         49% 40,231,522           18,097,332         45%

2020-2021 2019-2020

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
QUARTERLY BUDGET REPORT

GENERAL FUND

QUARTER ENDED:  DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND DECEMBER 31, 2019
% OF FISCAL YEAR COMPLETED:  50%



2020-2021 2019-2020

AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET

BUDGET ACTUAL USED BUDGET ACTUAL USED

REVENUES:

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 60,000                   31,616                   53% 80,000                   28,740                   36%

INTEREST AND RENT 22,000                   17,609                   80% 16,800                   11,463                   68%

TRANSFERS IN -                         -                         0% -                         -                         0%

  TOTAL Revenues 82,000                   49,225                   60% 96,800                   40,203                   42%

EXPENDITURES:

OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICE 20,000                   -                         0% 20,000                   -                         0%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 20,000                   -                         20,000                   -                         

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
QUARTERLY BUDGET REPORT

GREENWOOD CEMETERY FUND

QUARTER ENDED:  DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND DECEMBER 31, 2019
% OF FISCAL YEAR COMPLETED:  50%



AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET

BUDGET ACTUAL USED BUDGET ACTUAL USED

REVENUES:

USE OF FUND BALANCE 2,856,008             -                        0% 2,815,400             -                       0%

INTERGOVERNMENTAL 1,641,450             554,035               34% 1,457,100             510,456              35%

INTEREST AND RENT 43,500                   26,620                 61% 40,950                   30,978                 76%

OTHER REVENUE -                         -                        0% -                         -                       0%

TRANSFERS IN 2,000,000             1,000,000           50% 2,746,000             1,623,000           59%

TOTAL REVENUES 6,540,958             1,580,655           24% 7,059,450             2,164,434           31%

EXPENDITURES:

ADMINISTRATIVE 20,900                   11,649                 56% 20,510                   11,433                 56%

TRAFFIC CONTROLS & ENGINEERING 628,968                428,274               68% 906,609                119,249              13%

CONSTRUCTION OF ROADS & BRIDGES 4,623,773             1,715,092           37% 4,984,101             826,235              17%

MAINTENANCE OF ROADS & BRIDGES 488,011                102,519               21% 416,989                171,399              41%

STREET CLEANING 219,590                80,395                 37% 163,170                81,212                 50%

STREET TREES 271,206                136,210               50% 266,271                107,474              40%

SNOW AND ICE REMOVAL 288,510                30,239                 10% 301,800                46,516                 15%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 6,540,958             2,504,378           38% 7,059,450             1,363,518           19%

2020-2021 2019-2020

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
QUARTERLY BUDGET REPORT

MAJOR STREETS

QUARTER ENDED:  DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND DECEMBER 31, 2019
% OF FISCAL YEAR COMPLETED:  50%



AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET

BUDGET ACTUAL USED BUDGET ACTUAL USED

REVENUES:

USE OF FUND BALANCE -                         -                        0% 1,679,975             -                       0%

INTERGOVERNMENTAL 670,450                225,138               34% 592,300                207,438              35%

INTEREST AND RENT 29,600                   6,987                   24% 26,460                   15,775                 60%

OTHER REVENUE 197,460                34,495                 17% 395,120                30,505                 8%

TRANSFERS IN 3,000,000             1,500,000           50% 2,000,000             1,250,000           63%

TOTAL REVENUES 3,897,510             1,766,620           45% 4,693,855             1,503,718           32%

EXPENDITURES:

ADMINISTRATIVE 29,490                   15,959                 54% 28,980                   15,668                 54%

TRAFFIC CONTROLS & ENGINEERING 65,300                   27,401                 42% 70,790                   34,082                 48%

CONSTRUCTION OF ROADS & BRIDGES 1,501,810             492,932               33% 1,626,103             988,648              61%

MAINTENANCE OF ROADS & BRIDGES 940,017                203,228               22% 1,163,443             622,721              54%

STREET CLEANING 253,330                107,075               42% 186,190                96,113                 52%

STREET TREES 552,733                311,910               56% 528,299                266,402              50%

SNOW AND ICE REMOVAL 176,530                35,847                 20% 170,030                39,399                 23%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3,519,210             1,194,352           34% 3,773,835             2,063,033           55%

2020-2021 2019-2020

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
QUARTERLY BUDGET REPORT

LOCAL STREETS

QUARTER ENDED:  DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND DECEMBER 31, 2019
% OF FISCAL YEAR COMPLETED:  50%



AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET

BUDGET ACTUAL USED BUDGET ACTUAL USED

REVENUES:

USE OF FUND BALANCE 202,233                -                        0% 95,840                   -                       0%

TAXES 2,042,500             2,046,705           100% 1,935,000             1,939,922           100%

INTERGOVERNMENTAL 4,110                     3,994                   97% 4,200                     4,113                   98%

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 17,000                   8,768                   52% 18,000                   8,804                   49%

INTEREST AND RENT 30,000                   6,219                   21% 31,820                   14,890                 47%

OTHER REVENUE -                         45                         0% -                         78                         0%

TOTAL REVENUES 2,295,843             2,065,731           90% 2,084,860             1,967,807           94%

EXPENDITURES:

PERSONNEL COSTS 190,050                132,466               70% 187,380                133,522              71%

SUPPLIES 28,000                   6,917                   25% 12,000                   1,077                   9%

OTHER CHARGES 2,077,793             939,502               45% 1,869,480             833,905              45%

CAPITAL OUTLAY -                         -                        0% 16,000                   4,762                   30%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,295,843             1,078,885           47% 2,084,860             973,266              47%

2020-2021 2019-2020

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
QUARTERLY BUDGET REPORT

SOLID WASTE

QUARTER ENDED:  DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND DECEMBER 31, 2019
% OF FISCAL YEAR COMPLETED:  50%



AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET

BUDGET ACTUAL USED BUDGET ACTUAL USED

REVENUES:

USE OF FUND BALANCE -                         -                        0% 7,500                     -                       0%

TAXES 287,300                264,870               92% 264,870                264,870              100%

CHARGES FOR SERVICES -                         -                        0% 1,500                     -                       0%

INTEREST AND RENT 2,000                     241                       12% 11,340                   1,738                   15%

OTHER REVENUE 20,000                   6,270                   31% 20,000                   -                       0%

TRANSFERS IN -                         -                        0% -                         -                       0%

TOTAL REVENUES 309,300                271,381               88% 305,210                266,608              87%

EXPENDITURES 307,300                50,375                 16% 299,280                238,771              80%

2020-2021 2019-2020

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
QUARTERLY BUDGET REPORT

BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT FUND

QUARTER ENDED:  DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND DECEMBER 31, 2019
% OF FISCAL YEAR COMPLETED:  50%



AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET

BUDGET ACTUAL USED BUDGET ACTUAL USED

REVENUES:

USE OF FUND BALANCE 247,280                -                        0% 113,700                -                       0%

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 25,000                   25,000                 100% 150,000                25,000                 17%

SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS 1,054,970             5,611                   1% 1,054,970             8,794                   1%

INTEREST AND RENT 13,700                   5,084                   37% 13,700                   4,126                   30%

OTHER REVENUE 190,000                5,540                   3% 190,000                163,413              86%

TOTAL REVENUES 1,530,950             41,235                 3% 1,522,370             201,333              13%

EXPENDITURES 1,530,950             549,753               36% 1,522,370             728,362              48%

2020-2021 2019-2020

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
QUARTERLY BUDGET REPORT

PRINCIPAL SHOPPING DISTRICT

QUARTER ENDED:  DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND DECEMBER 31, 2019
% OF FISCAL YEAR COMPLETED:  50%



AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET

BUDGET ACTUAL USED BUDGET ACTUAL USED

INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE 36,100                   -                        0% 57,299                   750                      1%

EXPENDITURES 36,100                   -                        0% 57,299                   21,390                 37%

2020-2021 2019-2020

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
QUARTERLY BUDGET REPORT

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT

QUARTER ENDED:  DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND DECEMBER 31, 2019
% OF FISCAL YEAR COMPLETED:  50%



AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET

BUDGET ACTUAL USED BUDGET ACTUAL USED

REVENUES:

USE OF FUND BALANCE -                         -                        0% -                         -                       0%

PROPERTY TAXES -                         -                        0% -                         -                       0%

INTEREST AND RENT 470                        109                       23% 470                        152                      32%

TOTAL REVENUES 470                        109                       23% 470                        152                      32%

EXPENDITURES -                         -                        0% -                         -                       0%

2020-2021 2019-2020

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
QUARTERLY BUDGET REPORT

TRIANGLE DISTRICT CORRIDOR IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY

QUARTER ENDED:  DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND DECEMBER 31, 2019
% OF FISCAL YEAR COMPLETED:  50%



AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET

BUDGET ACTUAL USED BUDGET ACTUAL USED

REVENUES:

USE OF FUND BALANCE -                         -                        0% 61,760                   -                       0%

FINES & FORFEITURES 25,000                   32,050                 128% 35,000                   38,938                 111%

OTHER REVENUE -                         -                        0% -                         -                       0%

INTEREST AND RENT 1,300                     521                       40% 1,100                     778                      71%

TOTAL REVENUES 26,300                   32,571                 124% 97,860                   39,716                 41%

EXPENDITURES:

OTHER CHARGES 2,840                     -                        0% -                         -                       0%

CAPITAL OUTLAY -                         -                        0% 97,860                   97,854                 100%

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,840                     -                        0% 97,860                   97,854                 100%

2020-2021 2019-2020

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
QUARTERLY BUDGET REPORT

LAW & DRUG ENFORCEMENT FUND

QUARTER ENDED:  DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND DECEMBER 31, 2019
% OF FISCAL YEAR COMPLETED:  50%



AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET

BUDGET ACTUAL USED BUDGET ACTUAL USED

REVENUES:

USE OF FUND BALANCE -                         -                        0% 1,677,170             -                       0%

TAXES 3,541,640             3,531,510           100% 3,370,950             3,385,815           100%

INTERGOVERNMENTAL 1,050,320             441,060               42% 1,029,190             238,459              23%

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 62,800                   2,321                   4% 81,150                   34,442                 42%

INTEREST AND RENT 52,000                   9,511                   18% 52,290                   30,406                 58%

OTHER REVENUE -                         -                        0% -                         -                       0%

TOTAL REVENUES 4,706,760             3,984,402           85% 6,210,750             3,689,122           59%

EXPENDITURES 4,025,350             2,392,797           59% 6,210,750             2,461,046           40%

2020-2021 2019-2020

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
QUARTERLY BUDGET REPORT

BALDWIN LIBRARY

QUARTER ENDED:  DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND DECEMBER 31, 2019
% OF FISCAL YEAR COMPLETED:  50%



AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET AMENDED YEAR-TO-DATE % OF BUDGET

INTERGOVERNMENTAL BUDGET ACTUAL USED BUDGET ACTUAL USED

REVENUES:

USE OF FUND BALANCE -                         -                        0% -                         -                       0%

TAXES 1,548,450             1,547,110           100% 1,609,500             1,609,435           100%

INTERGOVERNMENTAL 3,300                     3,292                   100% 3,660                     3,370                   92%

INTEREST AND RENT 3,000                     214                       7% 2,990                     3,374                   113%

TOTAL REVENUES 1,554,750             1,550,616           100% 1,616,150             1,616,179           100%

EXPENDITURES 1,549,250             1,458,930           94% 1,610,300             1,506,395           94%

2020-2021 2019-2020

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
QUARTERLY BUDGET REPORT

DEBT SERVICE FUND

QUARTER ENDED:  DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND DECEMBER 31, 2019
% OF FISCAL YEAR COMPLETED:  50%



1 

MEMORANDUM 

Finance Department 

DATE: February 26, 2021 

TO: Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Mark Gerber, Director of Finance/Treasurer 

SUBJECT: December 2020 Investment Report 

Public Act 213 of 2007 requires investment reporting on the City’s general investments to be 
provided to the City Commission on a quarterly basis.  This information is also required to be 
provided annually, which the City has and will continue to include within the audited financial 
statements. 

General investments of the City are governed by state law and the City’s General Investment 
Policy approved by the City Commission.  The services of an outside investment advisor are 
utilized to assist the treasurer in determining which types of investments are most appropriate 
and permitted under the investment policy, maximize the return on the City’s investments within 
investment policy constraints and provide for cash flow needs.  

The two primary objectives for investment of City funds are the preservation of principal and 
liquidity to protect against losses and provide sufficient funds to enable the City to meet all 
operating requirements that might be reasonably anticipated. Investment activities include all City 
funds except the retirement and retiree health-care funds as follows: 

• General Fund

• Permanent Funds
• Special Revenue Funds
• Capital Projects Fund
• Enterprise Funds
• Debt Service Funds
• Component Unit Funds
• Internal Service Funds

Overall, the City has $95.6 million invested in various securities according to its general 
investment policy as of December 31, 2020.   

The City has two pooled funds (CLASS Pool and J-Fund), which are used to meet payroll, 
contractor and other accounts payable needs.  As indicated on the attached schedule, there is 
approximately $7.7 million invested in pooled funds at the end of September.  A maximum of 
50% of the portfolio may be invested in pooled funds that meet state guidelines.  The amount 
currently invested in pooled funds is 8%.     

10E2



2 

 
 

The City also holds approximately $32.7 million, or 34%, of its investments in treasury notes and 
bills, which are obligations of the United States. The maximum amount of investments that may 
be held in government securities is 100%. 
 
Investments in federal agencies total approximately $55.2 million, or 58%, of the City’s 
investments.  The maximum amount of the portfolio that may be invested in federal agencies is 
75%. 
 
The Investment Policy requires that the average maturity of the portfolio may not exceed two 
and one-half years.  The current average maturity of the portfolio is 1.43 years.  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



                                                                     CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
                                               GENERAL INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO SUMMARY

12/31/2020

MATURITY CURRENT YEARLY % OF

YEAR DATE DESCRIPTION % YIELD * ISSUER PAR VALUE COST MARKET VALUE TOTAL TOTAL

2020 12/31/2020 CLASS POOL 0.079% CITY MICHIGAN CLASS 2,158,224.34 2,158,224.34 2,158,224.34

12/31/2020 J FUND 0.013% CITY COMERICA BANK 5,519,825.37 5,519,825.37 5,519,825.37

7,678,049.71 8.03%

2021 1/12/2021 TR BILL 0.093% INSiGHT U.S. 2,500,000.00 2,499,296.04 2,499,975.00

1/21/2021 AGENCY 1.720% INSIGHT FHLMC 1,000,000.00 999,800.00 1,000,620.00

2/15/2021 TR NOTE 2.856% INSIGHT U.S 2,000,000.00 2,043,121.51 2,007,920.00

2/23/2021 AGENCY 2.791% INSIGHT FFCB 2,000,000.00 1,995,800.00 2,007,440.00

3/15/2021 TR NOTE 2.754% INSIGHT U.S. 1,175,000.00 1,165,315.43 1,180,099.50

3/25/2021 TR BILL 0.102% INSIGHT U.S. 2,500,000.00 2,498,717.92 2,499,575.00

5/7/2021 AGENCY 0.500% INSIGHT FHLMC 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1,000,450.00

5/15/2021 TR NOTE 2.829% INSIGHT U.S. 1,500,000.00 1,510,610.49 1,516,410.00

5/15/2021 TR NOTE 1.695% INSIGHT U.S. 1,500,000.00 1,521,152.34 1,513,710.00

5/24/2021 AGENCY 0.350% INSIGHT FHLMC 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1,000,430.00

6/15/2021 TR NOTE 1.704% INSIGHT U.S. 1,500,000.00 1,523,090.96 1,516,755.00

6/16/2021 AGENCY 0.500% INSIGHT FNMA 1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00 1,000,200.00

7/15/2021 TR NOTE 1.693% INSIGHT U.S. 1,500,000.00 1,524,497.21 1,519,920.00

9/29/2021 AGENCY 0.300% INSIGHT FHLMC 1,500,000.00 1,500,000.00 1,494,075.00

9/10/2021 AGENCY 3.030% INSIGHT FHLB 1,500,000.00 1,498,830.00 1,529,895.00

10/12/2021 AGENCY 3.003% INSIGHT FHLB 1,500,000.00 1,499,955.00 1,533,270.00

11/2/2021 AGENCY 0.320% INSIGHT FHLMC 1,500,000.00 1,500,000.00 1,500,600.00

11/15/2021 TR NOTE 2.438% INSIGHT U.S. 2,000,000.00 2,022,421.88 2,047,500.00

12/15/2021 TR NOTE 2.469% INSIGHT U.S. 2,000,000.00 2,008,444.20 2,047,580.00

30,416,424.50 31.82%

2022 1/5/2022 AGENCY 1.533% INSIGHT FNMA 2,000,000.00 2,021,480.00 2,038,060.00

1/13/2022 AGENCY 2.209% INSIGHT FHLMC 1,000,000.00 1,004,248.61 1,023,120.00

1/13/2022 AGENCY 1.655% INSIGHT FHLMC 1,500,000.00 1,524,093.00 1,534,680.00

3/11/2022 AGENCY 2.433% INSIGHT FHLB 1,000,000.00 1,001,850.00 1,028,300.00

3/14/2022 AGENCY 1.932% INSIGHT FFCB 1,000,000.00 997,830.00 1,020,470.00

3/31/2022 TR NOTE 0.137% INSIIGHT U.S. 2,500,000.00 2,508,984.38 2,507,900.00

3/28/2022 AGENCY 0.450% INSIGHT FHLMC 1,500,000.00 1,500,000.00 1,493,430.00

4/15/2022 TR NOTE 0.134% INSIGHT U.S. 2,000,000.00 2,065,241.08 2,054,540.00

6/10/2022 AGENCY 1.882% INSIGHT FHLB 1,500,000.00 1,510,635.00 1,548,434.30

6/10/2022 AGENCY 1.930% INSIGHT FHLB 2,000,000.00 2,011,248.00 2,052,575.70

8/5/2022 AGENCY 1.497% INSIGHT FFCB 2,000,000.00 2,020,180.00 2,054,580.00

8/19/2022 AGENCY 0.450% INSIGHT FNMA 2,000,000.00 1,999,500.00 1,999,240.00

9/9/2022 AGENCY 1.613% INSIGHT FHLB 1,500,000.00 1,516,588.50 1,546,935.00

9/30/2022 AGENCY 0.390% INSIGHT FHLMC 1,500,000.00 1,499,025.00 1,497,165.00

10/13/2022 AGENCY 1.549% INSIGHT FFCB 1,500,000.00 1,502,076.00 1,538,640.00

10/31/2022 TR NOTE 1.854% INSIGHT U.S. 1,500,000.00 1,506,977.68 1,551,270.00

11/17/2022 AGENCY 0.360% INSIGHT FNMA 1,000,000.00 999,800.00 1,000,720.00

27,490,060.00 28.76%

2023 1/19/2023 AGENCY 1.617% INSIGHT FNMA 2,500,000.00 2,558,475.00 2,614,500.00

2/17/2023 AGENCY 0.192% INSIGHT FHLB 1,500,000.00 1,542,361.50 1,538,850.00

2/21/2023 AGENCY 1.491% INSIGHT FFCB 2,000,000.00 2,004,653.94 2,058,720.00

3/31/2023 TR NOTE 1.421% INSIGHT U.S. 1,500,000.00 1,556,430.81 1,579,455.00

5/15/2023 TR NOTE 1.578% INSIGHT U.S. 1,500,000.00 1,509,028.46 1,557,075.00

6/19/2023 AGENCY 1.851% INSIGHT FHLMC 1,500,000.00 1,550,467.50 1,594,755.00

6/26/2023 AGENCY 0.233% INSIGHT FHLMC 1,500,000.00 1,500,705.00 1,503,255.00

9/8/2023 AGENCY 1.466% INSIGHT FHLB 2,000,000.00 2,070,800.00 2,116,900.00

9/12/2023 AGENCY 1.591% INSIGHT FNMA 1,500,000.00 1,573,410.00 1,607,250.00

10/31/2023 TR NOTE 1.423% INSIGHT U.S. 1,500,000.00 1,587,954.24 1,614,780.00

11/15/2023 TR NOTE 1.572% INSIGHT U.S. 1,500,000.00 1,570,258.93 1,611,330.00

11/27/2023 AGENCY 0.202% INSIGHT FNMA 500,000.00 500,690.00 500,450.00

19,897,320.00 20.81%

2024 2/5/2004 AGENCY 1.572% INSIGHT FNMA 1,500,000.00 1,558,201.50 1,606,590.00

2/29/2024 TR NOTE 1.637% INSIGHT U.S. 1,750,000.00 1,785,621.10 1,857,327.50

7/2/2024 AGENCY 1.719% INSIGHT FNMA 1,500,000.00 1,502,037.00 1,579,365.00

9/13/2024 AGENCY 1.729% INSIGHT FHLB 1,750,000.00 1,843,345.00 1,919,190.00

6,962,472.50 7.28%

2025 1/7/2025 AGENCY 0.362% INSIGHT FNMA 1,500,000.00 1,580,434.50 1,580,655.00

2/12/2025 AGENCY 0.344% INSIGHT FHLMC 1,500,000.00 1,575,136.50 1,573,545.00

3,154,200.00 3.30%

1.278% 93,353,049.71 94,548,870.92 95,598,526.71 95,598,526.71 100.00%

AVERAGE MATURITY (YEARS): 1.43

POOLS $7,678,049.71 8.03%

COM'L PAPER $0.00 0.00%

TR BILL $4,999,550.00 5.23%

TR NOTES $27,683,572.00 28.96%

AGENCIES $55,237,355.00 57.78%

   TOTAL $95,598,526.71 100.00%

COMPARATIVE RETURNS

City Portfolio 1-Yr TR 2-Yr TR

Current Month 1.28% 0.12% 0.12% * INSIGHT: $87,920,477.00 91.97%

Previous Month 1.29% 0.12% 0.12% *ASSIGNED TO CITY: $7,678,049.71 8.03%
1 Year Ago 1.83% 1.56% 1.66% $95,598,526.71 100.00%

8.03%

31.82%
28.76%

20.81%

7.28%
3.30%

0.00

0.05

0.10

0.15

0.20

0.25

0.30

0.35

2020                2021               2022                  2023                2024                2025                    

TOTAL INVESTMENTS PER YEAR

8.03%
0.00%

5.23%

28.96%
57.78%

ASSET MIX

POOLS

COM'L PAPER

TR BILL

TR NOTES

AGENCIES



BIRMINGHAM 
POLICE 

DEPARTMENT 

2020 
ANNUAL REPORT

K-9 BELLA 

10E3



1 

Page 

Auxiliary 22 

Calls for Service 20 

Chief’s Message 2 - 5 

Crime Analysis 

Adult Arrest Comparison Report 
15 

Adult Arrest By Month Report 16 

Juvenile Arrest Disposition Report 21 

Organizational Chart 6 

Personnel 

Changes 11 

Distribution 7 

Register 8 – 10 

Seniority Distribution 12 

Summary of Offenses, Arrests, and Violations 13 

Summary of Offenses – Three Year Trend 14 

Traffic 

Accident Summaries / Trends 17 

Parking Violation Summaries 18 

Moving Violation Summaries 19 

INDEX 



2 
 

 
 

           
     March 2020 

 

Birmingham City Commission 
Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 
 
 
As Chief of Police for the City of Birmingham, I am proud to present the 2020 edition of the annual 
report. The year 2020 will be remembered as one of the most difficult and challenging on record. 
The novel coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic influenced our daily lives in an unprecedented 
manner.  Social unrest following a number of high profile police incidents strained community 
bonds and heightened racial tension.  A divisive national election further complicated our ability 
to move forward together as a nation.   
 
Despite all of this, we must all look to the future.  We must set aside our differences, respect one 
another as human beings and move forward for the common good of all people. As police chief 
for the City, I pledge to continue to do exactly this. The men and women of the police department 
work diligently to keep Birmingham a safe and welcoming community. Officers of the department 
are highly trained, educated and professional individuals.  The department holds all officers to 
the highest level of conduct and demands honesty, respect and integrity from all.  As chief, I 
have strived to create and maintain a culture in the department that encourages officers to 
exercise compassion, empathy and a sense of duty to the service of others. I will continue to 
work together with the community and the public at large to build a future for all people that 
ensures fairness, respect, dignity, security and justice for all.  
 
As we begin a new year, we must always embrace change in order to improve ourselves and 
continue to evolve as an agency to meet new and changing roles and demands in order to 
safeguard the rights of all citizens. In 2020, the police department continued to strive to meet 
community expectations of continued professionalism, responsiveness and transparency. 
Measures and programs undertaken included: 
 

• Initiated a two-year project for department accreditation through the Michigan 
Association of Chiefs of Police (MACP). 

• All officers now wear body-worn cameras while on patrol consistent with department 
policy and procedure.  

• Areas of concern in police reforms (chokeholds, duty to intervene, de-escalation training, 
use of force reporting, use of force continuum, bias-based policing, early intervention 

CHIEF’S MESSAGE 



3 
 

policy for potential problem officers) were all examined to ensure that all police 
department policies and procedures clearly addressed reform issues.    

The police department planned several new projects in 2020 for 2021 that include: 
 

• Examining mental health related service calls in our community. 

• Examining current methodology as it relates to providing service to those in the 
community suffering from mental illness and/or other “non-criminal” social issues.  

• Researching how the police department can better utilize services already in existence  to 
address issues of mental health and other ”service” related issues (substance abuse/senior 
assistance/juvenile behavioral issues). 

• Create, develop and implement an interlocal agreement between the City of Birmingham, 
the Township of Bloomfield and the City of Auburn Hills to collaborate with the Oakland 
Community Health Network to provide for a full time social worker to be exclusively 
assigned to the aforementioned communities. The cost of the social worker will be shared 
equally between the three communities.  

• Explore the possibility of receiving grant finding to support a pilot project to create a 
mental health co-response program. 

• Assessing options to train at least 20% of Birmingham police officers in advanced crisis 
intervention (40-hour training course).    

The 2020 edition of the Department’s annual report continues a trend of decreasing crime in our 
community.  All of the circumstances listed earlier have had a direct impact on our crime levels.  
However, the efforts of all police department staff, including officers, auxiliary officers, non-sworn 
personnel and the community itself should be recognized for continuing to work together to 
reduce crime.  As we navigated through the COVID-19 pandemic, the police department 
continued to enforce all existing laws and ordinances to maintain the peace and safety of our 
community.  The police department was also tasked with complying with Executive Orders issued 
from the Governor’s Office and orders issued from the Michigan Department of Health and Human 
Services Office. Most public engagement activities were curtailed and significant time was 
expended by the police department encouraging social distancing and promoting the wearing of 
masks.  
 
The mission statement of the Department reflects our agency’s commitment to the safety and 
security of all our residents and visitors: 
 

The Birmingham Police Department is committed to fairness, compassion and 
excellence in providing services sensitive to the priorities and needs of the community: 
the protection of life and property, the apprehension of criminal perpetrators and the 
prevention of crime in accordance with the law.  
 

The chart below summarizes this report, delineating calls for service, major crime categories and 
arrest categories. For historical perspective, included in this chart are crime statistics from 25 and 
50 years ago.  While any crime is unacceptable to the police department, the citizens of 



4 
 

Birmingham should be very proud of a crime rate that has been consistently low over the course 
of the past several years. 
     
 2020 2019 2018 1995 1970 
Total calls for service 21,167 20,537 17,945 19,269 15,528 
Number of sworn 
officers 

33 33 32 35 42 

      
Homicide 0 0 0 0 0 
Criminal Sexual Conduct 
I, lll 

0 3 1 3 3 

Robbery 1 1 5 4 23 
Vandalism 33 33 39 257 N/A 
Burglary 14 20 11 47 182 
Larceny 80 94 164 622 826 
Vehicle theft 10 8 6 41 43 
Operating While 
Impaired 

27 95 76 212 55 

Fraud 89 110 139 120 72 
Adult arrests 172 441 594 738 503 
Juvenile arrests 12 9 17 51 398 

 
Despite our relatively small size, the police department’s footprint in Oakland County’s law 
enforcement community is broad. The department is a participating member of several multi-
jurisdictional task forces organized under cooperative agreements with numerous neighboring 
law enforcement agencies.  These task forces address specialized and complex crime and service 
related issues.  Currently, the department participates in eight of these task forces/cooperative 
agreements:    
 
CLEMIS (Courts and Law Enforcement Management Information System): CLEMIS provides 
records management, computer aided dispatch systems and criminal data base records for 
Oakland County police agencies and other local, state and federal agencies. By serving as a 
technical link among multiple members, CLEMIS promotes communication and sharing of criminal 
justice information.  
 
PSAP (Public Safety Answering Point): The City has provided dispatch services to the Village of 
Beverly Hills since 2012. 
 
MCAT (Major Case Assistance Team): 9 local law enforcement agencies that provide experienced 
investigators to work on major and complex criminal investigations.   
 
NET (Narcotics Enforcement Team): 16 local law enforcement agencies and two federal partners 
(Drug Enforcement Administration and the Department of Homeland Security) that conduct 
narcotics investigations throughout Oakland County and other areas.  The Oakland County 
Sherriff’s Office supervises the team.     
 
SIU (Special Investigations Unit): 5 local law enforcement agencies that target organized 
criminals/criminal enterprises utilizing undercover operations and surveillance.  The team also 



5 
 

assists in wanted fugitive apprehensions.  The City of Troy Police Department supervises the 
team.  
 
OAKTAC (Oakland County Tactical Unit): 40 local law enforcement agencies throughout Oakland 
County trained in the area of crowd management and civil unrest events.  The team can also 
assist with active shooter and hostage tactical situations.  
 
Federal Bureau of Investigation Financial Crimes Task Force (FBI): Cooperative 
agreement with the Federal Bureau of Investigation to assign local law enforcement officers to 
the FBI in order to work on local fraud cases at the federal level to enhance investigatory 
capabilities and address large scale fraud cases crossing local, state and federal jurisdictions.   
 
SOCCIT (South Oakland County Crash Investigation Team): 5 local law enforcement agencies 
that provide highly trained officers in the field of accident investigation/reconstruction. The team 
conducts accident investigations involving serious or fatal vehicle and/or pedestrian traffic related 
incidents.  
 
It is my hope that this message provides a well-rounded view of the commitment and dedication 
of the men and women of the Birmingham Police Department.  The department could not do the 
important work of providing for the safety and well-being of the community without the assistance 
and support we receive from the City Manager, the City Commission and our residents.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



6 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2020 ORGANIZATIONAL CHART 

 

CHIEF OF POLICE 

             SERVICES DIVISION 
 
1   Commander 

 1   Staff & Services Coordinator 
1   Records Clerk (full-time) 
2   Records Clerks (part-time) 
3   Parking Meter Maintenance (part-time)  
1   Parking Enforcement Assistant (full-time) 
5   Parking Enforcement Assistants (part-time) 
9   School Crossing Guards 

 
          

OPERATIONS DIVISION 
1  Commander 
4   Lieutenants 
4   Sergeants 

  16  Officers 
      8    Dispatchers (full-time) 
      4    Dispatchers (part-time) 

 
 

AUXILIARY POLICE 
 
1   Chief 
1   Lieutenants 
3   Sergeants 

     10  Officers 
 

1 Secretary / Records Clerk (part-time) 

1 K-9 Therapy Dog 

INVESTIGATIVE DIVISION 

1  Commander 
2  Sergeants 

   3  Officers 
       
       

 



7 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
FULL TIME SWORN POSITIONS 

 

 
2020 

 
2019 

 
2018 

 
2017 

 
2016 

 
CHIEF OF POLICE 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
1 

 
1 

 
1 

 
COMMANDER 
 

 
3 

 
3 

 
3 

 
3 

 
3 
 

 
LIEUTENANT 
 

 
4 

 
4 

 
4 

 
4 

 
4 

 
SERGEANT 
 

 
6 

 
6 

 
6 

 
7 

 
7 

 
POLICE OFFICER 
 

 
19 

 
19 

 
18 

 
17 

 
17 

 
SWORN OFFICER TOTAL 

 

 
33 

 
33 

 
32 

 
32 

 
32 

 
FULL TIME CIVILIAN POSITIONS 

 

 
2020 

 
2019 

 
2018 

 
2017 

 
2016 

 
PARKING ENFORCEMENT ASSISTANT 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
1 

 
1 

 
1 

 
STAFF & SERVICES COORDINATOR 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
1 

 
1 

 
1 

 
DISPATCHER 
 

 
8 

 

 
8 

 
8 

 
8 

 
7 

 
RECORDS CLERK 
 

 
1 

 
1 

 
1 

 
1 

 
1 

 
FULL TIME CIVILIAN TOTAL 

 

 
11 

 
11 

 
11 

 
11 

 
10 

 
FULL TIME EMPLOYEE TOTAL 

 

 
44 

 
44 

 
43 

 
43 

 
42 

 
PART TIME CIVILIAN POSITIONS 

 

 
2020 

 
2019 

 
2018 

 
2017 

 
2016 

 
PARKING METER MAINTENANCE 
 

 
3 

 
3 

 
3 

 
3 
 

 
2 

 
SCHOOL CROSSING GUARD 
 

 
9 

 
9 

 
9 

 
9 

 
9 

 
CLERK / SECRETARY 
 

 
3 

 
3 

 
3 

 
3 

 
3 

 
PARKING ENFORCEMENT ASSISTANT 
 

 
5 

 
5 

 
5 

 
5 

 
5 

 

BIRMINGHAM POLICE DEPARTMENT 
PERSONNEL DISTRIBUTION 

AUTHORIZED POSITIONS 
2020 

 



8 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
CHIEF OF POLICE 
 

  
Mark H. Clemence 

 
COMMANDERS 
 

 
SERVICES DIVISION 

 
Michael Albrecht 

  
INVESTIGATIVE 
DIVISION 
 

 
Chris Busen 

  
OPERATIONS DIVISION 
 

 
Scott Grewe 

 
LIEUTENANTS 
 

 
PLATOON A 
PLATOON B 
PLATOON C 
PLATOON D 
 

 
Greg Wald 
Christopher Koch 
Ryan Kearney 
Raymond Faes 

 
SERGEANTS 
 

 
PLATOON A 
PLATOON B 
PLATOON C 
PLATOON D 
 
INVESTIGATORS 

 
Michael Lyon 
Katherine Long 
Michael Romanowski 
Joseph Bunting 
 
Rebekah Springer 
Michael Simpson 
David Buttigieg 
Alex Linke 
Jeff Whipple 
 

 
POLICE OFFICERS 
 

 
 

 
Seth Barone 
Josh Bouchard 
Christopher Bukoski 
Nicholas Hill 
Josh Husted 
Yacoub Iseid 
Nicholas Krumm 
Brent Macumber 
Michael Manzo 
Kyle McCanham 
Scott McIntyre 

BIRMINGHAM POLICE DEPARTMENT 
PERSONNEL REGISTER 

PRESENT FOR DUTY DECEMBER 31 2020 



9 
 

Gina Moody 
Casey Pedersen 
Evan Rothe 
Stefan Syts 
Jordan Zale 

   
DISPATCHERS 
 

FULL TIME Sharon Blair 
Joya Davis 
Jamie Irwin 
Steven Lemiere-Bozynski 
Joseph Misiak 
Daniel Ruby 
Melissa Toole 
Terez Willis 
 

DISPATCHERS 
 

PART TIME Janice Delinko 
Antoinette Licari 
Kristine Longtine 
David Sharick 

 
STAFF & SERVICES 
COORDINATOR 
 

 
FULL TIME 

 
Ellen DeView 

 
RECORDS CLERK 
 

 
FULL TIME 
 

 
Jennifer Davis 
 

SECRETARY 
RECORDS CLERK 
 

PART TIME Gwynn Duffy 
Brandi Ljungvall 
Darlene St. Charles 
 

PARKING 
ENFORCEMENT 
ASSISTANTS 
 

FULL TIME 
PART TIME 

James Lotridge 
Kenneth Hitchcock 
Howard Jacobs 
Robert Prew 
Linda Rodriguez 
Christine Williams 
 

PARKING METER  
MAINTENANCE 
AND 
COLLECTION 
 

PART TIME 
 

Rick Waynick 
Cheryl Vassallo 
Vacant 
 

SCHOOL 
CROSSING 
GUARDS 
 

PART TIME Rick Argus 
Evan Berns * 
Suann Darmody  
Alexandra Harris  
Laura Keaton  
Thomas Lynch  



10 
 

Kenneth McQuillan * 
George Oltman, Jr. 
Iris Poole * 
Audrey Reed  
Steffanie Rhymes  
Mary Sczesny * 
 

   *  SUBSTITUTE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



11 
 

 
 
 

PROMOTED 
  
 Steven Lemiere-Bozynski, Dispatcher (to full time) 
 
POSITION ELIMINATED 
  
 None 
 
RECRUITED  

     
Antoinette Licari, Dispatcher (part time) 
Kristen Longtine, Dispatcher (part time) 
Walter Radu, Dispatcher (part time) 
Evan Berns, Crossing Guard (part time) 
 

RESIGNED 
   
  Renee Backlund, Dispatcher 

Kristen Longtine, Dispatcher (part time) 
Walter Radu, Dispatcher (part time) 
Dennis Sheppard, Crossing Guard 
Chester Zuchlewski, Crossing Guard 

 
RETIRED 
  
 Frank Russell, Dispatcher 

 
 TRANSFERRED 

 
None 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
   
  
 
 
 
 
 

2020 PERSONNEL CHANGES 



12 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

           OFFICER / SERGEANT   
00-04 years of service 9 
05-09 years of service 10 
10-14 years of service 0 
15-19 years of service 1 
20-24 years of service 5 
25-30 years of service 0 

 
Total 

 
25 

  
LIEUTENANT / COMMANDER  

05-09 years of service 0 
10-14 years of service 0 
15-19 years of service 2 
20-24 years of service 4 
25-30 years of service 1 
31-35 years of service 0 

  
Total 7 

CHIEF  
35 +  years of service 1 

 
Total 

 
1 

  
DISPATCHERS  

00-04 years of service 6 
05-09 years of service 4 
10-14 years of service 0 
15-19 years of service 0 
 20-24 years of service 0 
 25-29 years of service 
 30-35 years of service 

0 
2 
 

 
Total 

 
12 

  
 

SWORN OFFICER 
SENIORITY AVERAGE 

12.49 YEARS 

CIVILIAN EMPLOYEE 
SENIORITY AVERAGE 
(FULL TIME) 

16.26 YEARS 

CIVILIAN EMPLOYEE 
SENIORITY AVERAGE 
(PART TIME) 

8.20 YEARS 

2020 SENIORITY DISTRIBUTION 



13 
 

 
 
The primary goal of the department is protection of life and property, prevention of 
crime, and apprehension of criminal perpetrators.  We strive to deliver the best 
possible police service in a professional, courteous manner to the residents of the 
city and to those who work, travel, and shop here. 
 
In 2020, we responded to 21,167 calls for police service, an increase of 3.07% 
from the previous year.  These calls are classified into three separate groups:   
 
Group A includes:  Robbery, forcible sexual assaults, larceny, burglary, damage 
 to property, etc. 
 
Group B includes:  Operating While Intoxicated (OWI), disorderly conduct, liquor  

law violations, misdemeanor sex offenses, non-violent family offenses, etc. 
 

Group C includes:  Traffic offenses, traffic crashes, juvenile offenses, warrant 
arrests, general patrol activity, etc. 
 

Group A incidents were down 16.98% 
 2020 = 308 
 2019 = 371 

 
Group A arrests were down 37.50% 
 2020 = 30 
 2019 = 48 
 
Group B incidents were down 32.14% 
 2020 = 133 
 2019 = 196 
 
Group B arrests were down 50.79% 
 2020 = 62 
 2019 = 126 
 
Group C incidents were up 3.53% 
 2020 = 20,728 
 2019 = 20,021 

 
Group C arrests were down 70.42% 
 2020 = 71 
 2019 = 240 
  
Traffic citations were down 61.77% 
 2020 = 2,859 
 2019 = 7,479 
 
Total parking violations were down 38.60% 
 2020 = 28,052 
 2019 = 45,691 
 

SUMMARY OF OFFENSES, ARRESTS, AND VIOLATIONS 



14 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

OFFENSES 2020 2019 2018 3 YEAR 
AVERAGE 

CRIMINAL HOMICIDE 0 0 0 0.00 
CRIMINAL SEXUAL CONDUCT I, III 0 3 5 2.67 
ROBBERY 1 1 3 1.67 
ASSAULT ALL  34 46 51 43.67 
BURGLARY 14 20 24 19.33 
LARCENY 80 94 84 86.00 
MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT 10 8 9 9.00 
ARSON 0 0 0 0.00 
CRIMINAL SEXUAL CONDUCT II, IV 1 2 5 2.67 
FORGERY / COUNTERFEITING 4 5 1 3.33 
FRAUD 89 110 113 104.00 
EMBEZZLEMENT 3 8 8 6.33 
VANDALISM 33 33 19 28.33 
OPERATING WHILE INTOXICATED 27 95 71 64.33 
     
TOTALS 296 425 393 371.33 

SUMMARY OF OFFENSES 
THREE YEAR TREND 



15 
 

     
 
 
 
 

OFFENSES 2020 2019 2018 3 YEAR 
AVERAGE 

CRIMINAL SEXUAL CONDUCT I, III  0 1 1 .67 
 
HOMICIDE 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0.00 

 
ROBBERY 

 
0 

 
0 

 
3 

 
1.00 

 
ASSAULT 

 
15 

 
25 

 
34 

 
24.67 

 
BURGLARY 

 
3 

 
0 

 
7 

 
3.33 

 
LARCENY 

 
9 

 
21 

 
22 

 
17.33 

 
MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT 

 
2 

 
1 

 
1 

 
1.33 

 
ARSON 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0.00 

TOTAL PART A 29 48 68 48.33 
 
CRIMINAL SEXUAL CONDUCT II, IV 

 
1 

 
0 

 
1 

 
0.67 

 
FORGERY / COUNTERFEITING 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0.00 

 
FRAUD 

 
5 

 
10 

 
5 

 
6.67 

 
EMBEZZLEMENT 

 
1 

 
4 

 
0 

 
1.67 

 
VANDALISM 

 
4 

 
3 

 
6 

 
4.33 

 
OPERATING WHILE INTOXICATED 

 
26 

 
86 

 
62 

 
58.00 

 
OTHER PART B 

 
26 

 
23 

 
14 

 
21.00 

*TOTAL PART B 63 126 88 92.33 
 
WARRANT ARRESTS 

 
25 

 
85 

 
85 

 
65.00 

 
MISCELLANEOUS DRIVING OFFENSES 

 
46 

 
155 

 
156 

 
119.00 

TOTAL PART C 71 240 241 184.00 
     
GRAND TOTAL 163 414 397 324.67 

 

ADULT ARREST COMPARISON REPORT 



16 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MONTH 2020 2019 2018 3 YEAR AVERAGE 

JANUARY 32 41 42 38.33 
FEBRUARY 32 46 33 37.00 
MARCH 20 43 54 39.00 
APRIL 0 34 32 22.00 
MAY 5 29 31 21.67 
JUNE 7 38 26 23.67 
JULY 3 36 34 24.33 
AUGUST 9 27 39 25.00 
SEPTEMBER 8 33 27 22.67 
OCTOBER 14 24 21 19.67 
NOVEMBER 6 23 33 20.67 
DECEMBER 9 24 33 22.00 

TOTAL 145 398 405 316.00 

ADULT ARREST BY MONTH REPORT 



17 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ACCIDENT TYPE 2020 TOTAL 2019 TOTAL 2018 TOTAL 3 YEAR AVERAGE 

FATAL INJURY 2 0 0 0.67 

PERSONAL 
INJURY 

43 83 60 62.00 

PROPERTY 
DAMAGE 

466 743 765 658.00 

TOTAL 
ACCIDENTS 

511 826 825 720.67 

#  PERSONS 
KILLED 

2 0 0 0.67 

ACCIDENT SUMMARIES / TRENDS 



18 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PARKING VIOLATIONS TOTAL 
2020 28,052 
2019 45,691 
2018 40,637 
2017 37,278 
2016 34,078 
2015 25,010 
2014 34,127 
2013 31,535 
2012 30,182 
2011 31,844 
2010 27,695 
2009 33,827 
2008 34,592 
2007 40,614 

METER VIOLATIONS TOTAL 
2020 26,438 
2019 42,110 
2018 36,612 
2017 32,691 
2016 29,633 
2015 20,842 
2014 29,629 
2013 28,162 
2012 27,935 
2011 29,737 
2010 25,252 
2009 30,314 
2008 30,584 
2007 35,274 
NON - METER VIOLATIONS TOTAL 

2020 1,614 
2019 3,581 
2018 4,025 
2017 4,587 
2016 4,445 
2015 4,168 
2014 4,498 
2013 3,373 
2012 2,247 
2011 2,107 
2010 2,443 
2009 3,508 
2008 4,008 
2007 5,340 

2020 PARKING VIOLATIONS SUMMARY 



19 
 

2020 MOVING VIOLATIONS SUMMARY 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

MOVING HAZARDOUS VIOLATIONS TOTAL 
2020 1,672 
2019 4,096 
2018 3,512 
2017 3,784 
2016 3,637 
2015 3,355 
2014 3,707 
2013 4,039 
2012 2,285 
2011 2,040 
2010 2,275 
2009 2,429 
2008 3,100 
2007 4,320 
2006 4,739 
2005 3,846 
2004 3,637 
2003 2,725 
2002 3,894 
MOVING NON-HAZARDOUS VIOLATIONS TOTAL 
2020 1,187 
2019 3,383 
2018 3,645 
2017 3,176 
2016 2,795 
2015 3,464 
2014 4,280 
2013 4,525 
2012 4,325 
2011 3,082 
2010 3,054 
2009 4,551 
2008 2,378 
2007 2,119 
2006 2,390 
2005 2,816 
2004 2,813 
2003 2,370 
2002 2,702 



20 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

2020 21,167 
2019 20,537 
2018 21,032 
2017 17,945 
2016 14,863 
2015 16,771 
2014 17,678 
2013 18,372 
2012 
2011 

16,571 
16,983 

2010 17,713 
2009 16,031 
2008 20,104 
2007 18,749 
2006 19,997 
2005 20,003 
2004 20,004 
2003 19,628 
2002 20,978 
2001 19,276 
2000 19,469 
1999 21,150 
1998 21,250 
1997 20,950 
1996 20,094 
1995 19,269 
1994 18,864 
1993 19,900 
1992 18,579 
1991 19,286 

CALLS FOR SERVICE 



21 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 2020 2019 2018 
    
ARRESTS    
MALE 6 6 7 
FEMALE 6 3 2 
TOTAL 12 9 9 
    
FELONY * 3 1 2 
MISDEMEANOR * 14 15 9 

    
DISPOSITIONS    
PARENTAL CONFERENCE 0 2 2 
YOUTH ASSISTANCE 8 6 0 
JUVENILE COURT 4 1 7 

 
 
 

* MAY REPRESENT MULTIPLE CHARGES 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2020 JUVENILE ARRESTS / DISPOSITIONS 



22 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Auxiliary Police is comprised of dedicated volunteers who either live or work in the 
City of Birmingham. 
 
Each member has been trained through the Police Academy Reserve Officer Training 
Program. 
 
Auxiliaries assist regular officers during many special events held throughout the year and 
act as back up to the regular officers on patrol.  Members of the Auxiliary Police are 
perhaps most visible while providing crowd, traffic control, and security for high school 
sporting events and also while participating in foot patrol assignments in the downtown 
area throughout summer. 
 
 
 

 
CHIEF 

Kurt Gerber 
 
LIEUTENANTS 

Timothy Griswold 
 

SERGEANTS 
Berge Avesian 
Robert Denton 
Brian Fitzerman 
 

   OFFICERS 
  Alex Calderone 

Brian Farrar 
James Glavin 
Brennan Hamilton 
David Jevahirian 
Robert Prew 
Kyle Ramfos 
Michel Saikalis 
Charles Tallinger 
Michael Wooley 

AUXILIARY POLICE REPORT 

AUXILIARY POLICE ROSTER AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2020 



INFORMATION ONLY








	03082021 Agenda
	5A 2_21_21 Minutes
	5B 20210308 Warrant List 2-24-2021
	5C 20210308 Warrant List 3-3-2021
	5D 20210308 Spring Tree Purchase and Plant
	5E 20210308 Park Rules & Regulations Update
	5F 20210308 HIDTA 2021 Agreement
	5G 20210308 670 S. Old Woodward - ROW Parking Request - 3-8-21 - FINAL
	20210308 670 S. Old woodward - Vibe Salon Suites - ROW Parking - 3-8-21
	20210308 - 670 S. Old Woodward - Vibe Salon Suites - ROW Parking Request - 2-25-21
	ACFrOgC6FGLw1oH19etVCBjzLdFwCoBlJnpNXaVO0UQLooRv5YGARM52BakdNF7bsavUuMYKWAEyhlkJ4aFuYFJdUa6Jz3OU51GWmvc4v3rSnDi-8RZU4nrNV-rxSxk=
	2


	5H 20210308_Cranbrook_CostShareAgt_with_RCOC
	55201_Cranbrook_Road_Final_Plans.pdf
	Sheet_7A
	Sheets and Views
	mot03-Cover


	20201124_Cranbrook_Plans
	Sheet_6
	Sheets and Views
	det01-Cover


	Sheet_7
	20201124_Cranbrook_Plans
	Sheets and Views
	cv01-Cover Sheet
	nt01-Cover
	nt02-Cover
	nt03-Cover
	lg01-Cover
	mot02-Cover
	sdet01-Cover
	typ01-Cover
	typ01A-Cover
	typ02-Cover
	typ02A-Cover
	typ03-Cover
	dt01-Cover
	dt02-Cover
	dt03-Cover
	dt04-Cover
	ha01-Cover
	ha02-Cover
	ha03-Cover
	ha04-Cover
	ha05-Cover
	ss01-Cover
	ss02-Cover
	pl01-Cover
	pl02-Cover
	pl03-Cover
	pl04-Cover
	pl05-Cover
	pl06-Cover
	pl07-Cover
	pl08-Cover
	pl09-Cover
	pl10-Cover
	lat01-Cover
	dg01-Cover
	dg02-Cover
	dg03-Cover
	dg04-Cover
	dg05-Cover
	dg06-Cover
	dg07-Cover
	pm_01-Cover
	pm_02-Cover
	pm_03-Cover
	pm_04-Cover
	pm_05-Cover
	ps_01-Cover
	ps_02-Cover
	ps_03-Cover
	ps_04-Cover
	ps_05-Cover
	sp_Det_01-Cover
	sp_Det_02-Cover
	RCOC_LEGEND-22x34
	RCOC_NOTE-22x34
	sr_01-Cover
	si_01-Cover
	si_02-Cover
	sc_01-Cover
	sb01-Cover
	sb02-Cover

	qty01-Cover.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	qty01-Cover


	qty02-Cover.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	qty02-Cover






	5I Signatures
	7A 20210308 PH - 219 Elm St. - All Seasons 2 - SLUP & FSP - 3-2-21 - FINAL
	20210308 PH - 219 Elm - All Seasons 2 - SLUP & FSP MEMO - 3-8-21
	20210308 PH - 219 Elm St. - All Seasons 2 - SLUP & FSP FULL - 3-8-21
	20210308 219 Elm St. - All Seasons 2 - NEW SITE PLANS - 3-8-21
	Bham Arch 2021-02-26 All Seasons
	ASoBham Civil 2-25-21
	(P-0)COVER-12049-COVER
	Sheets and Views
	(P-0)COVER-12049-COVER


	(P-1)TOPO-12049-P-1.0
	Sheets and Views
	(P-1)TOPO-12049-P-1.0


	(P-2)DIM-12049-P-2
	Sheets and Views
	(P-2)DIM-12049-P-2


	(P-3)GRADEANDUTIL-12049-P-3
	Sheets and Views
	(P-3)GRADEANDUTIL-12049-P-3


	(P-4)EXCONDITIONS-12049-P-4
	Sheets and Views
	(P-4)EXCONDITIONS-12049-P-4


	(P-5)WALKABILITY-P-5.0
	Sheets and Views
	(P-5)WALKABILITY-P-5.0


	(L-1.0)LANDSCAPE-12049-L-1.0
	Sheets and Views
	L-1.0


	(L-2.0)LANDSCAPE DETAILS-12049-L-2.0
	Sheets and Views
	L-2.0



	ASoBham Photometrics

	20210208 Set PH - 219 Elm - All Seasons 2 - SLUP & FSP - 2-2-21 - FINAL.pdf
	20210208 Set PH - 219 Elm - All Seasons 2 - SLUP & FSP FULL - 2-1-21
	4 - 219 Elm - All Seasons 2 - FSP & SLUP FULL - 1-27-21
	219 Elm St. - All Seasons 2 - SLUP & FSP REPORT - 1-27-21
	219 Elm St. - All Seasons 2 - ZONING SUMMARY - 12-9-2020



	20210208 Set PH - 219 Elm - All Seasons 2 - SLUP & FSP - 2-2-21 - FINAL
	0686_001
	20210208 Set PH - 219 Elm - All Seasons 2 - SLUP & FSP FULL - 2-1-21
	4 - 219 Elm - All Seasons 2 - FSP & SLUP FULL - 1-27-21
	ASBH II DRAFT LEED Scorecard

	5-13-20 Approved
	6-10-20 PB mins
	12-9-20 approved
	City Of Birmingham
	Regular Meeting Of The Planning Board
	Wednesday, December 9, 2020
	Jana L. Ecker
	Planning Director





	7B 20210308 Resolution on Master Plan Process - 3-3-21 - FINAL
	7C Resolution Regarding New Public Act 253
	7D Elevator Repair agenda statement
	7E Revised COVID actions 3-8-21
	9A 20210308 Resident Concern re Outdoor Dining - 3-3-21 - FINAL
	9B 20210308 Cory King Holland Communication
	CH Communication
	CH Document

	9Ba 20210308 Communication - Stuart Sherman
	10A1 20210308 NOTICE OF INTENTION - PRE-APPT-ARC 2021
	ARCHITECTURAL REVIEW COMMITTEE

	10A2 20210308 NOTICE OF INTENTION - PRE-APPT HBA 2021
	10A3 20210308 NOTICE OF INTENTION - PRE-APPT BRA 2021
	CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
	BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

	10E1 20210308 2nd Quarter Budget Report 20-21.docx
	10E2 20210308 2nd Quarter Investment Report
	10E3 20210308  2020 Police Department Annual Report
	Page
	22
	Adult Arrest Comparison Report

	Auxiliary
	MONTH
	TOTAL

	IO 20210308 SMART-OCPTA misson statement



